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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT S

Statements contained in this Annual Report on Fb@aK (this “Annual Report”yelating to plans, strategies, economic performaar trends, projections of results of spe
activities or investments and other statementsahanot descriptions of historical facts may beverd{ooking statements within the meaning of SectioA 27 the Securities Act of 19!
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act9341 Forwardeoking information is inherently subject to risked uncertainties, and actual results could diffeterially from thos
currently anticipated due to a number of factorsiclv include, but are not limited to, factors dissed under the captions “Business — General — Alfme for Loan Losses” an@tisines
— General — Market Area and Competition” in Itemeldw, “Risk Factors” in Item 1A below, in “Managentes Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiond &esults of Operatio
- Overview” in Item 7 below, and elsewhere in thisnial Report and in other documents filed by then@any with the Securities and Exchange Commissiom time to time. Forward-
looking statements may be identified by terms sash*may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “expects,” “pkns,” “intends,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “esties,” “predicts,” “forecasts,”
“potential” or “continue” or similar terms or theegative of these terms. Although we believe thatekpectations reflected in the forwdotking statements are reasonable, we c:
guarantee future results, levels of activity, perfance or achievements. We have no obligatioptate these forward-looking statements.

PART |

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, thedsotwe,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are used to refer to Flushing Financial Corporatiamd our consolidate
subsidiaries, including the surviving entity of therger (the “Merger”) on February 28, 2013 of owholly owned subsidiary, Flushing Savings Bank, BB “Savings Bank”with anc
into Flushing Commercial Bank (the “Commercial BgnKkrhe surviving entity of the Merger was the Coenaial Bank, whose name has been changed to “FhgsBiank.” Reference
herein to the “Bank” mean the Savings Bank (inchgdits wholly owned subsidiary, the Commercial Baior to the Merger and the surviving entity aftee Merger.

Ite m 1.Business.
G EN ERAL
Over view

We are a Delaware corporation organized in May 19% Savings Bank was organized in 1929 as a Nerk $tateehartered mutual savings bank. In 1994, the Savidags
converted to a federally chartered mutual saviregskband changed its name from Flushing Savings BarfKushing Savings Bank, FSB. The Savings Bankeded from a federal
chartered mutual savings bank to a federally cheditstock savings bank on November 21, 1995, atiwtiine Flushing Financial Corporation acquiredodlthe stock of the Savings Ba
On February 28, 2013, in the Merger, the SavingekBaerged with and into the Commercial Bank, wite Commercial Bank as the surviving entity. Pursuanthe Merger, tr
Commercial Bank’s charter was changed to adalivice New York State commercial bank charter,ismdame was changed to Flushing Bank. Also imeation with the Merger, Flushi
Financial Corporation became a bank holding comp®#/ do not anticipate any significant changesuioaperations or services as a result of the Mefee primary business of Flush
Financial Corporation has been the operation oBtek. The Bank owns three subsidiaries: FlushireddPred Funding Corporation, Flushing Service @omion, and FSB Properties |
In November, 2006, the Bank launched an internandir, iGObanking.corfi. The activities of Flushing Financial Corporatior arimarily funded by dividends, if any, receivedrh the
Bank, issuances of junior subordinated debt, asdaisces of equity securities. Flushing FinanciaipGations common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Selarket under th
symbol “FFIC.”

Flushing Financial Corporation also owns FlushimgaRcial Capital Trust I, Flushing Financial CapiTrust Ill, and Flushing Financial Capital Truigt(the “Trusts”),which are
special purpose business trusts formed during 20@5sue a total of $60.0 million of capital seties and $1.9 million of common securities (which the only voting securities). Flush
Financial Corporation owns 100% of the common s&earof the Trusts. The Trusts used the proceesis the issuance of these securities to purchaserjaubordinated debentures fr
Flushing Financial Corporation. The Trusts areinoluded in our consolidated financial statemestsva would not absorb the losses of the Trustssgés were to occur.
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Unless otherwise disclosed, the information preseim this Annual Report reflects the financial dition and results of operations of Flushing Finah€orporation, the Bank a
the Bank’s subsidiaries on a consolidated basifle@ively, the “Company”). Management views then@mny as operating a single unita—community bank. Therefore, segn
information is not provided. At December 31, 20tt® Company had total assets of $4.5 billion, digpa$ $3.0 billion and stockholders’ equity of $44 million.

Our principal business is attracting retail depogiobm the general public and investing those digpdsgether with funds generated from ongoing apiens and borrowing
primarily in (1) originations and purchases of mtamily residential properties and, to a lesseeak one-to-four family (focusing on mixetse properties, which are properties that co
both residential dwelling units and commercial sihand commercial real estate mortgage loans;ai@touction loans, primarily for residential profpes; (3) Small Business Administrat
(“SBA") loans and other small business loans; ri@rtgage loan surrogates such as mortgage-backedtsss; and (5) U.S. government securities, caafmfixedincome securities al
other marketable securities. We also originateagemther consumer loans including overdraft lioégredit. At December 31, 2012, we had gross laanstanding of $3,221.4 millic
(before the allowance for loan losses and net dederosts), with gross mortgage loans totaling @®.® million, or 90.2% of gross loans, and moortgage loans totaling $314.5 million,
9.8% of gross loans. Mortgage loans are primariliftisfiamily, commercial and one-to-four family mideise properties, which combined totaled 83.4% ofgloans. Our revenues
derived principally from interest on our mortgaged ather loans and mortgabecked securities portfolio, and interest and dimis on other investments in our securities paotfaDul
primary sources of funds are deposits, Federal Hooa® Bank of New York (“FHLB-NY”) borrowings, repchase agreements, principal and interest payneenksans, mortgagbacker
and other securities, proceeds from sales of dexsiend, to a lesser extent, proceeds from séliesies. On July 21, 2011, as a result of the DBdahk Wall Street Reform and Consul
Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), the SavinBank’s primary regulator became the Office of the®troller of the Currency (“OCC") and Flushing &irtial Corporatiors priman
regulator became the Federal Reserve Board of @ok®i(“Federal Reserve”). Upon completion of therde, the Banks primary regulator became the New York State Diepamt 0
Financial Services (“NYSDFS”) (formerly, the New MdState Banking Department), and its primary fatlezgulator became the Federal Deposit Insuramcpdtation (“FDIC”).Deposit:
are insured to the maximum allowable amount byRb&C. Additionally, the Bank is a member of the Esal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") system.

Our operating results are significantly affected rational and local economic conditions, includihe strength of the local economy. The national Ewdl economies we
generally considered to be in a recession from Bxez 2007 through the middle of 2009. This resuiteincreased unemployment and declining propeatyes, although the prope
value declines in our market, the New York City rapblitan area, have not been as great as many atbas of the country. While the national and llez@mnomies have shown signs
improvement since the middle of 2010, unemploynherst remained at an elevated level of 8.8% in batbenber 2012 and 2011, for the New York City regamtording to the New Yo
State Department of Labor. These economic condit@an result in borrowers defaulting on their loartss deterioration in the economy has resultethinbalance of our noperforming
loans remaining at an elevated level. Non-perfogrimans totaled $89.8 million, $117.4 million andi1®.1 million at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 20&8pectively. While non-
performing loans have remained elevated, we havgetexperienced a significant increase in forsetbproperties due to an extended foreclosure gsaneour market. Net chargéfs of
impaired loans have increased to $20.2 milliontlier year ended December 31, 2012 from $18.9 miblioth $13.6 million for the years ended Decembe2811 and 2010, respectively.
response to the economic conditions in our marnkdttae increase in ngoerforming loans, we began tightening our consareatnderwriting standards in 2008 to reduce thk associate
with lending.

The following changes were made in our underwristandards since 2008 to reduce the risk assoaiatedending on income producing real estate progs:
- When borrowers requested a refinance of an existiaggage loan when they had acquired the promerbbtained their existing loan within two yearstio¢ reques
we generally required evidence of improvementshegroperty that increased the property value ppst the additional funds and generally restridtesl loan-to-
value ratio for the new loan to 65% of the appraigalue.

- The debt coverage ratio was increased and thetteaalue ratio decreased for income producing propentiith fewer than ten units. This required ther@oer tc
have an additional investment in the property th@viously required and provided additional pratecshould rental units become vacs




- Borrowers who owned multiple properties were reeglito provide detail on all their properties tmwallus to evaluate their total cash flow requiremeBesed on th
review, we may decline the loan application, omiegja lower loa-to-value ratio and a higher debt coverage r:

. Income producing properties with existing rentg tliare at or above the current market rent forlsimproperties were required to have a higher deberage ratio 1
provide protection should rents declil

- Borrowers purchasing properties were required toatestrate they had satisfactory liquidity and mamagnt ability to carry the property should vacas@ecur o
increase

The following changes were made in our underwrittgndards since 2008 to reduce the risk on oriiettofamily residential property mortgage loans drwine equity lines
credit:

- We discontinued originating home equity lines ofdit without verifying the borrowes’ income. This was done in two stages. Beginniniylay 2008, we beg:
verifying the borrowes income when the home equity line of credit exeee$100,000. Beginning in October 2009, we veritiegl income of all borrowers applyi
for a home equity line of cred

- We discontinued offering o-to-four family residential property mortgage loanséd-employed individuals based on stated income anifiatade assets in June 201
The following changes were made in our underwristandards since 2008 to reduce the risk assoaiatBdusiness lending:

. All borrowers obtaining a business loan were regflito submit a complete financial information pagkaregardless of the amount of the loan. Prewoulmsrrower
for SBA Express loans and other loans under $180h@@ been exempt from this requirem:

- Background checks on all borrowers and guarantorbdsiness loans were expanded to identify an@weinformation in more public records, includinge@arch fc
judgments, liens, negative press articles, andlaftins with other entities

- The guarantee of related business entities proyidash flow to the borrowing entity became requfaedusiness loan:
. The allowable percentage of inventory and accoreusivable pledged as collateral for a business Vs reducec
. We established specific risk acceptance critenigfivate not for profit school:

The economic conditions we have experienced sireeeMber 2007 have also resulted in a reductionan Hemand, although we have seen an increaselih @dmbining th
overall reduced demand with our tightened undemygistandards, our loan originations and purchéme2012 declined to $632.5 million from $757.1 lioih in 2007.

Our operating results are also affected by extessieenewals, modifications and restructuring ahlin our loan portfolio. When extending, renewimgdifying or restructuring
loan, other than a loan that is classified as abiiexd debt restructured (“TDR™he loan is required to be fully underwritten ircaxance with our policy for new loans. The borroweis
be current to have a loan extended, renewed amuotsted. Our policy for modifying a mortgage lodne to the borrowes’ request for changes in the terms will dependhenchang
requested. The borrower must be current and haaod payment history to have a loan modified. & Horrower is seeking additional funds, the loafully underwritten in accordan
with our policy for new loans. If the borrower iseking a reduction in the interest rate due todiiniein interest rates in the market, we generaihjt our review as follows: (1) for incon
producing properties and business loans, to awesfehe operating results of the property/busiress a satisfactory inspection of the property, @)dor one-tofour residential propertie
to a satisfactory inspection of the property. Ooliqy on restructuring a loan when the loan willdassified as a TDR requires the loan to be fuligerwritten in accordance with Comp.
policy. The borrower must demonstrate the abilityrépay the loan under the new terms. When theuasting results in a TDR, we may waive some regquents of Company poli
provided the borrower has demonstrated the alidityeet the requirements of the restructured loshrapay the restructured loan. While our formatliag policies do not prohibit maki
additional loans to a borrower or any related esef the borrower who is past due in principainderest more than 90 days, it has been our peacot to make additional loans t
borrower or a related interest of the borrowehé borrower is past due more than 90 days asmeipal or interest. During the most recent threedl years, we did not make any additi
loans to a borrower or any related interest oflitbeower who was past due in principal or interaste than 90 days. All extensions, renewals, restrings and modifications must
approved by either the Board of Directors of theBé&he “Bank Board of Directors”) or its Loan Corntiee (the “Loan Committee”).
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Our operating results are also affected by lossesanperforming loans. Our policy requires a reappraisalan independent third party when a loan becoiwes/e month
delinquent. We generally obtain a reappraisal bynaependent third party for loans over 90 daysndelent when the outstanding loan balance is at 4.0 million. We also obte
reappraisals when our internally prepared valuatiba property indicates there has been a decfineiue below the outstanding balance of the lasnyhen a property inspection |
indicated significant deterioration in the conditiof the property. These internal valuations aepared when a loan becomes 90 days delinquent.

During 2006, the Bank established a business bgnlimt. Our business plan includes a transitiomfra traditional thrift to a more “commercial-likddanking institution b
focusing on the development of a full complementaimercial business deposit, loan and cash maregemoducts. As of December 31, 2012, the busibas&ing unit had $293
million in loans outstanding and $78.5 million efstomer deposits.

On November 27, 2006, the Bank launched an intdaraatch, iGObanking.com@®@hich provides us access to consumers in markéssdeuour geographic locations. Accounts
be opened online at www.iGObanking.com or by mathe internet branch does not currently accept bygplications. As of December 31, 2012, the irgebranch had $294.1 million
customer deposits.

During 2007, the Savings Bank formed a wholly owsabsidiary, Flushing Commercial Bank, a New Yotat&chartered commercial bank, for the limited purpokeroviding
banking services to public entities including coest cities, towns, villages, school districtsrdibies, fire districts and the various courts tiytoaut the New York City metropolitan ar
The Commercial Bank was formed in response to Newk\State law, which requires that municipal defand state funds must be deposited into a bamkistr company as defined
New York State law. The Savings Bank was not carsid an eligible bank or trust company for thispese. The Commercial Bank did not originate loafs.of December 31, 201
Flushing Commercial Bank had $697.0 million of cuser deposits.

On December 19, 2008, under the Troubled AsseeRBliogram (“TARP”), we entered into a Letter Agremt (including the Securities Purchase Agreemetandard Tern
incorporated by reference therein, the “Purchaseeédment”) with the United States Department of Theasury (the “U.S. Treasuryfjursuant to which we issued and sold to the
Treasury (i) 70,000 shares of the our Fixed Raten@ative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series B haaifiguidation preference of $1,000 per share (®eries B Preferred Stock'and (ii) ¢
ten-year warrant (the “Warranttd purchase up to 751,611 shares of the our constumk, par value $0.01 per share, at an initialepdf $13.97 per share, for an aggregate purchiace g
$70.0 million in cash. The Series B Preferred Stpaélified as Tier 1 Capital under the risk-basagital guidelines of the Office of Thrift Supenadsi (‘OTS”) (“Tier 1 Capital”)and pait
cumulative dividends at a rate of 5% per annumid®irds were payable on the Series B Preferred Sfoakerly and were payable on February 15, MayAlgust 15 and November 15
each year. The Series B Preferred Stock had norityatiate and ranked senior to our common stock wéspect to the payment of dividends and distidmstand amounts payable uj
liquidation and winding up of the Company. The Vdatrwould have expired ten years from the issualate and was immediately exercisable and trandéerdhe Purchase Agreem
contained limitations on the payment of dividendsand the repurchase of our common stock and neptaferred stock. The Purchase Agreement alagrestthat, until such time as 1
U.S. Treasury ceased to own any securities acqdiiced us thereunder, we take all necessary actioensure that benefit plans with respect to seexacutive officers complied wi
Section 111(b) of the Emergency Economic Stabibbraf\ct of 2008 (“EESA")as implemented by any guidance or regulation uB@etion 111(b) of EESA that has been issued andn
effect as of the date of issuance of the SerieseBeRed Stock and the Warrant and not adopt amgfiieplans with respect to, or which cover, ser@recutive officers that do not com
with EESA. Our senior executive officers conserttethe foregoing. During 2009, we issued, in a jublfering, 9.3 million common shares for totahsaderation, after expenses, of $1(
million. This public offering was a Qualified EquiOffering as defined in the Warrant. As a restilthis Qualified Equity Offering, the number of ska of common stock underlying
Warrant was reduced by ohaif. On October 28, 2009, we redeemed the Seri€selerred Stock for $70.0 million plus all accrusad unpaid dividends. On December 30, 200¢
repurchased the Warrant for $0.9 million.




Mar ket Area and Competition

We are a community oriented financial institutidfedng a wide variety of financial services to mméee needs of the communities we serve. The Bamidin office is in Flushin
New York, located in the Borough of Queens. At 8mber 31, 2012, the Bank operated out of 1i-service offices, located in the New York City Boghs of Queens, Brooklyn, a
Manhattan, and in Nassau County, New York. We ajserate an internet branch, iGObanking.c®mWe maintain our executive offices in Lake Succesbdlassau County, New Yo
Substantially all of our mortgage loans are sectisegroperties located in the New York City metrlifam area.

We face intense competition both in making loarts iarmattracting deposits. Competition for loan®ur market is primarily based on the types of loaffisred and the related ter
for these loans, including fixed-rate versus adjbletrate loans and the interest rate on the loan. 8joistable rate loans, competition is also basethemepricing period, the index to wh
the rate is referenced, and the spread over thexinate. Also, competition is influenced by theligbof a financial institution to respond to custer requests and to provide the borrc
with a timely decision to approve or deny the laaplication.

Our market area has a high density of financiditintsons, many of which have greater financialoees, name recognition and market presence, laofiahich are competito
to varying degrees. Particularly intense competigaists for deposits, as we compete with overtztks and thrifts in the counties in which we hbraench locations. Our market shar
deposits in these counties is approximately 0.4%heftotal deposits of these competing financistiintions, and we are the Zargest financial institution. In addition, we coete witf
credit unions, the stock market and mutual fundsctstomersfunds. Competition for deposits in our market aadrfational brokered deposits is primarily basedhentypes of depos
offered and rate paid on the deposits. Particulimtignse competition also exists in all of the legdactivities we emphasize. In addition to theafinial institutions mentioned above,
compete against mortgage banks and insurance caespganated both within our market and availabletmninternet. Competition for loans in our mariseprimarily based on the types
loans offered and the related terms for these |dankiding fixed-rate versus adjustalsige loans and the interest rate on the loan. 8oistble rate loans, competition is also basethe
repricing period, the index to which the rate iferenced, and the spread over the index rate. Alsmpetition is influenced by the ability of a fir@al institution to respond to custor
requests and to provide the borrower with a tinugision to approve or deny the loan applicatidme hternet banking arena also has many largendiahinstitutions which have grea
financial resources, name recognition and markesgce. Our future earnings prospects will be &fteby our ability to compete effectively with othinancial institutions and
implement our business strategies. Our strategwtioacting deposits includes using various mankgetechniques, delivering enhanced technology astbmer friendly banking servic
and focusing on the unique personal and small kssibbanking needs of the mudthnic communities we serve. Our strategy for etitng new loans is primarily dependent on provi
timely response to applicants and maintaining avoet of quality brokers. See “Risk Factors — Therkéds in Which We Operate Are Highly Competitivietluded in Item 1A of thi
Annual Report.

For a discussion of our business strategies, semégement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiaidit@n and Results of Operations — Overview — Mgagraent Strategy”
included in Item 7 of this Annual Report.

Le nding Activities

Loan Portfolio Composition Our loan portfolio consists primarily of mortgadpans secured by multi-family residential, comecradrreal estate, one-to-four family mixede
property, one-tdeur family residential property, and constructitmans. In addition, we also offer SBA loans, otserall business loans and consumer loans. Subsbargibof our
mortgage loans are secured by properties locatddnwour market area. At December 31, 2012, wedrads loans outstanding of $3,221.4 million (beftbve allowance for loan losses i
net deferred costs).

Since 2009 we have focused our mortgage loan atigin efforts on multi-family residential mortgalpans. In prior years we had focused our mortgage briginations on multi-
family residential, commercial real estate and tméur family mixed-use property mortgage loanke3e loans generally have higher yields than offettofamily residential propertie
and include prepayment penalties that we colletiiefloans pay in full prior to the contractual mréy. We expect to continue this emphasis on rfaltiily residential mortgage loa
through marketing and by maintaining competitivieiiest rates and origination fees. Our marketifigresfinclude frequent contacts with mortgage brekand other professionals who s¢
as referral sources. The reduced emphasis on cariahezal estate, one-to-four family mixede property mortgage loans, and construction Isaree 2009 was due to the increased
of risk in these types of loans in the current ecoic environment. While we expect to continue tleiduced emphasis on the origination of commereial estate and one-four family
mixed-use property mortgage loans, and construddi@ans, in the near term, we have cautiously reslime origination of non-owner occupied commercéall estate.
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Fully underwritten one-to-four family residentiabnigage loans generally are considered by the bgrikidustry to have less risk than other typeah$. Multifamily residentia
commercial real estate and one-to-four family mixee property mortgage loans generally have higiedds than one-téeur family residential property mortgage loans ahdrter terms 1
maturity, but typically involve higher principal @aunts and may expose the lender to a greater fiskedit loss than one-timur family residential property mortgage loans.r@hcrease
emphasis on multi-family residential mortgage loaimse 2009, and on multi-family residential, comana real estate and one-to-four family mixese property mortgage loans dui
years prior to 2009, has increased the overall lefveredit risk inherent in our loan portfolio. €lgreater risk associated with m-family residential, commercial real estate and-tmfour
family mixed-use property mortgage loans could require us tease our provisions for loan losses and to mairgaiallowance for loan losses as a percentagaiflbans in excess of t
allowance we currently maintain. We continuallyiesw the composition of our mortgage loan portfabamanage the risk in the portfolio. As a resultho$ ongoing review, we reduced
reliance on commercial real estate and one-to-famnily mixeduse property mortgage loans during the most rewemtyears, and tightened our conservative undengristandards -
further reduce the risk associated with lendinge S8eneral — Overview” in this Item 1 of this AnhuReport. To date, we have not experienced sigaifidosses in our mulfamily
residential, commercial real estate and one-to-faunily mixed-use property mortgage loan portfolios

Our mortgage loan portfolio consists of adjustahte mortgage (“ARM”) loans and fixewdte mortgage loans. Interest rates we chargeaslare affected primarily by the dem
for such loans, the supply of money available éording purposes, the rate offered by our compstaod the creditworthiness of the borrower. Manshoke factors are, in turn, affectec
local and national economic conditions, and theafismonetary and tax policies of the federal estatd local governments.

In general, consumers show a preference for ARMdaa periods of high interest rates and for fixate loans when interest rates are low. In peraddteclining interest rates, \
may experience refinancing activity in ARM loans, orrowers show a preference to lock-in the lorages available on fixerhte loans. In the case of ARM loans we originatediume
and adjustment periods are affected by the intea¢es and other market factors as discussed amwell as consumer preferences. We have not ipakg nor do we currently, origin
ARM loans that provide for negative amortization.

Prior to 2007, we had grown our construction loartfplio. During 2007, we began to deemphasize tanson loans, as originations of new constructimens declined. We ha
continued to deemphasize construction loans simme as we further reduced originations and redtieedbalance of our construction loan portfolio, evhtotaled $14.4 million at Deceml|
31, 2012. We intend to continue to deemphasizstoaction loans in the near term. We obtain a fiest position on the underlying collateral, andhggally obtain personal guarantee:
construction loans. These loans generally havena o€ two years or less. Construction loans invawgreater degree of risk than other loans becanseng other things, the underwriting
such loans is based on an estimated value of teajeed property, which can be difficult to ascirta light of uncertainties inherent in such esttions. In addition, construction lend
entails the risk that the project may not be coneplelue to cost overruns or changes in market tiondi The greater risk associated with constracii@ns could require us to increase
provision for loan losses, and to maintain an adloee for loan losses as a percentage of total ioagscess of the allowance we currently maintdmdate, we have not incurred signific
losses in our construction loan portfolio.

The business banking unit was formed in 2006 tagoen loans to businesses located within our mariest. These loans are generally personally gueedrity the owners, a
may be secured by the assets of the businessdinglveal estate. The interest rate on these Ilsagenerally an adjustable rate based on a puldistiex. These loans, while providing t
higher rate of return, also present a higher lefeisk. The greater risk associated with busideass could require us to increase our provisiagridan losses, and to maintain an allow:
for loan losses as a percentage of total loansdess of the allowance we currently maintain. Teedae have not incurred significant losses inlmusiness loan portfolio.

From time to time, we may purchase loans from nagégbankers and other financial institutions whenlbans complement our loan portfolio strategyaiopurchased must m
our underwriting standards when they were origidate

Our lending activities are subject to federal atadeslaws and regulations. See “— Regulation.”
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The following table sets forth the composition af étoan portfolio at the dates indicated.

At December 31

2012 2011 2

010

2009

2008

Percen Percen
Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount

Percen
of Total

Amount

Percen
of Total

Amount

Percen
of Total

(Dollars in thousands

Mortgage Loans

Multi-family residentia $1,534,43 47.62% $1,391,22. 43.2¢% $1,252,17 38.41% $1,158,70 36.16% $ 999,18 33.8%
Commercial real esta 515,43t 16.0C 580,78: 18.07 662,79: 20.3¢ 686,21( 21.4z 686,63( 23.2¢
One-to-four family - mixed-use
property 637,35: 19.7¢ 693,93: 21.5¢ 728,81( 22.3¢ 744,56( 23.2¢ 751,95: 25.4¢
One-to-four family - residential (1 198,96¢ 6.1¢ 220,43: 6.8¢€ 241,37t 7.4C 249,92( 7.81 238,71: 8.0¢
Cc-operative apartment (. 6,30 0.2C 5,50t 0.17 6,21°F 0.1¢ 6,55: 0.2C 6,56¢ 0.22
Construction 14,38 0.4 47,14( 1.47 75,51¢ 2.3z 97,27( 3.04 103,62t 3.51
Gross mortgage loar 2,906,88 90.2¢ 2,939,01: 91.4¢ 2,966,891 91.01 2,943,221 91.87 2,786,67! 94.31
Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic 9,49¢ 0.2¢ 14,03¢ 0.44 17,51: 0.54 17,49¢ 0.5t 19,67: 0.67
Taxi medallion 9,922 0.31 54,32¢ 1.6¢ 88,26 2.71 61,42: 1.92 12,97¢ 0.44
Commercial business and other 295,07t 9.1€ 206,61« 6.4% 187,16: 5.74 181,24( 5.6€ 135,24¢ 4.5¢
Gross non-mortgage loans 314,49: 9.7¢ 274,98: 8.5¢€ 292,93t 8.9¢ 260,16( 8.1% 167,89¢ 5.6¢
Gross loans 3,221,37! 100.0% 3,213,99 100.0%  3,259,82 100.0%  3,203,37: 100.0% 2,954,56! 100.0(%
Unearned loan fees and deferred cc
net 12,74¢ 14,88¢ 16,50: 17,11( 17,12:
Less: Allowance for loan losses (31,109 (30,349 (27,699 (20,329 (11,029
Loans, net $3,203,01 $3,198,53 $3,248,63 $3,200,15! $2,960,66:
1) One-tofour family residential mortgage loans also incluteme equity and condominium loans. At December 22112, gross home equity loans totaled $61.8 onillanc

condominium loans totaled $26.1 millic

) Consists of loans secured by shares represent@gsts in individual c-operative units that are generally owner occuy




The following table sets forth our loan originationsiciuding the net effect of refinancing) and the raes in our portfolio of loans, including purchassales and princip
reductions for the years indicated:

For the years ended December
(In thousands) 2012 2011 2010

Mortgage Loans

At beginning of yea $ 2,939,001 $ 2,966,890 $ 2,943,221

Mortgage loans originate:
Multi-family residentia 317,66: 249,01( 171,23t
Commercial real esta 31,78¢ 7,07 33,697
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 15,96: 23,75¢ 29,41¢
One-to-four family residentia 24,48 24,07 34,69
Cc-operative apartmel 1,81( - 407
Construction 80¢€ 1,722 10,49:
Total mortgage loans originated 392,51 305,63: 279,94:

Mortgage loans purchase
Commercial real estate - - -

Total mortgage loans purchased R R R

Less:
Principal reduction 359,16¢ 284,32" 229,95
Loans transferred to loans held for < 6,49¢ - -
Mortgage loan sale 34,03 24,83: 8,75¢
Chargroffs 19,28¢ 17,84¢ 13,17(
Mortgage loan foreclosures 5,662 6,50¢ 4,391
At end of year $ 290688 $ 293901 $ 2,966,89

Non-mortgage loans

At beginning of yea $ 27498: $ 29293t $ 260,16(

Loans originated
Small Business Administratic 52¢ 3,52¢ 3,86¢
Taxi Medallion 8 11,77¢ 59,55:
Commercial busines 231,87 66,35: 52,50
Other 4,13¢ 4,85¢ 5,991
Total other loans originated 236,55: 86,51¢ 121,91¢

Non-mortgage loans purchase

Taxi Medallion 3,45¢€ 19,05: 14,67
Less:

Non-mortgage loan sale 1,37¢ 4,10¢ -

Loans transferred to loans held for < 5,40( - -

Principal reduction 191,73: 118,03: 102,61°

Charge-offs 1,98t 1,39( 1,19¢
At end of year $ 314,49 $ 27498. $ 292 93¢




Loan Maturity and Repricinglhe following table shows the maturity of our toi@én portfolio at December 31, 2012. Schedulgadyeents are shown in the maturity catego
which the payments become due.

Mortgage loan: Non-mortgage loan
One-to-four
family One-to-four Commercie
Multi-family Commercic  mixec-use family Cc-operativt Small Busines Taxi busines:
(In thousands residential real estat property residential  apartmen  Constructio.  Administratior Medallion  and othel  Total loan:
Amounts due within one year $ 13352. $ 101,43t $ 3051: $ 8,59¢ $ 17¢ $ 1438. $ 423¢ $ 861« $ 160,60( $ 462,08
Amounts due after one yei
One to two year 111,65! 73,27¢ 26,801 7,68¢ 68 - 1,35( 40z 33,93¢ 255,18(
Two to three year 105,04: 61,22( 24,24¢ 7,61¢ 72 - 802 41€ 22,50( 221,91¢
Three to five year 102,41¢ 55,15¢ 20,91¢ 7,151 7C - 678 431 17,56 204,38
Over five years 1,081,80 224,34t 534,86! 167,91¢ 5,91¢ - 2,43¢ 5¢ 60,46¢  2,077,80
Total due after one year 1,400,91 414,00( 606,84( 190,37( 6,127 - 5,26( 1,30¢ 134,46¢ 2,759,29
Total amounts due $ 153443 $ 51543t $ 637,350 $ 198,96( $ 6,30: $ 14,38. 3% 9,49¢ $ 9,92 $ 295,07t $3,221,37
Sensitivity of loans to changes in
interest rates - loans due after on
year:
Fixed rate loan $ 241,73¢ $ 50,341 $ 10597( $ 49,760 $ 77 $ - $ 46 $ 1,30¢ $  86,50¢ 536,18:
Adjustable rate loans 1,159,17: 363,65 500,87( 140,60: 6,05( - 4,791 - 47,96( 2,223,10
Total loans due afteroney $ 1,400,91 $ 414,000 $ 606,84( $ 190,37( $ 6,121 $ - % 526( $ 1,30¢ $ 134,46( $2,759,29




Multi -Family Residential Lending.Loans secured by multi-family residential profgertwere $1,534.4 million, or 47.62% of gross lgatsDecember 31, 2012. Our mukimily
residential mortgage loans had an average printialance of $597,000 at December 31, 2012, andatigest multifamily residential mortgage loan held in our pditfchad a principe
balance of $20.5 million. We offer both fixed-rated adjustable-rate multi-family residential magg loans, with maturities of up to 30 years.

In underwriting multifamily residential mortgage loans, we review thpested net operating income generated by the stadeecollateral securing the loan, the age andition
of the collateral, the financial resources and medevel of the borrower and the borrovseeXperience in owning or managing similar propsrtWe typically require debt service covel
of at least 125% of the monthly loan payment. Bgir2008, we increased the required debt servicerage ratio for multfamily residential loans with ten units or less. \¢enerall
originate these loans up to only 75% of the apprhigalue or the purchase price of the propertychdver is less. Any loan with a final loanitalue ratio in excess of 75% must
approved by the Bank Board of Directors or the LEGammittee as an exception to policy. We generally on the income generated by the property aptimary means by which the Ic
is repaid. However, personal guarantees may benglotdor additional security from these borrowatée typically order an environmental report on ouwrltisfamily and commercial re
estate loans.

Loans secured by multamily residential property generally involve a ater degree of risk than residential mortgage I@tscarry larger loan balances. The increasatitaisk
is the result of several factors, including thecamtration of principal in a smaller number of leand borrowers, the effects of general economidliions on income producing proper
and the increased difficulty in evaluating and maring these types of loans. Furthermore, the neyaat of loans secured by muléimily residential property is typically dependeipon th
successful operation of the related property, whschsually owned by a legal entity with the prdpdieing the entitys only asset. If the cash flow from the propegyeduced, tt
borrowers ability to repay the loan may be impaired. If bwerower defaults, our only remedy may be to flwse on the property, for which the market valug/ rhe less than the balar
due on the related mortgage loan. Loans secureduit-family residential property also may involve a dezadegree of environmental risk. We seek to ptoagainst this risk throug
obtaining an environmental report. See “—Assetli®ua— Environmental Concerns Relating to Loans.”

At December 31, 2012, $1,249.8 million, or 81.45%pur multifamily mortgage loans consisted of ARM loans. WieoARM loans with adjustment periods typically fofe
years and for terms of up to 30 years. Interassran ARM loans currently offered by us are adjdsit the beginning of each adjustment period baped a fixed spread above the Ft-
NY corresponding Regular Advance Rate. From timéirt®, we may originate ARM loans at an initialedower than the index as a result of a discounthenspread for the initi
adjustment period. Multi-family adjustabtate mortgage loans generally are not subjectiitdtions on interest rate increases either ondfusement period or aggregate basis over th
of the loan. We originated and purchased multi-fatARM loans totaling $221.7 million, $218.8 millicand $157.4 million during 2012, 2011 and 2016peetively.

At December 31, 2012, $284.6 million, or 18.55%,00f multi-family mortgage loans consisted of fixete loans. Our fixed-rate mufamily mortgage loans are gener:
originated for terms up to 15 years and are cortipelty priced based on market conditions and ot o funds. We originated and purchased $95.9amill$30.2 million and $13.9 millic
of fixed-rate multi-family mortgage loans in 2028911 and 2010, respectively.

Comm ercial Real Estate Lending.oans secured by commercial real estate were .85t8lion, or 16.00% of gross loans, at Decembier2012. Our commercial real es!
mortgage loans are secured by improved propentiels as office buildings, hotels/motels, nursing Bensmall business facilities, strip shopping centgarehouses, and, to a lesser e»
religious facilities. At December 31, 2012, our cuercial real estate mortgage loans had an avenaggipal balance of $990,000, and the largest ehdoans, which was secured &
multi-tenant shopping center, had a principal bedaof $15.2 million. Commercial real estate morglzans are generally originated in a range of {@Mto $6.0 million.

In underwriting commercial real estate mortgagenfpave employ the same underwriting standards aodegures as are employed in underwriting nfaltily residentie
mortgage loans.

Commercial real estate mortgage loans generally ¢arger loan balances than oneféar family residential mortgage loans and involvgreater degree of credit risk for the s
reasons applicable to multi-family loans.

At December 31, 2012, $439.6 million, or 85.29%0p0f commercial mortgage loans consisted of ARM$oaVe offer ARM loans with adjustment periods nédo five years ar
generally for terms of up to 15 years. Interegtgan ARM loans currently offered by us are adjdsit the beginning of each adjustment period baped a fixed spread above the FHLB-
NY corresponding Regular Advance Rate. From timéirhe, we may originate ARM loans at an initiaterdower than the index as a result of a discounthe spread for the initi
adjustment period. Commercial adjustatdée mortgage loans generally are not subjectidadtions on interest rate increases either ondfusment period or aggregate basis over th
of the loan. We originated and purchased commeAd&M loans totaling $19.9 million, $2.1 million arg81.5 million during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respety.
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At December 31, 2012, $75.8 million, or 14.71%pof commercial mortgage loans consisted of fixed-l@ans. Our fixedate commercial mortgage loans are generally aatg
for terms up to 20 years and are competitivelygqatibased on market conditions and our cost of fsoriginated and purchased $11.9 million, $5ilion and $2.2 million of fixedrate
commercial mortgage loans in 2012, 2011 and 2Gidpactively.

One-to -Four Family Mortgage Lending — Mixed-Useperties. We offer mortgage loans secured by one-to-faariliy mixeduse properties. These properties contain up tc
residential dwelling units and a commercial unite \Mfer both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate onésto-family mixeduse property mortgage loans with maturities of w3@ years and
general maximum loan amount of $1,000,000. Loagirations primarily result from applications reeedl from mortgage brokers and mortgage bankerstiegior past customers, ¢
persons who respond to our marketing efforts afetnas. One-to-four family mixed-use property ngage loans were $637.4 million, or 19.79% of gitoass, at December 31, 2012.

In underwriting one-to-four family mixed-use proggemortgage loans, we employ the same underwrisitegmdards as are employed in underwriting nfahiily residentic
mortgage loans.

At December 31, 2012, $509.4 million, or 79.93%op0f one-to-four family mixed-use property mortgdggns consisted of ARM loans. We offer adjustatle- one-tdfour family
mixed-use property mortgage loans with adjustment periggisally of five years and for terms of up to @€ars. Interest rates on ARM loans currently effieby the Bank are adjustec
the beginning of each adjustment period based apfixed spread above the FHUBY corresponding Regular Advance Rate. From timénb@, we may originate ARM loans at an ini
rate lower than the index as a result of a discaunthe spread for the initial adjustment periothe@o-four family mixed-use property adjustabdéée mortgage loans generally are
subject to limitations on interest rate increasté®ee on an adjustment period or aggregate bass i life of the loan. We originated and purcllasee-to-four family mixedise propert
ARM loans totaling $10.8 million, $17.6 million ai§3.7 million during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respetyi

At December 31, 2012, $127.9 million, or 20.07%,00f one-to-four family mixed-use property mortgdgans consisted of fixed-rate loans. Our fixea:rahe-tofour family
mixed-use property mortgage loans are originatedeioms of up to 30 years and are competitivelgqatibased on market conditions and the Bamlost of funds. We originated ¢
purchased $5.2 million, $6.1 million and $5.8 moiliof fixed-rate one-to-four family mixed-use prayemortgage loans in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respelgti

One-to -Four Family Mortgage Lending — Residenffabperties. We offer mortgage loans secured by onésta- family residential properties, including towomises an
condominium units. For purposes of the descriptiontained in this section, one-to-four family residal mortgage loans, auperative apartment loans and home equity loan
collectively referred to herein as “residential ngaige loans.” We offer both fixed-rate and adjulstate residential mortgage loans with maturitiesto 30 years and a general maxin
loan amount of $1,000,000. Loan originations gelherasult from applications received from mortgdyekers and mortgage bankers, existing or pasbmess, and referrals. Resider
mortgage loans were $205.3 million, or 6.38% ofsgrimans, at December 31, 2012.

We generally originate residential mortgage loanamounts up to 80% of the appraised value or &he [srice, whichever is less. We may make residemtortgage loans wi
loan-to-value ratios of up to 90% of the appraisatle of the mortgaged property; however, privai@tgage insurance is required whenever loavaioe ratios exceed 80% of
appraised value of the property securing the loan.

In addition to income verified loans, we have ie fhast originated residential mortgage loans thesaployed individuals within our local community kdson stated income &
verifiable assets that allows us to assess repayaislity, provided that the borrower’s stated ineis considered reasonable for the borrosverpe of business. The preponderanc
stated income one-to-four family residential moggdoans were made available to satiployed individuals within our local community fareir primary residence. Our underwrit
standards required that we verify the assets obtinowers and the sources of their cash flows. iffeemation reviewed for purchases included astiéaree months and refinances inclt
at least one month of personal bank statementsKitge and savings accounts), statements of invedtmecounts, business checking account statemesisn(applicable), and ott
information provided by the borrowers about thesrgmnal holdings. Our review of these bank statésnaliowed us to assess whether or not their siatame appeared reasonabl
comparison to their cash flows, and if their incolexel supported their personal holdings. We als@ioed and reviewed credit reports on these b@rswAn acceptable credit report \
one of the key factors in approving this type ofrtgage loan. We obtained appraisals from an inddgenthird party for the property, and limited gm@ount we lent on the propertie:
80% of the lesser of the property’s appraised valuthe purchase price. Home equity lines of cregite offered on one-tfwur residential properties to homeowners basedavious level
of income verification. We limited the amount awhille under a home equity line of credit to 80%hsf kesser of the appraised value of the propentythe purchase price. These Ic
involve a higher degree of risk as compared toadher fully underwritten residential mortgage loassthere is a greater opportunity for satiployed borrowers to falsify or overstate t
level of income and ability to service indebtedneshis risk is mitigated by the requirements di&smd above in our loan policy. In addition, sin68&, the underwriting standards for hc
equity loans were modified to discontinue origingthome equity lines of credit without verifyingetborrowers income. This was accomplished in two stagegiréng in May 2008, w
began verifying the borrowes’'income when the home equity line of credit exeele$100,000. Beginning in October 2009, we vatifiee income of all borrowers applying for a he
equity line of credit. We also discontinued offeriane-to-four family residential property mortgdgans to selemployed individuals based on stated income anifialge assets in Jul
2010. We originated $7.3 million and $14.6 milliohone-to-four family residential mortgage loans&f-employed individuals based on stated income anifiatele assets during 2010 ¢
20009, respectively. We did not originate any ondetar family residential mortgage loans to seffiployed individuals based on stated income anifialele assets during 2012 or 2011.
also extended $6.9 million in home equity linescoédit during 2009, with various levels of incomeification. We did not extend any home equity diref credit during 2012, 2011 ¢
2010 with various levels of income verification. Wad $20.8 million and $25.9 million outstandingoofeto four family residential mortgage loans origirthte individuals based on sta
income and verifiable assets at December 31, 2682811, respectively. We had $52.8 million and.$58illion advanced on home equity lines of crdditwhich we did not verify tF
borrowers’ income at December 31, 2012 and 20kpedively.
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At December 31, 2012, $149.9 million, or 73.00%opu0f residential mortgage loans consisted of ARkhk We offer ARM loans with adjustment period®wg, three, five, sev
or ten years. Interest rates on ARM loans curreatfgred by us are adjusted at the beginning oh emtjustment period based upon a fixed spread attev&HLBNY correspondin
Regular Advance Rate. From time to time, we magioate ARM loans at an initial rate lower than théex as a result of a discount on the spreadhferiritial adjustment period. AR
loans generally are subject to limitations on ies¢rate increases of 2% per adjustment periodaanaggregate adjustment of 6% over the life ofltle®. We originated and purcha
adjustable rate residential mortgage loans tot$2@;6 million, $21.5 million and $19.1 million dog 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The retention of ARM loans in our portfolio helps reduce our exposure to interest rate risks. keweén an environment of rapidly increasing ingtnates, it is possible for t
interest rate increase to exceed the maximum agggregljustment on one-four family residential ARM loans and negativelyeaf the spread between our interest income anadasatro
funds.

ARM loans generally involve credit risks differefnom those inherent in fixetate loans, primarily because if interest rates, rthe underlying payments of the borrower
thereby increasing the potential for default. Hoarthis potential risk is lessened by our poli€wpidginating one-tdour family residential ARM loans with annual arifiéfime interest rat
caps that limit the increase of a borrower's mong/dyment.

At December 31, 2012, $55.4 million, or 27.00%paf residential mortgage loans consisted of fixa@-toans. Our fixedate residential mortgage loans typically are oaged fo
terms of 15 and 30 years and are competitivelyeprizased on market conditions and our cost of fusoriginated and purchased $2.7 million, $2.8ioni and $16.0 million in 15al
fixed-rate residential mortgages in 2012, 2011 20D, respectively. We did not originate or purehasy 30-year fixed-rate residential mortgages0it?2 2011 and 2010.

At December 31, 2012, home equity loans totaled&#illion, or 1.92%, of gross loans. Home eqliigns are included in our portfolio of residentiartgage loans. These loi
are offered as adjustable-rate “home equity liferedit” on which interest only is due for an initial terfl® years and thereafter principal and interegtmEnts sufficient to liquidate t
loan are required for the remaining term, not toeeed 30 years. These adjustable “home equity bhesedit” may include a “floor” and/or a “ceilifigon the interest rate that we charge
these loans. These loans also may be offered lgsafubrtizing closed-end fixed-rate loans for temmpsto 15 years. The majority of home equity loariginated are owner occupied one-to-
four family residential properties and condominiumits. To a lesser extent, home equity loans &e ariginated on one-tfBur residential properties held for investment aedon:
homes. All home equity loans are subject to an &@#a-tovalue ratio computed on the basis of the aggregfatiee first mortgage loan amount outstanding ddpgroposed home equ
loan. They are generally granted in amounts fro8,&20 to $300,000.
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Const ruction Loans. At December 31, 2012, construction loans tot&i#d.4 million, or 0.45%, of gross loans. Our comstion loans primarily have been made to finan@
construction of one-to-four family residential pespes, multifamily residential properties and residential camitums. We also, to a limited extent, finance ¢bastruction of commerci
real estate. Our policies provide that constructa@ms may be made in amounts up to 70% of thenaestid value of the developed property and onlyefoltain a first lien position on t
underlying real estate. However, we generally liowhstruction loans to 60% of the estimated valuthe developed property. In addition, we generadliguire personal guarantees or
construction loans. Construction loans are genemlfide with terms of two years or less. Advancesnaade as construction progresses and inspectimams, subject to continued ti
searches to ensure that we maintain a first liitipn. We made advances on construction loai$®d million, $1.7 million and $10.5 million durirZp12, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Construction loans involve a greater degree of tigla other loans because, among other thingsyrilerwriting of such loans is based on an estimasdde of the develop:
property, which can be difficult to ascertain ight of uncertainties inherent in such estimatiolmsaddition, construction lending entails the rikt the project may not be completed dt
cost overruns or changes in market conditions.

Small Business Administration Lendinght December 31, 2012, SBA loans totaled $9.5iomi) representing 0.29%, of gross loans. Thesedaae extended to small busine
and are guaranteed by the SBA up to a maximum %f 86the loan balance for loans with balances &0$000 or less, and to a maximum of 75% of the le@lance for loans with balan:
greater than $150,000. Under The American RecoardyReinvestment Act of 2009, the maximum loan guize to banks under the SBA 7a loan program waeased to 90% and 1
guarantee fee paid by the Bank (up to 3.5% of gueeal loan amount) has been waived. This prograsnewtended to December 31, 2010 by the Small Bssidebs Act of 2010. We a
provide term loans and lines of credit up to $380,0nder the SBA Express Program, on which the BAides a 50% guaranty. The maximum loan size wtheSBA guarantee progri
was $2.0 million, with a maximum loan guarantee$df5 million. The Small Business Jobs Act of 20Enpanently increased the limits to a maximum loae sf $5.0 million, with
maximum loan guarantee of $3.75 million. All SBAaits are underwritten in accordance with SBA Stah@yerating Procedures which requires collaterdltae personal guarantee of
owners with more than 20% ownership from SBA boemy Typically, SBA loans are originated in thage of $25,000 to $2.0 million with terms rangimgnfi one to seven years anc
to 25 years for owner occupied commercial realtesteortgages. SBA loans are generally offereddatséable rates tied to the prime rate (as pubtisheheWall Street Journa) with
adjustment periods of one to three months. We rgdipesell the guaranteed portion of certain SBArtdoans in the secondary market, realizing a gaithe time of sale, and retain
servicing rights on these loans, collecting a s#ng fee of approximately 1%. We originated andcpased $0.5 million, $3.5 million and $3.9 milliohSBA loans during 2012, 2011 &
2010, respectively.

Comm ercial Business and Other LendiAgDecember 31, 2012, commercial business and doaeis totaled $305.0 million, or 9.47%, of grasars. We originate other loans
business, personal, or household purposes. Budimass generally require the personal guarantedéiseobwners and are typically secured by the bssimssets of the borrower, incluc
accounts receivable, inventory, equipment and estte. Included in commercial business loandoares made to New York City taxi medallion ownerhese loans, which totaled $
million at December 31, 2012, are secured throigislon the taxi medallions. We originate and pase taxi medallion loans up to 80% of the valuéheftaxi medallion. We originat
and purchased $239.5 million, $102.0 million an@&T million of commercial business loans durind202011 and 2010, respectively. Consumer loansrgéy consist of overdraft lin
of credit. Generally, unsecured consumer loandimited to amounts of $5,000 or less for terms pta five years.

The underwriting standards employed by us for coreuand other loans include a determination ofaghygicant’'s payment history on other debts andsassent of the applicast’
ability to meet payments on all of his or her oltigns. In addition to the creditworthiness of #pplicant, the underwriting process also incluale®mparison of the value of the collate
if any, to the proposed loan amount. Unsecuredddend to have higher risk, and therefore comnaanigher interest rate.

Lo an Extensions, Renewals, Modifications and Resiring. Extensions, renewals, modifications or restristia loan, other than a loan that is classified DR, requires tt
loan to be fully underwritten in accordance with policy for new loans. The borrower must be curterhave a loan extended, renewed or restruct@adpolicy for modifying a mortga
loan due to the borrowexrequest for changes in the terms will dependcherchanges requested. The borrower must be cuamenhave a good payment history to have a loanfreddif
the borrower is seeking additional funds, the lsafiully underwritten in accordance with our polifty new loans. If the borrower is seeking a returcin the interest rate due to a declin
interest rates in the market, we generally limit mview as follows: (1) for income producing prdes and business loans, to a review of the ojeraésults of the property/business a
satisfactory inspection of the property, and (2) dae-tofour residential properties, to a satisfactory awjpn of the property. Our policy on restructuriagoan when the loan will |
classified as a TDR requires the loan to be fuliderwritten in accordance with Company policy. Bloerower must demonstrate the ability to repayldla@ under the new terms. When
restructuring results in a TDR, we may waive soeguirements of Company policy provided the borrohes demonstrated the ability to meet the requinesnef the restructured loan ¢
repay the restructured loan. While our formal lewgdpolicies do not prohibit making additional loansa borrower or any related interest of the bemowho is past due in principal
interest more than 90 days, it has been our peaotit to make additional loans to a borrower aelated interest of the borrower if the borrowepast due more than 90 days as to prin
or interest. During the most recent three fiscalrgewe did not make any additional loans to adweer or any related interest of the borrower wha wast due in principal or interest m
than 90 days. All extensions, renewals, restrusisriand modifications must be approved by eitheltten Committee or the Bank Board of Directors.
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Loan Approval Procedures and AuthorityThe Board of Directors of the Company (the “Boafdirectors”)approved lending policies establishes loan apprmauirements fc
our various types of loan products. Our Residémartgage Lending Policy (which applies to all eteefour family mortgage loans, including residehtand mixeddse property
establishes authorized levels of approval. Onfstm-family mortgage loans that do not exceed $JB0 require two signatures for approval, one ofalvhiust be from either the Presid
Executive Vice President or a Senior Vice Presidentlectively, “Authorized Officers”)and the other from a Senior Underwriter, Managerdéfwriter or Junior Underwriter in t
Residential Mortgage Loan Department (collectivélygan Officers”), and ratification by the Managemié.oan Committee. For one-four family mortgage loans from $750,000 to §
million, three signatures are required for apprpaaleast two of which must be from Authorizedi€¥fs, and the other one may be a Loan Officer,ratification by the Management Lc
Committee. The Loan Committee or the Bank Boardioéctors also must approve oneftat family mortgage loans in excess of $1.0 milli¢®ursuant to our Commercial Real Es
Lending Policy, all loans secured by commercial esaate and mulfiamily residential properties must be approved li®y President or the Executive Vice President, ChidReal Estal
Lending upon the recommendation of the appropi&aeior Vice President, and ratification by the Mgeraent Loan Committee. Such loans in excess & ®dllion up to and includin
$2.5 million must also be approved by the Managarhean Committee and ratified by the Loan Committe¢he Bank Board of Directors. Such loans in egaaf $2.5 million also requi
Loan Committee or Bank Board of Directors approval.accordance with our Business Credit Policyalkiness and SBA loans up to $1.0 million and corsiakeand industri
loans/professional mortgage loans up to $1.5 miliimust be approved by the Business Loan Committdeatified by the Management Loan Committee. Bessnand SBA loans in exc
of $1.0 million up to $2.0 million, and commerciaid industrial loans/professional mortgage loansxitess of $1.5 million up to $2.5 million, must dggproved by the Management L
Committee and ratified by the Loan Committee. Commiaé business and other loans require two sigeattor approval, one of which must be from an Atittesl Officer. Our Constructic
Loan Policy requires construction loans up to arduding $1.0 million must be approved by the ExeeuVice President, Chief of Real Estate Lending #éhe Senior Vice President
Commercial Real Estate, and ratified by the Managerhoan Committee or the Loan Committee. Suchddarexcess of $1.0 million up to and includingSstillion require the san
officer approvals, approval of the Management L&ammittee, and ratification of the Loan Committeetee Bank Board of Directors. Construction loam&xcess of $2.5 million up
and including $15.0 million require the same offie@provals, approval by the Management Loan Cotemitand approval of the Loan Committee or the BBokrd of Director:
Construction loans in excess of $15.0 million reguhe same officer approvals, approval by the Mangent Loan Committee, and approval of the Bankr@oé Directors. Any loal
regardless of type, that deviates from our writtegdit policies must be approved by the Loan Conemior the Bank Board of Directors.

For all loans originated by us, upon receipt obmpleted loan application, a credit report is oedeand certain other financial information is obéal. An appraisal of the real es
intended to secure the proposed loan is requirdzttreceived. An independent appraiser designatddapproved by us currently performs such appmisaur staff appraisers review
appraisals. The Bank Board of Directors annuallgrapes the independent appraisers used by the Baglapproves the Barskappraisal policy. It is our policy to requirerkmwers tc
obtain title insurance and hazard insurance oreall estate loans prior to closing. For certairrdwers, and/or as required by law, the Bank mayiregescrow funds on a monthly bz
together with each payment of principal and intetes mortgage escrow account from which we mageulsements for items such as real estate taxksrasome cases, hazard insur:
premiums.
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Loan Concentrations. The maximum amount of credit that the Bank caterk to any single borrower or related group ofrtwwers generally is limited to 15% of the Basik’
unimpaired capital and surplus, or $63.8 milliorDatcember 31, 2012. Applicable laws and regulatipermit an additional amount of credit to be edézh equal to 10% of unimpail
capital and surplus, if the loan is secured by itgadarketable collateral, which generally does mamfude real estate. See “-Regulatiofbwever, it is currently our policy not to exte
such additional credit. At December 31, 2012, thveeee no loans in excess of the maximum dollar arhotiloans to one borrower that the Bank was ai#hd to make. At that date, 1
three largest concentrations of loans to one baraensisted of loans secured by a combinatioroofroercial real estate and mukimily income producing properties with an aggre
principal balance of $53.1 million, $40.8 millionc$38.0 million for each of the three borroweespectively.

Loan Servicing . At December 31, 2012, we were servicing $5.2iamilbf mortgage loans and $13.0 million of SBA Isdar others. Our policy is to retain the serviciights tc
the mortgage and SBA loans that we sell in thersgay market. In order to increase revenue, manageimtends to continue this policy.

Asset Quality

Loan Collection. When a borrower fails to make a required paymena déman, we take a number of steps to induce theower to cure the delinquency and restore the to
current status. In the case of mortgage loansppaltsontact is made with the borrower after thenlbecomes 30 days delinquent. We take a proaatipeoach to managing delinqu
loans, including conducting site examinations ancoeraging borrowers to meet with one of our repnéstives. When deemed appropriate, stearts payment plans have been devels
that enable borrowers to bring their loans currgaterally within six to nine months. At times, whe& borrower is experiencing financial difficultiege may restructure a loan to enak
borrower to continue making payments when it isngee to be in our best lortgrm interest. This restructure may include redgiche interest rate or amount of the monthly paynfiene
specified period of time, after which the intereste and repayment terms revert to the originah$eof the loan. We classify these loans as “Tralillebt Restructured”At December 3:
2012, we had $31.5 million of mortgage loans cfe$ias Troubled Debt Restructured, with $19.9immillof these loans performing according to thedtmectured terms and $11.6 milli
not performing according to their restructured terkVe review delinquencies on a loan by loan basdigently exploring ways to help borrowers megwgit obligations and return them b
to current status, and we have increased staffifqbdle delinquent loans by hiring people expegenn loan workouts.

When the borrower has indicated that they will bahle to bring the loan current, or due to othesurhstances which, in our opinion, indicate ther@oer will be unable to brir
the loan current within a reasonable time, the lisaciassified as non-performing. All loans claigsifas norperforming, which includes all loans past due 9@sdar more, are classified
non-accrual unless there is, in our opinion, compelkwglence the borrower will bring the loan curramthe immediate future. At December 31, 2012, ¢hgere two loans, which total
$0.6 million, past due 90 days or more and stitiraing interest.

Upon classifying a loan as non-performing, we revavailable information and conditions that relaiehe status of the loan, including the estimatalde of the loars collatere
and any legal considerations that may affect theoleer’s ability to continue to make payments. Based uperavailable information, we will consider theesaf the loan or retention of t
loan. If the loan is retained, we may continue wrkwwith the borrower to collect the amounts duestart foreclosure proceedings. If a foreclosuroads initiated and the loan is 1
brought current, paid in full, or refinanced beftine foreclosure sale, the real property secutiegdan is sold at foreclosure or by us as soored#fier as practicable.

Once the decision to sell a loan is made, we deternvhat we would consider adequate consideratidmetobtained when that loan is sold, based offieitts and circumstanc
related to that loan. Investors and brokers are tlmtacted to seek interest in purchasing the. ldé&have been successful in finding buyers foresefour nonperforming loans offere
for sale that are willing to pay what we considetbe adequate consideration. Terms of the saledectash due upon closing of the sale, no contiigeror recourse to us, servicin
released to the buyer and time is of the essermselsales usually close within a reasonably sinegtperiod.

This strategy of selling non-performing loans hbeweed us to optimize our return by quickly conwegt our nonperforming loans to cash, which can then be reieeem earnin
assets. This strategy also allows us to avoid lenghd costly legal proceedings that may occur withperforming loans. We sold 77 delinquent mortgagesototaling $44.2 million, ¢
delinquent mortgage loans totaling $27.8 milliond&20 delinquent mortgage loans totaling $9.3 onillduring the years ended December 31, 2012, 26812810, respectively. V
recorded net charge-offs of $5.7 million, $3.7 ioill and $0.7 million to the allowance for loan lessfor the norperforming loans that were sold during 2012, 20hd 2010
respectively. We realized gross gains of $21,08167,000 and $21,000 on the sale of penforming mortgage loans for the years ended Dbeen31l, 2012, 2011 and 20
respectively. We realized gross losses of $69a0aD$4,000 on the sale of npefforming mortgage loans for the years ended Dbee1, 2012 and 2010, respectively. We did naind
any gross losses for the year ended December 31, Zhere can be no assurances that we will comtihis strategy in future periods, or if continuee, will be able to find buyers to p
adequate consideration.
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On mortgage loans or loan participations purchdsgdus for whom the seller retains the servicinghtsg we receive monthly reports with which we monithe loal
portfolio. Based upon servicing agreements with skrvicers of the loans, we rely upon the senficezontact delinquent borrowers, collect delingusmounts and initiate foreclos!
proceedings, when necessary, all in accordanceagpipticable laws, regulations and the terms ofsémwicing agreements between us and our servigiagta. The servicers are require
submit monthly reports on their collection effoots delinquent loans. At December 31, 2012, we ##&BiL.2 million of loans that were serviced by ogher

In the case of commercial business or other loarsgenerally send the borrower a written notice@fipayment when the loan is first past due. In thenepayment is not the
received, additional letters and phone calls gdilyeaae made in order to encourage the borrowanéet with one of our representatives to discusdéiimquency. If the loan still is r
brought current and it becomes necessary for uak® legal action, which typically occurs afteroan is delinquent 90 days or more, we may attempepossess personal or busii
property that secures an SBA loan, commercial lmssifioan or consumer loan.

Trouble d Debt RestructuredNe have restructured certain problem loans ferdveers who are experiencing financial difficultieg either: reducing the interest rate until thet
reset date, extending the amortization period thetewering the monthly payments, deferring a mortof the interest payment, or changing the loaimtierest only payments for a limit
time period. At times, certain problem loans hagerbrestructured by combining mdhan one of these options. These restructuringse havincluded a reduction of principal balance.
believe that restructuring these loans in this nearwill allow certain borrowers to become and remaiirrent on their loans. These restructured lamesclassified as troubled d
restructured (“TDR”)Loans which have been current for six consecutieatis at the time they are restructured as TDR irema accrual status. Loans which were delinquéethe time
they are restructured as a TDR are placed on nonsalcstatus until they have made timely paymentsii consecutive months.

The following table shows our recorded investmaribans classified as TDR that are performing adiogrto their restructured terms at the periodscated:

At December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Multi-family residentia $ 2347 $ 941 $ 7946 $ 47¢  $ -
Commercial real esta 8,49¢ 2,49¢ 5,81¢ 1,441 -
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 2,33¢ 79t 20¢€ 57E -
One-to-four family residentia 374 - - - -
Constructior 3,80¢ 5,88¢ - - -
Commercial business and other 2,54( 2,00( - - -
Total performing troubled debt restructered $ 19,90: $ 2059 $ 13,960  $ 249  $ -

Loans that are restructured as TDR but are nobpaifig in accordance with the restructured ternesexcluded from the TDR table above, as they aeepl on nor&ccrual statt
and reported as ngmerforming loans. At December 31, 2012 and 20l&rethwere seven loans totaling $11.6 million and Isans totaling $17.2 million, respectively, whigrere
restructured as TDR which were not performing ioardance with their restructured terms
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Deli nquent Loans and Non-performing Assefée generally discontinue accruing interest orndelent loans when a loan is 90 days past duereclwsure proceedings have b
commenced, whichever first occurs. At that timevipusly accrued but uncollected interest is regdrfrom income. Loans in default 90 days or mareaheir maturity date but not th
payments, however, continue to accrue interesirag és the borrower continues to remit monthly peryis

The following table shows our nguerforming assets, including Loans held for satetha dates indicated. During the years ended mbee 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the amoun
additional interest income that would have beewndsd on noraccrual loans, had they been current, totaled $iflln, $7.5 million and $7.4 million, respectiyel These amounts we
not included in our interest income for the resjppecperiods.

At December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Loans 90 days or more past duand still accruing:
Multi-family residentia $ - 0% 6,281 $ 102 $ - % -
Commercial real esta - 92 3,32¢ 471 42¢E
One-to-four family - residentia - - - 2,78¢ 88¢
Commercial Business and other 644 - 6 - -
Total 644 6,37¢ 3,437 3,25¢ 1,314
Non-accrual mortgage loans:
Multi-family residentia 16,48¢ 19,94¢ 35,63: 27,48: 12,011
Commercial real esta 15,64( 19,89¢ 22,80¢ 18,15:¢ 7,251
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 18,28( 28,42¢ 30,47¢ 23,42 10,63¢
One-to-four family residentia 13,72¢ 12,76¢ 10,69t 4,95¢ 1,121
Cc-operative apartmen 234 152 - 78 -
Construction 7,69t 14,72: 4,46t 1,63¢ 4,457
Total 72,06 95,90¢ 104,07 75,73¢ 35,47¢
Non-accrual non-mortgage loans:
Small Business Administratic 282 492 1,15¢ 1,23: 354
Commercial Business and other 16,86( 14,66( 3,41¢ 3,151 2,82¢
Total 17,142 15,15: 4,57¢ 4,38 3,17¢
Total non-accrual loans 89,20 111,06: 108,65! 80,117 38,65¢
Total non-performing loans 89,84¢ 117,44 112,09: 83,37: 39,97
Other non-performing assets:
Real Estate Owne 5,27¢ 3,17¢ 1,58¢ 2,26% 12t
Investment securities 3,33 2,562 5,13¢ 5,13¢ 607
Total 8,61( 5,741 6,72: 7,39¢ 732
Total non-performing assets $ 98,45¢ $ 123,18. $ 118,81: $ 90,76¢ $ 40,704
Non-performing loans to gross loa 2.7%% 3.65% 3.4% 2.6(% 1.35%
Non-performing assets to total ass 2.21% 2.81% 2.7%% 2.1% 1.02%
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The following table shows our delinquent loans &t less than 90 days past due and still accintegest at the periods indicated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
60- 89 30-59 60- 89 30-59
days days days days
(In thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 4827 $ 24,05¢ $ 6,341 $ 20,08t
Commercial real esta 3,622 9,76¢ 1,797 10,71:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 3,36¢ 21,01: 3,027 20,48(
One-to-four family - residentia 1,88¢ 3,407 1,76¢ 4,69¢
Cc-operative apartmen - - - -
Construction loan - 2,462 - 5,06t
Small Business Administratic - 404 - 16
Taxi medallion - - - 71
Commercial business and other 6 2 96€ 1,05¢
Total $ 13,70¢  $ 61,11 $ 13,90C $ 62,18

Hur ricane Sandy. Hurricane Sandy swept through the New York CitgtMpolitan area, our primary market, in late Oetof his hurricane caused significant damage toaram
homes and businesses throughout the area. In vgpvkih its borrowers and depositors affected bg thirricane, the Bank has entered into paymeneaggets on 27 mortgages tota
$17.8 million. These agreements provide for pagi@ment deferrals, generally for 90 days. Theseegents are intended to provide the borrowerofortunity to fully assess a
damage to the properties, apply for and receiverare proceeds, and repair damages to the preqelach borrower is required, commencing at tlieoérihe deferral period, to bet
making their regularly scheduled loan payments plp®rtion of the deferred amounts. The Bank daésxrpect to incur significant losses on these gageés. The Bank does not cons
these loans to be TDR as the time period for daffert payments is not significant. In the table \aothe 30-59 days column and the @Ddays column include $8.7 million and §$
million, respectively, in loans related to HurrieaBandy.

Other Real Estate OwnedWe aggressively market our Other Real Estate édW{OREO") properties. At December 31, 2012, we owned 11 ptigsewith a combined fair vali
of $5.3 million. At December 31, 2011, we ownedeseproperties with a combined fair value of $3.2liomi. At December 31, 2010, we owned six propertigth a fair value of $1
million.

Investment Securities Nonperforming investment securities included two pdadeist preferred securities with fair values tioigl$3.3 million and $2.6 million at December
2012 and 2011, respectively.

Environ mental Concerns Relating to LoaMge currently obtain environmental reports in corioecwith the underwriting of commercial real estddans, and typically obte
environmental reports in connection with the undéimg of multi-family loans. For all other loans, we obtain enmiteental reports only if the nature of the currente the extent known
us, prior use of the property securing the loarncetes a potential environmental risk. However,may not be aware of such uses or risks in anycpdat case, and, accordingly, there it
assurance that real estate acquired by us in fimed is free from environmental contaminationhait tif any such contamination or other violatioiises, whether we will have any liability.

Class ified Assets. Our policy is to review our assets, focusingramily on the loan portfolio, OREO and the investingortfolios, to ensure that the credit qualityriaintained ¢
the highest levels. When weaknesses are identifietiediate action is taken to correct the probterough direct contact with the borrower or issW#e then monitor these assets, an
accordance with our policy and current regulatauidglines, we designate them as “Special Menti@rich is considered a “Criticized Asset,” and “Stamslard,” “Doubtful,” or “Loss”
which are considered “Classified Assets,” as deemsxkssary. These loan designations are updatatiedy. We designate an asset as Substandard wivegll-defined weakness
identified that jeopardizes the orderly liquidatiohthe debt. We designate an asset as Doubtfuhvthdisplays the inherent weakness of a Substanasset with the added provision
collection of the debt in full, on the basis of &g facts, is highly improbable. We designateaset as Loss if it is deemed the debtor is indepsflrepayment. We do not hold any lo
designated as loss, as loans that are designatedsasare charged to the Allowance for Loan Losgessets that are namecrual are designated as Substandard, DoubtfLbss. W
designate an asset as Special Mention if the dsgstnot warrant designation within one of the otategories, but does contain a potential weakiegsieserves closer attention. Our
Criticized and Classified assets were $224.2 nmilib December 31, 2012, a decrease of $80.9 millmn $305.1 million at December 31, 2011.
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The following table sets forth the Banks’ Criticizend Classified assets at December 31, 2012:

(In thousands) Special Mentio  Substandar: Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia 16,34t $ 22,76¢ $ - 39,11+«
Commercial real esta 11,097 27,871 - 38,97
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 13,104 26,50¢ - 39,61(
One-to-four family - residentia 5,22 15,32¢ - 20,55
Cc-operative apartmen 102 237 - 34C
Construction loan 3,80¢ 10,59¢ - 14,40:¢
Small Business Administratic 32¢ 21z 244 77¢
Commercial business and other 3,04+ 18,41¢ 1,08( 22,54:
Total loans 53,04¢ 121,94t 1,32¢ 176,31
Investment Securities: @)
Pooled trust preferred securiti - 16,18¢ - 16,18¢
Private issue CMO - 26,42¢ - 26,42¢
Total investment securities - 42.61¢ - 42.61¢
Other Real Estate Owned - 5,27¢ - 5,27¢
Total 53,04 % 169,84. $ 1,32¢ 224,211
The following table sets forth the Banks’ Criticizend Classified assets at December 31, 2011:
(In thousands) Special Mentio  Substandar: Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia 17,138 $ 41,39 $ - 58,52¢
Commercial real esta 12,26¢ 41,24 - 53,51
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 17,39 33,83: - 51,22«
One-to-four family - residentia 3,127 14,34: - 17,47(
Cc-operative apartmen 20:< 152 - 35€
Construction loan 2,57( 28,55¢ - 31,12¢
Small Business Administratic 66€ 25€ 214 1,13¢
Commercial business and other 13,58 17,61 1,16¢ 32,361
Total loans 66,94 177,39: 1,382 245,71
Investment Securities: @)
Pooled trust preferred securiti - 15,34« - 15,34«
Private issue CMO - 40,90t - 40,90
Total investment securities - 56,24¢ - 56,24¢
Other Real Estate Owned - 3,17¢ - 3,17¢
Total 66,94: $ 236,81¢ $ 1,38: 305,14!




(1) Our investment securities are classified as seesir@vailable for sale and as such are carrieldedt fair value in our Consolidated Financial Sta¢ats. The securities above h¢
fair value of $35.2 million and $41.1 million at &mmber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Under ntapplicable regulatory guidelines, we are requiredisclose the classifi
investment securities, as shown in the tables glaivtbeir book values (amortized cost, or faiuealor securities that are under the fair valueoopt Additionally, the requireme
is only for the Banls securities. Flushing Financial Corporation had fwivate issue trust preferred securities claadifis Substandard at December 31, 2012 and 20t
combined market value of $0.8 millio

On a quarterly basis all mortgage loans that amsstfied as Substandard or Doubtful and collatdeglendent loans categorized as Special Mentioringgmally reviewed fc
impairment, based on updated cash flows for incpmeelucing properties, or updated independent aggigai The loan balances of collateral dependemtsloeviewed for impairment
then compared to the loans updated fair value.bEti@nce which exceeds fair value is generally advaff against the allowance for loan losses. Atémber 31, 2012, the current loan-to-
value ratio on our collateral dependent loans meg@efor impairment was 57.5%.

We classify investment securities as Substandaehwine investment grade rating by one or more eféing agencies is below investment grade. We letassified a total of ni
investment securities that are held at the BanBusstandard at December 31, 2012. Our classifieestment securities at December 31, 2012 held &B#nk include five private iss
collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs83ted below investment grade by one or more ofdtiag agencies, three issues of pooled trust pedfesecurities and one private issue
preferred security. The Investment Securities whioh classified as Substandard at December 31, 8@l 2ecurities that were rated investment gradenwte purchased them. Th
securities have each been subsequently downgradati®ast one rating agency to below investmeadegr Through December 31, 2012, two of the poolest preferred securities and fi
private issue CMOs are not paying principal andrigdt as scheduled. The remaining investment siesucontinued to pay interest and principal aedaked at December 31, 2012. We
each of these securities quarterly, through angeddent third party, for impairment.

There were $0.8 million, $1.6 million and $2.0 aifl in credit related other-than-temporary impainn@OTTI") charges recorded for the years ended December032, 201
and 2010, respectively. During 2012 we recorded I03RRrges of $0.8 million on five private issuelatéralized mortgage obligations. During 2011 weorded OTTI charges of $:
million on five private issue collateralized morggaobligations. During 2010 we recorded OTTI charge$1.1 million on four private issue collaterali mortgage obligations and $
million on one pooled trust preferred securities.

Allow ance for Loan Losses

We have established and maintain on our bookslawace for loan losses that is designed to prowideserve against estimated losses inherent ioarall loan portfolio. Th
allowance is established through a provision fanltosses based on managenseataluation of the risk inherent in the varioumponents of the loan portfolio and other factans|uding
historical loan loss experience (which is updatedrtgrly), changes in the composition and voluméhefportfolio, collection policies and experientends in the volume of na&ecrua
loans and local and national economic conditiortee @letermination of the amount of the allowanceldan losses includes estimates that are suscefbbsignificant changes due
changes in appraisal values of collateral, nati@mal local economic conditions and other factore #View our loan portfolio by separate categovigth similar risk and collater
characteristics. Impaired loans are segregatedenelwed separately. All noaecrual loans are classified impaired. Impairechdosecured by collateral are reviewed based ofathealue
of their collateral. For nowellateralized impaired loans, management estimetgsrecoveries that are anticipated for each ldaeonnection with the determination of the allowe, th
market value of collateral ordinarily is evaluatedour staff appraiser. On a quarterly basis, gtanated values of impaired mortgage loans areratly reviewed, based on updated ¢
flows for income producing properties, and at tinra@supdated independent appraisal is obtained. |Gdre balances of collateral dependent impairedidoare then compared to
propertys updated fair value. We consider fair value ofatelal dependent loans to be 85% of the appraisedternally estimated value of the property. Hadance which exceeds {
value is generally chargesff. When evaluating a loan for impairment, we dxt rely on guarantees, and the amount of impairnikany, is based on the fair value of the collateWe d¢
not carry loans at a value in excess of the faluealue to a guarantee from the borrower. Impameditgage loans that were written down resulted fumarterly reviews or updat
appraisals that indicated the properties’ estimatgdde had declined from when the loan was origidatCurrent year charge-offs, chaafétrends, new loan production, current balanc
particular loan categories, and delinquent loanpdoyicular loan categories are also taken int@aetin determining the appropriate amount of allaee. The Board of Directors revie
and approves the adequacy of the allowance forllgses on a quarterly basis.

20




In assessing the adequacy of the allowance, wewewur loan portfolio by separate categories wiiake similar risk and collateral characteristicg, emultifamily residentia
commercial real estate, one-to-four family mixed-psoperty, one-to-four family residential, operative apartment, construction, SBA, commefgiginess, taxi medallion and consu
loans. General provisions are established agagrsonming loans in our portfolio in amounts deenpeddent based on our qualitative analysis of tletofa, including the historical Ic
experience, delinquency trends and local economlitions. We incurred total net chargffs of $20.2 million and $18.9 million during thyears ended December 31, 2012 and -
respectively. The national and local economiesevgenerally considered to be in a recession fromebBéer 2007 through the middle of 2009. This haslted in increased unemploym
and declining property values, although the prgpeaiue declines in the New York City metropolitarea have not been as great as many other arétaes oduntry. While the national &
local economies have shown signs of improvemeresine second half of 2009, unemployment has reedaan elevated levels. This deterioration in thenecy has resulted in the bala
of our non-performing loans remaining at an eledd@vel. Non-performing loans totaled $89.8 milliand $117.4 million at December 31, 2012 and 20&4pectively. The Bank’
underwriting standards generally require a loarghe ratio of no more than 75% at the time the lisaoriginated. At December 31, 2012, the outstapgrincipal balance of our impair
mortgage loans was less than 58% of the estimatadrt value of the supporting collateral, aftensidering the chargeffs that have been recorded. We have not beegtaffeby th
defaults of sub-prime mortgages as we do not aatginor hold in portfolio, suprime mortgages. A provision for loan losses of $2illion, $21.5 million and $21.0 million was k@dec
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and, 264pectively. Management has concluded, an@daed of Directors has concurred, that at DecerBtie2012, the allowance w
sufficient to absorb losses inherent in our loarifpbo.

Our determination as to the classification of osseds and the amount of our valuation allowancguigect to review by our regulators, which can iegthe establishment
additional general allowances or specific lossvedlnces or require chargéfs. Such authorities may require us to make aaithi provisions to the allowance based on thelgjuents abor
information available to them at the time of thekamination. A policy statement provides guidanmeexaminers in determining whether the levels @figgal valuation allowances
savings institutions are adequate. The policy stat¢ requires that if a savings institutisngeneral valuation allowance policies and procesilare deemed to be inadeqt
recommendations for correcting deficiencies, intigdany examiner concerns regarding the level efatlowance, should be noted in the report of eration. Additional superviso
action may also be taken based on the magnitutteabserved shortcomings in the allowance prodesisiding the materiality of any error in the refgal amount of the allowance.

Management believes that our current allowancddan losses is adequate in light of current ecosaronditions, the composition of our loan portfolibe level and type
delinquent loans, chargsfs recorded and other available information amel Board of Directors concurs in this belief. Atdember 31, 2012, the total allowance for loan lssgas $31.
million, representing 34.62% of non-performing lseamd 31.59% of non-performing assets, compar@d.®1% of non-performing loans and 24.63% of performing assets at Decem
31, 2011. We continue to monitor and, as necessaogify the level of our allowance for loan losse®rder to maintain the allowance at a level whigh consider adequate to provide
probable loan losses based on available information

Many factors may require additions to the allowafareloan losses in future periods beyond thoseeruly revealed. These factors include further aslvehanges in econor
conditions, changes in interest rates and chamgteifinancial capacity of individual borrowersyaof which may affect the ability of borrowersrtwake repayments on loans), changt
the real estate market within our lending areathedvalue of collateral, or a review and evaluatdmour loan portfolio in the future. The deterntioa of the amount of the allowance
loan losses includes estimates that are susceptitdgnificant changes due to changes in apprarséiges of collateral, national and local econokoaditions, interest rates and ot
factors. In addition, our overall level of credisk inherent in our loan portfolio can be affectegl the loan portfolio’s composition. At December, 2D12, multifamily residentia
commercial real estate, construction and one-to-family mixeduse property mortgage loans, totaled 83.4% of easgloans. The greater risk associated with theses, as well ¢
business loans, could require us to increase awigions for loan losses and to maintain an alloveafor loan losses as a percentage of total Idaaitsis in excess of the allowance
currently maintain. Provisions for loan losses@rarged against net income. See “—Lending Adgigitand “—Asset Quality.”
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The following table sets forth changes in, anditakance of, our allowance for loan losses.

(Dollars in thousands)

At and for the years ended December

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of ye $ 30,34 % 27,69¢ $ 20,32: % 11,02¢ 3 6,63:
Provision for loan losse 21,00( 21,50( 21,00( 19,50( 5,60(
Loans charge-off:
Multi-family residentia (6,01€) (6,807%) (5,790 (2,327) (496)
Commercial real esta (2,74€) (5,172) (2,685) (72¢) -
One-to-four family mixec-use propert (4,28€) (2,64¢) (2,580) (1,009 -
One-to-four family residentia (1,587%) (2,22€) (236) (284) -
Cc-operative apartmel (62) - - - -
Constructior (4,597) (1,08¢) (2,879 (2,07%) -
SBA (3249) (871) (925) (1,106 (759
Commercial business and other loans (1,667) (642) (500 (3,849) (36)
Total loans charged-off (21,269 (19,45() (14,595 (10,377) (1,297
Recoveries
Mortgage loan: 83¢ 522 182 1 -
SBA, commercial business and other loans 191 72 787 16€ 86
Total recoveries 1,02¢ 59t 97C 167 86
Net charge-offs (20,240 (18,855 (13,625 (10,209 (1,20%)
Balance at end of year $ 31,10¢ $ 30,34« $ 2769¢ $ 20,32¢  $ 11,02¢
Ratio of net char¢-offs during the yeato average loans outstanding during the 0.64% 0.5%% 0.42% 0.32% 0.04%
Ratio of allowance for loan lossesgross loans at end of the y¢ 0.97% 0.94% 0.85% 0.62% 0.37%
Ratio of allowance for loan lossesnor-performing loans at the end of the y 34.62% 25.8% 24.7% 24.3% 27.5%
Ratio of allowance for loan lossesnor-performing assets at the end of the y 31.5% 24.6% 23.31% 22.3% 27.0%
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The following table sets forth our allocation oéthllowance for loan losses to the total amouhdafs in each of the categories listed at the datBsated. The numbers contail
in the “Amount” column indicate the allowance foah losses allocated for each particular loan cayegThe numbers contained in the column entitledrcentage of Loans in Categor
Total Loans” indicate the total amount of loangath particular category as a percentage of ouarpoetfolio.

At December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Percen Percen Percen Percen Percen
of Loans ir of Loans ir of Loans ir of Loans ir of Loans ir
Category t Category t Category t Category t Category ti
Loan Category Amount Total loans Amount Total loans Amount Total loan: Amount Total loan: Amount Total loans
(Dollars in thousands
Mortgage loans
Multi-family residentia $ 13,00: 47.6% $ 11,267 4320 $ 9,007 38.41% $ 6,581 36.1% $ 3,23 33.8%
Commercial real esta 5,70¢ 16.0C 5,21( 18.07% 4,90t 20.32 4,39¢ 21.4: 1,36( 23.2¢
One-to-four family mixed-use
property 5,96( 19.7¢ 5,31« 21.5¢ 5,991 22.3¢ 4,33¢ 23.2¢ 2,904 25.4¢
One-to-four family residentia 1,99¢ 6.1¢ 1,64¢ 6.8¢€ 93¢ 7.4C 844 7.8( 392 8.0¢
Cc-operative apartmel 46 0.2C 80 0.17 17 0.1¢ 17 0.2C 9 0.22
Construction 66 0.4% 66¢ 1.47 58¢ 2.32 1,281 3.04 91C 3.51
Gross mortgage loar 26,777 90.2¢ 24,18¢ 91.4¢ 21,45 91.01 17,457 91.8i 8,80¢ 94.31
Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic 50t 0.2¢ 987 0.44 1,30¢ 0.5¢ 965 0.5t 464 0.67
Taxi Medallion 7 0.31 41 1.6¢ 63¢ 2.71 582 1.92 91 0.44
Commercial business and othe 3,81¢ 9.1€ 5,12¢ 6.4% 4,30¢ 5.7¢ 1,31¢ 5.6€ 1,664 4.5¢
Gross non-mortgage loans 4,32 9.7¢€ 6,15¢€ 8.5€ 6,24¢ 8.9¢ 2,861 8.1 2,21¢ 5.6¢
Total loans $ 31,10¢ 100.0% $ 30,34« 100.0% $ 27,69¢ 100.0% $ 20,32¢ 100.0% $ 11,02¢ 100.0%
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Inves tment Activities

Gen eral. Our investment policy, which is approved by Bmard of Directors, is designed primarily to mandlge interest rate sensitivity of our overall assatd liabilities, t
generate a favorable return without incurring unduerest rate and credit risk, to complement @mding activities and to provide and maintain léjtyi. In establishing our investme
strategies, we consider our business and growdlegiies, the economic environment, our interest iak exposure, our interest rate sensitivity “gppsition, the types of securities to
held, and other factors. See “Management'’s Disonsand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaft©perations — Overview—Management Strategy” @mit7 of this Annual Report.

Although we have authority to invest in variousegpf assets, we primarily invest in mortgdgeked securities, U. S. government obligationsualufunds that purchase th
same instruments and corporate bonds. We did ridtamy issues of foreign sovereign debt at DecerBbe2012 and 2011.

Our Investment Committee meets quarterly to moritgestment transactions and to establish investrseategy. The Board of Directors reviews the stweent policy on &
annual basis and investment activity on a monthkis

We classify our investment securities as availélesale. We carry some of our investments underfalir value option. Unrealized gains and lossesneestments carried unc
the fair value option are included in our ConsdiidaStatements of Income. Unrealized gains an@$osa the remaining investment portfolio, othentharealized credit losses conside
other than temporary, are excluded from earningsiaciuded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Inedenseparate component of equity), net of taxe®ekember 31, 2012, we t
$949.6 million in securities available for sale,ighhrepresented 21.33% of total assets. Theseitesurad an aggregate market value at Decembe?®12 that was approximately
times the amount of our equity at that date.

There were $0.8 million, $1.6 million and $2.0 il in credit related OTTI charges recorded foryhars ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 201@&atasgly. During 2012 w
recorded OTTI charges of $0.8 million on five ptivassue collateralized mortgage obligations. Dy2011 we recorded OTTI charges of $1.6 millionfier private issue collateraliz
mortgage obligations. During 2010 we recorded Ogfdrges of $1.1 million on four private issue deltalized mortgage obligations and $1.0 millionoore pooled trust preferred secul
As a result of the magnitude of our holdings ofwsities available for sale, changes in interestgatould produce significant changes in the valusuoh securities and could prod
significant fluctuations in our operating resultsla@quity. See Notes 6 and 17 of Notes to CongelitlRinancial Statements, included in Iltem 8 of #inual Report.
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The table below sets forth certain information reigey the amortized cost and market values of egusties portfolio, interestarning deposits and federal funds sold, at thes
indicated. Securities available for sale are réedrat market value. See Notes 6 and 17 of Not€shsolidated Financial Statements, included im I8of this Annual Report.

At December 31
2012 2011 2010
Amortized Market Amortized Market Amortized Market
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
(In thousands

Securities available for sale
Bonds and other debt securiti

U.S. government and agenc $ 31,40¢ $ 3151 $ 1,98 $ 2,03 $ 10,55¢ $ 10,45¢
Municipal securitie: 74,22¢ 75,297 4,53¢ 4,531 5,41: 5,41:
Corporate debentures 83,38¢ 87,48 20,77 20,59 2,69¢ 2,69¢
Total bonds and other debt securities 189,02¢ 194,29! 27,29: 27,16 18,66¢ 18,57(
Mutual funds 21,84 21,848 21,36¢ 21,36¢ 10,62 10,62¢
Equity securities
Common stocl 71€ 71€ 79C 79C 967 967
Preferred stock 17,07¢ 12,597 21,23 15,92: 22,34¢ 19,95(
Total equity securities 17,79 13,31 22,02: 16,712 23,31 20,917
Mortgage-backed securitie:
FNMA 168,04( 175,92¢ 175,62 182,63( 192,75( 194,54(
REMIC and CMC 453,46 474,05( 460,82 473,63¢ 456,21( 453,46!
FHLMC 22,56: 23,20: 22,55¢ 23,38 19,56: 20,11°
GNMA 43,21 46,93: 62,04( 67,63: 81,43¢ 85,95¢
Total mortgage-backed securities 687,28 720,11: 721,04° 747,28¢ 749,96( 754,07°
Total securities available for sale 915,94 949,56¢ 791,73( 812,53( 802,56« 804,18¢
Interest-earning deposits and Federal funds sold 31,27¢ 31,27¢ 48,94+« 48,94+ 41,83¢ 41,83¢
Total $ 947,22t  $ 980,84! $ 840,67 $ 861,47: $ 844,40 $ 846,02!

Mortga ge-backed securitiesAt December 31, 2012, we had $720.1 million inedsin mortgage-backed securities, of which $26iBian was invested in adjustablete
mortgage-backed securities. The mortgage loansrlyimtg these adjustablete securities generally are subject to limitagion annual and lifetime interest rate increases awticipate thi
investments in mortgage-backed securities may woatto be used in the future to supplement mortderyding activities. Mortgagbacked securities are more liquid than indivii
mortgage loans and may be used more easily totexllize our obligations, including collateralizing the governmental deposits of the Bank. Howederjng 2010 and continuil
throughout 2011, the market for private issued gege-backed securities was somewhat illiquid. bhitaah, the ratings assigned to our holdings of@te issued mortgadeacked securiti¢
have been reduced to below investment grade. Asudty we are not able to use private issued mgetgracked securities to collateralize our obligatio
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The following table sets forth our mortgage-backedurities purchases, sales and principal repayfienthe years indicated:

For the years ended December
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands

Balance at beginning of ye $ 747,28t $ 754,070 $ 648,44:
Purchases of mortga-backed securitie 141,51 122,53( 345,25°
Amortization of unearned premium, netaccretion of unearned discot (3,269 (2,587) (2,34%)
Net change in unrealized gains on mort-backedsecurities available for sa 6,591 22,12 5,11(
Net realized gains (losses) recorded on mori-backecsecurities carried at fair val (38)) (636€) 73C
Net change in interest due on securities carriddiavalue (51) (46) (127)
Sales of mortga-backed securitie (12,590 - (56,479
Otherthar-temporary impairment charg (776€) (1,57¢) (1,057)
Principal repayments received on mortgage-backegries (158,21) (146,599 (185,45)

Net increase (decrease) in mortgage-backed s&suriti (27,179 (6,789 105,63«
Balance at end of year $ 720,110 $ 747,28¢ $ 754,07"

While mortgagebacked securities carry a reduced credit risk agpamed to whole loans, such securities remain stibjethe risk that a fluctuating interest rate ismvment, alon
with other factors such as the geographic distidouof the underlying mortgage loans, may alter ghepayment rate of such mortgage loans and sotdfteh the prepayment speed
value of such securities. We do not own any deisiedahstruments that are extremely sensitive tangles in interest rates.

26




The table below sets forth certain information regey the amortized cost, fair value, annualizedgivied average yields and maturities of our investirin debt and equi
securities and interestarning deposits at December 31, 2012. The staitifin of balances is based on stated maturitigsitf securities are shown as immediately maturegept fo
preferred stocks with stated redemption dates, lwaie shown in the period they are scheduled t@theemed. Assumptions for repayments and prepagraeainot reflected for mortgage-
backed securities. We carry these investmentsateltimated fair value in the consolidated finahstatements.

One year or Les One to Five Year Five to Ten Year  More than Ten Yea Total Securitie:
Average
Weightec Weightec Weightec Weightec Remaining Estimate« Weightec
Amortizec Average Amortizec Average Amortizec Average Amortizec Average Yearstc Amortizec  Fair Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Maturity Cost Value Yield

(Dollars in thousands
Securities available for sale

Bonds and other debt securiti

U.S. government and agenc $ 1,38t 41t $ - - $ 10,027 2.9¢ $ 19,99 3.0(% 10.1€ $ 31,40¢ $ 31,51 3.05%
Municipal securitie: 1,00( 0.4C - - 9,30: 4.1¢F 63,92¢ 4.1z 16.7¢ 74,22¢ 75,29 4.0¢
Corporate debentures - - 59,01¢ 1.07 20,50( 2.1C 3,871 0.8¢ 4.31 83,38¢ 87,48t 1.31
Total bonds and other debt secur 2,38t 2.5¢ 59,01¢ 1.07 39,83( 2.8(C 87,79! 3.7: 10.17 189,02¢ 194,29: 2.6¢
Mutual funds 21,84 2.4z - - - - - - N/A 21,847  21,84: 2.4z
Equity securities
Common stocl - - - - - - 71€ 4.4¢ N/A 71¢ 71¢ 4.4¢
Preferred stock - - - - - - 17,07¢ 3.9z N/A 17,07¢ 12,59 3.92
Total equity securities - - - - - - 17,797 3.9 N/A 17,797 13,31¢ 3.94
Mortgage-backed securitie:
FNMA 8 6.0C 38¢ 5.9¢ 39,15¢ 3.3¢ 128,48! 3.8¢ 16.0¢ 168,04( 175,92¢ 3.77
REMIC and CMC - - 41¢ 4.0¢ 40,82( 4.6¢ 412,23( 3.92 22.87 453,46¢ 474,05( 4.0C
FHLMC - - 75 6.0¢ 72€ 6.5C 21,76 3.4: 14.4¢ 22,56:  23,20: 3.54
GNMA - - - - - - 43,21: 5.2¢ 25.7¢ 43,21:  46,93: 5.2¢
Total mortgage-backed securities 8 6.0C 882 5.1C 80,70« 4.07 605,68 4.0C 21.11 687,28. 720,11: 4.01
Interest-earning deposits 31,27¢ 0.28 - - - - - - N/A 31,27¢  31,27¢ 0.2
Total $ 55,51! 1.2(%$ 59,90( 1.15%$ 120,53¢ 3.65%$ 711,27 3.9¢% 18.7¢ $ 947,22¢ $ 980,84 3.5%
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Sour ces of Funds

Gene ral. Deposits, FHLB-NY borrowings, repurchase agre@s)eprincipal and interest payments on loans, gagebacked and other securities, and proceeds frors salean
and securities are our primary sources of fundsefeding, investing and other general purposes.

Depos its. We offer a variety of deposit accounts havingmge of interest rates and terms. Our depositsapity consist of savings accounts, money markebants, demar
accounts, NOW accounts and certificates of dep@éit.have a relatively stable retail deposit basevdrfrom our market area through our 17 édkvice offices. We seek to retain exis
depositor relationships by offering quality servamed competitive interest rates, while keeping dépgrowth within reasonable limits. It is manageme intention to balance its goal
maintain competitive interest rates on depositdeveeking to manage its cost of funds to finatestrategies.

In addition to our full-service offices we have iaternet branch “iGObanking.cof”, which currently offers savings accounts, money magccounts, checking accounts,
certificates of deposit. This allows us to compatea national scale without the geographical caires of physical locations. Since the number @.lhouseholds with accounts at Web-
only banks has grown, our strategy was to joinrtizeket place by creating a branch that offers tdi¢glne simplicity and flexibility of a virtual omle bank, which is a division of a stal
traditional bank that was established in 1929.DAtember 31, 2012 and 2011, total deposits fointieenet branch were $294.1 million and $470.6ionil| respectively.

The Bank provides, and its predecessor, the Comatdank, a New York Statehartered commercial bank, provided, banking ses/to public entities including counties, cit
towns, villages, school districts, libraries, filestricts, and the various courts throughout thevNeork City metropolitan area. The Bank offers, ahd Commercial Bank offered, a 1
range of deposit products. At December 31, 2012281d, total deposits for the Commercial Bank wg887.0 million and $591.0 million, respectively.

Our core deposits, consisting of savings accol@\WV accounts, money market accounts, and intrest bearing demand accounts, are typicallyensteible and lower costi
than other sources of funding. However, the fldwdeposits into a particular type of account iduahced significantly by general economic condisiochanges in prevailing money ma
and other interest rates, and competition. We éapeed a decrease in our Due to deposits during 80$131.1 million. During the year ended Decenfiie 2012, the cost of due to L
to depositors’ decreased 23 basis points to 1.36% f..59% for the year ended December 31, 2011s ddcrease in the cost of deposits is primartiyaitable to the Bank' reducing th
rates it pays on its deposit products. While wewsrable to predict the direction of future intenete changes, if interest rates rise during 2€i8result could be an increase in our co
deposits, which could reduce our net interest margimilarly, if interest rates remain at their rant level or decline in 2013, we could see a decih our cost of deposits, which ca
increase our net interest margin.

Included in deposits are certificates of deposthvisialances of $100,000 or more totaling $393.7ionil $565.7 million and $474.9 million at Decemisdr, 2012, 2011 and 20:
respectively.

We utilize brokered certificates of deposit as ddigonal funding source and to assist in the manzant of our interest rate risk. We have obtainetdred certificates of depc
when the interest rate on these deposits is bedevptevailing interest rate for ndmekered certificates of deposit with similar matas in our market, or when obtaining them allovesdtc
extend the maturities of our deposits at favorabtes compared to borrowing funds with similar miéies, when we are seeking to extend the matsritieour funding to assist in t
management of our interest rate risk. Brokeredfimtes of deposit provide a large deposit foatis lower operating cost as compared to Inarkered certificates of deposit since we
have one account to maintain versus several acgouitit multiple interest and maturity checks. Thepbsitory Trust Company is used as the clearing&omaintaining each deposit ur
the name of CEDE & Co. These deposits are trartgfefjast like a stock or bond investment and thetmmer can open the account with only a phone jeal,like buying a stock or bor
Unlike nonbrokered certificates of deposit, where the deparsibunt can be withdrawn with a penalty for anysoea including increasing interest rates, a brakeestificate of deposit ci
only be withdrawn in the event of the death, orrtdeclared mental incompetence, of the deposhiois allows us to better manage the maturity ofdeposits and our interest rate risk.
also have in the past utilized brokers to obtaimeyomarket account deposits. The rate we pay okebed money market accounts is the same or belewatie we pay on nolprokeret
money market accounts, and the rate is agreedad@amtract between the Bank and the broker. Theseunts are similar to brokered certificates gfodé accounts in that we only maint
one account for the total deposit per broker, withbroker maintaining the detailed records of edggpositor.
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We also offer access to $50 million per customeFDIC insurance coverage through a Certificate ep@sit Account Registry Service (‘CDARS®”). CDARS® a depos
placement service. This network arranges for plasenof funds into certificate of deposit accourssued by other member banks of the network in mergs of less than $250,00C
ensure that both principal and interest are ekgfbt full FDIC deposit insurance. This allows osatcept deposits in excess of $250,000 from agigppand place the deposits througrk
network to other member banks to provide full FRi€posit insurance coverage. We may receive defdositsother member banks in exchange for the dépos place into the netwo
We may also obtain deposits from other network mamiimnks without placing deposits into the netwakke will obtain deposits in this manner primarilg a shorterm funding
source. We also can place deposits with other reerbnks without receiving deposits from other merrtianks. Depositors are allowed to withdraw fundéh a penalty, from the
accounts at one or more of the member banks thdtthe deposits.

Brokered deposits and funds obtained through th&RS® network are classified as brokered deposits faarfamal reporting purposes. At December 31, 2012 hae $522.

million classified as brokered deposits. The breKecertificates of deposit include $54.3 milliobt@ined through the CDARS®etwork. We did not hold any brokered money mz
accounts at December 31, 2012.
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The following table sets forth the distributionair deposit accounts at the dates indicated and¢ighted average nominal interest rates on eatelycey of deposits presented.

At December 31

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Percen Average Percen Average Percen Average
of Total Nominal of Total Nominal of Total Nominal
Amount Deposits Rate Amount Deposits Rate Amount Deposits Rate
(Dollars in thousands
Savings account $ 288,39 9.5¢€ 0.1% $ 349,63( 11.11 0.32% $ 388,51: 12.1% 0.55%
NOW account: 1,136,59' 37.7( 0.57 919,02¢ 29.2] 0.67 786,01! 24.6: 0.84
Demand account 155,78¢ 5.17 - 118,50 3.71 - 96,19¢ 3.02 -
Mortgagors' escrow deposits 32,56( 1.0¢ 0.0¢ 29,78¢ 0.9 0.21 27,31t 0.8¢ 0.21
Total 1,613,341 SeLE 0.44 1,416,95: 45.0< 0.52 1,298,041 40.6¢ 0.67
Money market accounts (7) 148,61t 4.92 0.1t 200,18: 6.3€ 0.3¢ 371,99¢ 11.6¢€ 0.5€
Certificate of deposit accounts with origir
maturities of:
Less than 6 Month(2) 58,70¢ 1.9t 0.2z 14,64: 0.47 0.1% 21,24* 0.67 0.37
6 to less than 12 Montl(3) 25,14; 0.8 0.1: 22,84¢ 0.7¢2 0.2¢ 38,95¢ 1.2Z 0.5¢
12 to less than 30 Montl(4) 298,55 9.9C 0.97 647,87. 20.5¢ 1.7¢ 620,73 19.4¢ 1.92
30 to less than 48 Montl(5) 84,90: 2.8z 2.1z 91,70: 2.91 2.21 88,65¢ 2.7¢ 2.3€
48 to less than 72 Montl(6) 720,32¢ 23.8¢ 2.54 685,43. 21.7¢ 2.81 714,94¢ 22.4C 3.0¢
72 Months or more 65,58¢ 2.1¢ 3.7C 66,61: 2.12 3.71 36,02« 1.12 4.6¢
Total certificate of deposit accou 1,253,22! 41.5€ 2.04 1,529,111 48.6( 2.31 1,520,57. 47.6¢€ 2.5C
Total deposits (1) $ 3,015,19. 100.0% 1.0% $ 3,146,24 100.0% 1.3¢% $ 3,190,611 100.0% 1.52%
(1) Included in the above balances are IRA and Keoglosits totaling $144.4 million, $168.8 million asd78.2million at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2@d€pectively
2) Includes brokered deposits of $53.0 million, $1@ifion and $15.7 million at December 31, 2012, 2@hd 2010, respectivel
3) Includes brokered deposits of $0.8 million andrilion at December 31, 2012 and 2010, respecti\

4) Includes brokered deposits of $20.9 million, $4ifliom and $28.9 million at December 31, 2012, 2@ht 2010, respectivel

(5) Includes brokered deposits of $70.0 million, $188iion and $187.3 million at December 31, 201212 and 2010, respective
(6) Includes brokered deposits of $314.6 million, $24Million and $246.0 million at December 31, 202@11 and 2010, respective
(@) Includes brokered deposits of $62.9 million and.$38illion at December 31, 2012 and 2010, respelti

30




The following table presents by various rate catego the amount of time deposit accounts outstandt the dates indicated, and the years to matofithe certificate accour
outstanding at December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 201
At December 31 Within One to
2012 2011 2010 One Yeal Three Year: Thereaftel Total
(In thousands

Interest rate

1.99% or les: ) $ 571,10¢ $ 535,44 $ 411,507 $ 237,911 % 272,600 $ 60,58¢ $ 571,10¢
2.00% to 2.99% 2) 279,69¢ 549,58¢ 575,10¢ 131,90¢ 80,99¢ 66,79« 279,69¢
3.00% to 3.99% 3) 370,57( 401,65( 414,46: 27,85¢ 294,46¢ 48,24¢ 370,57(
4.00% to 4.99% (4) 10,30¢ 19,76+« 52,37: 9,89¢ 41z - 10,30¢
5.00% to 5.99% 5) 21,54+« 22,66¢ 67,127 2,47 19,06 = 21,54¢

Total $ 1,253,220  $ 1,529,111 $ 152057 $ 410,05«  $ 667,54t $ 175,62¢ $ 1,253,22!

1) Includes brokered deposits of $221.5 million, $004illion and $86.6 million at December 31, 201212 and 2010, respective
2) Includes brokered deposits of $152.1 million, $264illion and $156.9 million at December 31, 202@11 and 2010, respective
3) Includes brokered deposits of $148.5 million, $87million and $185.0 million at December 31, 202@11 and 2010, respective
4) Includes brokered deposits of $10.1 million at Deber 31, 201C

(5) Includes brokered deposits of $1.7 million and $38illion at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respelgti

The following table presents by remaining matudgtegories the amount of certificate of depositoaats with balances of $100,000 or more at Decer8er2012 and the
annualized weighted average interest rates.

Weighted
Amount Average Ratt
(Dollars in thousands

Maturity Period:

Three months or les $ 82,554 0.84%
Over three through six montl 40,94¢ 1.87
Over six through 12 montt 50,60( 1.27
Over 12 months 219,59. 2.21
Total $ 393,69( 1.77%

The above table does not include brokered depgsited in $1,000.00 amounts under a master cet#fiof deposit totaling $463.7 million with a weligth average rate of 2.20%.
The following table presents the deposit activiitgJuding mortgagors’ escrow deposits, for the pesiindicated.

For the year ended December

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Net deposits (withdrawal: $ (172,519 $ (93,98) $ 443,02(
Amortization of premiums, ne 1,08t 1,187 82C
Interest on deposits 40,38: 48,43: 53,65¢
Net increase (decrease) in deposits $ (131,05) $ (44,369 $ 497,49!
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The following table sets forth the distribution mir average deposit accounts for the years indicale percentage of total deposit portfolio, amel average interest cost of e
deposit category presented. Average balancedlfpeas shown are derived from daily balances.

At December 31

2012 2011 2010
Percen Percen Percen
Average of Total Average Average of Total Average Average of Total Average
Balance Deposits Cost Balance Deposits Cost Balance Deposits Cost
(Dollars in thousands
Savings account $ 317,09 10.11% 0.22% $ 369,20t 11.5% 0.51% $ 413,65 13.9%% 0.81%
NOW accountt 1,025,111 32.67 0.61 838,64t 26.3¢ 0.7¢ 683,39( 23.0¢ 1.1C
Demand account 134,16t 4.2¢ - 107,27¢ 3.37 - 88,23¢ 2.97 -
Mortgagors' escrow deposits 41,97 1.34 0.0¢ 39,43( 1.24 0.12 38,24 1.2¢ 0.14
Total 1,518,35! 48.4( 0.4¢€ 1,354,56: 42.5:2 0.6t 1,223,53! 41.2¢ 0.8¢
Money market accoun 175,81 5.6C 0.2t 278,69. 8.7t 0.47 394,53t 13.3C 0.94
Certificate of deposit accounts 1,443,19! 46.0( 2.2¢ 1,552,02 48.7:2 2.47 1,348,43! 45.4¢ 2.9C
Total deposits $ 3,137,36: 100.0(% 1.2¢% $ 3,185,27. 100.0(% 1.52% $ 2,966,50 100.0(% 1.81%

Borro wings. Although deposits are our primary source of &jngle also use borrowings as an alternative andetfestive source of funds for lending, investeugd other gener
purposes. The Bank is a member of, and is eligiblebtain advances from, the FHLB-NY. Such advammerally are secured by a blanket lien agairesBéinks mortgage portfolio ar
the Bank’s investment in the stock of the FHLB-NN.addition, the Bank may pledge mortgage-backedirsties to obtain advances from the FHLB-NY. See Regulation —Federe
Home Loan Bank System.” The maximum amount thatRH&B-NY will advance for purposes other than for meetivithdrawals fluctuates from time to time in accamde with th
policies of the FHLB-NY. The Bank may also enteimepurchase agreements with broker-dealers andFiHLB-NY. These agreements are recorded as financingactsions and tt
obligations to repurchase are reflected as a ifgliil our consolidated financial statements. ldligidn, we issued junior subordinated debentureh witotal par of $61.9 million in June ¢
July 2007. These junior subordinated debenturesaméed at fair value in the Consolidated Statemeérrinancial Condition. The average cost of batirggs was 2.98%, 4.08% and 4.4
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 anfl, 2@%pectively. The average balances of borrowinge $767.6 million, $693.4 million and $864.2 lioit for the same yeal
respectively.
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The following table sets forth certain informati@garding our borrowings at or for the periods ehde the dates indicated.

At or for the years ended December
2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands

Securities Sold with the Agreement to Repurchase

Average balance outstandi $ 185,30( $ 171,09: $ 174,75(
Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio 185,30( 185,30( 186,90(
Balance outstanding at the end of pel 185,30( 185,30 166,00(
Weighted average interest rate during the pe 3.62% 4.01% 4.3(%
Weighted average interest rate at end of pe 3.47 3.71 4.3t
FHLB-NY Advances

Average balance outstandi $ 557,14 $ 491,010 $ 656,24+
Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio 739,18: 562,57¢ 772,11
Balance outstanding at the end of pel 739,18 473,52¢ 510,45’
Weighted average interest rate during the pe 2.32% 3.45% 4.0(%
Weighted average interest rate at end of pe 1.72 2.61 3.92
Other Borrowings

Average balance outstandi $ 2519 % 31,29¢ % 33,17¢
Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio 26,38¢ 36,177 34,82%
Balance outstanding at the end of pel 23,92: 26,31: 32,22¢
Weighted average interest rate during the pe 12.65% 13.82% 13.0%
Weighted average interest rate at end of pe 6.92 16.9¢ 13.8¢
Total Borrowings

Average balance outstandi $ 767,63t $ 693,40¢ $ 864,17:
Maximum amount outstanding at any moend during the perio 948,40! 777,37: 993,83t
Balance outstanding at the end of pel 948,40! 685,13¢ 708,68:
Weighted average interest rate during the pe 2.98% 4.08% 4.41%
Weighted average interest rate at end of pe 2.21 3.51 4.47

Sub sidiary Activities

At December 31, 2012, Flushing Financial Corporatiad four wholly owned subsidiaries: the SavingsiBand the Trusts. In addition, the Savings Beauk four wholly owne
subsidiaries: the Commercial Bank, FSB Properties, (“Properties”), Flushing Preferred Funding ganation (“FPFC”), and Flushing Service Corporation

(a) The Commercial Bank, a New York Sttartered commercial bank, was formed in respamseNew York State Finance Law which requires thahicipal deposits ai
state funds be deposited into a bank or trust compasignated by the New York State Comptrollewdss formed for the limited purpose of providinghkimg services to public entiti
including counties, cities, towns, villages, schdistricts, libraries, fire districts and the var®ocourts throughout the New York City metropolitaga.

(b) Properties, which is incorporatedthie State of New York, was formed in 1976 under $lawings Bank’'s New York State leeway investmenharity. Theoriginal
purpose of Properties was to engage in joint venteal estate equity investments. The Savings Bésdontinued these activities in 1986. The lasttjventure in which Properties wa
partner was dissolved in 1989. The last remainimgp@rty acquired by the dissolution of these jei@btures was disposed of in 1998. Properties ieently used to hold title to real est
owned that is obtained via foreclosure.

(c) FPFC, which is incorporated in that8tof Delaware, was formed in 1997 as a realeataestment trust for the purpose of acquiringdimg and managing real est
mortgage assets. FPFC also provides an additi@hétle for access by the Company to the capitaketarfor future opportunities.

(d) Flushing Service Corporation, whishricorporated in the State of New York, was fornmeti998 to market insurance products and mutuadsu
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Perso nnel

At December 31, 2012, we had 362 full-time emplesyasd 23 partime employees. None of our employees are repregdnt a collective bargaining unit, and we consiui@
relationship with our employees to be good. At pesent time, Flushing Financial Corporation onfgpéoys certain officers of the Bank. These emplgyde not receive any ex
compensation as officers of Flushing Financial ©cagion.

Omnib us Incentive Plan

The 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“Omnibus Plarfcame effective on May 17, 2005 after adoptiortheyBoard of Directors and approval by the stoctterd. The Omnibi
Plan authorizes the Compensation Committee to gramatriety of equity compensation awards as welbagterm and annual cash incentive awards, all of whih be structured so as
comply with Section 162(m) of the Internal Revei@ade. As of December 31, 2012, there are 543,08 shavailable under the full value award plan 88d40 shares under the nfuti-
value plan. We have applied the shares previcastiyorized by stockholders under the 1996 Stocko@phcentive Plan and the 1996 Restricted Stockitive Plan for use under the non-
full value and full value plans, respectively, fature awards under the Omnibus Plan. All grants amards under the 1996 Stock Option Incentive Rlah1996 Restricted Stock Incen
Plan prior to the effective date of the OmnibusnRfamained outstanding as issued. We will contioumaintain separate pools of available sharefufbvalue as opposed to ndaH value
awards, except that shares can be moved from thdutiovalue pool to the full value pool on a 3fbrbasis. In May 2011, the Compasstockholders approved an additional 625
shares for the full value pool. The exercise ppee share of a stock option grant may not betless the fair market value of the common stockhef Company on the date of grant,
may not be repriced without the approval of the @any’s stockholders. Options, stock appreciation rigtestricted stock, restricted stock units and otitteck based awards granted ul
the Omnibus Plan are generally subject to a minimesting period of three years.

For additional information concerning this plane $Blote 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Stegsts” in Item 8 of this Annual Report.
FEDER AL, STATE AND LOCAL TAXATION
The following discussion of tax matters is intendedy as a summary and does not purport to be graimensive description of the tax rules applicablihe Company.
Fede ral Taxation

Gene ral. We report our income using a calendar year apdatcrual method of accounting. We are subjethadederal tax laws and regulations which applgdrporation
generally, and, since the enactment of the Smalirigss Job Protection Act of 1996 (the “Act”), thdaws and regulations governing the Bank’s deduastior bad debts, described below.

Bad Debt Reserves Prior to the enactment of the Act, which was eifjinto law on August 20, 1996, savings institusievhich met certain definitional tests primarilyaténg tc
their assets and the nature of their business [ifgjum thrifts”), such as the Savings Bank, were allowed deductimnbad debts under methods more favorable thare thamnted to oth
taxpayers. Qualifying thrifts could compute dedares for bad debts using either the specific charfjenethod of Section 166 of the Internal Reve@gale (the “Code”)r the resern
method of Section 593 of the Code. Section 161&{#)e Act repealed the Section 593 reserve metfi@tcounting for bad debts by qualifying thrife$fective for taxable years beginn
after 1995. Qualifying thrifts that are treatedlage banks, such as the Savings Bank, are refjtdrase the specific charge off method, pursuanttiich the amount of any debt may
deducted only as it actually becomes wholly oripliytworthless.

Distr ibutions. To the extent that the Bank makes “non-dividerstrithutions” to stockholders that are considereddsult in distributions from its prE988 reserves or t
supplemental reserve for losses on loans (“excissshditions”), then an amount based on the amdisitibuted will be included in the Bank's taxalileome. Nondividend distribution
include distributions in excess of the Bank’s cotrend postt951 accumulated earnings and profits, as calalfaefederal income tax purposes, distributionseédemption of stock al
distributions in partial or complete liquidatiohe amount of additional taxable income resultirant an excess distribution is an amount that wieeluced by the tax attributable to
income is equal to the amount of the excess digtdh. Thus, slightly more than one and draf times the amount of the excess distributiomenaould be includable in gross income
federal income tax purposes, assuming a 35% federglorate income tax rate. See “RegulatibnRestrictions on Dividends and Capital Distributidrisr limits on the payment
dividends by the Bank. The Bank does not intendaty dividends or make non-dividend distributioesaribed above that would result in a recapture@ngfportion of its pre-988 bad del
reserves.
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Corp orate Alternative Minimum TaxThe Code imposes an alternative minimum tax anparations equal to the excess, if any, of 20%lt&#rnative minimum taxable incol
(“AMTI") over a corporations regular federal income tax liability. AMTI is &) to taxable income with certain adjustmentsnésally, only 90% of AMTI can be offset by net oatng
loss carrybacks and carryforwards.

State and Local Taxation

New York State and New York City Taxatiowe are subject to the New York State Franchiese dh Banking Corporations in an annual amount leipuhe greater of (1) 7.1%
“entire net income’allocable to New York State during the taxable y&a(2) the applicable alternative minimum tax.eTditernative minimum tax is generally the greatiefa) 0.01% c
the value of assets allocable to New York Staté wiétrtain modifications, (b) 3% of “alternative ieatnet income’allocable to New York State or (c) $250. Entiré ineome is similar t
federal taxable income, subject to certain modiiiees, including that net operating losses ariglnging any taxable year prior to January 1, 200inoabe carried back or carried forw:
and net operating losses arising during any taxgdse beginning on or after January 1, 2001 cabeatarried back. Alternative entire net incomegsas to entire net income without cert
deductions that are allowable in the calculatioemtire net income. We are also subject to a aifgilcalculated New York City tax of 9% on inconleated to New York City. For Ne
York City tax purposes, entire net income is simia federal taxable income, subject to certain fiwations, including that net operating lossesiag during any taxable year priot
January 1, 2009 cannot be carried back or caroesldrd, and net operating losses arising duringtargble year beginning on or after January 1, 2&0tot be carried back and sim
alternative taxes. In addition, we are subjea tax surcharge at a rate of 17% of the New Yos&teSEranchise Tax that is attributable to busimesisity carried on within the Metropolit.
Commuter Transportation District.

Notwithstanding the repeal of the federal incomegeovisions permitting bad debt deductions undier reserve method, New York State had enacteddéigis maintaining th
preferential treatment of additional loss reserfes qualifying real property and najualifying loans of qualifying thrifts for both Nework State and New York City t
purposes. Calculation of the amount of additianseserves for qualifying real property loans wastéd to the larger of the amount derived by teecpntage of taxable income metho
the experience method. For these purposes, thecablgl percentage to calculate the bad debt demuatider the percentage of taxable income meth@d3286 of taxable income, redur
by additions to reserves for ngpralifying loans, except that the amount of theitiaiu to the reserve could not exceed the amouoéseary to increase the balance of the reserdedse
on qualifying real property loans at the closeld taxable year to 6% of the balance of the qualifyeal property loans outstanding at the encheftaxable year. Under the experie
method, the maximum addition to a loan reserve gdiyeequaled the amount necessary to increasbalaace of the bad debt reserve at the close dhstable year to the greater of (1)
amount that bears the same ratio to loans outstgradithe close of the taxable year as the totabae debts sustained during the current and fieequling taxable years bears to the su
the loans outstanding at the close of those sixsyea (2) the balance of the bad debt reservieeatipse of the “base yeant, if the amount of loans outstanding has declisiede the ba:
year, the amount which bears the same ratio tanmaunt of loans outstanding at the close of thatixyear as the balance of the reserve at the ofahe base year. For these purpose
“base year” was the last taxable year beginningreet988. The amount of additions to reserves éorqualifying loans was computed under the experienethod. In no event could 1
additions to reserves for qualifying real propddsns be greater than the larger of the amountméted under the experience method or the amouithyivhen added to the addition:
reserves for nokualifying loans, equal the amount by which 12%hef total deposits or withdrawable accounts of déprs of the Savings Bank at the close of thelixgear exceed:
the sum of the Savings Bank’s surplus, undividegfitsrand reserves at the beginning of such year.

In September 2010, the New York State legislatin@nged New York State and City tax law for thritach as the Savings Bank, by eliminating the peege of taxable incor
method for determining bad debt deductions for éxgears beginning on or after January 1, 2010s Thange in the New York State and City tax law tfwifts did not require tt
recapture of tax bad debt reserves previously ksitell, and eliminated the requirement to recaptaxebad debt reserves if a thrift failed to méet tlefinition of a thrift institution und
New York State and City tax la\

The Savings Bank had historically reported in iesaNYork State and City income tax returns a deduacfor bad debts based on the amount allowed uheguercentage of taxal
income method. This amount had historically excdealetual bad debts incurred by the Savings BankceSthe Savings Bank has consistently stated iénfion to convert to a mc
“commercial like"bank, which would have previously required the 8gsiBank to recapture this excess bad debt reddtfailed to meet the definition of a thrift uedthe New York Sta
and City tax law, the Savings Bank had, in priorgms, recorded the tax liability related to thespible recapture of the excess tax bad debt resksva result of the legislation passed by
New York State legislature, this tax liability wilb longer be required to be recaptured. As atiehal Savings Bank reversed approximately $5.5anibf net tax liabilities through incor
during the year ended December 31, 2010.
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D elaware State Taxation As a Delaware holding company not earning incomBelaware, we are exempt from Delaware corparateme tax but are required to file an ani
report with and pay an annual franchise tax toSte¢e of Delaware.

R EGU LATION

Gener al

The Bank is a New York State-chartered commercamikband its deposit accounts are insured undeD#posit Insurance Fund (the “DIFYf the Federal Deposit Insurat
Corporation (the “FDIC")up to applicable legal limits. The Bank is subjerextensive regulation and supervision by the N'8D&s its chartering agency, by the FDIC, as &siier o
deposits, and by the Consumer Financial Prote&imeau (the “CFPB”), which was created under theddBrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protecdict(the “Dodd-Frank Actf
in 2011 to implement and enforce consumer protadas applying to banks. The Bank must file repovith the NYDFS, the FDIC, and the CFPB concernis@ctivities and financi
condition, in addition to obtaining regulatory apyals prior to entering into certain transactionstsas mergers with, or acquisitions of, other dépuoy institutions. Furthermore, the B
is periodically examined by the NYDFS and the FDOtCassess compliance with various regulatory requémts, including safety and soundness considagatibhis regulation at
supervision establishes a comprehensive framewfaaktivities in which a commercial bank can engage] is intended primarily for the protection o thsurance fund and depositors.
regulatory structure also gives the regulatory auities extensive discretion in connection withstgpervisory and enforcement activities and exatitingolicies, including policies wi
respect to the classification of assets and thebkshment of adequate loan loss allowances foulaggry purposes. Any change in such regulatioretivr by the NYDFS, the FDIC,
through legislation, could have a material advérggact on the Company, the Bank and its operatiand,the Company’s shareholders.

The Company is required to file certain reportsamadnd otherwise comply with, the rules and retjuria of the Federal Reserve Board of Governoms (HRB”), the FDIC, thi
NYDFS, and the Securities and Exchange Commisgiom“SEC”) under federal securities laws. In addition, the FRBiodically examines the Company. Certain of tegulaton
requirements applicable to the Bank and the Compmasyreferred to below or elsewhere herein. Howesech discussion is not meant to be a completéaeapon of all laws ar
regulations and is qualified in its entirety byefnce to the actual laws and regulations.

The Dodd-Frank Act

The DoddFrank Act has significantly changed the currentkoaegulatory structure and will continue to affdato the immediate future, the lending and investtractivities an
general operations of depository institutions ascholding companies. In addition to creating @€PB, the Dodd~rank Act requires the FRB to establish minimumsmbidated capiti
requirements for bank holding companies that agraggent as those required for insured depositwstjtutions; the components of Tier 1 capitallwi restricted to capital instruments
are currently considered to be Tier 1 capital fisured depository institutions. In addition, thegeeds of trust preferred securities will be exetidrom Tier 1 capital unless (i) st
securities are issued by bank holding companids assets of less than $500 million, or (ii) suctusities were issued prior to May 19, 2010 by bankavings and loan holding compai
with assets of less than $15 billion. The exclusibsuch proceeds will be phased in over a three-geriod beginning in 2013.

The DoddFrank Act created a new supervisory structure farsight of the U.S. financial system, including #stablishment of a new council of regulators,Rimancial Stabilit
Oversight Council, to monitor and address systamslc to the financial system. Ndrank financial companies that are deemed to befisignt to the stability of the U.S. financial sgst
and all bank holding companies with $50 billionneore in total consolidated assets will be subjedtaightened supervision and regulation. The FRBimvplement prudential requireme|
and prompt corrective action procedures for suchpamies.

The DoddFrank Act made many additional changes in bankegylation, including: authorizing depository instions, for the first time, to pay interest on mesis checkir
accounts; requiring originators of securitized da retain a percentage of the risk for transtetoans; establishing regulatory ratetting for certain debit card interchange fees
establishing a number of reforms for mortgage legdind consumer protection.
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The DoddFrank Act also broadened the base for FDIC inswassessments. The FDIC was required to promulgkee revising its assessment system so thatiased not ¢
deposits, but on the average consolidated totatadsss the tangible equity capital of an insuretitution. That rule took effect April 1, 2011h& DoddFrank Act also permanen
increased the maximum amount of deposit insuraacédnks, savings institutions, and credit unian$250,000 per depositor, retroactive to JanuaB008, and provided non-interest-
bearing transaction accounts with unlimited depiasitirance through December 31, 2012.

Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act are get effective. The Dodérank Act requires various federal agencies to pigate numerous and extensive implemer
regulations over the next several years. Althougdh therefore difficult to predict at this time athimpact the Doddrank Act and the implementing regulations will Baxn the Compat
and the Bank, they may have a material impact @mains through, among other things, heightengdlatory supervision and increased compliance costs

Basel IlI

In the summer of 2012, our primary federal regutatoublished two notices of proposed rulemaking (@012 Capital Proposals”) that would substantiadivise the riskzase:
capital requirements applicable to bank holding panies and depository institutions, including therpany and the Bank, compared to the current UsEbased capital rules, which i
based on the international capital accords of theeBCommittee on Banking Supervision (the “Baseh@ittee”) which are generally referred to as “Base

One of the 2012 Capital Proposals (the “Basel ig®sal”) addresses the components of capital #met Gssues affecting the numerator in bankingtirtsns’ regulatory capit:
ratios and would implement the Basel Committee’sddeber 2010 framework, known as “Basel llI,” forestgthening international capital standards. Tinemoproposal (theStandardize
Approach Proposal”) addresses risk weights andrasiseles affecting the denominator in banking fostns’ regulatory capital ratios and would reglabe existing Baselderived risl
weighting approach with a more risk-sensitive applobased, in part, on the standardized approaitieiBasel Committee’'s 2004 “Basel Hapital accords. Although the Basel Ill Prop
was proposed to come into effect on January 1, 20f8federal banking agencies jointly announcedNomember 9, 2012 that they did not expect anyhef groposed rules to beco
effective on that date. As proposed, the Standeddigpproach Proposal would come into effect on danf, 2015.

The federal banking agencies have not proposed miplementing the final liquidity framework of Beldll and have not determined to what extent théy apply to U.S. bank
that are not large, internationally active bankss managemend’ belief that, as of December 31, 2012, we wouldtra# capital adequacy requirements under the|Bissnd Standardize
Approach Proposals on a fully phasadbasis if such requirements were currently effectThe regulations that are ultimately applicatefinancial institutions may be substanti
different from the Basel Il final framework as pished in December 2010 and the proposed rulegdsBuJune 2012. Management will continue to marthese and any future propos
submitted by our regulators.

In addition, the FDIC has approved issuance of raaragency proposed rulemaking to implement cenaovisions of Section 171 of the Dodd-Frank AcBettion 171).
Section 171 provides that the capital requiremgateerally applicable to insured banks shall sesva #ioor for other capital requirements the agemeistablish. The FDIC has noted tha
advanced approaches of Basel Il allow for redunstin riskbased capital requirements below those generalyicable to insured banks and, accordingly, neetbeéamodified to b
consistent with Section 171.

New York State Law

The Bank derives its lending, investment, and og¢hethority primarily from the applicable provisioaSNew York State Banking Law and the regulatiohshe NYDFS, as limite
by FDIC regulations. Under these laws and regulatidanks, including the Bank, may invest in resth#® mortgages, consumer and commercial loangircaypes of debt securiti
(including certain corporate debt securities, abligations of federal, state, and local governmemtd agencies), certain types of corporate eqeityirities, and certain other assets.
lending powers of New York State-chartered comnaérbanks are not subject to percentagessfets or capital limitations, although there @retd applicable to loans to individt
borrowers.

The exercise by an FDI®sured commercial bank of the lending and investnpewers under New York State Banking Law is ledity FDIC regulations and other federal |
and regulations. In particular, the applicable Bmns of New York State Banking Law and regulasigoverning the investment authority and activibéan FDIC-insured statehartere:
savings bank and commercial bank have been efédgtiimited by the Federal Deposit Insurance Coagion Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA"and the FDIC regulations isst
pursuant thereto.
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With certain limited exceptions, a New York Stateartered commercial bank may not make loans @neixtredit for commercial, corporate, or businaspgses (including lea
financing) to a single borrower, the aggregate amofiwhich would be in excess of 15% of the bankét worth or up to 25% for loans secured by taiéd having an ascertainable ma
value at least equal to the excess of such loaes the bank’s net worth. The Bank currently conpligth all applicable loans-to-ort®srrower limitations. At December 31, 2012,
Bank’s largest aggregate amount of loans to oneter was $53.1 million, all of which were perforgiaccording to their terms. See “— General — liegd\ctivities.”

Under New York State Banking Law, New York Statestbred stockerm commercial banks may declare and pay dividendf its net profits, unless there is an impainino
capital, but approval of the NYDFS Superintendehé (‘Superintendent”)s required if the total of all dividends declareg the bank in a calendar year would exceed thad tdtits ne
profits for that year combined with its retained peofits for the preceding two years less priofidinds paid.

New York State Banking Law gives the Superintendanhority to issue an order to a New York Stttestered banking institution to appear and expdairapparent violation
law, to discontinue unauthorized or unsafe prasti@nd to keep prescribed books and accounts. @pfinding by the NYDFS that any director, trustee,officer of any bankin
organization has violated any law, or has continuealuthorized or unsafe practices in conductingotig@ness of the banking organization after hatiegn notified by the Superintender
discontinue such practices, such director, trusteefficer may be removed from office after not@aed an opportunity to be heard. The Superintendksat has authority to appoin
conservator or a receiver for a savings or comrakbzink under certain circumstances.

FDI C Regulations

Capital Requirements.The FDIC has adopted ridkased capital guidelines to which the Bank is sttbjehe guidelines establish a systematic analyfieanework that make
regulatory capital requirements sensitive to déferes in risk profiles among banking organizatiofise Bank is required to maintain certain levelsrexfulatory capital in relation
regulatory risk-weighted assets. The ratio of stegjulatory capital to regulatory risk-weighted assse referred to as a “risk-based capital ratRisk-based capital ratios are determiner
allocating assets and specified off-balance-shemstsi to four riskweighted categories ranging from 0% to 100%, wighhbr levels of capital being required for the gaiges perceived
representing greater risk.

These guidelines divide an institution’s capitabitwo tiers. The first tier (“Tier 1”) includes somon equity, retained earnings, certain ©omulative perpetual preferred st
(excluding auction rate issues), and minority iegts in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiatéss goodwill and other intangible assets (exeeptgage servicing rights and purche
credit card relationships subject to certain lititas). Supplementary (“Tier 2”) capital includemnong other items, cumulative perpetual and long-temiteddife preferred stocl
mandatorily convertible securities, certain hybeapital instruments, term subordinated debt, aedattowance for loan losses, subject to certairitditions, and up to 45% of ptex ne
unrealized gains on equity securities with read#éyerminable fair market values, less required deolus. Commercial banks are required to maintawtal riskbased capital ratio of at le
8%, of which at least 4% must be Tier 1 capital.

In addition, the FDIC has established regulatiorssgribing a minimum Tier 1 leverage capital rtioe ratio of Tier 1 capital to adjusted averagsets as specified in t
regulations). These regulations provide for a mimmiTier 1 leverage capital ratio of 3% for insiibuts that meet certain specified criteria, inclgdthat they have the highest examing
rating and are not experiencing or anticipatingifigant growth. All other institutions are requiréo maintain a Tier 1 leverage capital ratio ofegist 4%. The FDIC may, however,
higher leverage and rigkased capital requirements on individual institasiovhen particular circumstances warrant. Institgtiexperiencing or anticipating significant growatle expecte
to maintain capital ratios, including tangible dappositions, well above the minimum levels.

As of December 31, 2012, the Bank was deemed todecapitalized under the regulatory framework fwompt corrective action. To be categorized ad wvagitalized, a bar
must maintain a minimum Tier 1 leverage capitabraf 5%, a minimum Tier 1 risk-based capital ratfo6%, and a minimum total rigkased capital ratio of 10%. For a summary o
regulatory capital ratios of the Bank at Decemlier2012, see “Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated e Statements” in Item 8 of this Annual Report.

The regulatory capital regulations of the FDIC astHer federal banking agencies provide that theneige will take into account the exposure of anitimson’s capital an
economic value to changes in interest rate ris&sisessing capital adequacy. According to such @grapplicable considerations include the qualityhe institution$ interest rate ris
management process, overall financial condition, thie level of other risks at the institution fohieh capital is needed. Institutions with signifitanterest rate risk may be required to |
additional capital. The agencies have issued a jmificy statement providing guidance on interesé risk management, including a discussion ofctitieal factors affecting the agencies’
evaluation of interest rate risk in connection wattpital adequacy. Institutions that engage inifipdcamounts of trading activity may be subjecatjustments in the calculation of the risk-
based capital requirement to assure sufficienttaahdil capital to support market risk.
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Standards for Safety and Soundned$%deral law requires each federal banking agengydscribe, for the depository institutions undsrjurisdiction, standards that relate
among other things, internal controls; informatiamd audit systems; loan documentation; credit wadeng; the monitoring of interest rate risk; asggowth; compensation; fees ¢
benefits; and such other operational and managstéidards as the agency deems appropriate. Tleeafedanking agencies adopted final regulations bmeragency Guidelin:
Establishing Standards for Safety and Soundness‘@Ghidelines”)to implement these safety and soundness standetrdsGuidelines set forth the safety and soundntesslards that tt
federal banking agencies use to identify and addpesblems at insured depository institutions befoapital becomes impaired. If the appropriate f&deanking agency determines tha
institution fails to meet any standard prescribgdte Guidelines, the agency may require the intstit to provide it with an acceptable plan to avki compliance with the standard
required by the Federal Deposit Insurance Act,nasraled, (the “FDI Act”)The final regulations establish deadlines for thiensission and review of such safety and soundnaspliance
plans.

Real Estate Lending StandardsThe FDIC and the other federal banking agenicéas adopted regulations that prescribe standardsxtensions of credit that are (i) secure:
real estate, or (ii) made for the purpose of filmag@onstruction or improvements on real estatee FBIC regulations require each institution to ksh and maintain written internal n
estate lending standards that are consistent afthand sound banking practices, and appropriateetsize of the institution and the nature angbeaf its real estate lending activities.
standards also must be consistent with accompar@ guidelines, which include loan-t@lue limitations for the different types of reata&te loans. Institutions are also permitte
make a limited amount of loans that do not conftarthe proposed loan-tealue limitations so long as such exceptions aveeveed and justified appropriately. The FDIC guides also lis
a number of lending situations in which exceptitmthe loan-to-value standard are justified.

Dividend Limitations. The FDIC has authority to use its enforcement psweprohibit a commercial bank from paying dividsrif, in its opinion, the payment of dividends wd
constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. Fedanaptohibits the payment of dividends that willuksn the institution failing to meet applicablapital requirements on a pro forma be
The Bank is also subject to dividend declaratigtrietions imposed by New York State law as presigpudiscussed under “New York State Law.”

Investment Activities.Since the enactment of FDICIA, all stateartered financial institutions, including commiatdanks and their subsidiaries, have generalgnbamited tc
such activities as principal and equity investmaeritthe type, and in the amount, authorized foramatl banks. State law, FDICIA, and FDIC regulaigrermit certain exceptions to th
limitations. In addition, the FDIC is authorizedgermit institutions to engage in state-authoriaetivities or investments not permitted for natiomanks (other than nosubsidiary equit
investments) for institutions that meet all appbieacapital requirements if it is determined thattsactivities or investments do not pose a sigaift risk to the insurance fund. The Gramm-
Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 and FDIC regulations impasertain quantitative and qualitative restrictiomssuch activities and on a basklealings with a subsidiary that engages in siee
activities.

Prompt Corrective Regulatory ActionFederal law requires, among other things, teédefal bank regulatory authorities take “promptective action’with respect to institutior
that do not meet minimum capital requirements. Boch purposes, the law establishes five capitak:tisvell capitalized, adequately capitalized, uedpitalized, significantl
undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized.

The FDIC has adopted regulations to implement ptaroprective action. Among other things, the regates define the relevant capital measures foffitheecapital categories. #
institution is deemed to be “well capitalized” ifnas a total risk-based capital ratio of 10% @ager, a Tier 1 riskased capital ratio of 6% or greater, and a leveagpital ratio of 5%
greater, and is not subject to a regulatory ordgreement, or directive to meet and maintain aipempital level for any capital measure. An ingion is deemed to beatlequatel
capitalized” if it has a total risk-based capitafio of 8% or greater, a Tier 1 riflased capital ratio of 4% or greater, and geneealBverage capital ratio of 4% or greater. Aniingbn is
deemed to be “undercapitalized” if it has a totsk+based capital ratio of less than 8%, a Tieisk-based capital ratio of less than 4%, or generalBvarage capital ratio of less than -
An institution is deemed to be “significantly undapitalized” if it has a total risk-based capitio of less than 6%, a Tier 1 ritkesed capital ratio of less than 3%, or a levecagétal ratic
of less than 3%. An institution is deemed to bétitally undercapitalized” if it has a ratio of tgible equity (as defined in the regulations) tatatssets that is equal to or less than 2%.
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“Undercapitalized”institutions are subject to growth, capital disttibn (including dividend), and other limitationand are required to submit a capital restoratican.pAr
institution’s compliance with such plan is requitedbe guaranteed by any company that controlsitigercapitalized institution in an amount equath® lesser of 5% of the barsktota
assets when deemed undercapitalized or the ameuassary to achieve the status of adequately tapdalf an undercapitalized institution failsgabmit an acceptable plan, it is treate
if it is “significantly undercapitalized.Significantly undercapitalized institutions are gdb to one or more additional restrictions inchgli but not limited to, an order by the FDIC tol
sufficient voting stock to become adequately cédipitd; requirements to reduce total assets, ceaseipt of deposits from correspondent banks, amidis directors or officers; a
restrictions on interest rates paid on depositspEnsation of executive officers, and capital distions by the parent holding company.

Beginning 60 days after becoming “critically undspitalized,”critically undercapitalized institutions also magtmake any payment of principal or interest ortarrsubordinate
debt, or extend credit for a highly leveraged temtion, or enter into any material transaction idetghe ordinary course of business. In additiarbject to a narrow exception,
appointment of a receiver is required for a criticandercapitalized institution within 270 daygeafit obtains such status.

Insurance of Deposit AccountsThe deposits of the Bank are insured up to egple limits by the DIF. Under the FDIC's riblased assessment system, insured institutiol
assigned to one of four risk categories based gupervisory evaluations, regulatory capital lewld certain other factors, with less risky institns paying lower assessments.
institution’s assessment rate depends upon the category th vhi assigned and certain other factors. Histdly, assessment rates ranged from seven to %&&B Ipoints of ear
institution’s deposit assessment base. On Febiia2911, as required by the DoBdank Act, the FDIC published a final rule to revthe deposit insurance assessment system. Th
which took effect April 1, 2011, changed the assest base used for calculating deposit insuransesasents from deposits to total assets less tar(@iler 1) capital. Since the new b
is larger than the previous base, the FDIC als®ted assessment rates so that the rule wouldgmafisantly alter the total amount of revenue colél from the industry. On September
2009, the FDIC collected, from all insured insiibus, a special emergency assessment of five pasiss of total assets minus Tier 1 capital (capgettn basis points of an institutien’
deposit assessment base as of June 30, 20093lentorcover losses to the DIF. The FDIC considénecheed for similar special assessments duradjtal two quarters of 2009. Howev
in lieu of further special assessments, the FDiflired insured institutions to prepay estimatedriguly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2008gh the fourth quarter
2012. The Bank prepaid a total of $16.9 millionisk-based assessments.

Due to the decline in economic conditions, the dépiasurance provided by the FDIC per account awnas raised to $250,000 for all types of accoufitat change, initiall
intended to be temporary, was made permanent bRdlde-Frank Act. In addition, the FDIC adopted amti@nal Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (“TR'G under which, for a fe
non-interesbearing transaction accounts would receive unlidnitesurance coverage until December 31, 2009 (kexéended to December 31, 2010), and certain semsecured de
issued by institutions and their holding compatiesveen October 13, 2008 and June 30, 2009 (latengéed to October 31, 2009) would be guaranteetthidyDIC through June 30, 2(
or, in certain cases, until December 31, 2012. Dbdd-Frank Act has provided for continued unlimitemerage for certain non-interdsaring transaction accounts until Decembe
2012.

The DoddFrank Act increased the minimum target DIF rationir1.15% of estimated insured deposits to 1.35%stimated insured deposits. The FDIC must seekh@ee th:
1.35% ratio by September 30, 2020. Insured ingitstwith assets of $10 billion or more are supdasefund the increase. The Do#dank Act eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund re
leaving it, instead, to the discretion of the FDIthe FDIC has exercised that discretion by esthinigs a long range fund ratio of 2%, which couldutesn our paying higher depo
insurance premiums in the future.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Rlpi@h a finding that the institution has engagedrisafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe sownd condition to contini
operations, or has violated any applicable lawylpn, rule, order, or condition imposed by tHel€. Management does not know of any practice, it@rd or violation that would lead
termination of the deposit insurance of the Bank.

On September 30, 1996, as part of an omnibus apatioms bill, the Deposit Insurance Funds Act 886 (the “Funds Act”was enacted. The Funds Act required Bank Insu
Fund (“BIF”) institutions, including the Savings Blg beginning January 1, 1997, to pay a portiothefinterest due on the Finance Corporation (“FIC®hds issued in connection w
the savings and loan association crisis in the1889s, and required BIF institutions to pay tlielr pro rata share of the FICO payments starthwg ¢arlier of January 1, 2000 or the da
which no savings institution continues to exist. Were required, as of January 1, 2000, to pay wlupfo rata share of the FICO payments. The FIG8easment rate is subject to cha
The Bank paid $299,000, $311,000 and $298,00(hfzir share of the interest due on FICO bonds ir222011 and 2010, respectively, which was includgeDIC insurance expense.
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Brok ered Deposits.The FDIC has promulgated regulations implementimgEDICIA limitations on brokered deposits. Undee tegulations, weltapitalized institutions are r
subject to brokered deposit limitations, while adstgly capitalized institutions are able to accephew or roll over brokered deposits only with aiwer from the FDIC and subject
restrictions on the interest rate that can be paiduch deposits. Undercapitalized institutions rese permitted to accept brokered deposits and nmysolicit deposits by offering
effective yield that exceeds by more than 75 bagists the prevailing effective yields on insuregpdsits of comparable maturity in the institut®n'ormal market area or in the market
in which such deposits are being solicited. Purstmthe regulation, the Bank, as a wadbitalized institution, may accept brokered degogit December 31, 2012, the Bank had $5
million in brokered deposit accounts.

Trans actions with Affiliates

Under current federal law, transactions betweerosiégry institutions and their affiliates are gaved by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal ResAnteand the FRE
Regulation W promulgated thereunder. An affiliate@ommercial bank is any company or entity thattmols, is controlled by, or is under common cohtvith, the institution, other thar
subsidiary. Generally, an institutiansubsidiaries are not treated as affiliates urtlesgare engaged in activities as principal thatret permissible for national banks. In a holdiegnpan'
context, at a minimum, the parent holding compahwroinstitution, and any companies that are cdietioby such parent holding company, are affiliabdéshe institution. Generall
Section 23A limits the extent to which the insiitat or its subsidiaries may engage in “covereddagtions” with any one affiliate to an amount eqoal 0% of the institutiors capital stoc
and surplus, and contains an aggregate limit osugh transactions with all affiliates to an amoemial to 20% of such capital stock and surplug. fEhm “covered transactioiricludes th
making of loans or other extensions of credit toa#filiate; the purchase of assets from an affljighe purchase of, or an investment in, the seesrof an affiliate; the acceptance
securities of an affiliate as collateral for a lo@nextension of credit to any person; or issuasica guarantee, acceptance, or letter of credibeimalf of an affiliate. Section 23A a
establishes specific collateral requirements fanfor extensions of credit to, or guarantees oepances on letters of credit issued on behalawfaffiliate. Section 23B requires t
covered transactions and a broad list of otherifipddransactions be on terms substantially theesas, or at least agavorable to, the institution or its subsidiarysamilar transactions wi
non-affiliates.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohiloigss by the Company to its executive officers dinélctors. However, the Sarban®stey Act contains a specific exemption
loans by an institution to its executive officereadirectors in compliance with federal banking daBection 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act, anB RRgulation O adopted thereunt
governs loans by a savings bank or commercial bamlrectors, executive officers, and principal refelders. Under Section 22(h), loans to directexecutive officers, and shareholc
who control, directly or indirectly, 10% or more wéting securities of an institution, and certadéhated interests of any of the foregoing, may naeed, together with all other outstanc
loans to such persons and affiliated entitiesjribgtution’s total capital and surplus. Section 22(h) alsdiits loans above amounts prescribed by the apjatefederal banking agency
directors, executive officers, and shareholders wdrdrol 10% or more of the voting securities ofimstitution, and its respective related interestdess such loan is approved in advanc
a majority of the board of the institution’s direct. Any “interesteddirector may not participate in the voting. Therl@anount (which includes all other outstanding botmsuch person)
to which such prior board of director approvalésjuired, is the greater of $25,000 or 5% of capital surplus or any loans aggregating over $500,00@her, pursuant to Section 22
loans to directors, executive officers, and priatiphareholders must be made on terms substantielysame as those offered in comparable transactm other persons. There is
exception for loans made pursuant to a benefiborpensation program that is widely available teeatployees of the institution and does not givéguemce to executive officers over ot
employees. Section 22(g) of the Federal Reserveplaces additional limitations on loans to exectificers.
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Commu nity Reinvestment Act

Federal Regulation Under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA&f implemented by FDIC regulations, an institufias a continuing and affirmative obligation coresi
with its safe and sound operation to help meetctieelit needs of its entire community, including lawd moderate income neighborhoods. The CRA doessiablish specific lendil
requirements or programs for financial institutionsr does it limit an institutios’ discretion to develop the types of products ardises that it believes are best suited to itsiqdar
community, consistent with the CRA. The CRA regsitiee FDIC, in connection with its examinationsagsess the institutiantecord of meeting the credit needs of its comitywemd tc
take such record into account in its evaluatiometain applications by such institution. The CRuires public disclosure of an institutisnlCRA rating and further requires the FDI(
provide a written evaluation of an institution’s &Rerformance utilizing a four-tiered descriptivaing system. The Savings Bank received a CRAgaifr'Satisfactory’in its most recel
completed CRA examination, which was completedfaipoil 30, 2012. Institutions that receive leksh a satisfactory rating may face difficultiesecuring approval for new activities
acquisitions. The CRA requires all institutionsnake public disclosures of their CRA ratings. Aspacial purpose commercial bank, the CommerciakBeas not required to comply w
the CRA prior to the Merger. Since the Merger, Ba@k is required to comply with CRA.

New York State RegulationThe Bank is also subject to provisions of thevNeork State Banking Law that impose continuing affirmative obligations upon a banking institut
organized in New York State to serve the creditse# its local community (the “NYCRA”)Such obligations are substantially similar to thimsposed by the CRA. The NYCRA requi
the NYDFS to make a periodic written assessmeainahstitution’s compliance with the NYCRA, utilimd a fourtiered rating system, and to make such assessmeitdlze to the publit
The NYCRA also requires the Superintendent to amrsihe NYCRA rating when reviewing an applicationengage in certain transactions, including mes,gesset purchases, and
establishment of branch offices or ATMs, and presithat such assessment may serve as a basis fiterttal of any such application.

Fed eral Reserve System

Under FRB regulations, the Bank is required to r@@mreserves against its transaction accounts. ARB regulations generally require that reservesriaintained again
aggregate transaction accounts as follows: for ploation of transaction accounts aggregating $milBon or less (subject to adjustment by the FRBE reserve requirement is 3%;
amounts greater than $79.5 million, the reserveirement is 10% (subject to adjustment by the FRBvben 8% and 14%). The first $12.4 million of athise reservable balances (sub
to adjustments by the FRB) are exempted from therve requirements. The Bank is in compliance thiéhforegoing requirements.

Fed eral Home Loan Bank System

The Bank is a member of the FHLNBY), one of 12 regional FHLBs comprising the FHLY&B&em. Each regional FHLB manages its custometioekhips, while the 12 FHLBs u
its combined size and strength to obtain its nesgdsinding at the lowest possible cost. As a membéhe FHLB-NY, the Bank is required to acquiredéhold shares of FHLBFY capita
stock. Pursuant to this requirement, at Decembg2312, the Savings Bank was required to mainta&3¥million of FHLBNY stock, and the Commercial Bank was required &ontair
$25,900 of FHLB-NY stock. Subsequent to the Mertiee Bank remains a member of the FHLB-NY.

Hold ing Company Regulation

Subsequent to the Merger, the Comparsyligect to examination, regulation, and perioéigorting under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1986 amended (the “BHCA"js
administered by the FRB. The Company is requicedhtain the prior approval of the FRB to acquitea substantially all, of the assets of any bankbank holding company. Prior Fl
approval would be required for the Company to aegdirect or indirect ownership or control of angting securities of any bank or bank holding conypénafter giving effect to suc
acquisition, it would, directly or indirectly, owar control more than 5% of any class of voting esasf such bank or bank holding company. In additiefore any bank acquisition car
completed, prior approval thereof may also be meglio be obtained from other agencies having sigmey jurisdiction over the bank to be acquiredliiding the NYDFS.

FRB regulations generally prohibit a bank holdirmmpany from engaging in, or acquiring, direct adiiact control of more than 5% of the voting setiesi of any compar
engaged in notranking activities. One of the principal exceptiomshis prohibition is for activities found by ti#RB to be so closely related to banking or marggincontrolling Bank ¢
to be a proper incident thereto. Some of the ppalcactivities that the FRB has determined by retjoh to be so closely related to banking arem@king or servicing loans; (ii) performi
certain data processing services; (iii) providinigcdunt brokerage services; (iv) acting as fiducianvestment, or financial advisor; (v) leasingqmnal or real property; (vi) maki
investments in corporations or projects designadamily to promote community welfare; and (vii) atdng a savings and loan association.
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The FRB has adopted capital adequacy guidelinelséiok holding companies (on a consolidated bagisDecember 31, 2012, the Compasigonsolidated Total and Tier 1 caf
exceeded these requirements. The Dbk Act required the FRB to issue consolidateglilaory capital requirements for bank holding camps that are at least as stringent as
applicable to insured depository institutions. Suvebulations eliminated the use of certain instrotsesuch as cumulative preferred stock and trrefeped securities, as Tier 1 hold
company capital.

Bank holding companies are generally required ¥ ¢he FRB prior written notice of any purchaseextemption of its outstanding equity securitiethé gross consideration
the purchase or redemption, when combined withnesteconsideration paid for all such purchases demgtions during the preceding twelve months, isaé¢o 10% or more of tl
Companys consolidated net worth. The FRB may disapproeé supurchase or redemption if it determines thatproposal would constitute an unsafe or unsouactipe, or would violal
any law, regulation, FRB order or directive, or agndition imposed by, or written agreement withe £RB. The FRB has adopted an exception to thpsoap! requirement for well-
capitalized bank holding companies that meet aedtier conditions.

The FRB has issued a policy statement regardingalgenent of dividends by bank holding companiegédneral, the FRB’policies provide that dividends should be paily ot
of current earnings and only if the prospectivee rat earnings retention by the bank holding compapgears consistent with the organizatsooapital needs, asset quality, and ov
financial condition. The FRB'policies also require that a bank holding compsatye as a source of financial strength to itsislidry banks by standing ready to use availaldeurces t
provide adequate capital funds to those banks dipariods of financial stress or adversity, andnigintaining the financial flexibility and capitedising capacity to obtain additiol
resources for assisting its subsidiary banks wheoessary. The Dodeérank Act codifies the source of financial strengticy and requires regulations to facilitateagplication. Under tt
prompt corrective action laws, the ability of a kdwlding company to pay dividends may be restiiétea subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalize@s&hegulatory policies could aff
the ability of the Company to pay dividends or otfise engage in capital distributions.

Under the FDI Act, a depository institution maylkable to the FDIC for losses caused the DIF ibanmonly controlled depository institution were olf The Bank is common
controlled within the meaning of that law.

The status of the Company as a registered bankrigotdmpany under the BHCA does not exempt it firtain federal and state laws and regulationsicgge to corporatior
generally, including, without limitation, certaimqvisions of the federal securities laws.

The Company, the Bank, and their respective aféifiavill be affected by the monetary and fiscalge$ of various agencies of the United States @owent, including the Fede
Reserve System. In view of changing conditionshim tational economy and in the money markets, dtffecult for management to accurately predictuit changes in monetary policy
the effect of such changes on the business ordiabhoondition of the Company or the Bank.

Acq uisition of the Holding Company

Under the Federal Change in Bank Corail (“CIBCA”), a notice must be submitted to the FRB if any pei@aciuding a company), or group acting in conceeeks to acqui
10% or more of the Compargyshares of outstanding common stock, unless tie &R found that the acquisition will not resulirchange in control of the Company. Under the GAF
the FRB generally has 60 days within which to atsoch notices, taking into consideration certairtdrs, including the financial and managerial veses of the acquirer; the convenie
and needs of the communities served by the Compadyhe Bank; and the artitst effects of the acquisition. Under the BHCAy @ompany would be required to obtain approvaifibe
FRB before it may obtain “controbif the Company within the meaning of the BHCA. Gohgenerally is defined to mean the ownershipawer to vote 25% or more of any class of va
securities of the Company or the ability to contirolany manner the election of a majority of them@any’s directors. An existing bank holding company wouldder the BHCA, t
required to obtain the FRB’s approval before adggimore than 5% of the Compasyvoting stock. In addition to the CIBCA and thel®A, New York State Banking Law gener:
requires prior approval of the New York State BagkBoard before any action is taken that causesampany to acquire direct or indirect control dfanking institution that is organiz
in New York.
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Fede ral Securities Law

The Companys common stock and (associated preferred stockhpsecrights) listed on the cover page of this repi@ registered with the SEC under the Securiiehange Ac
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Acthie Company is subject to the information and répgirequirements, regulations governing proxyattions, insider trading restrictions,
other requirements under the Exchange Act.

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau

Created under the Dodekank Act, and given extensive implementation anfbreement powers, the CFPB has broad rulemakitigoaty for a wide range of consumer finan
laws that apply to all banks, including, among ottiengs, the authority to prohibit “unfair, decivat, or abusive’acts and practices. Abusive acts or practices efieettl as those tt
(1) materially interfere with a consumer’s abilityunderstand a term or condition of a consumeriaial product or service, or (2) take unreasonabileantage of a consumei(a) lack ¢
financial savvy, (b) inability to protect himseli the selection or use of consumer financial préglec services, or (c) reasonable reliance on @reoventity to act in the consuneer’
interests. The CFPB has the authority to investigatssible violations of federal consumer finantzal, hold hearings and commence civil litigatidine CFPB can issue cease-atabis
orders against banks and other entities that wialahsumer financial laws. The CFPB may also umstia civil action against an entity in violatiohfederal consumer financial law in or
to impose a civil penalty or an injunction.

Mortga ge Banking and Related Consumer Protection Bgulations

The retail activities of the Bank, including lendiand the acceptance of deposits, are subjectaoiety of statutes and regulations designed ttepta@onsumers. Interest and o
charges collected or contracted for by the Banksatgect to state usury laws and federal laws aontg interest rates. Loan operations are alsoestithp federal laws applicable to cre
transactions, such as:

. The federal Trut-In-Lending Act and Regulation Z issued by the FRB,egoing disclosures of credit terms to consumerdyveers;

. The Home Mortgage Disclosure Act and Regulatiorsstiéd by the FRB, requiring financial institutigosprovide information to enable the public and lgubfficials to
determine whether a financial institution is fdifig its obligation to help meet the housing neefithe community it serve:

The Equal Credit Opportunity Act and RegulatiorsBued by the FRB, prohibiting discrimination on Haeis of race, creed or other prohibited factorsxtending credit
The Fair Credit Reporting Act and Regulation V &gty the FRB, governing the use and provisiomfafrmation to consumer reporting agenc

The Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manimewhich consumer debts may be collected by cabecagencies; an

The guidance of the various federal agencies changih the responsibility of implementing such fealdaws.

e o o o

Deposit operations also are subject to:

. The Truth in Savings Act and Regulation DD issugdhe FRB, which requires disclosure of depositi&to consumer:

. Regulation CC issued by the FRB, which relatei¢oavailability of deposit funds to consume

. The Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposeglaty to maintain the confidentiality of consumamrahcial records and prescribes procedures for &§angpwith
administrative subpoenas of financial records;

. The Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulafioissued by the FRB, which governs automatic dépasiand withdrawals from deposit accounts andocoers'rights

and liabilities arising from the use of automateler machines and other electronic banking sesv
In addition, the Bank and its subsidiaries may alssubject to certain state laws and regulati@ssyded to protect consumers.

Many of the foregoing laws and regulations are scbjo change resulting from the provisions in Badd+rank Act, which in many cases calls for revisie@smplementin
regulations. In addition, oversight responsibititi these and other consumer protection laws egdlations will, in large measure, transfer frore Banks primary regulators to the CFF
We cannot predict the effect that being regulatgdimew, additional regulatory authority focusedammsumer financial protection, or any new impletmgnregulations or revisions
existing regulations that may result from the elsshment of this new authority, will have on oursinesses.
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Ava ilable Information

We are a reporting company and file annual, quigreerd current reports, proxy statements and atifermation with the SEC. We make available fréelmarge on or through ¢
web site at www.flushingbank.com our annual reporisForm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, entrreports on Form B-and amendments to those reports filed or furm
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secuwriichange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably pabbti after we electronically file such materiathwior furnish it to, the SEC. Our S
filings are also available to the public free oaale over the Internet at the SEC’s web site at/hitww.sec.gov.

You may also read and copy any document we filthatSECS public reference room located at 100 F. Streef.,NRoom 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. You maio
information about the operation of the public refeze room by calling the SEC at 1-800-S&¥30. You may request copies of these documentgritipg to the SEC and paying a fee
the copying cost.

Item 1A . Risk Factors.

In addition to the other information containedtiistAnnual Report, the following factors and othensiderations should be considered carefully alwating us and our business.
Ch anges in Interest Rates May Significantly ImpacOur Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Like most financial institutions, our results ofesptions depend to a large degree on our net gitereome. When intereiearing liabilities mature or reprice more quickiar
interestearning assets, a significant increase in marketest rates could adversely affect net interesbrite. Conversely, a significant decrease in marketest rates could result
increased net interest income. As a general mateseek to manage our business to limit our dvexaosure to interest rate fluctuations. Howetleictuations in market interest rates
neither predictable nor controllable and may haweagerial adverse impact on our operations andéiiz condition. Additionally, in a rising interesite environment, a borrowsrability
to repay adjustable rate mortgages can be negati¥felcted as payments increase at repricing dates.

Prevailing interest rates also affect the extentviich borrowers repay and refinance loans. In @inieg interest rate environment, the number @nlgrepayments and Ic
refinancing may increase, as well as prepaymenisarfgagebacked securities. Call provisions associated withinvestment in U.S. government agency and catpasecurities may al
adversely affect yield in a declining interest ratezironment. Such prepayments and calls may aelyea$fect the yield of our loan portfolio and myagebacked and other securities as
reinvest the prepaid funds in a lower interest emt@ironment. However, we typically receive additibloan fees when existing loans are refinancédchvpartially offset the reduced yi
on our loan portfolio resulting from prepayments. deriods of low interest rates, our level of cdeposits also may decline if depositors seek highedding instruments or oth
investments not offered by us, which in turn magré@se our cost of funds and decrease our neegttarargin to the extent alternative funding sosii@e utilized. An increasing inter
rate environment would tend to extend the averags bf lower yielding fixed rate mortgages and tgagebacked securities, which could adversely affectimerest income. In additic
depositors tend to open longer term, higher costingificate of deposit accounts which could adebrsffect our net interest income if rates werestidsequently decline. Additional
adjustable rate mortgage loans and mortdzayked securities generally contain interim angtilifie caps that limit the amount the interest catie increase or decrease at repricing ¢
Significant increases in prevailing interest ratesy significantly affect demand for loans and ta&ie of bank collateral. See “— Local Economic Atiods.”

Our Lending Activities Involve Risks that May Be Exacerbated Depending on the Mix of Loan Types

At December 31, 2012, our gross loan portfolio $a8221.4 million, of which 90% was mortgage loaeswsed by real estate. The majority of these rs@ite loans were secu
by multi-family residential property ($1,534.4 nol), commercial real estate ($515.4 million) ame-do-four family mixeddse property ($637.4 million), which combined reseret 83% ¢
our loan portfolio. Our loan portfolio is concertrd in the New York City metropolitan area. Muldinfily residential, one-to-four family mixagase property, and commercial real e«
mortgage loans, and construction loans, are gdyetalved as exposing the lender to a greaterafdkss than fully underwritten one-four family residential mortgage loans and typig
involve higher principal amounts per loan. Multirfdy residential, one-to-four family mixedse property and commercial real estate mortgageslare typically dependent upon
successful operation of the related property, whschsually owned by a legal entity with the prdpdeing the entitys only asset. If the cash flow from the propertyaduced, th
borrowers ability to repay the loan may be impaired. If bwerower defaults, our only remedy may be to fmse on the property, for which the market valug/rba less than the balar
due on the related mortgage loan. We attempt taté this risk by generally requiring a loanvialue ratio of no more than 75% at a time the lisaoriginated. Repayment of construct
loans is contingent upon the successful complediwh operation of the project. The repayment of cencial business loans (the increased originatiowlith is part of managemest’
strategy), is contingent on the successful opearaifcdhe related business. Changes in local econooriditions and government regulations, whichaarside the control of the borrower
lender, also could affect the value of the secuitythe loan or the future cash flow of the aféetiproperties. We continually review the compositad our mortgage loan portfolio
manage the risk in the portfolio.

45




In addition, from time to time, we have originatemk-to-four family residential mortgage loans withwerifying the borrowes level of income. These loans involve a higherrele
of risk as compared to our other fully underwrittame-to-four family residential mortgage loans. 3édeisks are mitigated by our policy to generahyil the amount of one-tésur family
residential mortgage loans to 80% of the appraisdde or sale price, whichever is less, as wettesging a higher interest rate than when the bars income is verified. At Decemt
31, 2012, we had $20.8 million outstanding of oodsur family residential properties originated talividuals based on stated income and verifiabletasand $52.8 million advanced
home equity lines of credit for which we did notifethe borrowers income. The total loans for whige did not verify the borrowes'income at December 31, 2012 was $73.6 millio
2.3% of gross loans. These types of loans are ghyeeferred to as “Alt A” loans since the borraiweincome was not verified. These loans are noeadily saleable in the second
market as our other fully underwritten loans, aithg whole loans or when pooled or securitized.n&éonger originate one-tiwur family residential mortgage loans or home gglines o
credit to individuals without verifying their incaanWe have not originated, nor do we hold in pdidfany subprime loans.

Even in stable economic times, higher default rateg be expected for Alt A and similar loans. Aliigh we attempted to incorporate the higher defaidts associated with thi
loans into our pricing models, there can be norasme that the premiums earned and the associatedtment income will prove adequate to compenfatéuture losses from the
loans. Worsening economic conditions, rising uniegmpent rates and/or other regional real estatepeclines could even more significantly increthgedefault risks associated with th
loans. In addition, these same negative econondaw@arket conditions could also significantly irese the default risk on loans for which we did asgume higher default and claim rates.

In assessing our future earnings prospects, insestoould consider, among other things, our lefebrigination of one-to-four family residential, miufamily residentia
commercial real estate and one-to-four family mixee property mortgage loans, and commercial busiaed construction loans, and the greater riskscaged with such loans. £
“Business — Lending Activities” in Item 1 of thisndual Report.

Fail ure to Effectively Manage Our Liquidity Could Significantly Impact Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our liquidity is critical to our ability to operatur business. Our primary sources of liquidity deposits, both retail deposits from our branchvoet including our internet bran
and brokered deposits, and borrowed funds, prignarilolesale borrowing from the FHLB-NY and repursbagreements from both the FHN- and commercial banks. Funds are
provided by the repayment and sale of securitieslaans. Our ability to obtain funds are influeddey many external factors, including but not lieditto, local and national econol
conditions, the direction of interest rates and petition for deposits in the markets we serve. Aiddally, changes in the FHLBFY underwriting guidelines may limit or restrict oability
to borrow. A decline in available funding causedany of the above factors or could adversely imhpac ability to originate loans, invest in seci@st meet our expenses, or fulfill «
obligations such as repaying our borrowings or mgedeposit withdrawal demands.

Our Ability to Obtain Brokered Certificates of Deposit and Brokered Money Market Accounts as an Additbonal Funding Source Could be Limited

We utilize brokered certificates of deposit as dditional funding source and to assist in the manzent of our interest rate risk. The Bank had $b22illion, or 17.3% of tot:
deposits, and $444.8 million, or 14.1% of total aifs, in brokered deposit accounts at Decembe2@12 and 2011, respectively. We have obtaineleseal certificates of deposit wt
the interest rate on these deposits is below theaiing interest rate for nobrokered certificates of deposit with similar mitfes in our market, or when obtaining them allowesdtc
extend the maturities of our deposits at favorabtes compared to borrowing funds with similar miéies, when we are seeking to extend the matsritieour funding to assist in t
management of our interest rate risk. Brokeredfimtes of deposit provide a large deposit foatis lower operating cost as compared to Inarkered certificates of deposit since we
have one account to maintain versus several acgovitit multiple interest and maturity checks. Uglikonbrokered certificates of deposit where the depsiount can be withdrawn w
a penalty for any reason, including increasingregerates, a brokered certificate of deposit aaly be withdrawn in the event of the death or caletlared mental incompetence of
depositor. This allows us to better manage the ritgtof our deposits and our interest rate risk. & utilize brokers to obtain money market actaeposits. The rate we pay on broke
money market accounts is the same or below thearateay on norerokered money market accounts, and the rate eeddo in a contract between the Bank and the brdkese accour
are similar to brokered certificates of depositaanits in that we only maintain one account forttital deposit per broker, with the broker maintagnthe detailed records of each depos
The Bank did not hold any brokered money markepasts at December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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The FDIC has promulgated regulations implementingtations on brokered deposits. Under the regoesti welleapitalized institutions, such as the Bank, are sudiject ti
brokered deposit limitations, while adequately tajed institutions are able to accept, renewotiraver brokered deposits only with a waiver freime FDIC and subject to restrictions
the interest rate that can be paid on such depasitdercapitalized institutions are not permittedatcept brokered deposits. Pursuant to the régujahe Bank, as a wetlapitalizec
institution, may accept brokered deposits. Shouldcapital ratios decline, this could limit our ktlgito replace brokered deposits when they mature.

The maturity of brokered certificates of depositildoresult in a significant funding source maturiatgone time. Should this occur, it might be difficto replace the maturil
certificates with new brokered certificates of dgihoWe have used brokers to obtain these depwsiish results in depositors with whom we have nleeotrelationships since the
depositors are outside of our market, and there moaye a sufficient source of new brokered cedtfes of deposit at the time of maturity. In addifiupon maturity, brokers could reqt
us to offer some of the highest interest rate®iéndountry to retain these deposits, which woulgatieely impact our earnings. The Bank mitigates tisk by obtaining brokered certifica
of deposit with various maturities ranging up teefyears, and attempts to avoid having a signifieamunt maturing in any one year.

The Markets in Which We Operate Are Highly Competitive

We face intense and increasing competition botmaking loans and in attracting deposits. Our maakea has a high density of financial institutiomany of which have grea
financial resources, name recognition and marketgarce than us, and all of which are our compstitorarying degrees. Particularly intense comipetiexists for deposits and in all of
lending activities we emphasize. Our competitionlf@ns comes principally from commercial banksjrsgs banks, savings and loan associations, mogtgagking companies, insura
companies, finance companies and credit unions alg@ment anticipates that competition for mortgag@$ will continue to increase in the future. Owsirdirect competition for depos
historically has come from savings banks, commebaaks, savings and loan associations and crading. In addition, we face competition for dep@&ibm products offered by broker:
firms, insurance companies and other financialrimesliaries, such as money market and other mutnnalsf and annuities. Consolidation in the bankiryustry and the lifting of interste
banking and branching restrictions have made itentbfficult for smaller, community-oriented banksjch as us, to compete effectively with large,ameti, regional and supeegiona
banking institutions. We launched an internet bharftGObanking.con® ” a division of the Bank, to provide us with accessdnsumers in markets outside our geographicitotat The
internet banking arena also has many larger firdmtstitutions which have greater financial res®s;, name recognition and market presence tharowe d

Notwithstanding the intense competition, we haverbsuccessful in increasing our loan portfolios dadosit base. However, no assurances can be thiaemve will be able 1
continue to increase our loan portfolios and degmsse, as contemplated by management's curreirdsssstrategy.

Our Results of Operations May Be Adversely Affectedy Changes in National and/or Local Economic Contibns

Our operating results are affected by national Eredl economic and competitive conditions, inclgdichanges in market interest rates, the strengttheflocal econom
government policies and actions of regulatory arities. The national and our local economies wgaeerally considered to be in a recession from Bxees 2007 through the middle
2009. This resulted in increased unemploymentdaalining property values, although the propertiugaleclines in the New York City metropolitan atesve not been as great as r
other areas of the country. While the national dl economies showed signs of improvement siheesecond half of 2009, unemployment has remaihetesated levels. The hous
market in the United States continued to see afiignt slowdown during 2009, and foreclosuresiafjle family homes rose to levels not seen in thergdive years. The downturn in t
housing market continued in 2010, although the damnhas slowed. These economic conditions caritriesbiorrowers defaulting on their loans, or witadiing their funds on deposit at
Bank to meet their financial obligations. While Wave seen an increase in deposits, we have asoassignificant increase in delinquent loans, Itesuin an increase in our provision
loan losses. This increase in delinquent loansamilynconsists of mortgage loans collateralized-dsidential income producing properties that acatied in the New York City metropolit
market. Given New York City’s low vacancy ratese froperties have retained their value and haveiged us with low loss content in our npetforming loans. We cannot predict
effect of these economic conditions on our finahotadition or operating results.
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A decline in the local or national economy or thewNYork City metropolitan area real estate marlaild adversely affect our financial condition arbults of operation
including through decreased demand for loans aeased competition for good loans, increased peferming loans and loan losses and resultingtaddil provisions for loan losses ¢
for losses on real estate owned. Although manageimieves that the current allowance for loarséssis adequate in light of current economic caomt many factors could requ
additions to the allowance for loan losses in feitperiods above those currently maintained. TFesers include: (1) adverse changes in econommclitions and changes in interest .
that may affect the ability of borrowers to makeg/mpants on loans, (2) changes in the financial dapa¢ individual borrowers, (3) changes in thedbceal estate market and the valu
our loan collateral, and (4) future review and ea#ibn of our loan portfolio, internally or by rdgtors. The amount of the allowance for loan Issaeany time represents good f
estimates that are susceptible to significant ceardye to changes in appraisal values of collatesgional and local economic conditions, prevgilinterest rates and other factors.
“Business — General — Allowance for Loan Lossesltém 1 of this Annual Report.

These same factors have caused delinquencies tease for the mortgages which are the collatemalttfe mortgagdsacked securities we hold in our investment paddf
Combining the increased delinquencies with liqyigitoblems in the market has resulted in a dectinthe market value of our investments in privateued mortgagbacked securitie
There can be no assurance that the decline in énketnvalue of these investments will not resulainother-than-temporary impairment charge beingrded in our financial statements.”

Chan ges in Laws and Regulations Could Adversely #dct Our Business

From time to time, legislation, such as the Ddaednk Act, is enacted or regulations are promulyabat have the effect of increasing the cost ahgldusiness, limiting «
expanding permissible activities or affecting tleenpetitive balance between banks and other finhim@ttutions. Proposals to change the laws @&uiliiations governing the operations
taxation of banks and other financial instituti@e frequently made in Congress, in the New Yogdkislature and before various bank regulatory agencNo prediction can be made &
the likelihood of any major changes (in additionth® Dodd-Frank Act) or the impact such changeshmigve on us. For a discussion of regulationsctffg us, see “Business —
Regulation” and “Business—Federal, State and Ldeahtion” in Item 1 of this Annual Report.

There can be no assurance as to the actual intEcany laws, regulations or governmental progrvasmay be introduced or implemented in the futuitehave on the financi
markets and the economy. A continuation or worsgpincurrent financial market conditions could mitéy and adversely affect our business, financ@idition, results of operations, ¢
access to credit or the trading price of our s¢iesti

Cur rent Conditions in, and Regulation of, the Bankng Industry May Have a Material Adverse Effect onOur Results of Operations

Financial institutions have been the subject ofiificant legislative and regulatory changes and imayhe subject of further significant legislatimmregulation in the future, none
which is within our control. Significant new laws regulations or changes in, or repeals of, eagstaws or regulations, including those with resgedederal and state taxation, may ci
our results of operations to differ materially. dddition, the cost and burden of compliance, dwee, have significantly increased and could adslgraffect our ability to operate profitab

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed the DoddkFAct into law. The Dodérank Act is intended to address perceived wealkseissthe U.S. financial regulatory sys
and prevent future economic and financial crisBsere are many provisions of the Doidknk Act which will be implemented through regidas to be adopted within specified time fra
following the effective date of the Dodetank Act, which creates a risk of uncertaintyashie effect that such provisions will ultimatelgMe. The full impact of the changes in regule
will depend on new regulations that have yet tavbigten. The new regulations could have a matexiblerse effect on our business, financial comdlitioresults of operations. Althoug!
is not possible for us to determine at this timeethier the Dodd~rank Act will have a material adverse effect om business, financial condition or results of opieress, we believe tt
following provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will ha\an impact on us:
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« New Primary Regulator. On July 21, 2011, the OTS, our then primary febleegulator, was eliminated and the OCC took dlkerregulation of all federal savings banks,
as the Savings Bank. The Federal Reserve acqiiee@ TS5 authority over all savings and loan holding comes, such as the Holding Company, and becameughengso
of all subsidiaries of savings and loan holding pamies other than depository institutions. Assulte we became subject to regulation, supervisiot examination by tv
federal banking agencies, the OCC and the FedaseérRe, rather than just by the OTS, as was prshjidbe case. The Doderank Act also provided for the creation of
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the “CFPBT)e CFPB has the authority to implement and enfargariety of existing consumer protection statated to issue ne
regulations. As a new independent bureau withénRRB, it is possible that the CFPB will focus mattention on consumers and may impose requirenmeots severe thi
the previous bank regulatory agenc

Consolidated Holding Company Capital Requiremenfthe Dodd-Frank Act requires the federal bankiggreies to establish consolidated risdsed and leverage cag
requirements for insured depository institutionspasitory institution holding companies and systadhy important nonbank financial companies. Thespiirements must
no less than those to which insured depositonyitiigins are currently subject, and the new reqoéets will effectively eliminate the use of new$sued trust preferr
securities as a component of Tier 1 Capital forodépry institution holding companies of our sizes a result, no later than the fifth anniversafihe effective date of ti
DoddFrank Act, we will become subject to consolidateghital requirements to which we have not previoumgn subject. Effective February 28, 2013, whenHblding
Company became a bank holding company, it becaiijedto consolidated capital requiremel

« Roll Back of Federal Preemptio The DoddFrank Act significantly rolls back the federal pmgation of state consumer protection laws that faldsavings associations ¢
national banks currently enjoy by (1) permittingléeal preemption of a state consumer financial daly if such law prevents or significantly interésrwith the exercise o
federal savings association’s or national bargowers or such state law is preempted by anééderal law, (2) mandating that any preemption slenibe made on a case
case basis rather than a blanket rule, and (3ngrttie applicability of preemption to subsidiaréexl affiliates of national banks and federal sawviagsociations. As a res
we may now be subject to state laws in each stherewve do business, and those laws may be intedoaed enforced differently in different stal

The DoddFrank Act also includes provisions, subject totartrulemaking by the federal bank regulatory agenchat may affect our future operations, inahgdprovisions thi
create minimum standards for the origination of tg@ges, restrict proprietary trading by bankingti&s, restrict the sponsorship of and investmartiédge funds and private equity fu
by banking entities that remove certain obstadethé conversion of savings associations to naltiobaaks. We will not be able to determine the intpaf these provisions until final rul
are promulgated to implement these provisions dheragegulatory guidance is provided interpretingse provisions.

Certa in Anti-Takeover Provisions May Increase theCosts to or Discourage an Acquirer

On September 5, 2006, the Board of Directors redewe Stockholder Rights Plan (the “Rights Plam/hjich was originally adopted on and had been icgkince September .
1996 and had been scheduled to expire on Septe36b@006. The Rights Plan was designed to predengeterm values and protect stockholders against insztecpffers and other unf
tactics to acquire control of us. Under the RigPitsn, each stockholder of record at the closeusirtess on September 30, 2006 received a dividistribdtion of one right to purchase fri
the Company one ontmundredth of a share of Series A junior participgpreferred stock at a price of $65. The righils vecome exercisable only if a person or grougua@s 15% c
more of our common stock or commences a tendexavamge offer which, if consummated, would resulthat person or group owning at least 15% of thex@on Stock (thedcquiring
person or group”)In such case, all stockholders other than the @ioguperson or group will be entitled to purchasg paying the $65 exercise price, Common Stocka(oommon stoc
equivalent) with a value of twice the exercise @rién addition, at any time after such event, pridr to the acquisition by any person or grous0% or more of the Common Stock,
Board of Directors may, at its option, require eaakstanding right (other than rights held by thguaring person or group) to be exchanged for dreeesof Common Stock (or one comr
stock equivalent). If a person or group becomeacauiring person and we are acquired in a mengether business combination or sell more than 80%ur assets or earning power, €
right will entitle all other holders to purchase, payment of $65 exercise price, common stock efabquiring company with a value of twice the elsergrice. The renewed rights p
expires on September 30, 2016.
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The Rights Plan, as well as certain provisionswof eertificate of incorporation and bylaws, the Bancharter and bylaws, certain federal regulatiars @rovisions of Delawa
corporation law, and certain provisions of remutieraplans and agreements applicable to employeg®tiicers of the Bank may have atdkeover effects by discouraging potential pi
contests and other takeover attempts, particutludge which have not been negotiated with the BaérBirectors. The Rights Plan and those othewigions, as well as applical
regulatory restrictions, may also prevent or inthibe acquisition of a controlling position in t@®mmon Stock and may prevent or inhibit takeovegnapts that certain stockholders r
deem to be in their or other stockholddrgerest or in our interest, or in which stockhailenay receive a substantial premium for their ehaver then current market prices. The R
Plan and those other provisions may also incrdesedst of, and thus discourage, any such futuyeisition or attempted acquisition, and would reritie removal of the current Boarc
Directors or management of the Company more difficu

We May Not Be Able to Successfully Implement Our CommerciaBusiness Banking Initiative

Our strategy includes a transition to a more “comuiaélike” banking institution. We have developed a complenaéteposit, loan and cash management productspioost thit
initiative, and intend to expand these productraffgs. A business banking unit builds relationshipsrder to obtain lowecosting deposits, generate fee income, and origic@ammerciz
business loans. The success of this initiativeejseddent on developing additional product offerirgsl building relationships to obtain the depasitd loans. There can be no assuranci
we will be able to successfully implement our besmstrategy with respect to this initiative.

The FDIC’s Adopted Restoration Plan and the Relatedncreased Assessment Rate Schedule May Have a MaaéEffect on Our Results of Operations

On October 19, 2010, the FDIC Board adopted a mstoration plan to ensure that the DIF reserve ratiches 1.35% by September 30, 2020, as redoyrdte DoddFrank Act
rather than 1.15% by the end of 2016 (as requirettuthe prior restoration plan). Among other dgisinthe new restoration plan provides that the FdIICforego the uniform three ba:
point increases in initial assessment rates that praviously scheduled to take effect on Januar3011 and maintains the current assessment raéelgieh The FDIC intends to pur:
further rulemaking regarding the requirement urttierDoddFrank Act that the FDIC offset the effect on ingfitns with less than $10 billion in assets (sustusg) of the requirement tl
the reserve ratio reach 1.35% by September 30,,2@2that more of the cost of raising the reseati® to 1.35% will be borne by institutions with neathan $10 billion in assets. Int
connection, the FDIC Board approved a rule thatémented a provision in the Dodftank Act that changes the assessment base frorhaseel on domestic deposits (as it has been
1935) to one based on total average assets les¢ Tapital (as defined for regulatory purposeB)e FDIC also lowered assessment rates. Effectjwd A, 2011, the new assessment |
is based on assets rather than domestic deposith v/gha much larger assessment base than in #te Pphe range of the base assessment rates ie 2% basis points, whereas the
range was 7 to 77.5 basis points. In additionRB&C Board approved setting the designated DIEmesratio at 2% as a lortgrm, minimum goal, adopt a lower assessment cdtedsl¢
when the reserve ratio reaches 1.15% and, in iéD¢C dividends, adopt progressively lower assessmate schedules when the reserve ratio rea&emnd 2.5%. Another rule approy
by the FDIC Board, which replaces a proposed rpfg@ed by the FDIC on April 13, 2010, would revibe deposit insurance assessment system for thsi@gository institutions wi
over $10 billion in assets. This rule is not dilgepplicable to us.

There is no guarantee that the rules describedeabevsufficient for the DIF to meet its funding uggments, which may necessitate further rulemakapgcial assessments
increases in deposit insurance premiums. Any futcine rulemaking, assessments or increases cawel & further material impact on our results ofrapens.

A Failure in or Breach of Our Operational or Security Systemsor Infrastructure, or Those of Our Third Party Ven dors and Other Service Providers, Including as a Rault of
Cyber Attacks, Could Disrupt Our Business, Resultn the Disclosure or Misuse of Confidential or Propietary Information, Damage Our Reputation, IncreaseOur Costs anc
Cause Losses.
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We depend upon our ability to process, record anditor our client transactions on a continuous $a&s client, public and regulatory expectationgareing operational al
information security have increased, our operati@yatems and infrastructure must continue to Hegsmrded and monitored for potential failuresyufisions and breakdowns. C
business, financial, accounting and data processiatems, or other operating systems and facilities/ stop operating properly or become disabledaonaged as a result of a numbe
factors, including events that are wholly or pdigiaeyond our control. For example, there couldebeetrical or telecommunications outages; natdisdsters such as earthquakes, torne
and hurricanes; disease pandemics; events arising bcal or larger scale political or social megtencluding terrorist acts; and, as describedWwekyberattacks. Although we ha
business continuity plans and other safeguard$aicepour business operations may be adverselgtafféy significant and widespread disruption to hysical infrastructure or operat
systems that support our business and clients.

Information security risks for financial institutie such as ours have generally increased in rgeans in part because of the proliferation of neghhologies, the use of the intel
and telecommunications technologies to conductnfir transactions, and the increased sophisticadind activities of organized crime, hackers, tésts, activists and other exter
parties. As notedbove, our operations rely on the secure processegsmission and storage of confidential infoliorain our computer systems and networks. Our lassinmelies on o
digital technologies, computer and email systerfiygre and networks to conduct its operationsaddition, to access our products and servicesgl@nts may use personal smartpho
tablet PCS, personal computers and other mobile devicesateabeyond our control systems. Although we hafermation security procedures and controls in @lawr technologie
systems, networks and our clients’ devices may iecthe target of cybeattacks or information security breaches that coedallt in the unauthorized release, gathering,itoong, misuse
loss or destruction of our or our clients’ confitlah proprietary and other information, or othesidisrupt our or our clients’ or other third pestibusiness operations.

Third parties with whom we do business or thatlitate our business activities, including financialermediaries or vendors that provide servicesemurity solutions for o
operations, could also be sources of operatiordir@ormation security risk to us, including fromelakdowns or failures of their own systems or capa@onstraints.

Although to date we have not experienced any nwtiErsses relating to cybattacks or other information security breaches,ettvan be no assurance that we will not suffer
losses in the future. Our risk and exposure toetlmatters remains heightened because of the egahature of these threats. As a result, cyber ggamd the continued development
enhancement of our controls, processes and praaiegsigned to protect our systems, computers, ardtvdata and networks from attack, damage or bodmed access remain a focus
us. As threats continue to evolve, we may be requio expend additional resources to continue tdifp@r enhance our protective measures or to itiyae and remediate informati
security vulnerabilities.

Disruptions or failures in the physical infrasture or operating systems that support our busiaadsclients, or cybeattacks or security breaches of the networks, syste!
devices that our clients use to access our prodartisservices could result in client attrition, ukegory fines, penalties or intervention, reputaibdamage, reimbursement or o
compensation costs and/or additional compliancescasy of which could materially and adverselyeeffour financial condition or results of operaton

We May Experience Increased Delays in Foreclosure Proceedis

Foreclosure proceedings face increasing delaysileWle cannot predict the ultimate impact of anyagleén foreclosure sales, we may be subject totamidil borrower and non-
borrower litigation and governmental and regulatscyutiny related to our past and current foredlesactivities. Delays in foreclosure sales, inglgdany delays beyond those curre
anticipated could increase the costs associatddanit mortgage operations and make it more diffifarl us to prevent losses in our loan portfolio.

We May Needto Recognize Other-Than-Temporary Impairment Charges in the Future

We conduct a periodic review and evaluation ofgbeurities portfolio to determine if the declinetlire fair value of any security below its cost basiother-thaiemporary. Facto
which we consider in our analysis include, but e limited to, the severity and duration of thecldee in fair value of the security, the financ@ndition and neaterm prospects of tl
issuer, whether the decline appears to be relatesstier conditions or general market or industmyditions, our intent and ability to retain the wety for a period of time sufficient to allc
for any anticipated recovery in fair value and likelihood of any neaterm fair value recovery. We generally view chan@efair value caused by changes in interest raseemporar
However, we have recorded other-than-temporary imynt charges on some securities in our portfolfave deem such decline to be other-themyporary, the security is written dowr
a new cost basis and the resulting loss is chamedrnings as a component of non-interest income.
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We continue to monitor the fair value of our setiesi portfolio as part of our ongoing other-thtemporary impairment evaluation process. Thereb@ano assurance that we
not need to recognize other-than-temporary impaitrobarges related to securities in the future.

The Current Economic Environment Poses Significan€hallenges for us and Could Adversely Affect our Fiancial Condition and Results of Operations

We are operating in a challenging and uncertaimecac environment, including generally uncertaitioral conditions and local conditions in our maskeWhile the national al
local economies showed signs of improvement siheesecond half of 2009, unemployment has remaihedesated levels. The housing market in the Unibégtes continued to se
significant slowdown during 2009, and foreclosunésingle family homes rose to levels not seerhi firior five years. The downturn in the housinarket continued in 2011 and 20
although the downturn slowed. During 2012, thedirog market showed improvement, but has not retutoearlier levels. Financial institutions contnio be affected by sharp decline
the real estate market and constrained financigket® While we are taking steps to decreaseiamtidur exposure to residential mortgage loansnéd@quity loans and lines of credit, .
construction and land loans, we nonetheless reliatt exposure to the residential and commereial estate markets, and we are affected by thesssevFurther declines in real es
values, home sales volumes and financial stregsoawers as a result of the uncertain economiérenment, including job losses, could have an astv@&ffect on our borrowers or tk
customers, which could adversely affect our finahciondition and results of operations. The ovedeaterioration in economic conditions has subjéctes to increased regulat
scrutiny. In addition, further deterioration intiomal or local economic conditions in our marketalld drive losses beyond that which is providedifioour allowance for loan losses
result in the following other consequences: loaindeencies, problem assets and foreclosures nw@gase; demand for our products and services maindedeposits may decrease, wi
would adversely impact our liquidity position; acallateral for our loans, especially real estataymecline in value, in turn reducing customé’rowing power, and reducing the valu:
assets and collateral associated with our existiags. These same factors have caused delingsenciecrease for the mortgages which are theteofibfor the mortgagbacked securitie
that we hold in our investment portfolio. Combinitite increased delinquencies with liquidity probem the market has resulted in a decline in theketavalue of our investments
mortgage-backed securities. There can be no asmuthat the decline in the market value of thesestments will not cause us to record an other-tearporary impairment charge in
financial statements.

We May Not Pay Dividends on Our Common Stock

Holders of shares of our common stock are onlytledtto receive such dividends as our Board of @@es may declare out of funds legally availablesoch payments. Althou
we have historically declared cash dividends onammmon stock, we are not required to do so and medyce or eliminate our common stock dividendhia future. This could advers:
affect the market price of our common stock.

Goo dwill Recorded as a Result of Acquisitions CodIBecome Impaired, Negatively Impacting Our Earning and Capital

Goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life aadested annually, or when certain conditionsraet, for impairment. If the fair value of the refiog unit is greater than t
goodwill amount, no further evaluation is requiget no impairment is recorded. If the fair valuahaf reporting unit is less than the goodwill anourther evaluation would be requil
to compare the fair value of the reporting unitite goodwill amount and determine if a write dowrreéquired. At December 31, 2012, we had goodwitth & carrying amount of $1¢€
million. Declines in the fair value of the repoagi unit may result in a future impairment chargey such impairment charge could have a materfakeébn our earnings and capital.

We May Not Fully Realize the Expected Benefit of Our Deferredax Assets

At December 31, 2012, we have a deferred tax a$sk84.4 million. This represents the anticipatedefral, state and local tax benefits expected te&lkzed in future years up
the utilization of the underlying tax attributeswgorising this balance. In order to use the futweediit of these deferred tax assets, we will nee@port taxable income for federal, state
local tax purposes. Although we have reportedifexancome for federal, state, and local tax puegds each of the past three years, there can lasswance that this will continue in
future.
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| tem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.
At December 31, 2012, the Bank conducted its bssitigrough 17 full-service offices and its interbnch, “iGObanking.corfi”.

Flushing Financial Corporation neither owns nosésaany property but instead uses the premisesquipgment of the Bank.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved in various legal actions arisingha ordinary course of our business which, inabgregate, involve amounts which are believed byagement to be immater
to our financial condition, results of operatiomslaash flows.

Iltem 4 . Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable
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PART II

| tem 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Flushing Financial Corporation Common Stock is éiadn the NASDAQ Global Select Mark&tinder the symbol “FFIC."As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately
shareholders of record, not including the numbepestons or entities holding stock in nominee mettname through various brokers and banks. @uok €losed at $15.34 on Decem
31, 2012. The following table shows the high amdt kales price of the Common Stock and the dividedetlared on the Common Stock during the periodieated. Such prices do
necessarily reflect retail markups, markdowns,anmissions. See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidaiedr€ial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Reportdividend restrictions.

2012 2011
High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
First Quartel $ 144¢ % 1236 $ 01: $ 151t $ 1357 $ 0.1:
Second Quarte 13.8: 12.2¢ 0.13 15.0¢ 12.0Z 0.13
Third Quartel 17.01 13.1¢ 0.1z 13.517 10.0C 0.1:
Fourth Quarte 16.41 13.67 0.1z 13.72 10.7¢ 0.1z
The following table sets forth information regamlithe shares of common stock repurchased by usgitire quarter ended December 31, 2012:
Maximum
Total Number o Number of
Total Shares Purchast Shares That Ma
Number as Part of Publicl Yet Be Purchase
of Shares Average Prict Announced Plan Under the Plan
Period Purchase! Paid per Shar or Program: or Program:
October 1 to October 31, 20 15,00 $ 15.71 15,00( 541,96:
November 1 to November 30, 20 156,00( 15.0C 156,00( 385,96.
December 1 to December 31, 2012 = = = 385,96.
Total 171,000 $ 15.0¢ 171,00(

On September 28, 2011, the Company announced thereation by the Board of Directors of a commdack repurchase program, which authorizes the msetof up t
1,000,000 shares of the Compasigommon stock. During the year ended Decembe2@®I2 and 2011, the Company repurchased 352,008sshad 262,038 shares, respectively, ¢
Companys common stock at an average cost of $14.26 pee simal $12.15 per share, respectively. At Dece@beR012, 385,962 shares remain to be repurchasset the current sto
repurchase program. Stock will be purchased uridectrrent stock repurchase program from timeme tin the open market or through private transastsubject to market conditions :

at the discretion of the management of the Compahgre is no expiration or maximum dollar amourdermthis authorization.
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The following table sets forth securities authadifer issuance under all equity compensation ptdrise Company at December 31, 2012:

(@
Number of securities t
be issued upon exerci
of outstanding option

)
Weightec-average
exercise price ¢
outstanding options

()

Number of securitie
remaining available fc
future issuance unds
equity compensatio
plans (excluding
securities reflected i

Equity compensation plans approwby security holder

Equity compensation plans rapproved by security holde

1) Consists of 56,440 shares available for future-full value awards and 543,050 shares availabléufmre full value awards

warrants and right warrants and right column (a))
770,35! 15.92 599,49(
770,35! 599,49(




Stock Performance Graph

The following graph shows a comparison of cumutatiotal stockholder return on the Compangbmmon stock since December 31, 2007 with theutative total returns of
broad equity market index as well as two publisimellistry indices. The broad equity market indexselmowas the Nasdaq Composite. The published irdumstices chosen were the S
Thrift Index and SNL Mid-Atlantic Thrift Index. ThENL Mid-Atlantic Thrift Index has been includedtimle Companys Stock Performance Graph because the Companyésglieprovide
valuable comparative information reflecting the @amy’s geographic peer group. The SNL Thrift Index hasrbincluded in the Stock Performance becauseei asbroader group
thrifts and therefore more closely reflects the @any’s size. The Company believes that both gedgragpea and size are important factors in anaty#ie Company performance agair
its peers. The graph below reflects historical geniance only, which is not indicative of possihiéufe performance of the common stock.

Total Return Performance

140

‘ —#— Flushing Financial Comoration

—8— NASDAQ Composite

129 — T
‘ —a— SHL Thrit

—e— SHL Mid-Atlantic Thrft

Index Value

40 t t t t
123107 12131708 12131109 123110 123111 1213112

The total return assumes $100 invested on Dece&ihet007 and all dividends reinvested through tiee@f the Company fiscal year ended December 31, 2011. The perfuce
graph above is based upon closing prices on tdinggalate specified.

Period Ending
Index 12/31/0} 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/1( 12/31/1: 12/31/1:
Flushing Financial Corporatic 100.0¢ 76.9¢ 77.1C 100.0¢ 94.0¢ 118.6:
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 60.0Z 87.2¢ 103.0¢ 102.2¢ 120.4:
SNL Thrift 100.0( 63.64 59.3¢ 62.01 52.17 63.4f
SNL Mid-Atlantic Thrift 100.0( 82.81 79.04 90.7¢ 70.0Z 84.1:
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

At or for the years ended December 31, 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d:
Selected Financial Condition Data
Total asset $ 4,451,411 $ 4,287,994 $ 4,324,74 $ 4,14324 $ 3,949,47.
Loans, ne 3,203,01 3,198,53 3,248,63 3,200,15! 2,960,66:
Securities available for sa 949,56t 812,53( 804,18¢ 683,80: 747,26
Deposits 3,015,19: 3,146,24! 3,190,61 2,693,11! 2,468,83
Borrowed funds 948,40" 685,13¢ 708,68: 1,060,24! 1,138,94!
Total stockholders' equi 442,36} 416,91 390,04! 360,14« 301,49:
Common stockholders' equi 442,36! 416,91 390,04 360,14 231,49:
Book value per common shg(1) $ 143¢  $ 13.4¢  $ 12.4¢  $ 1157 % 10.7¢
Selected Operating Data
Interest and dividend incon $ 213,71« $ 224,49¢ $ 229,62¢ $ 230,060 $ 216,70:
Interest expense 63,27¢ 76,72: 91,767 115,27! 128,97:
Net interest incom 150,43¢ 147,77 137,86: 114,78t 87,72¢
Provision for loan losses 21,00( 21,50( 21,00( 19,50( 5,60(
Net interest income after provisifor loan losse: 129,43¢ 126,27! 116,86 95,28¢ 82,12¢
Non-interest income
Net gains on sales of securitand loans 69 511 7 1,61 354
Othe~thar-temporary credit impairmeicharge on securitie (77€) (1,57¢) (2,045) (5,89¢) (27,57Y)
Net gain from fair value adjustmer 55 1,96( 47 4,96¢ 20,09(
Other income 9,713 9,38¢ 10,29: 10,26¢ 14,09¢
Total nor-interest income 9,06t 10,28: 8,30( 10,95¢ 6,96¢
Nor-interest expense 82,32t 77,73¢ 70,38t 64,90¢ 54,78
Income before income tax provisii 56,17¢ 58,817 54,77¢ 41,33: 34,31¢
Income tax provision 21,847 23,46¢ 15,94 15,77 12,057
Net income $ 34,33:  $ 35,34¢ $ 38,83t $ 2556. $ 22,25¢
Basic earnings per common sh(2) $ 112 $ 118 $ 128 $ 091 $ 1.1C
Diluted earnings per common shi(2) $ 112 $ 118 $ 128 $ 091 $ 1.0¢
Dividends declared per common sh(2) $ 05z $ 05z $ 052 $ 052 $ 0.52
Dividend payout ratic 46.(% 45.2% 40.6% 57.1% 47."%

(Footnotes on the following page)
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At or for the years ended December 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Selected Financial Ratios and Other Dat

Performance ratiot
Return on average ass 0.7<% 0.82% 0.92% 0.65% 0.62%
Return on average equi 7.9¢ 8.7¢ 10.3:2 7.8C 9.5t
Average equity to average ass 9.8¢ 9.3¢ 8.8¢ 8.0¢ 6.54
Equity to total asse! 9.94 9.72 9.02 8.6¢ 7.6
Interest rate spree 3.5C 3.4¢ 3.2% 2.7¢ 2.4:
Net interest margi 3.6 3.61 3.4: 2.9¢ 2.6C
Non-interest expense to average as 1.8¢ 1.8C 1.6€ 1.6C 1.54
Efficiency ratio 50.7% 49.1¢ 47.37 51.7¢ 55.11
Average intere-earning assets to averzinteres-bearing liabilities 1.0 1.0& 1.07x 1.07x 1.04x

Regulatory capital ratios: (-
Core capital (well capitalized = 59 9.62% 9.62% 9.1¢% 8.8% 7.92%
Tier 1 risk-based capital (well capitalized =6¢ 14.3¢ 14.2¢ 13.07 12.7¢ 12.57
Total risk-based capital (well capitalized =10' 15.4¢ 15.32 13.9¢ 13.4¢ 13.02

Asset quality ratios
Non-performing loans to gross loans 2.7%% 3.65% 3.4% 2.6(% 1.35%
Non-performing assets to total assets 2.21 2.87 2.7 2.1¢ 1.02
Net charg-offs to average loar 0.64 0.5¢ 0.4z 0.3: 0.04
Allowance for loan losses to gross lo: 0.97 0.94 0.8t 0.6: 0.37
Allowance for loan losses to toinor-performing assets (¢ 31.5¢ 24.6% 23.31 22.3¢ 27.0¢
Allowance for loan losses to toinor-performing loans (4 34.62 25.8¢ 24.71 24.3¢ 27.5¢

Full-service customer facilitie 17 16 15 15 14

1) Calculated by dividing common stockholdeesjuity of $442.4 million and $416.9 million at Detdeer 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, by 30,7438%9 30,904,177 shar

outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respslgti Common stockholders’ equity is total stoci#bm’ equity less the liquidation preference value offgmed share
outstanding

) The shares held in the Comp’s Employee Benefit Trust are not included in shatgstanding for purposes of calculating earnings ghare.

3) Represents the Ba's capital ratios, which exceeded all minimum retpra capital requirements during the periods presen

4) Nor-performing loans consist of n-accrual loans and loans delinquent 90 days or nmibeg are still accruing

(5) Nor-performing assets consist of 1-performing loans, real estate owned and -performing investment securitie
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| tem 7. Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations.

As used in this discussion and analysis, the wbnds” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are used to refer to Flushing Financial Corporatiand our consolidated subsidiari
including the surviving entity of the merger (thil€rger”) on February 28, 2013 of our wholly ownedbsidiary, Flushing Savings Bank, FSB (the “SaviBgsk”) with and into th
Savings Bank’s wholly owned subsidiary Flushing @amtial Bank (the “Commercial Bank”J he surviving entity of the Merger was the Comna¢fBank, whose name has been chal
to “Flushing Bank”. References herein to the “Bankiean the Savings Bank (including its wholly ownessigliary, the Commercial Bank) prior to the Mergerd the surviving entity aft
the Merger.

General

We are a Delaware corporation organized in May 19%% Savings Bank was organized in 1929 as a Nerk $tateehartered mutual savings bank. In 1994, the Savidags
converted to a federally chartered mutual saviregskband changed its name from Flushing Savings BariKushing Savings Bank, FSB. The Savings Bankeded from a federal
chartered mutual savings bank to a federally chedtstock savings bank in 1995. On February 2832ilthe Merger, the Savings Bank merged with iatal the Commercial Bank, wi
the Commercial Bank as the surviving entity. Punstia the Merger, the Commercial Bank’s charter alzsnged to a New York State fekrvice commercial bank charter, and its name
changed to Flushing Bank. Also in connection whie Merger, Flushing Financial Corporation becameank holding company. We do not anticipate any iigmt changes to o
operations or services as a result of the Merger.

On July 21, 2011, as a result of the Dodd-Frankl\&®aket Reform and Consumer Protection Act (thed® Frank Act”), the Savings Barkprimary regulator became the Of
of the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”). Upoornapletion of the Merger, the Bank’s primary regatabecame the New York State Department of Findrggavices (“NYSDFS),
(formerly the New York State Banking Department)d dts federal regulator became the Federal Depsitrance Corporation (“FDIC"). The Bamskdeposits are insured to the maxin
allowable amount by the FDIC. The Bank owns theelesidiaries: Flushing Preferred Funding Corporatiushing Service Corporation, and FSB Propetties

Flushing Financial Corporation also owns FlushimgaRcial Capital Trust I, Flushing Financial CapiTrust Ill, and Flushing Financial Capital Truist(the “Trusts”),which are
special purpose business trusts formed during 20@55ue a total of $60.0 million of capital seties, and $1.9 million of common securities (whégie the only voting securities). Flush
Financial Corporation owns 100% of the common s&esrof the Trusts. The Trusts used the proceesis the issuance of these securities to purchaserjaubordinated debentures fr
Flushing Financial Corporation. The Trusts areinoluded in our consolidated financial statemestsva would not absorb the losses of the Trustssgés were to occur.

The following discussion of financial condition anesults of operations includes the collective itssof the Flushing Financial Corporation and ithsdiaries (collectively, tt
“Company”), but reflects principally the Bank’s aities. Management views the Company as operatig single unit - a community bank. Thereforefrsag information is not provided.

During 2006, the Bank established a business bgnlimt. Our business plan includes a transitiomfra traditional thrift to a more “commercial-likddanking institution b
focusing on the development of a full complementaimercial business deposit, loan and cash maregemoducts. As of December 31, 2012, the busibas&ing unit had $293
million in loans outstanding and $78.5 million efstomer deposits.

On November 27, 2006, the Bank launched an intdaragtch, iGObanking.com@&hich provides us access to consumers in markéssdeuour geographic locations. Accounts
be opened online at www.iGObanking.com or by mahe internet branch does not currently accept bygplications. As of December 31, 2012, the intebmanch had $294.1 million
customer deposits.

During 2007, the Savings Bank formed a wholly owsabsidiary, Flushing Commercial Bank, a New Yotat&chartered commercial bank, for the limited purpokeroviding
banking services to public entities including caoest cities, towns, villages, school districtsydibes, fire districts and the various courts tiytoaut the New York City metropolitan ar
The Commercial Bank was formed in response to NewkState law, which requires that municipal defand state funds must be deposited into a bamkistr company as defined
New York State law. The Savings Bank was not carsid an eligible bank or trust company for thispese. The Commercial Bank did not originate loafs.of December 31, 201
Flushing Commercial Bank had $697.0 million of cuser deposits.
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Ove rview

Our principal business is attracting retail dep&iobm the general public and investing those diépdsgether with funds generated from ongoing apiens and borrowing
primarily in (1) originations and purchases of mtamily residential properties and, to a lesseeak one-to-four family (focusing on mixetse properties, which are properties that co
both residential dwelling units and commercial sihand commercial real estate mortgage loans;ai@touction loans, primarily for residential profpes; (3) Small Business Administrat
(“SBA”) loans and other small business loans; ri@yrtgage loan surrogates such as mortgage-backedtsss; and (5) U.S. government securities, caafmfixedincome securities al
other marketable securities. We also originateagemther consumer loans including overdraft linésredit. Our results of operations depend primarily on négdriest income, which is t
difference between the income earned on its intex@sing assets and the cost of our intebestring liabilities. Net interest income is theulesf our interest rate margin, which is
difference between the average yield earned omesti@arning assets and the average cost of itdeeasing liabilities, adjusted for the differenioethe average balance of interestrning
assets as compared to the average balance ofsinbearing liabilities. We also generate rioterest income from loan fees, service chargedeposit accounts, mortgage servicing fees
other fees, income earned on Bank Owned Life Imsaed“BOLI"), dividends on Federal Home Bank of N&terk (“FHLB-NY”) stock and net gains and losses on sales of sesuaiti
loans. Our operating expenses consist principdlneployee compensation and benefits, occupancyegnghment costs, other general and administraiypenses and income tax expe
Our results of operations also can be significaatfgcted by our periodic provision for loan loss@sl specific provision for losses on real estateesl.

Mana gement StrategyOur strategy is to continue our focus on beingnatitution serving consumers, businesses, and gmesttal units in our local markets. In furtheran€ehis
objective, we intend to:

continue our emphasis on the origination of mdtiafly residential mortgage loans;

transition from a traditional thrift to a more ‘camercial-like’ banking institution;

increase our commitment to the multi-cultural mapkece, with a particular focus on the Asian comityuim Queens;

maintain asset quality;

manage deposit growth and maintain a low cost d$uthrough

] business banking deposi
] municipal deposits through government banking,
] new customer relationships via iGObanking.®;

cross sell to lending and deposit customers;

take advantage of market disruptions to attraentsdnd customers from competitors;

manage interest rate risk and capital: and

manage enterprise-wide risk.
There can be no assurance that we will be abléedot&ely implement this strategy. Our strategyigject to change by the Board of Directors.

Multi-Family Residential Mortgage Lendingln recent years, we have emphasized the originaif higher-yielding multfamily residential mortgage loans. During 2
and 2011, we reduced our emphasis on one-to-fonilyfa- mixed-use property and commercial real estanding. We expect to continue this emphasisighehn-yielding multi-
family residential mortgage loans, while we conéria deemphasize one-to-four family mixed-use prigpend commercial real estate lending.
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The following table shows loan originations andghases during 2012, and loan balances as of Dece&thp2012.

Loan Loan Balance
Originations anc December 31 Percent o
Purchase 2012 Gross Loan:
(Dollars in thousands
Multi-family residentia $ 317,66. $ 1,534,43! 47.62%
Commercial real esta 31,78¢ 515,43t 16.0C
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 15,96 637,35: 19.7¢
One-to-four family — residentia 24,48¢ 198,96¢ 6.1€
Cc-operative apartmel 1,81( 6,302 0.2C
Constructior 80¢€ 14,38: 0.4t
Small Business Administratic 52¢ 9,49¢ 0.2¢
Taxi Medallion 3,46¢ 9,92 0.31
Commercial Business and Other 236,01! 295,07t 9.1€

$ 632,52 $ 3,221,37 100.0(%

At December 31, 2012, multi-family residential, aoercial real estate, construction and one-to-faomify mixeduse property mortgage loans, totaled 83.9% of ooss
loans. Our concentration in these types of loamssitereased the overall level of credit risk inméri@ our loan portfolio. The greater risk assagibtwvith multifamily, commercie
real estate, construction and one-to-four familxediuse property mortgage loans could require us teease our provisions for loan losses and to mairgaiallowance for lo:
losses as a percentage of total loans in excebe @fllowance currently maintained.

Transition to a MoréCommerciallike’ Banking InstitutionWe established a business banking unit during 208ffed with a team of experienced commercial besik&/e
have developed a complement of deposit, loan asti c@anagement products to support this initiataved expanded these product offerings. The busibasking unit i
responsible for building business relationshipoider to obtain lowecosting deposits, generate fee income, and originatnmercial business loans. Building these bus
relationships could provide us with a lower-costingirce of funds and higher-yielding adjustable-taans, which would help us manage our interdstsiak.

Increase Our Commitment to the Me@ultural Marketplace, with a Particular Focus oe fsian Community in QueensOur branches are all located in the New
City metropolitan area with particular concentratio the borough of Queens. Queens in particihibis a high level of ethnic diversity. An impant element of our strategy
to service the multi-ethnic consumer and busin&¥s. have a particular concentration in the Asiamunities-among them Chinese and Korean populations. Bathpg ar
noted for high levels of savings, education andemmeneurship. In order to service these and aditheortant ethnic groups in our market, our stgféaks more than :
languages. We have an Asian advisory board tp bebaden our link to the community by providingidance and fostering awareness of our active mlehe loce
community. Our focus on the Asian community in €u® where we have four branches, has resultes @btaining approximately $400 million in depositthese branches. \
also have over $300 million of loans and linesrefdi outstanding to borrowers in the Asian comruni

Maintain Asset Quality By adherence to our conservative underwritirgndards, we have been able to minimize net losses impaired loans with net chargéfs of
$20.2 million and $18.9 million for the years end@eécember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. We geehkaintain our loans in performing status througimong other thing
disciplined collection efforts, and consistently mitoring nonperforming assets in an effort to return them tdgrening status. To this end, we review the quatityour loans ar
report to the Loan Committee of the Board of Dicestof the Bank on a monthly basis. We sold 77ndeient mortgage loans totaling $44.2 million, 44rdpient mortgage loa
totaling $27.8 million, and 20 delinquent mortgadgens totaling $9.3 million during the years endstember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelyraderded net chargeffs
of $5.7 million, $3.7 million and $0.7 million tdv¢ allowance for loan losses for the mmerforming loans that were sold during 2012, 204d 2010, respectively. We reali:
gross gains of $21,000, $167,000 and $21,000 osateeof norperforming mortgage loans for the years ended Dbeerdl, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Wezeglgros
losses of $69,000 and $4,000 on the sale ofperferming mortgage loans for the years ended Dbeerd1, 2012 and 2010, respectively. We did natngt@ny gross losses for
year ended December 31, 2011. There can be noaasssrthat we will continue this strategy in futpexiods, or if continued, we will be able to fibdyers to pay adequi
consideration. Non-performing assets amounted &5sfillion and $123.2 million at December 31, 2Gi® 2011, respectively. Ngrerforming assets as a percentage of
assets were 2.21% and 2.87% at December 31, 2@120411, respectively.
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Manage Deposit Growth and Maintain Low Cost of Fuile have a relatively stable retail deposit basevdr&rom our market area through our fabtvice offices
Although we seek to retain existing deposits anihtam depositor relationships by offering qualitgrvice and competitive interest rates to our custs, we also seek to ke
deposit growth within reasonable limits and ouatgtgic plan. In order to implement our strateganple have a business banking operation that sigrisd specifically to devel
full business relationships thereby bringing in éveost checking and money market deposits. At Bee 31, 2012, deposits balances in the businessrsee $78.5 million. W
also have an internet branch, “iGObanking.c®if as a division of the Bank, to compete for defsofiom sources outside the geographic footprinbuf full-service offices. |
creating iGObanking.com®, our strategy is to redogereliance on wholesale borrowings and reducdunding costs. Deposit balances in iGObanking®onere $294.1 millio
at December 31, 2012, at rates lower than our langs. We have a government banking division, whpdir to the Merger operated as the CommercialkBas an addition
source of deposits. At December 31, 2012, depasitir government banking division totaled $697.lliom at rates below our average cost of fundse ®#so obtain depos
through brokers and the CDARS®&twork. Management intends to balance its goahaintain competitive interest rates on depositdevbeeking to manage its overall cos
funds to finance its strategies. We generally oglyour deposit base as our principal source ofifghdn addition, the Bank is a member of the FHNB; which provides us with
source of borrowing. We also utilize reverse pusehagreements, established with other financigititions. During 2012, we realized a decrease ure Bb depositors of $13:
million, as core deposits increased $142.1 millidnile certificates of deposit decreased $275.9ionill At the same time our borrowed funds increasg®263.2 million as w
looked to extend the maturities of our funding.

Cross Sell to Lending and Deposit Customérsignificant portion of our lending and depositstamers do not have both their loans and deposits wg. We intend 1
continue to focus on obtaining additional depoBitsn our lending customers and originating addioloans to our deposit customers. Product offeriwgre expanded and
expected to be further expanded to accommodateipert customer demands. In addition, specific eyg#s are assigned responsibilities of generatiagettadditional depos
and loans by coordinating efforts between lending) deposit gathering departments.

Take Advantage of Market Disruptions to Attractd&raland Customers From Competitarke New York City market place has been dominatethige institutions, mar
of which recently have run into difficult situati®alue to the recessionary environment. Duringtifnie period we have been able to attract talemhfsuch large commercial bar
That talent has brought with it significant busimeslationships. We have been able to see a lang®aber of strong companies that have been caughtr@irenchment by thi
existing large institution. We anticipate this eviment remaining for some period of time.

We havein the past increased growth through acquisitidnfinancial institutions and branches of other fin&l institutions, and will continue to pursue @tb througt
acquisitions that are, or are expected to be wighiasonable time frame, accretive to earninggjedisas evaluating the feasibility of opening ditdial branches. We have in
past opened new branches. One branch was openBrbaklyn in the first quarter of 2012. We plan ¢ontinue to seek and review potential acquisitbpportunities th¢
complement our current business, are consisteffit our strategy to build a bank that is focused s unique personal and small business banking nefettee multiethnic
communities we serve.

Manage Interest Rate Risk and Capitiéle seek to manage our interest rate risk by agtir@liewing the repricing and maturities of oureirist rate sensitive assets
liabilities. The mix of loans we originate (fixed ARM) is determined in large part by borrowgpséferences and prevailing market conditions. &kgo manage the interest |
risk of our loan portfolio by actively managing osecurity portfolio and borrowings. By adjustifgetmix of fixed and adjustable rate securitieswe$ as the maturities of tl
securities, we have the ability to manage the coetinterest rate sensitivity of our assets. Addélly, we seek to balance the interest rate §gitgiof our assets by managi
the maturities of our liabilities. The Bank faceseral minimum capital requirements imposed berfaldregulation. These requirements limit the divids the Bank is allowed
pay, including the payment of dividends to Flushifigancial Corporation, and can limit the annualvgh of the Bank.
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Manage Enterpris&Vide Risk.We identify measure and attempt to mitigate ridiet &ffect, or have the potential to affect, ousibass. Due to the economic crisis
resulting increase in government regulation, thergreater demand for us to devote significant wess to risk management. In April 2010, a seasais&dofficer was hired 1
provide executive risk leadership, and an entezprisle risk management program was implemented. &éwarterprise risk management analytical produetgehbee
implemented which include key risk indicators. Guanagement of enterpriséee risk enables us to recognize and monitor ragkd establish procedures to disseminate thi
information across our organization and to our Boair Directors. The objective is to have a robusd focused risk management process capable ofifigjagtand mitigating
emerging threats to the Bank’s safety and soundness

Trend s and Contingencie©ur operating results are significantly affectedriaional and local economic and competitive coodg, including changes in market interest ri
the strength of the local economy, government mdiand actions of regulatory authorities. As shemn interest rates have declined from 2008 thra2@t?2, we remained strategic:
focused on the origination of multi-family residetmortgages and to a lesser extent, commercidlegtate and one-to-four family mixede property mortgage loans. As a result ol
strategy, we were able to continue to achieve hemigield on our mortgage portfolio than we wousVé otherwise experienced

The New York City metropolitan area, our primaryrket for lending, was generally considered to ba iecession from December 2007 through the midt2009. In the Ne'
York City metropolitan area, building permits fanesto-four family residential properties, muidimily residential properties, and commercial prtips all declined over this time perioc
historically low levels. While the number of buitdj permits increased in 2012, it remains belowléirel of 2007. The home price index for the New K @ity metropolitan area declin
from the beginning of 2007 to the end of 2011 bgragimately 23.7%, and decreased an additional 2r82012. The value of mulfamily and commercial properties showed similacg
movements. However, sale prices of multi-familygeudies increased in 2012. Sales of residentialcanamercial real estate in 2012 remained belowehe! of sales seen in 2007.

Building permits for one-to-four family residentiptoperties, multfamily residential properties, and commercial prtips all declined over this time period to histatly low
levels. This resulted in increased unemploymentdeedining property values. The majority of our immed loans are income producing residential ptigeetocated in the New York C
metropolitan market. Due to the low vacancy rat@stifiese types of properties, they have retainete b their value, thereby reducing their loss eont While the national and loi
economies have shown signs of improvement sincenildele of 2009, unemployment has remained at &elvievels of 8.8% in both December 2012 and 2€drithe New York Cit
region, according to the New York State Departnodritabor. These economic conditions can resultarrdwers defaulting on their loans. This deterimrain the economy has resultec
the balance of our non-performing loans remainingraelevated level, although non-performing lodeslined in 2012. Noperforming loans totaled $89.8 million, $117.4 il anc
$112.1 million at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 20&8pectively. While noperforming loans have remained elevated, we hateetoexperienced a significant increase in foreet
properties due to an extended foreclosure processrimarket. The extended foreclosure processiimarket is due to the high number of foreclosaatons filed in the court system in
counties for which we are seeking foreclosure dingeent mortgage loans. We have not encountegrfiiant issues with documentation relating to tgages for which we are seek
foreclosure as we maintain custody of all loan doents and review them prior to providing them to legal counsel to initiate the foreclosure acti®he deterioration in the economy ¢
resulted in an increase in net charge-offs fromaiimgal loans, which increased to $20.2 million ii2®om $18.9 million in 2011 and $13.6 million2010. The majority of chargeffs we
recorded were to reduce the carrying value of ingohioans to their fair value. We recorded a priovigor loan losses of $21.0 million in 2012 comgshto $21.5 million in 2011 and $2
million in 2010. We cannot predict the effect oésle economic conditions on the Company'’s futuranfoimal condition or operating results.

In addition, in response to the economic condititneur market combined with the increase in penforming loans, we began tightening our undemgistandards in 2008
reduce the risk associated with lending.

The following changes were made in our underwristandards since 2008 to reduce the risk assoaiatedending on income producing real estate progs:
. When borrowers requested a refinance of an existioggage loan when they had acquired the promerbbtained their existing loan within two yearstio¢ reques

we generally required evidence of improvementshegroperty that increased the property value ppst the additional funds and generally restridtesl loan-to-
value ratio for the new loan to 65% of the appraigalue.
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- The debt coverage ratio was increased and thetteaalue ratio decreased for income producing propentiith fewer than ten units. This required ther@oer tc
have an additional investment in the property th@viously required and provided additional pratetshould rental units become vacs

- Borrowers who owned multiple properties were reggiito provide detail on all their properties tmwallus to evaluate their total cash flow requirermeB&sed on th
review, we may decline the loan application, ouiegja lower loa-to-value ratio and a higher debt coverage r:

- Income producing properties with existing rentg tliare at or above the current market rent forIsimproperties were required to have a higher deberage ratio 1
provide protection should rents declil

. Borrowers purchasing properties were required toafestrate they had satisfactory liquidity and mamagnt ability to carry the property should vacas@ecur o
increase

The following changes were made in our underwrittgndards since 2008 to reduce the risk on orfiettofamily residential property mortgage loans drwine equity lines
credit:

- We discontinued originating home equity lines ofdit without verifying the borrowes’ income. This was done in two stages. Beginniniylay 2008, we beg:
verifying the borrowess income when the home equity line of credit exeee®100,000. Beginning in October 2009, we verifieel income of all borrowers applyi
for a home equity line of cred

. We discontinued offering o-to-four family residential property mortgage loanséd-employed individuals based on stated income anifialgle assets in June 201
The following changes were made in our underwristandards since 2008 to reduce the risk assoaiatBdusiness lending:

- All borrowers obtaining a business loan were resflito submit a complete financial information papkaregardless of the amount of the loan. Prewoumsrrower
for SBA Express loans and other loans under $180h@@ been exempt from this requirem:

- Background checks on all borrowers and guarantarbdsiness loans were expanded to identify an@weinformation in more public records, includingearch fc
judgments, liens, negative press articles, andlaitins with other entities

. The guarantee of related business entities proyidash flow to the borrowing entity became requftecdousiness loan:
- The allowable percentage of inventory and accoreusivable pledged as collateral for a business \e&s reducec
. We established specific risk acceptance critenigfivate not for profit school:

Since 2008, we have reduced our focus on commeeahkstate and one-to-four family mixese residential property mortgage loans, whichesgmted $300.6 million, or 50%,
our mortgage loan originations and purchases ir8 2@Mnpared to $47.8 million, or 8%, in 2012. In iédd to reducing our focus on commercial real standing, we further reduced
origination of smaller commercial real estate prtps. We also reduced our focus on constructioditey, which we reduced from $30.7 million in adees on existing loans in 200€
$0.8 million in advances on existing loans in 2048d new construction loan approvals from $27.2ionilin 2008 to none in 2012. We reduced our fooenghese types of loans due
changes in market conditions, increasing delingigsnend losses incurred on delinquent loans agsdcigith these types of loans. The Bank has casity resumed the origination of non-
owner occupied commercial real estate.

We also shifted our focus in multi-family lendinglarger properties. Our review of delinquent mtdtnily mortgage loans revealed that the majorftpur delinquent multfamily
mortgage loans were on smaller properties with fewstal units. We concluded that the more unitsaperty had to rent, the less likely vacanciesid@ause a disruption in the propesty’
cash flow.
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While we primarily rely on originating our own losinwe purchased $3.5 million of loans in 2012 coregdo $19.1 million in 2011 and $14.7 million i0ID. We purchase log
when the loans complement our loan portfolio sgyté.oans purchased must meet our underwritingdstats when they were originated.

The economic conditions we have experienced simeend of 2007 reduced loan demand in our manketddlition, the tightening of our underwriting sfands and the shift in ¢
lending focus also contributed to our total loaigiorations and purchases remaining below ne@ession levels. Loan originations were $632.%ianiland $411.2 million for 2012 and 20
respectively.

During the three year period ended December 312,20% allocation of our loan portfolio has remairfairly consistent. The majority of our loans amlateralized by real esta
which comprised 90.2% of our portfolio at DecemBdr, 2012 compared to 91.4% at December 31, 201194r@P6 at December 31, 2010. Mdtimily residential mortgage loa
comprised 47.6%, 43.3% and 38.4% of our loan plotft December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respégti@@mmercial real estate mortgage loans compri€e@%, 18.1% and 20.3%
our loan portfolio at December 31, 2012, 2011 afd0? respectively. One-to-four family mixede property mortgage loans comprised 19.8%, 2:a6#622.4% of loan portfolio
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively-tomur family residential mortgage loans comprised¥6, 7.0% and 7.6% of loan portfolio at December Z112, 2011 and 201
respectively.

Due to depositors decreased $133.8 million and84dllion in 2012 and 2011, respectively, compatedan increase of $497.0 million in 2010. Loveessting core depos
increased $142.1 million in 2012 compared to a else of $55.4 million in 2011 and an increase @6%2 million during 2010. Highetosting certificates of deposit decreased $z
million during 2012 compared to increases of $8illian and $290.1 million during 2011 and 2010,pestively. Brokered deposits represented 17.3%4,9%44nd 16.1% of total deposit:
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Prevailing interest rates affect the extent to Wwhiorrowers repay and refinance loans. In a dexjiimterest rate environment, the number of lo@payments and loan refinanc
tends to increase, as do prepayments of mortgagjeetiaecurities. Call provisions associated withiouestments in U.S. government agency and corporate securiti&gg also adverse
affect yield in a declining interest rate envirommeSuch prepayments and calls may adversely affecyield of our loan portfolio and mortgabaeked and other securities as we reir
the prepaid funds in a lower interest rate envirentnHowever, we typically receive additional Id@es when existing loans are refinanced, whichigdgrioffsets the reduced yield on ¢
loan portfolio resulting from prepayments. In pesoof low interest rates, our level of core demoalso may decline if depositors seek higyieteling instruments or other investments
offered by us, which in turn may increase our afdtunds and decrease our net interest margineestent alternative funding sources, are utiliZ¢lcontrast, an increasing interest
environment would tend to extend the average Infelower yielding fixed rate mortgages and mortgageked securities, which could adversely affectinrest income. In additic
depositors tend to open longer term, higher costigificate of deposit accounts which could adebrsffect our net interest income if rates werestidsequently decline. Additional
adjustable rate residential mortgage loans andgagé-backed securities generally contain interichléietime caps that limit the amount the intenede can increase at re-pricing dates.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we extethue term of five business loans totaling $2.1liariland 146 mortgage loans totaling $200.4 milliaich we did nc
consider as noperforming loans nor troubled debt restructurechEaf these loans was extended in accordance witfeading policies, which required the loans tofldey underwritten
and that each of the borrowers is current as taneays. None of these borrowers was experienciranéiial difficulties, and none received a below nearkterest rate or other favora
terms at the time the loans were extended. Thexgfee did not consider these loans to be troutdédat restructured.

We attempt to pursue the guarantor on all loansvfuch a loss has been incurred and for which aajuee was obtained, when, after considering timefite and costs, we he
concluded we will be successful in recovering astea portion of the loss we incurred. The sucoéfisis pursuit is based on the assets the guaraptds when we obtain a judgment.

During 2012, we sought performance under guaramresght business loans, seeking judgments inssxe£$1.9 million, and 12 real estate mortgagedpaeeking judgments
excess of $5.0 million. As of December 31, 2012, hae realized recoveries of less than $0.1 milbonmortgage loans, and had not received any reiesven the business loans
addition, during the year ended December 31, 2@&2realized recoveries of approximately $0.2 millien business loans and real estate mortgage foamghich we sought judgmer
prior to 2012. During 2011, we sought performanodes guarantees on nine business loans, seekiggnpmts in excess of $2.2 million, and nine reahtesmortgage loans, seek
judgments in excess of $2.0 million. As of DecemBkr2011, we had realized recoveries of less $#@ah million on the business loans, and had natived any recoveries on the real es
mortgage loans. In addition, during the year eridedember 31, 2011, we realized recoveries of tes $0.1 million on business loans and real estategage loans for which we sou
judgments prior to 201:
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During 2012 our net interest margin improved foasib points to 3.65% for the year ended Decembe2@®112 from 3.61% for the comparable period in 20This increase in tl
net interest margin resulted in a $2.7 million g&se in net interest income to $150.4 million foe year ended December 31, 2012 from $147.8 miiliothe comparable period
2011. The improvement in the net interest margn2012 was primarily generated through a redudtioour funding costs, partially offset by a deelim the yield of our interestarning
assets. During 2012 we increased the average leal@borrowed funds by $74.2 million to $767.6 ioifl for 2012 compared to $693.4 million for 2011hile reducing the cost
borrowed funds 110 basis points to 2.98% for ther y;xded December 31, 2012 from 4.08% in the coampeperiod in 2011. At the same time the averadente of deposits decrease(
$74.8 million to $3,003.2 million for 2012 compareed$3,078.0 million for 2011. However, the averdmlance of lower costing deposits increased $34l®n while the average balar
of higher costing certificates of deposit decrea®&@8.8 million for the year ended December 31,2f0é@m the comparable period in 2011. Combining #fiift to lower costing depos
with reductions in the rates we paid on all deptgies resulted in a 23 basis point reduction inamst of total deposits to 1.34% for the year enBecember 31, 2012 from 1.57% in
comparable period in 2011. As a result of thesegba to our funding mix, and a favorable interat environment, we were able to reduce our cotrafs 35 basis points to 1.68% for
year ended December 31, 2012 from 2.03% for the g:eded December 31, 20!

We are unable to predict the direction of futuriiast rate changes. Approximately 28% of our fieates of deposit accounts and borrowings repoicenature during the ne
year, which could result in a decrease in the obsur interes-bearing liabilities. Also, in a decreasing inténege environment, mortgage loans and mortdaagked securities with higk
rates tend to prepay, which could result in a rédadn the yield on our interest-earning assets.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

A financial institution’s exposure to the risksaifanging interest rates may be analyzed, in ppréxamining the extent to which its assets andliies are “interest rate sensitive”
and by monitoring the institution’s interest raémsitivity “gap.” An asset or liability is said to be interest ratastive within a specific time period if it will ature or reprice within that tir
period. The interest rate sensitivity gap is defias the difference between the amount of intexasting assets maturing or repricing within a djgetime period and the amount of interest-
bearing liabilities maturing or repricing withinahtime period. A gap is considered positive wHemamount of interest-earning assets maturingmiaiag exceeds the amount of interest-
bearing liabilities maturing or repricing withingtsame period. A gap is considered negative wherathount of interediearing liabilities maturing or repricing exceetie amount ¢
interestearning assets maturing or repricing within the esgeriod. Accordingly, a positive gap may enhareteimterest income in a rising rate environment @ttlice net interest income
a falling rate environment. Conversely, a negagjap may enhance net interest income in a fallitgy@avironment and reduce net interest incomerisirgg rate environment.
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The table below sets forth the amounts of inteeastiing assets and interésaring liabilities outstanding at December 31,2@/Mhich are anticipated by the Company, based
certain assumptions, to reprice or mature in edc¢heofuture time periods shown. Except as staldvi, the amount of assets and liabilities shovat thprice or mature during a partict
period was determined in accordance with the easfithe term to repricing or the contractual tewfishe asset or liability. Prepayment assumptfonsnortgage loans and mortgalgaeke«
securities are based on our experience and indagénages, which generally range from 6% to 40%edding on the contractual rate of interest andutigerlying collateral. Money mari
accounts and savings accounts were assumed toahaitadrawal or “run-off’rate of 9% and 16%, respectively, based on ourréqee. While management bases these assumptic
actual prepayments and withdrawals experiencedsbthere is no guarantee that these trends witirmas in the future.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap Analysis at Decen#ier2012

More Than More Than More Than More Than
Three Three One Yeal Three Year: Five Years
Months Months To To Three To Five To Ten More Than
And Less One Yeal Years Years Years Ten Years Total

(Dollars in thousands
Interest-Earning Assets

Mortgage loan: $ 298,11: $ 543,17¢ $ 1,028,75 $ 788,97¢ $ 241,17¢  $ 6,67t $ 2,906,88

Other loan: 106,41° 50,56: 68,20¢ 48,77: 19,10: 21,43 314,49

Shor-term securitie|(1) 31,27¢ - - - - - 31,27¢

Securities available for sal -
Mortgagebacked securitie 41,32« 115,34: 163,67- 129,09: 155,46 115,21¢ 720,11
Other 94,48 3,17¢ - 5,563¢ 19,46¢ 106,78¢ 229,45:

Total interest-earning assets 571,61! 712,25 1,260,641 972,38 435,21( 250,11} 4,202,221

Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Savings account 11,53¢ 34,60¢ 92,28¢ 92,28¢ 57,67¢ - 288,39¢

NOW account: - - - - - 1,136,59! 1,136,59!

Money market accoun 3,34¢ 10,03: 26,75 26,75 66,88( 14,85¢ 148,61t

Certificate of deposit accour 128,30: 281,75 667,54( 144,10( 31,52¢ - 1,253,22!

Mortgagors' escrow depos - - - - - 32,56( 32,56(

Borrowings 155,92: 40,00( 305,56( 446,92: - - 948,40!

Total interest-bearing liabilities (2) $ 299,108 $ 366,39: $ 1,092,14 $ 710,06. $ 156,08 $ 1,184,001 $ 3,807,80

Interest rate sensitivity ge $ 272,51 $ 345,86t $ 168,49 $ 262,32(  $ 279,12.  $ (933,90) $ 394,41:

Cumulative intere-rate sensitivity ga| $ 27251 $ 618,37¢ $ 786,87( $ 1,049,199 $ 1,328,31 $ 394,41

Cumulative interest-rate sensitivity gap as a peesge

of total asset 6.12% 13.8% 17.6% 23.5% 29.8% 8.8t%
Cumulative net interest-earning assets as a pege uf
interes-bearingliabilities 191.1% 192.9% 144.7°% 142.5% 150.6% 110.3%
1) Consists of intere-earning deposits
) Does not include nc-interest bearing demand accounts totaling $155/8aniat December 31, 201.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methoahafysis presented in the foregoing table. For @tenalthough certain assets and liabilities mayetgimilar estimated maturiti
or periods to repricing, they may react in diffgridegrees to changes in market interest rates aycear rates that differ in varying degrees framrates that would apply upon matt
and reinvestment or upon repricing. Also, the iserates on certain types of assets and lialilitiay fluctuate in advance of changes in markerast rates, while interest rates on c
types may lag behind changes in market rates. iadilly, certain assets, such as ARM loans, haatufes that restrict changes in interest rates sitoatterm basis and over the life of
asset. Further, in the event of a significant cleainghe level of interest rates, prepayments andcand mortgage-backed securities, and deposidraival or “run-off’levels, would likel
deviate materially from those assumed in calcuiptime above table. In the event of an interest irateease, some borrowers may be unable to meeintheased payments on tt
adjustable-rate debt. The interest rate sensiti@itglysis assumes that the nature of the Compamgsets and liabilities remains static. Interagtsr may have an effect on custo
preferences for deposits and loan products. Findilly maturity and repricing characteristics of gnassets and liabilities as set forth in the altabée are not governed by contract but re
by management’s best judgment based on currentenaokditions and anticipated business strategies.
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Inter est Rate Risk

Our Consolidated Financial Statements have beepapgd in accordance with accounting principles gaheaccepted in the United States of America, alshiequires tk
measurement of financial position and operatingiltesn terms of historical dollars without consithg the changes in fair value of certain investteedue to changes in interest re
Generally, the fair value of financial investmesteh as loans and securities fluctuates inversily shanges in interest rates. As a result, in@gas interest rates could result in decre
in the fair value of our interesiarning assets which could adversely affect owlt®®f operations if such assets were sold, othécase of securities classified as availableséde
decreases in our stockholders’ equity if such sgeswere retained.

We manage the mix of interest-earning assets aedestbearing liabilities on a continuous basis to maxenieturn and adjust our exposure to interestriske On a quarter
basis, management prepares the “Earnings and Edoroposure to Changes in Interest Raggiort for review by the Board of Directors, as suamized below. This report quantifies
potential changes in net interest income and nefgdio value should interest rates go up or dowhocked) 200 basis points, assuming the yield suoé¢he rate shocks will be paralle
each other. Net portfolio value is defined as thekat value of assets net of the market valueatfilities. The market value of assets and liaktitis determined using a discounted
flow calculation. The net portfolio value ratiotte ratio of the net portfolio value to the markalue of assets. All changes in income and valeereasured as percentage changes fro
projected net interest income and net portfoliaigadt the base interest rate scenario. The bamesttrate scenario assumes interest rates at Dec&h, 2012. Various estimates regar
prepayment assumptions are made at each leveleoShack. Actual results could differ significanftpm these estimates. At December 31, 2012, we wéhin the guidelines establist
by the Board of Directors for each interest ratele

Projected Percentage Change Net Portfolio

Change in Interest Rate Net Interest Incom Net Portfolio Value Value Ratic
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

-200 basis point -2.14% -1.24% 12.3% 36.5:% 14.81% 15.7%%
-100 basis point -0.31 -1.22 7.42 18.2¢ 14.3¢ 13.97
Base interest rai — — — — 13.71 12.22
+100 basis point -2.9C -3.2¢ -11.52 -15.07 12.5¢ 10.7¢
+200 basis point -6.1¢ -6.42 -22.4¢ -28.7¢ 11.3¢ 9.34

Ana lysis of Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the difference batwecome on interest-earning assets and expensgeayastbearing liabilities. Net interest income dependsrughe relativ
amount of interest-earning assets and interesirigpbabilities and the interest rate earned odpai them.

The following table sets forth certain informatioelating to our Consolidated Statements of Findn€iandition and Consolidated Statements of Incometlie years end
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and reflectawheage yield on assets and average cost of tiabifior the periods indicated. Such yields andscase derived by dividing income
expense by the average balance of assets or tiiediliespectively, for the periods shown. Averbgkances are derived from average daily balandes.ylelds include amortization of fe
that are considered adjustments to yields.
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For the year ended December

2012 2011 2010
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost
(Dollars in thousands
Interest-earning assets
Mortgage loans, n¢1)(2) $ 2,893,27. $ 167,92 58% $ 2,929.,64 $ 176,77 6.03%% $ 2,956,51. $ 182,08t 6.1€%
Other loans, net (1)(2) 293,73 13,56¢ 4.62 290,97 14,67 5.0¢ 281,97 15,38: 5.4€
Total loans, net 3,187,00: 181,48t 5.6¢ 3,220,61 191,45: 5.9/ 3,238,49. 197,46¢ 6.1C
Mortgage-backecsecurities 700,94! 26,76¢ 3.82 749,34° 30,99¢ 4,14 673,00( 30,24¢ 4.4¢
Other securities 197,77 5,39¢ 2.7 58,43 1,93¢ 3.31 54,06¢ 1,81¢ 3.3€
Total securities 898,72( 32,16: 3.5¢ 807,77¢ 32,93: 4.0¢ 727,06¢ 32,06t 4.41
Interest-earning deposits and
federal funds sold 41,32: 67 0.1€ 62,042 112 0.1¢ 51,95: 9 0.1¢
Total interest-earning assets 4,127,041 213,71 5.1¢ 4,090,43 224,49 5.4¢ 4,017,51. 229,62 5.72
Other assets 243,73} 220,93: 217,03¢
Total assets $ 4,370,78: $ 4,311,36: $ 4,234,55!
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Savings account $ 317,09 68¢ 0.2z $ 369,20t 2,091 057 $ 413,65 3,33¢ 0.81
NOW accountt 1,025,111 6,27¢ 0.61 838,64 6,61( 0.7¢ 683,39( 7,511 1.1C
Money market accoun 175,81 39¢ 0.2¢ 278,69: 1,30¢ 0.47 394,53t 3,71 0.94
Certificate of deposit account _ 1,443,19! 32,98 2.2¢ 1,552,02 38,37: 2.47 1,348,43! 39,04¢ 2.9C
Total due to depositol 2,961,22. 40,34¢ 1.3¢ 3,038,56! 48,38 1.5¢ 2,840,02: 53,60: 1.8¢
Mortgagors' escrow accounts 41,97 36 0.0¢ 39,43( 49 0.12 38,24t 53 0.14
Total interest-bearing
deposits 3,003,191 40,38: 1.3¢ 3,077,991 48,43: 1.57 2,878,26 53,65¢ 1.8¢€
Borrowings 767,63t 22,89: 2.9¢ 693,40¢ 28,29: 4.0¢ 864,17: 38,11: 4.41
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 3,770,83 63,27¢ 1.6¢ 3,771,40 76,72¢ 2.03 3,742,441 91,767 2.4t
Non interes-bearing demand
deposits 134,16t 107,27¢ 88,23¢
Other liabilities 36,30¢ 29,35¢ 27,58:
Total liabilities 3,941,30! 3,908,03: 3,858,25!
Equity 429,47. 403,33( 376,29:
Total liabilities and equity  $ 4,370,78: $ 4,311,36! $ 4,234,550
Net interest incomenet interest
rate spread (3) $ 150,43 3.5(% $ 147,77 3.46% $ 137,86 3.21%
Net interes-earning assets / net
interest margin (4) $ 356,21 3.65% $ 319,03 3.61% $ 27507 3.4%%
Ratio of interest-earning assets tc
interest-bearing liabilities 1.06X 1.06X 1.07X
1) Average balances include r-accrual loans
2) Loan interest income includes loan fee income (wiicludes net amortization of deferred fees ansts;date charges, and prepayment penalties) ofa¢mately $3.2 millior
$1.3 million and $1.2 million for the years endeeld@mber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respecti
3) Interest rate spread represents the difference detwthe average rate on inter-earning assets and the average cost of int-bearing liabilities.
4) Net interest margin represents net interest incbetfere the provision for loan losses divided byrage interes-earning assets

69




Rate /Volume Analysis

The following table presents the impact of charigasterest rates and in the volume of interestiegy assets and interest-bearing liabilities onGloenpanys interest income ai
interest expense during the periods indicated rin&dion is provided in each category with respedtl) changes attributable to changes in volumar(gks in volume multiplied by the pr
rate), (2) changes attributable to changes in(atanges in rate multiplied by the prior volume}l 48) the net change. The changes attributableea@ombined impact of volume and |
have been allocated proportionately to the chadgedo volume and the changes due to rate.

Increase (Decrease) in Net Interest Incc

Year Ended December 31, 2C Year Ended December 31, 2C
Compared tc Compared tc
Year Ended December 31, 2C Year Ended December 31, 2C
Due to Due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

(Dollars in thousands
Interest-Earning Assets:

Mortgage loans, n¢ $ 2,17 $ (6,689 $ (8,857) $ (1,599 $ 3,71) $ (5,309
Other loans, ne 13€ (1,247 (1,11 487 (1,199 (706)
Mortgage-backed securitie (2,927 (2,306 (4,237 3,23¢ (2,48¢) 758
Other securitie 3,851 (395) 3,462 14z (28) 114
Interest-earning deposits and federal funds sold (34) (11) (45) 18 = 18
Total interest-earning assets (143 (10,647 (10,789 2,28¢ (7,41¢) (5,130
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Deposits:
Savings accoun (262) (1,140 (1,402 (33)) (912) (1,249
NOW account 1,32¢ (1,667) (339) 1,48¢ (2,390 (907)
Money market accoun (382) (528) (910 (890) (1,519 (2,409
Certificate of deposit accour (2,647 (2,747 (5,389 5,511 (6,189 (672)
Mortgagors' escrow accour 2 (15) (13) 2 (6) (4)
Borrowings 2,801 (8,200 (5,399 (7,129 (2,697) (9,820
Total interest-bearing liabilities 842 (14,29) (13,449 (1,347 (13,709 (15,049
Net change in net interest incol $ (986) $ 365( $ 266/ $ 363 $ 6,28, $ 9,914

Com parison of Operating Results for the Years End& December 31, 2012 and 2011

General. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2042$34.3 million, a decrease of $1.0 million, @92, as compared to $35.3 million for the year enbecember 3
2011. Diluted earnings per common share were Hbrihe year ended December 31, 2012, a decrea&@ @2, or 1.7%, from $1.15 in the year ended Déear1, 2011.

Return on average equity was 7.99% for the yeae@mkecember 31, 2012 compared to 8.76% for the greéded December 31, 2011. Return on average agast8.79% for tr
year ended December 31, 2012 compared to 0.82%dorear ended December 31, 2C

Interest Income Interest income decreased $10.8 million, or %8t $213.7 million for the year ended DecemberZl2 from $224.5 million for the year ended Debem31
2011. The decrease in interest income was primdtgy/to a 31 basis point reduction in the yielthtdrestearning assets to 5.18% for the year ended Decedih@012 from 5.49% for tl
year ended December 31, 2011, partially offset I$8@6 million increase in the average balancentgrés-earning assets to $4,127.0 million for the yeareenDecember 31, 2012 frc
$4,090.4 million for the year ended December 31,120 he 31 basis point decline in the yield of iegtearning assets was primarily due to a 25 basig peduction in the yield of the lo
portfolio to 5.69% for the twelve months ended DOmber 31, 2012 from 5.94% for the twelve months eéndecember 31, 2011, combined with a 50 basis mi@Eoline in the yield on tot
securities to 3.58% for the twelve months endedebdier 31, 2012 from 4.08% for the comparable pré@r period. In addition, the yield of inter&strning assets was negatively impa
by a $33.6 million decrease in the average balaftiee higher yielding loan portfolio for the twelvmonths ended December 31, 2012 and a $90.9 mificyease in the average balance
the lower yielding securities portfolio for the twe months ended December 31, 2012. These fadtatseduced the yield were partially offset by & $2million decrease in the aver:
balance of lower yielding interestairning deposits to $41.3 million for the twelventis ended December 31, 2012 from $62.0 millionttier comparable prior year period. The 25 t
point decrease in the loan portfolio was primadle to the current interest rate environment, asloans are added at rates well below the portialierage yield, and higher yielding lo
are prepaid. In addition, we experienced a sigaifly higher than average activity in loans reficiag during 2012. The 50 basis point decreashérsecurities portfolio was primarily ¢
to the purchase of new securities at lower yieldmntthe existing portfolio. The yield on the moggdoan portfolio decreased 23 basis points to%.86r the twelve months end
December 31, 2012 from 6.03% for the twelve mometided December 31, 2011. The yield on the mortgmgeportfolio, excluding prepayment penalty in@rdecreased 29 basis po
to 5.66% for the twelve months ended December 812 2rom 5.95% for the twelve months ended DecerBlkef011.
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Interest Expense.Interest expense decreased $13.4 million, or 17,58%63.3 million for the year ended December211,2 from $76.7 million for the year ended Decentike
2011. The decrease in the cost of interest-bediabdities is primarily attributable to a 35 bagisint reduction in the cost of interdstaring liabilities to 1.68% for the year ended &abe
31, 2012 from 2.03% for the year ended DecembeB1], combined with a $0.6 million decrease inaherage balance of interdstaring liabilities to $3,770.8 million for the yeander
December 31, 2012 from $3,771.4 million for theryeaded December 31, 2011. The 35 basis point dseria the cost of interesearing liabilities is primarily attributable toetBant
reducing the rates it pays on its deposit prodddis. cost of certificates of deposit, money magasounts, savings accounts and NOW accounts decrd&sbasis points, 24 basis points
basis points and 18 basis points, respectively tfertwelve months ended December 31, 2012 fronctimparable prior year period. This resulted idearease in the cost of due
depositors of 23 basis points to 1.36% for the wv@ehonths ended December 31, 2012 from 1.59% fotwielve months ended December 31, 2011. The ¢dsiroowed funds decreas
110 basis points to 2.98% for the twelve monthsedridecember 31, 2012 from 4.08% for the twelve m®rended December 31, 2011 with the average balao@asing $74.2 million
$767.6 million for the twelve months ended Decen@fer2012 from $693.4 million for the twelve mon#vsded December 31, 2011.

Net Interest Income.Net interest income for the year ended DecembefB12 totaled $150.4 million, an increase of $2illion, or 1.80%, from $147.8 million for 2011. &
increase in net interest income is attributed tdremease in the average balance of inteeesiting assets of $36.6 million, to $4,127.1 milliwr the year ended December 31, 2
combined with an increase in the net interest shoddour basis points to 3.50% for the year enBedember 31, 2012. The yield on intereatning assets decreased 31 basis poi
5.18% for the year ended December 31, 2012 frora%.fbr the year ended December 31, 2011. Howekhizr wtas more than offset by a decline in the cbstinds of 35 basis points
1.68% for the year ended December 31, 2012 fror®92.fbr the prior year. The net interest margin iayed four basis points to 3.65% for the year eridedember 31, 2012 from 3.6:
for the year ended December 31, 2011. Excludinggynment penalty income, the net interest marginldvbave been 3.53% and 3.55% for the years endeérblger 31, 2012 and 20
respectively.

Provision for Loan Losses A provision for loan losses of $21.0 million waeorded for the year ended December 31, 2012 amdto $21.5 million recorded in the year er
December 31, 2011. During the twelve months endecebber 31, 2012, nqrerforming loans decreased $32.7 million to $84illian from $117.4 million at December 31, 2011.t
charge-offs for the twelve months ended December2812 totaled $20.2 million. The current loan &lue ratio for our nomperforming loans collateralized by real estate %86% a
December 31, 2012. When we have obtained propehiesgh foreclosure, we have been able to quisklythe properties at amounts that approximate lvadue. We anticipate that '
will continue to see low loss content in our loantfolio. The Bank continues to maintain consematinderwriting standards. However, given the I@felonperforming loans, the curre
economic uncertainties, and the chaoffis-recorded in 2012, management, as a resulteofegular quarterly analysis of the allowanceldans losses, deemed it necessary to record a
million provision for possible loan losses for tiaelve months ended December 31, 2012.

Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income for the twelve months ended Decer@hbe2012 was $9.1 million, a decrease of $1.Zianilfrom $10.3 million for the twelve mont
ended December 31, 2011. The decrease irimterest income was primarily due to a $1.9 millaecrease in net gains recorded from fair valuesajents, partially offset by a decreas
$0.8 million in other-than-temporary impairment D") charges recorded during the twelve monthseehBecember 31, 2012 compared to the twelve mamttisd December 31, 2011.

Non-Interest ExpenseNon-interest expense was $82.3 million for the twelvenths ended December 31, 2012, an increase ofrilién, or 5.9%, from $77.7 million for tt
twelve months ended December 31, 2011. The incre@aseprimarily due to the growth of the Bank ovee past year, which included the opening of a neam¢h in January 2012,
increase in stock based compensation expense, raimtrease in other real estate owned/foreclosyperese. Salaries and benefits increased $4.2 mifto the twelve months end
December 31, 2012 compared to the twelve monthedemecember 31, 2011 due to a new branch, emplsgkey increases as of January 1, 2012, and ireseiasstock basi
compensation, payroll taxes, and employee mediudiratirement costs, while professional services data processing decreased $0.6 million and $@liém) respectively. In additiol
other real estate owned/foreclosure expense aredt ofierating expense for the twelve months endembidber 31, 2012 increased $0.5 million and $1.0anjl respectively, compared
the twelve months ended December 31, 2011. Theigifty ratio was 50.7% for the twelve months endedember 31, 2012 compared to 49.2% for the twelwaths ended December
2011.
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Income Tax Provisions.Income tax expense for the year ended Decemhe¥@P decreased $1.6 million to $21.8 million, pamed to $23.5 million for the year ended Decer
31, 2011. The decrease was primarily attributetthéodecrease of $2.6 million in income before inedaxes.

The effective tax rate was 38.9% and 39.9% forytre's ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respgctivel
C omp arison of Operating Results for the Years Ened December 31, 2011 and 2010

General. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2@ $35.3 million, an increase of $3.5 million,8088%, as compared to $38.8 million for the yeateehDecember 3
2010. Diluted earnings per common share were $brithe year ended December 31, 2011, a decreah@ I8, or 10.16%, from $1.28 in the year endedebexer 31, 2010. The year en
December 31, 2010 included a net tax benefit o $aillion, or $0.18 per diluted common share, dua tegislative change in the New York State arty 8ad debt deduction. Excludi
this net tax benefit recorded in 2010, net income diluted earnings per common shares would havreased $2.0 million and $0.05, respectively.

Return on average equity was 8.76% for the yeae@mbcember 31, 2011 compared to 10.32% for thegmded December 31, 2010. Return on average agast8.82% for tt
year ended December 31, 2011 compared to 0.92%édorear ended December 31, 2C

Interest Income Interest income decreased $5.1 million, or 2.28%6224.5 million for the year ended DecemberZ1,1 from $229.6 million for the year ended Decem®l
2010. The decrease in interest income was primdti/to a 23 basis point reduction in the yielthtdrestearning assets to 5.49% for the year ended Decedih@011 from 5.72% for tl
year ended December 31, 2010, partially offset 9729 million increase in the average balancentgrés-earning assets to $4,090.4 million for the yeareenDecember 31, 2011 frc
$4,017.5 million for the year ended December 31,020 he 23 basis point decline in the yield of iegtearning assets was primarily due to a 16 basig peduction in the yield of the lo
portfolio to 5.94% for the twelve months ended Dmber 31, 2011 from 6.10% for the twelve months endecember 31, 2010, combined with a 33 basis mignline in the yield on tot
securities to 4.08% for the twelve months endedebdier 31, 2011 from 4.41% for the comparable préar period. In addition, the yield of interestrning assets was negatively impa
by a $90.8 million increase in the combined avetagances of the lower yielding securities porfaind interesearning deposits for the twelve months ended Deee®b, 2011, both
which had a lower yield than the yield of totalergstearning assets. The 16 basis point decrease ito@neportfolio was primarily due to the declinetire rates earned on new I
originations. The 33 basis point decrease in tioergtéges portfolio was primarily due to the purchasf new securities at lower yields than the exgstortfolio. The yield on the mortge
loan portfolio decreased 13 basis points to 6.08#4He twelve months ended December 31, 2011 frdr@% for the twelve months ended December 31, 20He yield on the mortga
loan portfolio, excluding prepayment penalty incomiecreased 15 basis points to 5.95% for the twaleeths ended December 31, 2011 from 6.10% fotvtieére months ended Decem
31, 2010.

Interest Expense.Interest expense decreased $15.0 million, or 16,38%76.7 million for the year ended DecemberZ1,1 from $91.8 million for the year ended Decentie
2010. The decrease in the cost of interest-bediadgities was primarily attributable to a 42 bagoint reduction in the cost of interdsaring liabilities to 2.03% for the year en
December 31, 2011 from 2.45% for the year endece®eer 31, 2010, partially offset by a $29.0 milliaorease in the average balance of intebesiring liabilities to $3,771.4 million f
the year ended December 31, 2011 from $3,742.4omilbr the year ended December 31, 2010. The 4B ipoint decrease in the cost of intetesaring liabilities was primarily attributal
to the Bank reducing the rates it paid on its deégmeducts. The cost of certificates of deposignay market accounts, savings accounts and NOWuatxdecreased 43 basis points
basis points, 24 basis points and 31 basis paiggpgectively, for the twelve months ended Decerie2011 from the comparable prior year periodis Fesulted in a decrease in the co:
due to depositors of 30 basis points to 1.59% Herttvelve months ended December 31, 2011 from 1.B8%he twelve months ended December 31, 2010.cHsé of borrowed funt
decreased 33 basis points to 4.08% for the twelwetins ended December 31, 2011 from 4.41% for tledvevmonths ended December 31, 2010 with the aedratance decreasing $17
million to $693.4 million for the twelve months esdiDecember 31, 2011 from $864.2 million for theltve months ended December 31, 2010.
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Net Interest Income.Net interest income for the year ended Decembef@11] totaled $147.8 million, an increase of $9iBion, or 7.19%, from $137.9 million for 2010. &
increase in net interest income was attributedntdnarease in the average balance of intezasting assets of $72.9 million, to $4,090.4 millior the year ended December 31, 2
combined with an increase in the net interest shaéd 9 basis points to 3.46% for the year endeckber 31, 2011. The yield on interearning assets decreased 23 basis points to
for the year ended December 31, 2011 from 5.72%h@year ended December 31, 2010. However, thismare than offset by a decline in the cost of fuofl42 basis points to 2.03%
the year ended December 31, 2011 from 2.45% foptiwe year. The net interest margin improved 18ibaoints to 3.61% for the year ended Decembe@11 from 3.43% for the ye
ended December 31, 2010. Excluding prepayment fyeingabme, the net interest margin would have i&88% and 3.39% for the years ended December 31, &0d 2010, respectively.

Provision for Loan Losses A provision for loan losses of $21.5 million waxorded for the year ended December 31, 2011 a@dito $21.0 million recorded in the year er
December 31, 2010. During the twelve months endedeBber 31, 2011, ngrerforming loans increased $5.3 million to $117 #liom from $112.1 million at December 31, 2010.t
charge-offs for the twelve months ended December2B811 totaled $18.9 million. The current loan &due ratio for our nomperforming loans collateralized by real estate %@9% a
December 31, 2011. When we have obtained propehiesgh foreclosure, we have been able to quisklythe properties at amounts that approximate lvadue. We anticipate that
will continue to see low loss content in our loantfolio. The Bank continues to maintain consemtinderwriting standards. However, given the I®felonperforming loans, the curre
economic uncertainties, and the chaoffis-recorded in 2011, management, as a resulteofegular quarterly analysis of the allowanceldans losses, deemed it necessary to record a
million provision for possible loan losses for tineelve months ended December 31, 2011.

Non-Interest Income.Non-interest income for the twelve months ended DeceBbe2011 was $10.3 million, an increase of $2illian from $8.3 million for the twelve montl
ended December 31, 2010. The increase inintemest income was primarily due to a $1.9 millionrease in net gains recorded from fair valueistdjents, a $0.5 million increase in
gains on the sale of loans and a decrease of $illidmin other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTItharges recorded during the twelve months endeebleer 31, 2011 compared to
twelve months ended December 31, 2010. These sesesere partially offset by a $0.6 million deceeasother income and a $0.6 million decrease widdnds received from the FHLB-
NY during the twelve months ended December 31, 2@ipared to the twelve months ended December(@1.

Non-Interest ExpenseNon-interest expense was $77.7 million for the twelvenths ended December 31, 2011, an increase ofréiflidn, or 10.5%, from $70.4 million for ti
twelve months ended December 31, 2010. The incre@aseprimarily due to the growth of the Bank ovee past year, which included the opening of a neam¢h in January 2011,
increase in stock based compensation expense, raimti@ase in other real estate owned/foreclosyperese. Salaries and benefits increased $3.5 mifbo the twelve months end
December 31, 2011 compared to the twelve monthedemecember 31, 2010 due to a new branch, emplsgkey increases as of January 1, 2011, and ireseiasstock basi
compensation, payroll taxes, and employee medialratirement costs, while professional servicesd @ata processing increased $0.4 million and $0lom respectively. In additiol
other real estate owned/foreclosure expense arat offerating expense for the twelve months endextmber 31, 2011 increased $1.3 million and $1.Tianil respectively, compared
the twelve months ended December 31, 2010. Theigifty ratio was 49.2% for the twelve months endedember 31, 2011 compared to 47.4% for the tweloaths ended December
2010.

Income Tax Provisions.Income tax expense for the year ended Decemhe2031l increased $7.5 million to $23.5 million, qeamed to $15.9 million for the year ended Decer
31, 2010. The year ended December 31, 2010 indladeet tax benefit of $5.5 million, due to a légfise change in the New York State and City babtdkeduction. The remainder of
increase was primarily attributed to the increas®400 million in income before income taxes.

The effective tax rate was 39.9% and 29.1% foryders ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respegctive increase in the effective tax rate was prilpndue to the net incon
tax recapture during 2010 as a result of the letii passed by the New York State legislaturelughiog this recapture, the effective tax rate fog year ended December 31, 2010 w
have been 39.1%.
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Lig uidity, Regulatory Capital and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of funds are deposits, borrgsimprincipal and interest payments on loans, nage§acked and other securities, and proceeds frons sélsecurities ar
loans. Deposit flows and mortgage prepayments, hewere greatly influenced by general interestsaeconomic conditions and competition. At Decaen8de 2012, the Bank had
approved overnight line of credit of $100.0 millisith the FHLB-NY. In total, as of December 31, 20the Bank was able to borrow up to $1,335.4 arilirom the FHLBNY in Federz
Home Loan advances, letters of credit and overniigiets of credit. As of December 31, 2012, the Bduakd $743.0 million in FHLBNY advances. In addition, Flushing Finan
Corporation has junior subordinated debentures aiidce amount of $61.9 million and a carrying amaf $23.9 million (which are included in Borrow&dinds) and the Bank had $1¢
million in repurchase agreements to fund lendind imwestment opportunities. (See Note 9 of NotethéoConsolidated Financial Statements in Item thisf Annual Report.) Managem:
believes its available sources of funds are seifficto fund current operations.

Our most liquid assets are cash and cash equigalehich include cash and due from banks, overnigbtestearning deposits and federal funds sold with ogabmaturities of 9
days or less. The level of these assets is dependeour operating, financing, lending and invegtactivities during any given period. At Decembér 3012, cash and cash equival
totaled $40.4 million, a decrease of $15.3 millicom December 31, 2011 . We also held marketalderities available for sale with a market valu&e#9.6 million at December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2012, we had commitments to exteedit (principally real estate mortgage loans$46.5 million and open lines of credit for borrowéprincipally home equi
loan lines of credit and business lines of creafitp135.8 million. Since generally all of the loeommitments are expected to be drawn upon, théltata commitments approximate fut
cash requirements, whereas the amounts of linesedit may not be indicative of our future cashuiegments. The loan commitments generally expir@drdays, while construction lo
lines of credit mature within 18 months and homeitgdoan lines of credit mature within 10 yearse\Wse the same credit policies in making commitsant conditional obligations as
do for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Our total interest expense and operating expen281@ were $63.3 million and $82.3 million, respesly.

We maintain three postretirement defined beneéibglfor our employees: a noncontributory definegefiepension plan which was frozen as of Septer86e2006, a contributo
medical plan, and a noncontributory life insuraptan. The life insurance plan was amended to dismo® providing life insurance benefits to futuegirees after January 1, 2010 and
medical plan was frozen as of January 1, 2011. M maintain a noncontributory defined benefit plancertain of our nommployee directors, which was frozen as of Jandag004
The employee pension plan is the only plan thahesee funded. During 2012we made contributions to the employee pension ttaling $0.7 million, and incurred cash expemdis o
$0.1 million for the medical and life insurancerdaand $0.1 million for the noemployee director plan. We expect to pay similapants for these plans in 2013. (See Note 12 of H\tx
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of flrisual Report.)

The amounts reported in our financial statemengésadotained from reports prepared by independeniages, and are based on significant assumptions. fiost significar
assumption is the discount rate used to deternfieeatcumulated postretirement benefit obligatiohP@O”) for these plans. The APBO is the present valuerojepted benefits th
employees and retirees have earned to date. Theudisrate is a single rate at which the liab#itigf the plans are discounted into todaylollars and could be effectively settlec
eliminated. The discount rate used is based orCitigroup Pension Liability Index, and reflects a@e that could be earned on bonds over a similaog¢hat we anticipate the plans’
liabilities will be paid. An increase in the discauate would reduce the APBO, while a reductiothia discount rate would increase the APBO. Dutivgpast several years, when inte
rates have been at historically low levels, thealisit rate used for our plans has declined frorB%.%r 2001 to 3.75% for 2012This decline in the discount rate has resulte@hiincreas
in our APBO.

The Companys actuaries use several other assumptions thad tawe a significant impact on our APBO and pedasglipense for these plans. These assumptions edbwud ar
not limited to, expected rate of return on plaregssfuture increases in medical and life insurgereeniums, turnover rates of employees, and lifgeetancy. The accounting standard
postretirement plans involve mechanisms that senlienit the volatility of earnings by allowing chges in the value of plan assets and benefit diigato be amortized over time wt
actual results differ from the assumptions useeketfare changes in the assumptions used, or tregaam amendments. At December 31, 20@@r employee pension plan and medical
life insurance plan have unrecognized losses of8bddllion and $1.2 million, respectively. The nemployee director plan has a $0.4 million unrecpegigain, due to experience diffel
from what had been estimated and changes in aat@ssumptions. The employee pension @amirecognized loss is primarily attributed to teduction in the discount rate over the
several years and the net decline in the marketevaf the pension plan’s investments. The medigdlldie insurance plansinrecognized loss is attributed to the reductiothandiscour
rate over the past several years. In additiomnttnemployee director pension plan has an unrecogriastiservice liability of $0.2 million due to plamendments in prior years and
medical and life insurance plan have a $0.8 milf@st service credit due to plan amendments. Thefter tax effect of the unrecognized gains ars$ds associated with these plans
been recorded in accumulated other comprehensieenia in stockholders’ equity, resulting in a redtutiof stockholders’ equity of $6.8 million as oéBember 31, 2012 .
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The change in the discount rate, the reductionedioal premiums and discontinued life insuranceshinto future retirees are the only significahanges made to the assumpt
used for these plans for each of three years ebdedmber 31, 2012. During the year ended Decenthe2®.1 the actual return on the employee pendamassets was approximately |
of the assumed return used to determine the peretision expense for that year. During the yeade@ December 31, 2012 and 2010 the actual repprogimated the assumed ret
used for each respective year.

The market value of the assets of our employeeiperdan is $17.3 million at December 31, 201&hich is $5.2 million less than the projected éfégnobligation. We do n«
anticipate a change in the market value of thesetasvhich would have a significant effect on Idjtyi, capital resources, or results of operations.

During 2012, funds provided by the Company's ofiregadctivities amounted to $71.1 million. Thesedantogether with $111.6 million provided by finarg activities and $44
million available at the beginning of 2012, weréized to fund net investing activities of $198.0llian. The Company's primary business objectivéhis origination and purchase of multi-
family residential properties, one-to-four familpgluding mixeduse properties) and commercial real estate mortlyeges, and commercial, business and SBA loansnBtine year end¢
December 31, 2012, the net total of loan origimatiand purchases less loan repayments and saleg3®&smillion. During the year ended DecemberZ1,2, the Company also func
$311.7 million in purchases of securities availdblesale. Funds were primarily provided by incesof $134.9 million in customer deposits and $4&dllion in proceeds from maturitie
sales, calls and prepayments of securities avaifablsale. The Company also used funds of $20@lmto purchase additional BOLI and $15.8 mitlidor dividend payments during 1
year ended December 31, 20

At the time of the Savings Barg'conversion from a federally chartered mutual egvibank to a federally chartered stock savingk,bdme Savings Bank was required by its prin
regulator to establish a liquidation account whikheduced as and to the extent that eligible aticbalders reduce their qualifying deposits. Upompletion of the Merger, the liquidati
account was assumed by the Bank. The balance digthidation account at December 31, 2012 was #iilBon. In the unlikely event of a complete liqaition of the Bank, each eligit
account holder will be entitled to receive a disition from the liquidation account. The Bank ig permitted to declare or pay a dividend or to repase any of its capital stock if the ef
would be to cause the Bamsktegulatory capital to be reduced below the ameeopired for the liquidation account but approsfithe NYDFS Superintendent is required if the ltofaall
dividends declared by the Bank in a calendar yearldvexceed the total of its net profits for thaay combined with its retained net profits for fireceding two years less prior divide
paid. On July 21, 2011, as a result of the DodahkrAct, the Bank’s primary regulator became the32#®d Flushing Financial Corporatisrprimary regulator became the Federal Re!
Board of Governors (“Federal ReservePyior to July 21, 2011, unlike the Savings Bankyshing Financial Corporation was not subject taulamry restrictions on the declaratior
payment of dividends to its stockholders, althotighsource of such dividends could depend upomeid payments from the Savings Bank. However, igshkinancial Corporation w
subject, to the requirements of Delaware law, wigeherally limit dividends to an amount equal te &xcess of its net assets (the amount by whieh assets exceed total liabilities) ¢
its stated capital or, if there is no such excasds net profits for the current and/or immediatereceding fiscal year. With the Federal Resdr@eoming Flushing Financial Corporatien’
primary regulator, Flushing Financial Corporaticatame subject to the same regulatory restrictiorthe declaration of dividends as the Savings Bank.

Regulatory Capital Position.Under applicable regulatory capital regulatiadhg, Bank is required to comply with each of threpagate capital adequacy standards: leverage k&
Tier | risk-based capital and total risk-based @dpSuch classifications are used by the OCC dherdank regulatory agencies to determine matérging from each institutios’quarterl
FDIC deposit insurance premium assessments, t@eplsrof applications authorizing institutions tmy their asset size or otherwise expand businetsataes. At December 31, 201#hc
2011 , the Bank exceeded its three regulatory @amtjuirements. (See Note 14 of Notes to ConslilRinancial Statements included in Item 8 of Ansual Report.)

Crit ical Accounting Policies

The Companyg accounting policies are integral to understandhm results of operations and statement of firnoondition. These policies are described in theteN tc
Consolidated Financial Statements. Several of tpetieies require management’s judgment to deteentie value of the Comparsyassets and liabilities. The Company has estao
detailed written policies and control proceduregmsure consistent application of these policié® Tompany has identified four accounting polittest require significant managem
valuation judgment: the allowance for loan loss$ais,value of financial instruments, goodwill impaient and income taxes.
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Allowance for Loan Losse&n allowance for loan losses is provided to abgudibable estimated losses inherent in the loarfgiort Management reviews the adequacy of
allowance for loan losses by reviewing all impaitedns on an individual basis. The remaining pdidfes evaluated based on the Company's histotasa experience, recent trend:
losses, collection policies and collection expeseertrends in the volume of ngerforming loans, changes in the composition arldrae of the gross loan portfolio, and local andaorad!
economic conditions. Judgment is required to detee how many years of historical loss experiemeet@be included when reviewing historical lospenence. A full credit cycle must
used, or loss estimates may be inaccurate. Thigai@n is inherently subjective, as it requiresneates that are susceptible to significant revisias more information becomes available.

Notwithstanding the judgment required in assessiiegcomponents of the allowance for loan losses Qbmpany believes that the allowance for loanel®ss adequate to co
losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The poli@stbeen applied on a consistent basis for all gepoesented in the Consolidated Financial Statesnen

Fair Value of Financial Instrument3he Company carries certain financial assets arahiiial liabilities at fair value in accordancetwibe Financial Accounting Standards Board’
(“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASCTjopic 825“Financial Instruments”and values those financial assets and financiailities in accordance with ASC Topic 82Fair
Value Measurements and DisclosuresASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price thatld be received to sell an asset or paid to fearssliability in an orderly transaction betw:
market participants at the measurement date, edtabla framework for measuring fair value, andaexis disclosures about fair value measurement€ Fgpic 825 permits entities
choose to measure many financial instruments arntdigeother items at fair value. Management setbtie fair value option for certain investment séi®s, primarily mortgagdsacker
securities, and certain borrowings. Changes infairevalue of financial instruments for which thairf value election is made are recorded in the Glateted Statements of Income.
December 31, 2012, financial assets and finaniaibilities with fair values of $54.5 million and $2 million, respectively, are carried at fair valunder the fair value option.

The securities portfolio also consists of mortgageked and other securities for which the fair gadlection was not selected. These securitieslassified as available for sale ¢
are carried at fair value in the Consolidated $tatets of Financial Condition, with changes in fatue recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensicerhe. If any decline in fair val
for these securities is deemed other-ttemporary, the security is written down to a newtdmasis with the resulting loss recorded in thegotidated Statements of Income. During 2
and 2011, we recorded other-than-temporary impaitrolearges of $0.8 million and $1.6 million, respesly, for certain private issue collateralized mgage obligations.

Financial assets and financial liabilities reporédair value are required to be measured baseleofollowing alternatives: (1) quoted prices atiee markets for identical financ
instruments (Level 1), (2) significant other obsdie inputs (Level 2), or (3) significant unobsédaeainputs (Level 3). Judgment is required in siecthe appropriate level to be use
determine fair value. The majority of financial etssand financial liabilities for which the fairlua election was made, and the majority of investimelassified as Available for Sale, w
measured using Level 2 inputs, which require judgnte determine the fair value. The trust prefersedurities held in the investment portfolio, ahd Companys junior subordinate
debentures, were measured using Level 3 inputstalite inactive market for these securities. Thiegpe label collateralized mortgage obligations fanich other-thartemporar
impairment charges were recorded in 2012 and 2@&#& walued using a Level 3 input at December 31220d a Level 2 input at December 31, 2011.

Goodwill ImpairmentGoodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life dadested for impairment, rather than amortizedableast an annual basis. For the purpose ofvgit
impairment testing, management has concluded liea€bmpany has one reporting unit. If the estiméd&dsalue of the reporting unit exceeds its cenmgyamount, there is no impairmen
goodwill. However, if the fair value of the repai unit is less than its carrying amount, furthealeation is required to determine if a write doefrgoodwill is required.

Quoted market prices in active markets are the éesience of fair value and are to be used as ésésfor measurement, when available. Other acioleptaaluation methot
include an asset approach, which determines avédilre based upon the value of assets net of li@silian income approach, which determines fainezaising one or more methods
convert anticipated economic benefits into a presigle amount, and a market approach, which deters a fair value based on the similar businetegshave been sold.
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The Company conducts its annual impairment testingoodwill as of December 31. The impairment tegtas of December 31, 2012 and 2@ld not show an impairment
goodwill based on the fair value of the Company.

Income TaxesThe Company estimates its income taxes payabledb@s¢he amounts it expects to owe to the variausg authorizes (i.e. federal, state and local)estimatin
income taxes, management assesses the relatives med risks of the tax treatment of transacti¢aking into account statutory, judicial and regatgtguidance in the context of
Company’s tax position. Management also reliesa@ropinions, recent audits, and historical expegen

The Company also recognizes deferred tax assetbadildies for the future tax consequences ofaiénces between the financial statement carryinguats of existing assets ¢
liabilities and their respective tax bases. A viaraallowance is required for deferred tax assieas the Company estimates are more likely thantobe unrealizable, based on evide
available at the time the estimate is made. Thsmates can be affected by changes to tax laasitsty tax rates, and future income levels.

Cont ractual Obligations

Payments Due By Peric

More
Less Thar 1-3 3-5 Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(In thousands

Borrowings $ 948,40¢ $ 360,00 $ 343,56( $ 220,92 $ 23,92:
Deposits 3,015,19: 2,172,01: 667,54¢ 144,10( 31,52¢
Loan commitment 182,27¢ 182,27¢ - - -
Capital lease obligatior - - - - -
Operating lease obligatiol 31,99¢ 3,60¢ 6,39¢ 5,60¢ 16,38¢
Purchase obligatior 12,65¢ 4,521 6,087 2,05( -
Pension and other postretirembenefits 14,01« 1,25¢ 2,65¢ 2,66( 7,44(
Deferred compensation plans 10,15¢ 63€ 1,25¢ 1,25¢ 7,01¢
Total $ 421470, $ 2,72431 $ 1,027,49¢ $ 376,59: $ 86,29

We have significant obligations that arise in tloermal course of business. We finance our asselsdeiposits and borrowings. We also use borrowiogadnage our interesdte
risk. We have the means to refinance these borgsvars they mature through financing arrangemerntts te FHLB-NY and our ability to arrange repurchagreements with broker-
dealers and the FHLB-NY. (See Notes 8 and 9 of dtmieConsolidated Financial Statements in Item BisfAnnual Report.)

We focus our balance sheet growth on the originatibmortgage loans. At December 31, 2012, we hadnsitments to extend credit and lines of credi$®82.3 million fo
mortgage and other loans. These loans will be fdrtleough principal and interest payments receiordexisting mortgage loans and mortgégeked securities, growth in custol
deposits, and, when necessary, additional borrasvif®ee Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Finargt@iements in Item 8 of this Annual Report.)

At December 31, 2012, the Bank had seventeen beaneheven of which are leased. The Bank leasésatsh locations primarily when it is not the st@eant. Whether the Ba
will purchase its future branch locations will deden part on the availability of suitable locatsoand the availability of properties. In additiove lease our executive offices. We curre
outsource our data processing, loan servicing dedkc processing functions. We believe that thithes most cost effective method for obtaining thesevices. These arrangements
usually volume dependent and have varying terms. ddntracts for these services usually include ahimereases based on the increase in the conspnicerindex. The amounts sho
above for purchase obligations represent the cuteem and volume of activity of these contract® #kpect to renew these contracts as they expire.

The amounts shown for pension and other postreginerbenefits reflect our employee and direct@mhsion plans, the supplemental retirement benefitsur president, ar
amounts due under our plan for medical and lifeiiasce benefits for retired employees. The amobowas in the “Less Than 1 Yeacolumn represents our current estimate for 1
benefits, some of which are based on informatigepbed by actuaries. The amounts shown in colurefisating periods over one year represent our atiestimate based on the past ygar’
actual disbursements and information supplied hyaat®s. The amounts do not include an increas@dssible future retirees or increases in healdm glosts. The amount shown in
“More Than 5 Years” column represents the amouquired to increase the total amount to the progebenefit obligation of the directorplan and the medical and life insurance be
plans, since these are unfunded plans and the funded portion of the employee pension pla(See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financiale8tants in Item 8 of this Annt
Report.)
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We currently provide a noqualified deferred compensation plan for officetsovihave achieved the level of at least senior piesident (certain officers who had achieved thel
of at least vice president are included in thisiplader previously existing guidelines). In additio the amounts deferred by the officers, we m&@% of their contributions, generally
to a maximum of 5% of the officer’salary. These plans generally require the defdsadance to be credited with earnings at a rateeelaby certain mutual funds. Through Decembe
2011, employees could not receive a distributiomfthese plans until their employment is terminafdte amounts shown in the columns for less thanyfears represent the estimate o
amounts we will contribute to a rabbi trust witlspect to matching contributions under these pland,the amounts to be paid from the rabbi trustvtoexecutives who have retired. -
amount shown in the “More Than 5 Years3lumn represents the current accrued liabilitytf@se plans, adjusted for the activity in the oois for less than five years. This expen:
provided in the Consolidated Statements of Inccané, the liability has been provided in the Consadkd Statements of Financial Condition.

New Authoritative Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-20, Whamends the authoritative accounting guidanceudh8€ Topic 310 “Receivables.The purpose of this update is to pro
financial statement users with greater transparaboyt an entitys allowance for credit losses and the credit qualitits financing receivables. The update requéisslosures that facilita
financial statement users’ evaluation of the foilogv (1) the nature of credit risk inherent in thetity’s portfolio of financing receivables; (2) how thik is analyzed and assesse
arriving at the allowance for credit losses; anytli@ changes and reasons for those changes ailtheance for credit losses. An entity is requitegrovide disclosures on a disaggreg
basis by portfolio segment and class of financigpivables. This update requires the expansiomméntly required disclosures about financing regkeies as well as requiring additio
disclosures about financing receivables. The dssoles as of the end of a reporting period are &ffeéor interim and annual reporting periods eigdan or after December 15, 2010.
disclosures about activity that occurs during aortépg period are effective for interim and annoaporting periods beginning on or after December 2(8.0. See Note 3 of Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements “Loans.”

In January 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011which temporarily delays the effective datehef required disclosures about troubled debt restrings contained in ASU N
2010-20. The delay is intended to allow the FASBlitional time to deliberate what constitutes aulbled debt restructuring. All other amendments aioetd in ASU No. 201@0 ar¢
effective as issued. Adoption of this update ditdrave a material effect on the Company’s const#idlaesults of operations or financial condition.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-02, ghhiamends the authoritative accounting guidanceuA$C Topic 310‘Receivables.” The update provides clarifyil
guidance as to what constitutes a troubled delituetsring. The update provides clarifying guidarae a creditors evaluation of the following: (1) how a restruatgr constitutes
concession and (2) if the debtor is experiencingritial difficulties. The amendments in this updat effective for the first interim or annual pefibeginning on or after June 15, 2011
should be applied retrospectively to the beginmifithe annual period of adoption. In addition, tisares about troubled debt restructurings whichevalayed by the issuance of ASU
2011-01, are effective for interim and annual p#sideginning on or after June 15, 2011. Adoptiothaf update did not have a material effect onQoenpanys consolidated results
operations or financial condition. See Note 3 oté¢ to Consolidated Financial Statements “Loans.”

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-03, ethmends the authoritative accounting guidancemuA&C Topic 860Transfers and Servicing.” The amendments in t
update remove from the assessment of effectiver@ofit) the criterion requiring the transferor tavie the ability to repurchase or redeem the firrassets on substantially the agi
terms, even in the event of default by the tramsfeand (2) the collateral maintenance implememtaigdance related to that criterion. The amendmenthis update are effective for
first interim or annual period beginning on or afileecember 15, 2011 and should be applied prosédgtio transactions or modifications of existimgrtsactions that occur on or after
effective date. Early adoption is not permitted oftion of this update did not have a material éftecthe Company’s consolidated results of openatir financial condition.
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In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, whachends the authoritative accounting guidance uA&& Topic 820'Fair Value Measurement.” The amendments in t
update clarify how to measure and disclose faineainder ASC Topic 820. The amendments in this tepai® effective for the first interim or annuatipd beginning on or after Decem|
15, 2011 and should be applied prospectively tas@ations or modifications of existing transactitimet occur on or after the effective date. Eadgtion is not permitted. Adoption of tl
update did not have a material effect on the Comysaronsolidated results of operations or financ@idition.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, whimends the authoritative accounting guidancerud8€ Topic 220‘Comprehensive Income.”The amendments elimin:
the option to present components of other compgherincome in the statement of stockholdeuity. Instead, the new guidance requires entitiegresent all nonowner change
stockholdersequity either as a single continuous statemenbofprehensive income or as two separate but congeaiatements. The amendments in this updateffaetiee for the firs
interim or annual period beginning on or after Daber 15, 2011 and must be applied retrospectiyly adoption was permitted. Adoption of this uggddid not have a material effect
the Company’s consolidated results of operatiorfinancial condition. See the Consolidated StatemehComprehensive Income.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 20114d8ch amends the authoritative accounting guidamuder ASC Topic 350Intangibles — Goodwill and Other.” The
amendments in the update permit an entity to éissess qualitative factors to determine whettismitore likely than not that the fair value of paoging unit is less than its carrying amc
as a basis for determining whether it is necessarperform the two-step goodwill impairment tessclibed in Topic 350. The more-likely-thawt threshold is defined as havin
likelihood of more than 50 percent. The amendmantkis update are effective for annual and integioodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal ye&eginning after December
2011. Early adoption is permitted, including fonaal and interim goodwill impairment tests perfothees of a date before September 15, 2011, if dty'enfinancial statements for the m
recent annual or interim period have not yet besned. Adoption of this update did not have a nateffect on the Company’s consolidated resultspérations or financial condition.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013v@leich amends the authoritative accounting guidamuer ASC Topic 220 “Comprehensive Incom&lie amendments
not change the current requirements for reportigtgmcome or other comprehensive income in findretetements. However, the amendments require @iy &nprovide information abo
the amounts reclassified out of accumulated otberprehensive income by component. In addition, ritityeis required to present, either on the facehef statement where net incom
presented or in the notes, significant amountsassdied out of accumulated other comprehensivenrecby the respective line items of net incomednly if the amount reclassified
required under generally accepted accounting griesiin the United States of America (“GAARY be reclassified to net income in its entiretythie same reporting period. For ot
amounts that are not required under GAAP to beassdied in their entirety to net income, an eniityequired to crosseference to other disclosures required under GAt#® provid
additional detail about those amounts. The amenthnianthis update are effective prospectively feparting periods beginning after December 15, 2@&ly adoption is permitte
Adoption of this update is not expected to haveasemial effect on the Company’s consolidated resafitoperation or financial condition.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

This information is contained in the section capéid “Interest Rate Riskdn page 68 and in Notes 15 and 16 of the Notesotzs@idated Financial Statements in Item 8 of
Annual Report.
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Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

ELUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

December 31,

December 31,

2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d:
Assets
Cash and due from ban $ 40,42  $ 55,72:
Securities available for sale, at fair val
Mortgage-backed securities (including assets plead&$679,285 and $595,631 at December 31, 2012@hd, respectively;
$24,911 an$37,787 at fair value pursuant to the fair valugéaspatDecember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectiv 720,11: 747,28¢
Other securities ($29,577 and $30,942 at fair valusuant to the fair value option at December2B12 and 2011,
respectively’ 229,45! 65,24:
Loans held for sal 5,31: -
Loans, net of fees and co: 3,234,12 3,228,88
Less: Allowance for loan losses (31,109 (30,349
Net loans 3,203,01 3,198,53
Interest and dividends receival 17,917 17,96¢
Bank premises and equipment, 22,50( 24,417
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stc 42,337 30,24t
Bank owned life insuranc 106,24 83,45
Goodwill 16,127 16,127
Core deposit intangible, n 46€ 937
Other assets 47 ,50: 48,01¢
Total assets $ 4,451,411 $ 4,287,94!
Liabilities
Due to depositors
Non-interest bearin $ 155,78¢ $ 118,50°
Interes-bearing 2,826,84. 2,997,95;
Mortgagors' escrow depos 32,56( 29,78¢
Borrowed funds ($23,922 and $26,311 at fair valuespant to thfair value option at December 31, 2012 and 201dpeetively) 763,10! 499,83¢
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 185,30( 185,30(
Other liabilities 45,45 39,65¢
Total liabilities 4,009,05. 3,871,03:
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stock ($0.01 par value; 5,000,000 sheu#sorized; none issue - -
Common stock ($0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shartwazed; 31,530,595 shares issued at Decemb&03P?, and 2011;

30,743,329 and 30,904,177 sheoutstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respdot 31E 31E
Additional paic-in capital 198,31 195,62¢
Treasury stock, at average cost (787,266 share6261d18 at December 31, 2Cand 2011, respectivel (10,257 (7,35%)
Retained earning 241,85t 223,51(
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net ofstaxe 12,135 4,81:%

Total stockholders' equity 442,36! 416,91:
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 4,451,411 $ 4,287,94!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income

Interest and dividend income
Interest and fees on loa
Interest and dividends on securiti
Interest
Dividends
Other interest income
Total interest and dividend income

Interest expense
Deposits
Other interest expense
Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Non-interest income
Otherthar-temporary impairment ("OTTI") char¢
Less: Nok-credit portion of OTTI charge recorded
Other Comprehensive Income, before taxes
Net OTTI charge recognized in earnir
Loan fee incomt
Banking services fee incon
Net (loss) gain on sale of loans held for ¢
Net gain on sale of loat
Net (loss) gain on sale of securit
Net gain from fair value adjustmer
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock divide
Bank owned life insuranc
Other income
Total non-interest income

Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy and equipme
Professional service
FDIC deposit insuranc
Data processin
Depreciation and amortization of premises and aqeigt
Other real estate owned / foreclosure expt
Other operating expenses
Total non-interest expense

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Federa
State and local
Total provision for income taxes
Net income

Basic earnings per common sh
Diluted earnings per common shi

For the years ended December

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share de

181,48t $ 191,45 $ 197,46¢
31,30¢ 32,12: 31,25:
85E 811 813

67 112 94
213,71« 224,49¢ 229,62¢
40,38: 48,43: 53,65¢
22,89: 28,29: 38,11:
63,27¢ 76,72: 91,767
150,43¢ 147,77 137,86
21,00( 21,50( 21,00(
129,43¢ 126,27¢ 116,86:
(3,139 (9,365) (7,130
2,36 7,781 5,08t
(776) (1,57¢) (2,045)
2,304 1,941 1,69¢
1,702 1,69¢ 1,745
9 34z -

31 16€ 17

47 - (10

55 1,96( 47
1,507 1,502 2,102
2,79( 2,76¢ 2,63¢
1,418 1,475 2,10¢
9,06t 10,28: 8,30(
42,50 38,26: 34,78t
7,807 7,80z 7,24¢
6,10¢ 6,697 6,344
4,18¢ 4,37¢ 4,88¢
4,101 4,45¢ 3,99¢
3,207 3,18t 2,79¢
2,964 2,471 1,194
11,45( 10,48t 9,13¢
82,32¢ 77,73¢ 70,38t
56,17¢ 58,811 54,77¢
16,74( 17,74¢ 19,34:
5,107 5,72( (3,402
21,847 23,46¢ 15,94:
3433, % 3534t $ 38,83t
112 $ 118 $ 1.2¢
11 $ 115 $ 1.2¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December

2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in thousands

Comprehensive Income
Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of

$ 3433, $ 3534¢ $ 38,83t

Unrecognized actuarial loss 479 (2,505 (715)
Amortization of actuarial loss¢ 587 311 17¢
Amortization of prior service crec (26) (25) (25)
OTTI charges included in incon 437 88¢€ 1,14¢
Reclassification adjustment for losses (gains)uidetl in income¢ (26) - 6

6,831 9,89( 2,24¢

Unrealized gains on securities

Comprehensive income $ 4165 $ 43,90¢ $ 41,67(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity

Common Stock

Balance, beginning of ye.

Shares issued upon the exercise of stock optids bl and 37,054 common shares for the years débeleeimber 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively

Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawveirds (119,600 and 87,821 common shares foredhesyended December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively)

Balance, end of year

Additional Paid-In Capital

Balance, beginning of ye.

Award of common shares released from Employee Behefst (157,922, 144,312 and 134,124 commoneshtar the years ende
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respecti\

Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawvetrds (113,272, 127,653 and 103,109 common siar¢he years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respecti\

Options exercised (125,405 155,061 and 74,340 canshares for the years ended December 31, 2012,£©1 2010,
respectively’

Stoclk-based compensation activity, 1

Stock-based income tax (provision) benefit

Balance, end of year

Treasury Stock

Balance, beginning of ye.

Purchases of common shares outstanding (352,00022h888 common shares for the years ended Decedb2012 and 2011,
respectively,

Issuance upon exercise of stock options (150,22248 and 37,266 common shares for the years ebeeeimber 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectivel

Repurchase of shares to satisfy tax obligationsL¢) 29,838 and 26,443 common shares for the yealsd December 31, 2012
2011 and 2010, respective

Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawvetrds (146,149, 8,053 and 18,583 common shar¢sefyears ended Decemb
31,2012, 2011 and 2010, respective

Purchase of common shares to fund options exer(&e@74, 3,794 and 26,011 common shares for thesyended December 31,
2012 2011 and 2010, respectively)

Balance, end of year

For the years ended December

2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d:

$ 31E % g 9 311
- 1 1

- 1 1

31¢ 31E 313
195,62¢ 189,34¢ 185,84:
1,48( 1,541 1,167
317 1,66¢ 1,39¢

164 1,82t 44¢

1,02¢ 954 487
(309) 292 12
198,31« 195,62¢ 189,34¢
(7,35%) - (36)
(5,019 (7,316 )
1,81¢ 32€ 51¢
(532) (406) (347)
1,737 95 23¢
(906) (54 (370
(10,25 (7,359 -

Continuet

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity (continued)

For the years ended December

2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d:

Unearned Compensation
Balance, beginning of ye. $ - % - % (575)
Release of shares from Employee Benefit Trust ZBBcommon shares for the year ended Decembe030) 2 - - 57¢
Balance, end of year o o o
Retained Earnings
Balance, beginning of ye. 223,51( 204,12¢ 181,18:
Net income 34,33: 35,34¢ 38,83t
Stock options exercised (24,820, 23,129 and 74¢82@mon shares for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2010,

respectively’ (63) (50) (92)
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawvetrds (32,877, 7,85hd 3,295 common shares for the years ended Dec&t)

2012, 201Jand 2010, respectivel: (105) (6) 8)
Cash dividends declared and paid on common sh@@&$2 per share for each of the years ended Desedih 2012, 2011 and

2010, respectively) (15,817 (15,910 (15,789
Balance, end of year 241,85t 223,51( 204,12¢
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Netf Taxes
Balance, beginning of ye. $ 481: $ (3,749 $ (6,579
Amortization of prior service credits, net of taxa@s$20 for each cthe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 284k ctively (26) (25) (25)
Amortization of net actuarial losses, net of tagb§$456), ($243)and ($14®)r the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and@,

respectively 587 311 17t
Unrecognized actuarial losses, net of taxes $38@3% and $513 fcyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 ciesgg 479 (2,505 (715)
Change in net unrealized gains on securities dMaifar sale, net of taxes of approximately ($5)2%%7,706) and ($1,810) for the

years endeDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respect 6,831 9,89( 2,24¢
Reclassification adjustment for losses includedeéhincome, net of taxes of approximately ($31&692)and ($904) for the year:

ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respactivel 411 88¢€ 1,151
Balance, end of year 12,137 4,81:% (3,749
Total Stockholders' Equity $ 442,361 $ 41691: $ 390,04!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigealby operating activities
Provision for loan losse
Depreciation and amortization of premises and egaeitt
Origination of loans held for sa
Proceeds from sale of loans held for ¢
Net gain on sales of loans held for <
Net gain on sales of loans (including delinqueanks)
Net (gain) loss on sales of securit
Othe-thar-temporary impairment charge on securi
Amortization of premium, net of accretion of disob
Fair value adjustment for financial assets andnfinel liabilities
Income from bank owned life insuran
Stock based compensation expe
Deferred compensatic
Amortization of core deposit intangibl
Excess tax provision (benefits) from st-based payment arrangeme
Deferred income tax provision (bene’
Net decrease in prepaid FDIC assessr
Increase in other ass¢
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities

Purchases of premises and equipn
Net (purchases) redemption of Federal Home Loark-NY shares
Purchases of securities available for ¢
Proceeds from sales and calls of securities aveifab sale
Proceeds from maturities and prepaymenisecurities available for sa
Net originations and repayments of loi
Purchases of loar
Proceeds from sale of delinquent lo:
Purchase of bank owned life insurai
Proceeds from sale of Real Estate Owned
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

For the years ended December

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
34,33: 3534¢  $ 38,83t
21,00( 21,50( 21,00(
3,207 3,18¢ 2,79¢
- (3,86%) -
- 4,20¢ -
9 (349 -
(31 (16¢) 17)
(47) - 10
77€ 1,57¢ 2,04t
6,642 5,872 5,21z
(55) (1,960 (47)
(2,790 (2,769) (2,63¢)
3,26( 2,68¢ 2,24¢
(86) 51z 244
46¢ 46¢ 46¢
302 (292 12
(804) 68t (8,04))
3,88¢ 4,06¢ 4,57
(3,695 (1,63¢) (4,402)
4,71¢ (4,355 4,913
71,097 64,72( 67,181
(1,290 (4,561 (3,006)
(12,097 1,361 14,36:
(311,659 (157,74) (397,909
12,637 8,00( 91,78¢
170,79t 154,60( 188,70(
(78,379 12,77 (67,04
(3,45¢6) (19,059 (14,67
44,22 27,817 8,84¢
(20,000 (4,55€) (4,260
1,22t 4,05z 2,28:¢
(197,989 22,69¢ (180,919
Continue

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows(continued)

Financing Activities

Net increase in ncinterest bearing deposi
Net (decrease) increase in interest bearing dey
Net increase in mortgagors' escrow depc
Net proceeds (repayments) from s-term borrowed fund
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings
Repayment of lor-term borrowings
Purchases of treasury stc
Excess tax benefits (provision) from st-based payment arrangeme
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exxof stock option:
Cash dividends paid
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosurt
Interest paic
Income taxes pai

Taxes paid if excess tax benefits on s-based compensatiwere not tax deductibl

Non-cash activities
Loans transferred to Other Real Estate Ow
Loans provided for the sale of Other Real Estate€
Loans held for investment transferred to loans feidale
Loans held for sale transferred to loans heldrfeestmen

For the years ended December

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands

37,28: $ 22,30¢ $ 4,82
(172,19)) (70,337) 491,03!
2,774 2,471 524
132,00( - (127,001)
212,51¢ 245,44° 50,47(
(80,000 (258,071 (271,09))
(5,559 (7,729 (347)
(309) 29z 12
88t 2,04( 45¢
(15,81) (15,910 (15,789
111,59! (79,48)) 133,09!
(15,29¢) 7,932 19,36:
55,72 47,78¢ 28,42¢
40,428  $ 5572 $ 47,78¢
62,36¢ $ 7591 % 91,94!
21,947 22,917 26,77(
21,64« 23,20¢ 26,78:
6,127 7,28¢ 4,81
2,11¢( 1,65t 3,031
12,20( - -
40C - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements .
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar@l 201

1. Nature of Operations

Flushing Financial Corporation (the “Holding Comp3dn a Delaware business corporation, is a banldingl company. On February 28, 2013 the Holding Camyfs wholly owne!
subsidiary Flushing Savings Bank, FSB (the “SaviBgsk) merged with and into Flushing Commercial Béthe “Merger”). Flushing Commercial Bank was the surviving entifytie
Merger, whose name was changed to Flushing Bamk “@lank”). The Holding Company and its direct amdifect whollyowned subsidiaries, including the Bank), Flushingf@rec
Funding Corporation, Flushing Service Corporatamd FSB Properties Inc., are collectively herefemred to as the “Company.”

The Companys principal business is attracting retail depofitsn the general public and investing those depdsigether with funds generated from ongoing opmratand borrowing
primarily in (1) originations and purchases of mtamily residential properties and, to a lesseeak one-to-four family (focusing on mixetse properties, which are properties that co
both residential dwelling units and commercial sihand commercial real estate mortgage loans;ai@touction loans, primarily for residential profpes; (3) Small Business Administrat
(“SBA”) loans and other small business loans; ri@yrtgage loan surrogates such as mortgage-backedtsss; and (5) U.S. government securities, caafmfixedincome securities al
other marketable securities. The Bank also origimaertain other consumer loans including overdiregs of credit. The Bank primarily conducts itssiness through seventeen fsdirvice
banking offices, nine of which are located in Que&wounty, two in Nassau County, five in Kings Cqu¢®rooklyn), and one in New York County (ManhaftaNew York. The Bank als
operates “iGObanking.cof”, an internet branch, offering checking, savingd aertificates of deposit accounts.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Conypiatiow generally accepted accounting principleshie United States of America (“GAAP&nd general practices within the bani
industry. The policies which materially affect tthetermination of the Company’s financial positiogsults of operations and cash flows are summabeéziv.

Principles of Consolidation:

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieictade the accounts of the Holding Company anddHewing direct and indirect whollpwned subsidiaries of the Holding Comps
the Bank,, Flushing Preferred Funding Corporati#PFC"), Flushing Service Corporation (“FSC”), aR8B Properties Inc. (“Properties§PFC is a real estate investment trust form:
hold a portion of the Bang&'mortgage loans to facilitate access to capitakets. FSC was formed to market insurance prodaratismutual funds. Properties is currently usedold hitle tc
real estate owned that is obtained via foreclosiédeintercompany transactions and accounts amieated in consolidation. The Holding Company euntty has three unconsolida
subsidiaries in the form of wholly-owned statutdmysiness trusts, which were formed to issue guesantapital debentures (“capital securities”). fdesee Note 9Borrowed Funds ar
Securities Sold Under Agreements to RepurchaseAdditional information regarding these trusts.

Certain reclassifications have been made to pear mmounts to conform to the current year pretienta

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimateb assumptions that affect the reported amountsséts and liabilities, a
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements, and repatedunts of revenue and expenses during the reggréinod. Estimates that are particul
susceptible to change in the near term are usedninection with the determination of the allowafmeloan losses, the evaluation of goodwill for immment, the evaluation of the need f
valuation allowance of the Company’s deferred tssets and the evaluation of other-than-temporapaimment (“OTTI”) on securities. The current economic environmentimagased th
degree of uncertainty inherent in these materiaeses. Actual results could differ from thestreates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, the Comptefines cash and due from banks, overnight ister@ning deposits and federal funds sold with odbmaturities of 90 days or less
cash and cash equivalents. At December 31, 201228ad, the Compang’cash and cash equivalents totaled $40.4 millimh $65.7 million, respectively. Included in cashd azasl
equivalents at those dates were $31.3 million at@i4smillion in interestearning deposits in other financial institutionsparily consisting of balances due from the FetlBeserve Bar
of New York and the Federal Home Loan Bank of NewvrkY(“FHLB-NY”). The Bank is required to maintain cash reservesle¢quapercentage of certain deposits. The reseueiremer
totaled $6.5 million and $6.3 million at Decembér 3012 and 2011, respectively.
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Securities Available for Sale:

Securities are classified as available for salennh@nagement intends to hold the securities fandefinite period of time or when the securitiesynte utilized for tactical asset/liabil
purposes and may be sold from time to time to &ffely manage interest rate exposure and resutt@Emayment risk and liquidity needs. Premiums aedadints are amortized or accre
respectively, using the levgleld method. Realized gains and losses on the sdilsecurities are determined using the spedgatification method. Unrealized gains and losséisef thal
unrealized losses considered other-ttkemporary which are recognized in the Consolid&edements of Income) on securities available b are excluded from earnings and reportt
part of accumulated other comprehensive incomepfixes. In estimating other-théemporary impairment losses, management considgthé length of time and the extent to which
fair value has been less than amortized cost,h@)current interest rate environment, (3) the fam@ncondition and neaerm prospects of the issuer, if applicable, andtt{¢ intent an
ability of the Company to retain its investmenttie issuer for a period of time sufficient to allfov any anticipated recovery in fair value. Otlileantemporary impairment losses for d
securities are measured using a discounted casimiladel. Other-thatemporary impairment losses for equity securitiesraeasured using quoted market prices, when &lgjlar, whe
market quotes are not available due to an illignatket, we use an impairment model from a thirdypar quotes from investment brokers.

Goodwill:

Goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life andested annually, or when certain conditionsraeg, for impairment, rather than amortized. If thie value of the reporting unit is gree
than the goodwill amount, no further evaluatiomequired. If the fair value of the reporting urstless than the goodwill amount, further evaluatiauld be required to compare the
value of the reporting unit to the goodwill amoant determine if a write down is required.

In performing our goodwill impairment testing, wave identified a single reporting unit. We consétethe quoted market price of our common stock enelhber 31, 2012 as an ini
indicator of estimating the fair value of our refirog unit. We also considered the markesed control premium in determining the estiméa@dvalue of our reporting unit. Additionally, \
periodically obtain a goodwill impairment analy$ism an independent third party valuation firm. Becember 31, 2012, the independent third partyatan firm utilized multipl
valuation approaches including comparable transasticontrol premium, public market peers, andalisated cash flow analysis. Management reviewsaisgimptions and inputs uses
the third party analysis for reasonableness.

At December 31, 2012, after performing our goodvilpairment testing, we concluded there was no gidbémpairment. At December 31, 2012, the carg/iamount of our goodw
totaled $16.1 million. The identification of additial reporting units, the use of other valuatiochtéques and/or changes to input assumptions usedrianalysis or the analysis of
independent third party valuation firm could resoltnaterial different evaluations of goodwill impaent.

Loans:

Loans are reported at their principal outstandialauice net of any unearned income, chaf§&-deferred loan fees and costs on originataddaand unamortized premiums or discoun
purchased loans. Interest on loans is recognizetl@accrual basis. The accrual of income on limgenerally discontinued when certain factorshsas contractual delinquency of 90 ¢
or more, indicate reasonable doubt as to the tireligctability of such income. Uncollected intdrpgeviously recognized on naecrual loans is reversed from interest incoméetime
the loan is placed on non-accrual status. A accrual loan can be returned to accrual status whetractual delinquency returns to less than 96 dlinquent. Subsequent cash payn
received on nomccrual loans that do not bring the loan to less t80 days delinquent are recorded on a cash I&disequent cash payments can also be applieddiratreduction

principal until all principal is recovered and thewbsequently to interest, if in managemgopinion, it is evident that recovery of all prijpel due is unlikely to occur. Loan fees and ca
loan origination costs are deferred. Net loan aegbn costs and premiums or discounts on loanshpsed are amortized into interest income ovecdmgractual life of the loans using

level-yield method. Prepayment penalties receivetbans which pay in full prior to their schedulaaturity are included in interest income in theipetthey are collected.

Allowance for Loan Losses:

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losgean amount, which, in managemenjidgment, is adequate to absorb probable estiirlasses inherent in the loan portfc
Managemens judgment in determining the adequacy of the alloee is based on evaluations of the collectahilitioans. This evaluation is inherently subjectias,it requires estimal
that are susceptible to significant revisions asarinformation becomes available. In assessingattefjuacy of the Company's allowance for loan lgssemagement considers vari
factors such as, the Company's historical loss rexpee, recent trends in losses, collection padiciad collection experience, trends in the volufeom-performing loans, changes in
composition and volume of the gross loan portfoding local and national economic conditions. Thenfany’s Board of Directors reviews and approvesagament evaluation of tr
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on atepiyabasis.
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The allowance for loan losses is established thiotliarges to earnings in the form of a provisionlé@n losses. Increases and decreases in theaat@mwvother than chargéfs anc
recoveries are included in the provision for loassks. When a loan or a portion of a loan is déteinto be uncollectible, the portion deemed urntible is charged against the allowa
and subsequent recoveries, if any, are creditéuktallowance.

The Company recognizes a loan as non-performingnviine borrower has demonstrated the inability toghthe loan current, or due to other circumstandeigh, in managemerst'opinion
indicate the borrower will be unable to bring tban current within a reasonable time. All loanssified as nomperforming, which includes all loans past due 9¢sdar more, are classifi
as nonaccrual unless there is, in our opinion, compelérglence the borrower will bring the loan curremthe immediate future. Appraisals are obtainedf@nupdated internal evaluatic
are prepared as soon as practical, and beforednebecomes 90 days delinquent. The loan balariceslateral dependent impaired loans are comptoele propertys updated fair valu
The Company considers fair value of collateral deleat loans to be 85% of the appraised or intgrredtimated value of the property. The balance Wwieiceeds fair value is generi
chargedeff. Management reviews the allowance for loarsésson a quarterly basis, and records as a proviseoamount deemed appropriate, after considéengs such as, current y:
charge-offs, charge-off trends, new loan produgttemrent balance by particular loan categoried,dglinquent loans by particular loan categories.

A loan is considered impaired when, based uponeatiinformation, the Company believes it is prokatbiat it will be unable to collect all amounts dbeth principal and interest,
accordance with the original terms of the loan. dimgd loans are measured based on the presentofaiue expected future cash flows discounted etdhns effective interest rate or at
loan’s observable market price or, as a practical expedihe fair value of the collateral if the loancollateral dependent. Interest income on impdivads is recorded on the cash bi
The Company’s management considers all non-actyaas impaired.

The Company reviews each impaired loan on an iddadibasis to determine if either a charge-off ealation allowance needs to be allocated todhea.l The Company does not charge-
off or allocate a valuation allowance to loansyidrich management has concluded the current valtieeofinderlying collateral will allow for recoveof the loan balance either through
sale of the loan or by foreclosure and sale optiogerty.

The Company evaluates the underlying collateralugh a third party appraisal, or when a third pagpraisal is not available, the Company will usdrgernal evaluation. The interi
evaluations are prepared using an income approaehsales approach. The income approach is useéddome producing properties and uses current i@®iess operating expense
determine the net cash flow of the property. Omeertet cash flow is determined, the value of theperty is calculated using an appropriate capdsbn rate for the property. The s¢
approach uses comparable sales prices in the maNde¢n an internal evaluation is used, we plaeatgr reliance on the income approach to valuedhateral.

In preparing internal evaluations of property valudte Company seeks to obtain current data osubject property from various sources, includirig:the borrower; (2) copies of exist
leases; (3) local real estate brokers and appsaié€r public records (such as for real estatestarel water and sewer charges); (5) comparable aakk rental data in the market; (6
inspection of the property and (7) interviews wihants. These internal evaluations primarily fooushe income approach and comparable sales@atdite the property.

As of December 31, 2012, we utilized recent thiedity appraisals of the collateral to measure inmpeirt for $96.0 million, or 74.6%, of collateral @ewlent impaired loans, and u
internal evaluations of the property’s value fo2$million, or 25.4%, of collateral dependent irimpd loans.

The Company may restructure a loan to enable awermrexperiencing financial difficulties to contimaking payments when it is deemed to be in thegamy’s best long-term interest.
This restructure may include reducing the interate or amount of the monthly payment for a spedifieriod of time, after which the interest ratd eepayment terms revert to the original
terms of the loan. We classify these loans as TeaLbebt Restructured (“TDR”).

These restructurings have not included a redudfgrincipal balance. The Company believes thatueguring these loans in this manner will allowtaé borrowers to become and ren
current on their loans. Restructured loans aresified as a TDR when the Savings Bank grants aession to a borrower who is experiencing finanditficulties. All loans classified ¢
TDR are considered impaired, however TDR loans Wwhiave been current for six consecutive monthketiie they are restructured as TDR remain ornuatstatus and are not incluc
as part of non-performing loans. Loans which wesknduent at the time they are restructured as R & placed on non-accrual status and reportedragerforming loans until they ha
made timely payments for six consecutive monthsrisothat are restructured as TDR but are not peitigrin accordance with the restructured termspéaeed on noraccrual status al
reported as non-performing loans.
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The allocation of a portion of the allowance foarolosses for a performing TDR loan is based upenpresent value of the future expected cash fidgsounted at the loas'origina
effective rate, or for a noperforming TDR which is collateral dependent, the ¥alue of the collateral. At December 31, 20t®&re were no commitments to lend additional futa
borrowers whose loans were modified to a TDR. Thelifitation of loans to a TDR did not have a sigraft effect on our operating results, nor dicejuire a significant allocation of t
allowance for loan losses.

Loans Held for Sale:
Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cosstimated fair value. At December 31, 2012nkheld for sale consists of four non-performingtinfamily residential loans totalir
$3.4 million and four non-performing one-to-fourfily — mixed-use properties totaling $1.9 milligrthe Company did not have any loans held for satef &ecember 31, 2011.

Bank Owned Life Insurance:

Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI"Mepresents life insurance on the lives of certampleyees who have provided positive consent allgvwire Bank to be the beneficiary of such polic
BOLI is carried in the consolidated statementsimdricial position at its cash surrender value.dases in the cash value of the policies, as weglr@aseeds received, are recorded in ¢
non-interest income, and are not subject to inctares.

Other Real Estate Owned:

Other real estate owned (“OREQEpnsists of property acquired by foreclosure. Thesgperties are carried at fair value. The fairueals based on appraised value through a ct
appraisal, or at times through an internal reviadditionally adjusted by the estimated costs tbteelproperty. This determination is made onratividual asset basis. If the fair value
property is less than the carrying amount, theedififice is recognized as a valuation allowancehBudecreases to the estimated value will be chadgectly to expense.

Bank Premises and Equipment:

Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost,degreciation accumulated on a straigig- basis over the estimated useful lives of thlated assets (3 to 40 years). Lease
improvements are amortized on a strailjie- basis over the term of the related leaseserlives of the assets, whichever is shorter. Maiance, repairs and minor improvements
charged to non-interest expense in the period redur

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock:

The FHLBNY has assigned to the Bank a mandated membersitk purchase, based on its asset size. In addiio all borrowing activity, the Bank is requiréal purchase shares
FHLB-NY non-marketable capital stock at par. Ssblares are redeemed by FHLB-NY at par with redostia the Bank’s borrowing levels. The Bank caritesnvestment in FHLBNY
stock at historical cost. The Company periodicadlyiews its FHLBNY stock to determine if impairment exists. At Rewber 31, 2012, the Company considered among thihregs th
earnings performance, credit rating and asset tyuafithe FHLB-NY. Based on this review, the Compalid not consider the value of our investment HLB-NY stock to be impaired
December 31, 2012.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchasacameinted for as collateralized financing and areied at amounts at which the securities will bbsequently reacquired as specifie
the respective agreements. Interest incurred uhdse agreements is included in other interestresgpe

Income Taxes:

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arerdeteed using the asset and liability (or balanceethmethod. Under this method, the net defernedsaet or liability is determined basec
the tax effects of the temporary differences betwieeok and tax bases of the various balance slssetsaand liabilities. A deferred tax liability nscognized on all taxable tempor
differences and a deferred tax asset is recogmineall deductible temporary differences and opegakbsses and tax credit cafigrwards. A valuation allowance is recognizedeaduce th
potential deferred tax asset if it is “more lik¢han not’"that all or some portion of that potential defertaxl asset will not be realized. The Company raiss take into account change
tax laws or rates when valuing the deferred inctameamounts it carries on its Consolidated StatésnehFinancial Condition.
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Stock Compensation Plans:

The Company accounts for its stock based compemsatiaccordance with the Financial Accounting 8tads Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codifieat(“ASC") Topic 718 “
Stock Compensatidhwhich establishes fair value as the measurembjetctive in accounting for share-based paymenngements and requires a fair-valesed measurement metho
accounting for sharbased payment transactions with employees. It r@lgoires measurement of the cost of employee s=vieceived in exchange for an award of an eqogrumer
based on the grant date fair value of the awattat Tost is recognized over the period during whinhemployee is required to provide service in arge for the award. The requi:
service period is usually the vesting period.

Derivatives:

Derivatives are required to be recorded on the Glateted Statements of Financial Condition at f@ilue. The Company records derivatives on a grasshn “Other assets” an@®thel
liabilities”.in the Consolidated Statements of Financial CoonitiThe accounting for changes in value of a @¢fie depends on whether or not the transactionbbas designated a
qualifies for hedge accounting. Derivatives that mot designated as hedges are reported and meéasdegr value through earnings.

To qualify for hedge accounting, a derivative masthighly effective at reducing the risk associatgith the exposure being hedged. In addition, fdedvative to be designated as a he
the risk management objective and strategy musibbamented. Hedge documentation must identify #revative hedging instrument, the asset or liapitit forecasted transaction and t
of risk to be hedged, and how the effectivenesthefderivative is assesspbspectively and retrospectively. The extent taclha derivative has been, and is expected to moatto be
effective at offsetting changes in the fair valdiehe hedged item must be assessed and documengeassiaquarterly. Any hedge ineffectiveness (tlee,amount by which the gain or loss
the designated derivative instrument does not gxaffset the change in the hedged item attribgablthe hedged risk) must be reported in curpeniad earnings. If it is determined thi
derivative is not highly effective at hedging thesijnated exposure, hedge accounting is discomtinue

Segment Reporting:
Management views the Company as operating as &sing, a community bank. Therefore, segment imfation is not provided.

Advertising Expense:
Costs associated with advertising are expensedcasred. The Company recorded advertising expeos84.7 million, $2.7 million, and $2.7 million fahe years ended December
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Earnings per Common Share:

Earnings per share are computed in accordanceAB8t Topic 260°Earnings Per Share.” Basic earnings per common share is computed bylidiyinet income available to comn
shareholders by the total weighted average numbepmmon shares outstanding, which includes undepteticipating securities. Unvested shbesed payment awards that cor
nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend edlents (whether paid or unpaid) are participatiegurities and as such are included in the calonlaif earnings per share. 1
Companys unvested restricted stock and restricted stoitkawards are considered participating securifiéerefore, weighted average common shares outsigdied for computing ba
earnings per common share includes common shatstanding plus unvested restricted stock and ogsttistock unit awards. The computation of dilutadnings per share includes
additional dilutive effect of stock options outstiamg and other common stock equivalents duringpegod. Common stock equivalents that are difiive are not included in tl
computation of diluted earnings per common shahne. fumerator for calculating basic and diluted isgs\per common share is net income available nongon shareholders.

The shares held in the Company’s Employee BenéfistTare not included in shares outstanding foppses of calculating earnings per common share.
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Earnings per common share have been computed badéé following, for the years ended December 31:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share de

Net income, as reporte $ 3433. $ 3534¢ $ 38,83t
Divided by:

Weighted average common shares outstan 30,40z 30,62 30,33¢

Weighted average common stock equivalents 31 31 31

Total weighted average common shares outstandidg@mmon stock equivalents 30,43: 30,65¢ 30,36
Basic earnings per common sh $ 11 $ 1158 $ 1.2¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 112 % 1158 $ 1.2¢

Options to purchase 550,400 shares, at an averageise price of $17.63, 720,340 shares, at arageeexercise price of $16.71, and 898,423 shates) average exercise price of $1£
are anti-dilutive and were not included in the caiagion of diluted earnings per common share ferythars ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 20p@ctesely.

3. Loans

The composition of loans is as follows at Decengder

2012 2011
(In thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 1,534,431 $ 1,391,22
Commercial real esta 515,43t 580,78
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 637,35: 693,93.
One-to-four family — residentia 198,96¢ 220,43:
Cc-operative apartmen 6,302 5,50¢
Constructior 14,38: 47,14(
Small Business Administratic 9,49¢ 14,03¢
Taxi medallion 9,92 54,32¢
Commercial business and other 295,07¢ 206,61«

Gross loan: 3,221,37! 3,213,99:
Unearned loan fees and deferred costs, net 12,74¢ 14,88¢

Total loans $ 323412 $ 3,228,88

The total amount of loans on naeerual status was $84.1 million and $111.1 miléerDecember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. tdta amount of loans classified as impaired, w
includes all loans on noaecrual status, was $128.6 million and $190.3 ariliat December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivelygé¥erally adjust the carrying value of collaterapender
impaired loans to their fair value with a chargéhe allowance for loan losses. The average balahivepaired loans was $148.9 million and $191.8iami for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company may restructure a loan to enable awerrto continue making payments when it is deetoelde in our best lonterm interest. This restructure may include redyie
interest rate or amount of the monthly paymentfspecified period of time, after which the intémase and repayment terms revert to the origieahs of the loan. The Company class
these loans as a TDR.
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The following table shows loans modified and clfisdias TDR during the years ended December 312 268 2011:

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands) Number Balance Modification description Number Balance Modification description
Multi-family residential - $ - 6 $ 1,80C Received a below market interest
rate and the loan amortization was
extendec
Commercial real estate 3 5,30( Received a below market interes 1 2,000 Received a below market interest
rate and the loan amortization we rate
extendec
One-to-four family - mixedise propert 3 1,20( 3 90C Received a below market interest
Received a below market interes rate and loan amortization term
rate extendec
One-to-four family - residential 1 40C Received a below market interes
rate
Construction loans 2 24,20( Received a below market interest
rate
Commercial business and other 2 1,90C Received a below market interes -
rate and the loan amortization we
extended -
Total 9 % 8,80( 12 $ 28,90(

The recorded investment of each of the loans mextldind classified to a TDR, presented in the tabtare, was unchanged as there was no principal/éargn any of these modifications.

The following table shows our recorded investmentidans classified as TDR that are performing ediog to their restructured terms at the periodiciated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Number Recorded Number Recorded
(Dollars in thousands of contracts investmen of contracts investmen
Multi-family residentia 8 $ 2,347 11  $ 9,412
Commercial real esta 5 8,49¢ 2 2,49¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7 2,33¢ 3 79t
One-to-four family - residentia 1 374
Constructior 1 3,80¢ 1 5,88¢
Commercial business and other 2 2.,54( 1 2,00(
Total performing troubled debt restructured 24 $ 19,90: 18 3 20,594

During the year ended December 31, 2012, threei-fianfily TDR totaling $6.9 million and one commeatiTDR for $0.4 million were transferred to nanerual status as they were
longer performing in accordance with their modiftedms. During the year ended December 31, 2044 construction loan for $11.5 million, one comnm@rtoan for $3.3 million and tw
one-to-four family — mixed-used property loans liog$0.7 million were transferred to non-accruaitss as they were no longer performing in accardavith their modified terms.
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The following table shows our recorded investmentidans classified as TDR that are not perfornsiagording to their restructured terms at the pariadicated:

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Recorded Number Recorded

(Dollars in thousands of contracts investmen of contracts investmen
Multi-family residentia 2 $ 323 - % =
Commercial real esta 2 3,07t 2 4,34(
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 2 81¢€ 3 1,19:¢
Construction 1 7,36¢ 1 11,67
Total troubled debt restructurings that subseqyetefaulted 7 $ 11,58: 6 $ 17,20¢

The following table shows our non-performing loashe periods indicated:

At December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011
Loans ninety days or more past due and still accruoig:
Multi-family residentia - 0% 6,287
Commercial real esta - 92
Commercial Business and other 644 -
Total 644 6,37¢
Non-accrual mortgage loans:
Multi-family residentia 13,09¢ 19,94¢
Commercial real esta 15,64( 19,89¢
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 16,55: 28,42¢
One-to-four family residentia 13,72¢ 12,76¢
Cc-operative apartmen 234 152
Construction 7,69 14,72:
Total 66,94: 95,90¢
Non-accrual non-mortgage loans:
Small Business Administratic 282 492
Commercial Business and other 16,86( 14,66(
Total 17,14: 15,15
Total non-accrual loans 84,08¢ 111,06:
Total non-accrual loans and ninety day:or more past due and still accruing 84,73(  $ 117,44:
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The following is a summary of interest foregonenmm-accrual loans and loans classified as TDRHewyears ended December 31:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands

Interest income that would have been recognizedimtbans performein accordance with their original terr $ 9,02¢ $ 9,65¢ $ 9,46(
Less: Interest income included in the resultspErations 1,692 2,12¢ 2,01¢

Total foregone interest $ 733¢ $ 752¢ $ 7,44:
The following table shows an age analysis of ouoréed investment in loans at December 31, 2012:

Greater
30 - 59 Days 60 - 89 Days than Total Past
(in thousands) Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
(in thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 24,05¢ $ 4,82t $ 13,09t $ 4198: $ 149245 $ 1,534,43i
Commercial real esta 9,76¢ 3,622 15,63¢ 29,02¢ 486,41: 515,43t
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 21,01: 3,36¢ 16,55¢ 40,93¢ 596,41¢ 637,35
One-to-four family - residentia 3,407 2,01( 13,60: 19,01¢ 179,94¢ 198,96¢
Cc-operative apartmen - - 234 234 6,06¢ 6,302
Construction loan 2,462 - 7,69 10,157 4,22¢ 14,38:
Small Business Administratic 404 - 28¢ 687 8,80¢ 9,49¢
Taxi medallion - - - - 9,92 9,92
Commercial business and other 2 5 15,60: 15,60¢ 279,46¢ 295,07¢

Total $ 61,11  $ 13,83 $ 82,70: $ 157,64t $ 3,063,720 $ 3,221,37
The following table shows an age analysis of ouoréed investment in loans at December 31, 2011:

Greater
30 - 59 Days 60 - 89 Days than Total Past
(in thousands) Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
(in thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 20,08: $ 6,341 $ 26,231 $ 52,657 $ 1,33856. $ 1,391,22
Commercial real esta 10,80¢ 1,797 19,987 32,58¢ 548,19! 580,78:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 20,48( 3,027 27,95( 51,457 642,47" 693,93:
One-to-four family - residentia 4,69¢ 1,76¢ 12,76¢ 19,23« 201,19° 220,43:
Cc-operative apartmen - - 152 152 5,352 5,50¢
Construction loan 5,06t - 14,72: 19,78¢ 27,35¢ 47,14(
Small Business Administratic 16 41 452 50¢ 13,53( 14,03¢
Taxi medallion 71 - - 71 54,257 54,32¢
Commercial business and other 5,47¢ 96€ 10,24 16,68: 189,93 206,61«

Total $ 66,69 $ 13,94, $ 112,50 $ 193,13° $ 3,020,850 $  3,213,99
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the year ended Decemhe&2(3P:

One-tofour
family - One-tofour Commercia
Multi-family Commercie  mixed-use  family - Co-operative Constructioi Small Busines Taxi business ar

(in thousands) residentia  realestatt  property  residential  apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 11,267 $ 521C $ 5312 $ 1,64¢ $ 80 $ 66 $ 987 $ 41 $ 5,12¢ $ 30,34
Charge-off's 6,01¢ 2,74¢ 4,28¢ 1,58: 62 4,591 324 - 1,661 21,26¢
Recoveries 144 307 35¢ 29 - - 87 - 104 1,02¢
Provision 7,60¢ 2,93¢ 4,57¢ 1,90¢ 28 3,98¢ (24£ (34 244 21,00(

Ending balance $ 13,00 $ 5708 $ 596( $ 1,99¢ $ 46 $ 66 $ 50t $ 7 $ 3,81t $ 31,104

Ending balance: individually

evaluated for impairment $ 18z $ 35¢ $ 571 $ 94 3 - 8 38 3 - 3 - 3 24 $ 1,49

Ending balance: collectively

evaluated for impairment $ 12,81¢ $ 534t $ 538¢ $ 1,908 $ 46 $ 28 $ 50t $ 7 $ 3,566 $ 29,61(

Financing Receivables:

Ending balance $ 153443 $ 51543t $ 637,35. $ 198,96¢ $ 6,30 $ 14,38. $ 9,49¢ $ 9,92: $ 295,07t $3,221,37

Ending balance: individually

evaluated for impairment $ 21678 $ 2352 $ 2636¢( $ 1570: $ 237 $ 1423. $ 85C $ - $ 26,020 $ 128,61(

Ending balance: collectively

evaluated for impairment $ 151276 $ 491,910 $ 610,98 $ 183,26¢ $ 6,06¢ $ 14¢ % 8,646 $ 9,92 $ 269,05 $3,092,76!
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the year ended Decemhe2(311.:

One-tofour
family - One-tofour Commercia
Multi-family Commercie  mixed-use  family - Co-operative Constructioi Small Busines Taxi business ar

(in thousands) residentia  realestatt  property  residential  apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 9,001 $ 4,908 $ 5991 $ 93¢ $ 17 $ 58¢ $ 1,30: $ 63¢ $ 4,30 $ 27,69¢
Chargroff's 6,807 5,172 2,64¢ 2,22¢ - 1,08¢ 871 - 64z 19,45(
Recoveries 152 184 128 63 - - 60 - 12 59t
Provision 8,91« 5,292 1,83¢ 2,87¢ 63 1,167 49t (59¢) 1,45¢ 21,50(

Ending balance $ 11,267 $ 521C $ 531 $ 1,64¢ $ 80 $ 66 $ 987 $ 41 % 512¢ $ 30,34«

Ending balance: individually

evaluated for impairment $ 346 $ 18¢ $ 71 $ - 8 58 $ 26€ $ 88 $ - 3 2,53¢ $  4,20¢

Ending balance: collectively

evaluated for impairment $ 10,92 $ 5021 $ 4,59¢ $ 1,64¢ $ 22 $ 40C $ 89¢ $ 41 % 2,58¢ $ 26,13¢

Financing Receivables:

Ending balance $ 1,391,22 $ 580,78 $ 693,93. $ 22043. $ 550 $  47,14C $ 14,03¢ $ 54,32¢ $ 206,61 $3,213,99:

Ending balance: individually

evaluated for impairment $ 58,52¢ $ 5351 $ 51527 $ 1747C $ 35€ $ 31,12¢ $ 491 % - $ 29417 $ 242,42t

Ending balance: collectively

evaluated for impairment $ 1,332,69 $ 527,27. $ 642,400 $ 202,96. $ 5,14¢ $ 16,01« $ 1354t $ 54,32¢ $ 177,190 $2,971,56
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The following table shows our recorded investmenpaid principal balance
that were considered impaired at or for the yededrDecember 31, 2012:

With no related allowance recorde

Mortgage loans
Multi-family residentia
Commercial real esta
One-to-four family mixec-use propert
One-to-four family residentia
Cc-operative apartmen
Constructior

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic
Taxi Medallion
Commercial Business and other

Total loans with no related allowance recorded

With an allowance recorde

Mortgage loans
Multi-family residentia
Commercial real esta
One-to-four family mixec-use propert
One-to-four family residentia
Co-operative apartmen
Constructior

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic
Taxi Medallion
Commercial Business and other

Total loans with an allowance recorded

Total Impaired Loans
Total mortgage loans

Total non-mortgage loans

and allocated allowaneddan losses, average recorded investment ancesitencome recognized for lo¢

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognize(
(Dollars in thousands
$ 19,75¢ % 22,88¢ $ - % 27,72( 42¢
34,67: 38,59« - 43,97¢ 53¢
23,05¢ 25,82t - 27,01¢ 48t
15,32¢ 18,99t - 15,04: 18¢
237 29¢ - 174 2
10,59¢ 15,18: - 14,68¢ 178
85( 1,07t - 1,042 25
4,391 5,741 - 5,102 53
108,88: 128,60( - 134,76¢ 1,88¢
1,927 1,937 18¢ 3,17¢ 124
7,77: 7,83¢ 35¢ 6,53( 40C
3,314 3,31z 571 4,38t 20E
374 374 94 18¢ 19
- - - 101 -
3,80¢ 3,80¢ 38 4,27t 14C
2,53¢ 2,54( 24¢ 2,27: 11€
19,72: 19,80¢ 1,494 20,92¢ 1,004
3 120,83(  $ 139,05 $ 124t $ 147,27 2,69¢
$ 7,78C _ $ 9,35¢  $ 24¢ % 8,417 194
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The following table shows our recorded investmenpaid principal balance
that were considered impaired at or for the yededrDecember 31, 2011:

With no related allowance recorde

Mortgage loans
Multi-family residentia
Commercial real esta
One-to-four family mixec-use propert
One-to-four family residentia
Cc-operative apartmen
Constructior

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic
Taxi Medallion
Commercial Business and other

Total loans with no related allowance recorded

With an allowance recorde

Mortgage loans
Multi-family residentia
Commercial real esta
One-to-four family mixec-use propert
One-to-four family residentia
Co-operative apartmen
Constructior

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic
Taxi Medallion
Commercial Business and other

Total loans with an allowance recorded

Total Impaired Loans
Total mortgage loans

Total non-mortgage loans

and allocated allowaneddan losses, average recorded investment ancesitencome recognized for lo¢

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognize(
(Dollars in thousands
$ 33,046 $ 36,70 $ - % 35,79: 91C
38,74¢ 42,34t - 37,51 1,35¢
33,83 37,23 - 32,681 447
14,34: 16,59¢ - 11,57¢ 19¢€
fi5¢ fi5¢ - 11¢ -
10,99t 11,38( - 11,16¢ 672
27t 50C - 69 3
11,16( 11,16: - 13,80: 33¢
142,55! 156,07" - 142,71« 3,92
13,04¢ 13,11¢( 34€ 12,27( 63E
3,01¢ 3,01¢ 18¢ 3,301 14C
6,111 6,212 71€ 2,72( 412
- - - 145 -
20z 203 58 51 11
17,56: 17,56: 26¢ 21,29¢ 452
19t 19t 88 777 10
7,62( 8,35: 2,53¢ 7,90¢ 20¢
47,75¢ 48,65: 4,20¢ 48,46 1,87(
3 171,058 $ 184,52( $ 157¢ % 168,62! 5,23]
$ 19,25 $ 20,21 $ 2621 $ 22,55: 561
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In accordance with our policy and the current ratpry guidelines, we designate loans as “Speciaitie,” which are considered “Criticized Loans,"datSubstandard,” “Doubtful,’br
“Loss,” which are considered “Classified Loansf.alloan does not fall within one of the previousntioned categories then the loan would be corsii&ass. These loan designatic
are updated quarterly. We designate a loan ast&wd=d when a wellefined weakness is identified that jeopardizesotigerly liquidation of the debt. We designate anldoubtful whe
it displays the inherent weakness of a Substanidardwith the added provision that collection af debt in full, on the basis of existing factshighly improbable. We designate a loal
Loss if it is deemed the debtor is incapable ofyepent. The Company does not hold any loans datdras loss, as loans that are designated astesbharged to the Allowance for L¢
Losses. Loans that are nanerual are designated as Substandard, Doubtlidss. We designate a loan as Special Mention ia#fset does not warrant classification within ohthe othe
classifications, but does contain a potential weakrthat deserves closer attention.

The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized or ClassiéieBecember 31, 2012:

(In thousands) Special Mentio  Substandar: Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 16,348  $ 22,76¢ $ - % - % 39,11«
Commercial real esta 11,097 27,871 - - 38,97
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 13,10+ 26,50¢ - - 39,61(
One-to-four family - residentia 5,22 15,32¢ - - 20,55
Cc-operative apartmen 102 237 - - 34C
Construction loan 3,80¢ 10,59¢ - - 14,40:¢
Small Business Administratic 32¢ 21z 244 - 77¢
Commercial business and other 3,04 18,41¢ 1,08( - 22,54:
Total loans $ 53,04 $ 121,94 $ 1,32« $ - $ 176,31

The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized or ClassiéieBecember 31, 2011:

(In thousands) Special Mentio  Substandar: Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 17,138 $ 41,39: $ - $ - $ 58,52¢
Commercial real esta 12,26¢ 41,24 - - 53,51
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 17,39 33,83: - - 51,22«
One-to-four family - residentia 3,125 14,34: - - 17,47(
Cc-operative apartmen 20:< 152 - - 35€
Construction loan 2,57( 28,55¢ - - 31,12¢
Small Business Administratic 66€ 25€ 214 - 1,13¢
Commercial business and other 13,58¢ 17,618 1,16¢ - 32,361
Total loans $ 66,94: $ 177,39. $ 1,38 $ - $ 245,71
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the years ended Deceniber 3

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Balance, beginning of ye. $ 30,34« $ 27,69¢ $ 20,324
Provision for loan losse 21,00( 21,50( 21,00(
Chargeoffs (21,269 (19,45() (14,595
Recoveries 1,02¢ 59¢ 97C
Balance, end of year $ 31,10¢ $ 30,34 % 27,69¢
The following are net loan charge-offs (recoveriggjoan type for the years ended December 31:
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Multi-family residentia $ 587: $ 6,65 $ 5,77¢
Commercial real esta 2,43¢ 4,98¢ 2,63¢
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 3,92¢ 2,521 2,46¢
One-to-four family — residentia 1,55¢ 2,167 23¢€
Cc-operative apartmen 62 - -
Constructior 4,591 1,08¢ 1,87¢
Small Business Administratic 237 811 752
Commercial business and other 1,557 63C (114
Total net loan charge-offs $ 20,240 $ 18,85 $ 13,62¢

4. Loans held for sale

The Company has implemented a strategy of sellanain delinquent and nqguerforming loans. Once the Company has decidedlt@doan, the sale usually will close in a shaetiod o
time, generally within the same quarter. Loansgheged held for sale are reclassified from loagisl fior investment to loans held for sale. Termsaié include cash due upon the clo
of the sale, no contingencies or recourse to theg@amy and servicing is released to the buyer.

The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiaig loans sold during the period indicated:

For the year ended
December 31, 201

(Dollars in thousands) Loans solc Proceed: Net charg-offs  Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 34 3 21,42¢  $ (2,979 $ (46)
Commercial real esta 11 5,86¢ (572) -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 25 8,27( (1,927 -
Constructior 3 2,54( (57) -
Commercial business and other 4 6,11¢ (136) 8

Total 77 % 44,22 $ (5,660 $ (38
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The above table does not include $0.7 million ofgrening Small Business Administration loans tha&revsold for a net gain of $60,000 during the yzated December 31, 2012.

The following table shows delinquent and non-perfioig loans sold during the period indicated:

For the year ended
December 31, 201

(Dollars in thousands) Loans solc Proceed: Net charg-offs  Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 26 15,24: $ (2,767 $ 16€
Commercial real esta 4 5,22t (367) -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 10 3,067 (514 -
Constructior 2 4,03¢ ?3) -
Commercial business and other 2 24% = 1

Total 44 27,817 $ (365) $ 167

The above table does not include $3.9 million af@ening Small Business Administration loans tharesold for a net gain of $344,000 during the yeated December 31, 2011.

The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiaig loans sold during the period indicated:

For the year ended
December 31, 201

(Dollars in thousands) Loans solc Proceed: Net charg-offs  Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 7 3,031 $ (1549 $ 15
Commercial real esta 2 2,231 (40€) -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 9 2,92 (74) 2
One-to-four family - residentia 1 20t (25 -
Construction 1 86C - -
Total 20 9,25¢  $ (661) $ 17
5. Other Real Estate Owned
The following table shows the activity in Other REatate Owned (“OREQ”) during the periods indicate
For the years ended
December 31
2012 2011 2010

(In thousands
Balance at beginning of ye 3,17¢  $ 158 $ 2,262
Acquisitions 6,127 7,28¢ 4,81:
Reductions to carrying valt (516) (209 (75)
Sales (3,519 (5,486 (5,417
Balance at end of year 527¢ $ 3,17¢  $ 1,58¢
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The following table shows the gross gains, grossde and write-downs of OREO reported in the Cadesteld Statements of Income during the periodsepites!:

For the years ended
December 31
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands

Gross gain: $ 78 % 357 % 12¢
Gross losse (255) (135) (216€)
Write-down of carrying value (516) (209) (75

Total $ (699 $ 13 % (165)

6. Debt and Equity Securities

The Companys investments in equity securities that have rgaditerminable fair values and all investments ebtdsecurities are classified in one of the follogvihree categories a
accounted for accordingly: (1) trading securiti@},securities available for sale and (3) secigitield-to-maturity.

The Company did not hold any trading securitiesemurities held-to-maturity during the years enBedember 31, 2012 and 2011. Securities availablsdie are recorded at fair value.

The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidgfof securities available for sale at DecemberZil12:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gains Losses
(In thousands

U.S. government agenci $ 31,40¢ $ 31,51 $ 104 $ -
Corporate 83,38¢ 87,48¢ 4,09¢ -
Municipals 74,22¢ 75,297 1,152 83
Mutual funds 21,84: 21,84: - -
Other 17,79 13,31 17 4,49¢
Total other securities 228,66t 229,45 5,36¢ 4,582
REMIC and CMC 453,46¢ 474,05( 23,69( 3,10¢
GNMA 43,21 46,93: 3,721 -
FNMA 168,04( 175,92¢ 7,971 82
FHLMC 22,56 23,20: 64C -
Total mortgage-backed securities 687,28: 720,11: 36,02 3,19(
Total securities available for sale $ 91594 $ 94956t $ 4139: $ 7,77

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table alislede two private issue collateralized mortgabégations (“CMO”)that are collateralized by commercial real estatetgages wit
an amortized cost and market value of $15.2 miliiad $15.7 million, respectively, at December 31,2 The remaining private issue mortgage-backedrgties are backed by onefmir
family residential mortgage loans.
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The following table shows the Company’s availalolesfale securities with gross unrealized lossedlagidfair value, aggregated by category and lengtime that individual securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss posiéibbecember 31, 2012.

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands
Municipals $ 9,78: $ 83 $ 9,78: $ 83 $ - 8 =
Other 5,06¢ 4,49¢ - - 5,06 4,49¢
Total other securities 14,84¢ 4,582 9,78 83 5,06/ 4,49¢
REMIC and CMC 64,12¢ 3,10¢ 40,65 15t 23,47¢ 2,952
FNMA 10,33: 82 10,33: 82 - -
Total mortgage-backed securities 74,45% 3,19( 50,98: 237 23,47t 2,95¢
Total securities available for sale $ 89,300 $ 777:  $ 60,76 $ 32C % 28,53¢ $ 7,452

OTTI losses on impaired securities must be fullyognized in earnings if an investor has the intersell the debt security or if it is more likelyan not that the investor will be requiret
sell the debt security before recovery of its amed cost. However, even if an investor does ngeekto sell a debt security, the investor musiuata the expected cash flows tc
received and determine if a credit loss has ocduirethe event that a credit loss has occurrely, te amount of impairment associated with thalitress is recognized in earnings in
Consolidated Statements of Income. Amounts relaiinfactors other than credit losses are recordegiccumulated other comprehensive income (“AOClIithin StockholdersEquity.
Additional disclosures regarding the calculatiorciadit losses as well as factors considered bynthestor in reaching a conclusion that an invesitni®not other-thatemporarily impaire
are required.

The Company reviewed each investment that had eealired loss at December 31, 2012. An unrealiasd éxists when the current fair value of an inmesitt is less than its amortized ¢
basis. Unrealized losses on available for saleritissy that are deemed to be temporary, are recbil AOCI, net of tax. Unrealized losses that@esidered to be other-théemporar
are split between credit related and noncreditedl@ampairments, with the credit related impairmieeing recorded as a charge against earnings andbthcredit related impairment be
recorded in AOCI, net of tax.

The Company evaluates its pooled trust preferredritees, included in the table above in the roweled “Other”,using an impairment model through an independend gharty, whict
includes evaluating the financial condition of eaclinterparty. For single issuer trust prefermclusties, the Company evaluates the issuimancial condition. The Company evaluate
mortgagebacked securities by reviewing the characteristitshe securities, including delinquency and fooeare levels, projected losses at various lossrisgvevels and cred
enhancement and coverage. In addition, privateei€MOs are evaluated using an impairment modeltiran independent third party. When an OTTI isiified, the portion of th
impairment that is credit related is determinednbgnagement by using the following methods: (1)tfast preferred securities, the credit related impeant is determined by usin¢
discounted cash flow model from an independendtparty, with the difference between the presehtevaf the projected cash flows and the amortizest basis of the security recordet
a credit related loss against earnings; (2) fortgamebacked securities, credit related impairment igheined for each security by estimating lossesdasea set of assumptions, wk
includes delinquency and foreclosure levels, ptefgdosses at various loss severity levels, criiancement and coverage and (3) for private i€M©s, through an impairment mo
from an independent third party and then recordinge estimated losses as a credit related logsshgarnings.

Municipal Securities:

The unrealized losses in Municipal securities atédeber 31, 2012, consist of losses on four muniicipeurities. The unrealized losses were causeddyements in interest rates. It is
anticipated that these securities would be segtexprice that is less than the amortized cogi@fCompanys investment. Each of these securities is perfagrattording to its terms and
the opinion of management, will continue to perfaotording to its terms. The Company does not flaeéntent to sell these securities and it is nikedy than not the Company will n

be required to sell the securities before recoeéhe securities amortized cost basis. This caictuis based upon considering the Compsmgsh and working capital requirements
contractual and regulatory obligations, none ofalihihe Company believes would cause the sale o$eharities. Therefore, the Company did not comdidese investments to be other-
than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2012.
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Other Securities:

The unrealized losses in Other Securities at Deee®b, 2012, consist of losses on one single issust preferred security and two pooled trustgmefd securities. The unrealized losse
such securities were caused by market interestiMylaa significant widening of credit spreadsrass markets for these securities and illiquiditgl aincertainty in the financial marke
These securities are currently rated below investrgeade. The pooled trust preferred securities@tchave collateral that is subordinate to thessagthe Company owns. The Company’
management evaluates these securities using anrimgra model, through an independent third pattgt ts applied to debt securities. In estimatingifOldsses, management considers
the length of time and the extent to which the ¥@ilue has been less than amortized cost; (2)utrert interest rate environment; (3) the financahdition and neaterm prospects of tl
issuer, if applicable; and (4) the intent and &pitif the Company to retain its investment in teewity for a period of time sufficient to allowrfany anticipated recovery in fair val
Additionally, management reviews the financial ctind of each individual issuer within the pooledst preferred securities. All of the issuers @& tinderlying collateral of the pooled tr
preferred securities we reviewed are banks.

For each bank, our review included the followingfpenance items of the banks:

Ratio of tangible equity to assets

Tier 1 Risk Weighted Capital

Net interest margin

Efficiency ratio for most recent two quarters

Return on average assets for most recent two gearte

Texas Ratio (ratio of non-performing assets plsetspast due over 90 days divided by tangibleteglis the reserve for loan losses)
Credit ratings (where applicable)

Capital issuances within the past year (where egplée)

Ability to complete Federal Deposit Insurance Cogpion (“FDIC”) assisted acquisitions (where apabte)

Based on the review of the above factors, we calecluhat:
All of the performing issuers in our pools are wapitalized banks, and do not appear likely talbsed by their regulators.
All of the performing issuers in our pools will dotue as a going concern and will not default agirtsecurities.

In order to estimate potential future defaults aederrals, we segregated the performing underljgsgers by their Texas Ratio. The Texas Ratio keyindicator of the health of t
institution and the likelihood of failure. This i@atcompares the problem assets of the institutiothé institutions available capital and reserves to absorb lo$sgsate likely to occur
these assets. There were no issuers in our poaistpreferred securities which had a Texas Ratiexicess of 50.00%. We assigned a zero defaultoateese issuers. Our analysis
assumed that issuers currently deferring wouldudeteith no recovery, and issuers that have deéaiultill have no recovery.

We had an independent third party prepare a digeducash flow analysis for each of these poolest fpueferred securities based on the assumptiatsised above. Other signific
assumptions were: (1) two issuers totaling $21 15aniwill prepay in five years and two issuersaiig $18.7 million will prepay at their next querty payment date; (2) senior classes
not call the debt on their portions; and (3) uséhefforward London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBQRUrve. The cash flows were discounted at thecgtfe rate for each security.

One of the pooled trust preferred securities i ®days past due and the Company has stoppedirrginterest. The remaining pooled trust prefegedurity, as well as the single iss
trust preferred security, are performing accordm¢heir terms. Based on these reviews, a cretfited OTTI charge was not recorded on the sirsglieeir trust preferred security or the
pooled trust preferred securities during the yeatee December 31, 2012. During the year ended Deee81, 2011, a credit related OTTI charge wasewmtrded on the single issuer ti
preferred security or the two pooled trust preférsecurities. During the year ended December 310,2the Company recorded $1.0 million in credititetl OTTI charges on one of
pooled trust preferred securities.
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The Company also owns a pooled trust preferredriggdhat is carried under the fair value optiorhexe the unrealized losses are included in the @iolased Statements of Income. 1
security is over 90 days past due and the Compasstopped accruing interest.

It is not anticipated at this time that the oneglarissuer trust preferred security and the twolgmbérust preferred securities, would be settled ptice that is less than the amortized co
the Companys investment. Each of these securities is perfagragtording to its terms; except for the pooledttpreferred securities for which the Company hagped accruing interest
discussed above, and, in the opinion of manageiesed on the review performed at December 31, 20ill2;ontinue to perform according to its term$ieTCompany does not have
intent to sell these securities and it is moreljikean not the Company will not be required td ge securities before recovery of the securiie®rtized cost basis. This conclusion is b
upon considering the Compasytash and working capital requirements, and cotisd and regulatory obligations, none of which empany believes would cause the sale o
securities. Therefore, the Company did not consieer single issuer trust preferred securities hedwo pooled trust preferred securities to be reth@ntemporarily impaired at Decemt
31, 2012.

At December 31, 2012, the Company held six trustgured issues which had a current credit ratingtdéast one rating below investment grade. Twtho$e issues are carried undel
fair value option and therefore, changes in falugare included in the Consolidated Statemenhodine — Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustments

The following table details the remaining four trpseferred issues that were evaluated to deterihthey were other-than-temporarily impaired acBeber 31, 2012. The class the
Company owns in pooled trust preferred securit@sschot have any excess subordination.

Deferrals/Defaults

Actual as a Expected
Cumulative Percentage Percentage Current
Issuer Performing Amortized Fair Credit Related  of Original of Performing Lowest
Type Class Banks Cost Value OTTI Security Collateral Rating
(Dollars in thousands
Single issue n/a 1 30C 28¢ - None None BB-
Single issue n/a 1 50C 517 - None None B+
Pooled issue B1 17 5,617 2,60( 2,19¢ 24.8% 0.0% C
Pooled issuer C1 18 3,64¢ 2,17¢ 1,54z 22.6% 0.0% C

Total $ 10,06: $ 5581 $ 3,73¢

REMIC and CMO:
The unrealized losses in Real Estate Mortgage tmag Conduit (‘REMIC”)and CMO securities at December 31, 2012 consisiree issues from the Federal Home Loan Mort
Corporation (“FHLMC?"), four issues from the Fedeldtional Mortgage Association (“FNMA”) and fiveipate issues.

The unrealized losses on the REMIC and CMO seesriisued by FHLMC and FNMA were caused by movesnieninterest rates. It is not anticipated thaséhsecurities would be sett
at a price that is less than the amortized cost®@iCompanyg investment. Each of these securities is perfagraiccording to its terms, and, in the opinion ohagement, will continue
perform according to its terms. The Company dodshage the intent to sell these securities and inore likely than not the Company will not be rieed to sell the securities befi
recovery of the securities amortized cost basiss Tanclusion is based upon considering the Comigargsh and working capital requirements, and comntahand regulatory obligatior
none of which the Company believes would causedhe of the securities. Therefore, the Companyndictonsider these investments to be other-tearporarily impaired at December
2012.

The unrealized losses at December 31, 2012 on REMECCMO securities issued by private issuers watsed by movements in interest rates, a signifisgtening of credit sprea

across markets for these securities, and illiquiditd uncertainty in the financial markets. Eaclthese securities has some level of credit enhaesenand none are collateralized by sub-

prime loans. Currently, one of these securitiegeiforming according to its terms, with four seties remitting less than the full principal amouhte. The principal loss for these f
securities totaled $1.3 million for the year enfEtember 31, 2012. These losses were anticipati icumulative OTTI charges recorded for these $ecurities.

106




Credit related impairment for mortgapacked securities are determined for each secoyitgstimating losses based on the following seassumptions, (1) delinquency and foreclo
levels, (2) projected losses at various loss sgvkvels and, (3) credit enhancement and coverdgsed on these reviews, an OTTI charge was redatdeng the year ended Decembel
2012, on five private issue CMOs of $3.1 milliorfdre tax, of which $0.8 million was charged agaieatnings in the Consolidated Statements of Incante$2.4 million before tax ($1
million aftertax) was recorded in AOCI. The Company recordedlitmelated OTTI charges totaling $1.6 million a#l.1 million on four private issue CMOs during thears ende
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The portion of the above mentioned OTTI, recordedrd) the year ended December 31, 2012, that wateceto credit losses was calculated using tHevidhg significant assumptions: |
delinquency and foreclosure levels of 11%-18%;p@jected loss severity of 40%-50%; (3) assumedudefates of 6%-10% for the first 12 months, 2%-ft#the next 12 months, 28
for the next 12 months and 2% thereafter; and (d@payment speeds of 6%-20%.

It is not anticipated at this time that the onevate issue CMO for which an OTTI charge during year ended December 31, 2012 was not recorded dvibeubettled at a price that is |
than the current amortized cost of the Compauyvestment. This security is performing accordingts terms and in the opinion of management, eghtinue to perform according to
terms. The Company does not have the intent tdtgslsecurity and it is more likely than not then@any will not be required to sell the securitydoe recovery of the security'amortize
cost basis. This conclusion is based upon consigeéhie Companyg cash and working capital requirements, and contahand regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believe
would cause the sale of the security. Thereftre Gompany did not consider the security to berethen-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2012, the Company held five privgéee CMOs which had a current credit rating déast one rating below investment grade.

The following table details the five private issDBOs that were evaluated to determine if they vegéher-than-temporarily impaired at December 31,201

Cumulative
OTTI Current Average
Amortized Fair Outstanding Charges Year of Lowest Collateral Located in: FICO
Security Cost Value Principal Recorded Issuance Maturity  Rating CA FL VA NY NJ co Score
(Dollars in thousands
1 $ 988: $ 8,71t % 10,89: $ 3,47( 2006  05/25/3€ D 40% 16% 717
2 4,22: 3,562 4,35¢ 721 2006  08/19/3¢ D 58% 10% 737
8 4,637 4,35¢ 5,131 1,107 2006  08/25/3€ D 36% 16% 713
4 3,40¢ 3,19( 3,94¢ 78C 2006  08/25/3¢ D 40% 14% 13% 724
5 4,271 3,681 4,552 227 2006  03/25/3€ CcC 24% 21% 12% 12% 709

Total $ 2642¢  $ 23,47¢ 3% 28,87¢ $ 6,30¢

FNMA:

The unrealized losses in FNMA securities at Decar8tie 2012 consist of losses on one security. Tirealized losses were caused by movements in stteates. It is not anticipated t
this security would be settled at a price thaesslthan the amortized cost of the Compsitwestment. This security is performing accordimits terms and, in the opinion of managen
will continue to perform according to its terms.eT@ompany does not have the intent to sell thisrggcand it is more likely than not the Companyllwit be required to sell the secu
before recovery of the security’s amortized costidaThis conclusion is based upon consideringGbmpanys cash and working capital requirements and coni@h@nd regulatol
obligations, none of which the Company believes lidaause the sale of the security. Therefore, then@any did not consider this security to be othantemporarily impaired i
December 31, 2012.
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The following table details gross unrealized lossesrded in AOCI and the ending credit loss amanndebt securities, as of December 31, 2012, facmthe Company has recorded a
credit related OTTI charge in the Consolidated eSteents of Income:

Gross Unrealize
Losses Recorde  Ending Credi

(in thousands Amortized Cos Fair Value In AOCI Loss Amount
Private issued CMO® $ 26,42¢  $ 23,47¢  $ 2,95 $ 2,44(
Trust preferred securitiéB 9,26: A4.77F 4,487 3,73¢
Total $ 3569 $ 28,25. $ 744C % 6,17¢
(1) The Company has recorded OTTI charges in the Cinlagetl Statements of Income on five private issME8 and two pooled trust preferred securities foicl a portion of th

OTTl is currently recorded in AOC

The following table represents the activity relatedhe credit loss component recognized in eamorgdebt securities held by the Company for whiglortion of OTTI was recognized in
AOCI for the period indicated:

For the
year ended
(in thousands) December 31, 20:
Beginning balanc $ 6,927
Recognition of actual loss: (1,27))
OTTI charges due to credit loss recorded in eas 77¢€
Securities sold during the peri (249)
Securities where there is an intent to sell or ireguent to sell -
Ending balance $ 6,17¢

The amortized cost and estimated fair value ofdbmpany’s securities, classified as available &e st December 31, 2012, by contractual matuaity,shown below. Expected maturities
will differ from contractual maturities because tmwers may have the right to call or prepay oblma with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(In thousands

Due in one year or les $ 24227 $ 24,23:
Due after one year through five ye 59,01¢ 61,66¢
Due after five years through ten ye 39,83: 41,00:
Due after ten years 105,59( 102,55(

Total other securitie 228,66¢ 229,45
Mortgage-backed securities 687,28 720,11%

Total securities available for sale $ 915,947 $ 949 ,56¢

There were $0.2 million and $0.5 million in grossrg realized from the sale of securities availdbiesale for the years ended December 31, 20122846, respectively. There were $
million and $0.5 million in gross losses realizednh the sale of securities available for sale fer years ended December 31, 2012 and 2010, resggctiThere were no gross gains
losses realized on sales of securities availabledte for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidgfof securities available for sale at DecemberZi11:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gains Losses
(In thousands

U.S. government agenci $ 1,98 $ 2,03 $ 58 $ -
Other 26,557 21,24. 9 5,32¢
Corporate 20,777 20,59: - 18t
Mutual funds 21,36¢ 21,36¢ - -
Total other securities 70,68 65,24: 68 5,50¢
REMIC and CMC 460,82: 473,63¢ 22,79¢ 9,981
GNMA 62,04( 67,63: 5,592 -
FNMA 175,62° 182,63( 7,00: -
FHLMC 22,55¢ 23,381 831 -
Total mortgage-backed securities 721,04 747,28¢ 36,22 9,981
Total securities available for sale $ 791,73 $ 81253( $ 36,29 $ 15,49(

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table alioslade two private issue collateralized mortgagégation (‘CMO”) that are collateralized by commercial real estavetgages with ¢
amortized cost and market value of $19.0 milliod 19.2 million, respectively, at December 31, 20The remaining private issue mortgage-backedritgsiare backed by one-four
family residential mortgage loans.

The following table shows the Compasydvailable for sale securities with gross unredlilbsses and their fair value, aggregated by oateand length of time that individual securi
have been in a continuous unrealized loss posiéibbecember 31, 2011.

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands
Other $ 6,23¢ $ 532¢ $ 1997 $ 2 % 4,241  $ 5,322
Corporate 17,98( 18t 17,98( 18¢ - -
Total other securities 24,21¢ 5,50¢ 19,977 187 4,241 5,322
REMIC and CMO 38,68¢ 9,981 12,56( 124 26,124 9,851
Total securities available for sale $ 62,90: $ 1549 $ 32537 $ 311  $ 30,368 $ 15,17¢

Other Securities:
The unrealized losses in Other securities at Deeerilb, 2011, consisted of losses on two municipalisties, one single issuer trust preferred sgcamd two pooled trust prefer
securities.

The unrealized losses on the two municipal seesritiere caused by movements in interest ratesadtnet anticipated that these securities wouldeltted at a price that was less thar
amortized cost of the Compamsyinvestment. Each of these securities was perfyraccording to its terms, and, in the opinion @fnagement, would continue to perform accordings
terms. The Company did not have the intent toteelfe securities and it was more likely than netGompany would not be required to sell the sdesriefore recovery of the securi
amortized cost basis. This conclusion was based epasidering the Comparsycash and working capital requirements, and cottah and regulatory obligations, none of which
Company believes would cause the sale of the ssurTherefore, the Company did not consider timsestments to be other-than-temporarily impaae®ecember 31, 2011.

The unrealized losses on the single issuer tredeped securities and two pooled trust prefereszlisties were caused by market interest volatiitgignificant widening of credit spre:
across markets for these securities, and illiquiditd uncertainty in the financial markets. Theseusities were rated below investment grade. Thagubtrust preferred securities do
have collateral that is subordinate to the clagge®wn. The Company evaluated these securitieg wsinimpairment model, through an independent thady, that was applied to di
securities. In estimating other-théamporary impairment losses, management considéjetle length of time and the extent to whichftkie value had been less than amortized costhg
interest rate environment, (3) the financial caoditand neaterm prospects of the issuer, if applicable, andlé intent and ability of the Company to retaminvestment in the issuer fc
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticiea recovery in fair value. Additionally, managemeeviewed the financial condition of each indivadussuer within the pooled trt
preferred securities. All of the issuers of the enying collateral of the pooled trust preferredisities we reviewed are banks. For each bankreiew included the following performar
items of the banks:
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Ratio of tangible equity to assets

Tier 1 Risk Weighted Capital

Net interest margin

Efficiency ratio for most recent two quarters

Return on average assets for most recent two gearte

Texas Ratio (ratio of non-performing assets plsetspast due over 90 days divided by tangibleteglis the reserve for loan losses)
Credit ratings (where applicable)

Capital issuances within the past year (where egple)

Ability to complete FDIC assisted acquisitions (whepplicable)

Based on the review of the above factors, we calecluhat:
All of the performing issuers in our pools are wepitalized banks, and do not appear likely talbsed by their regulators.
All of the performing issuers in our pools will dotue as a going concern and will not default agirtsecurities.

Corporate:

The unrealized losses in corporate securities aedber 31, 2011 consisted of two private issues. Utirealized losses were caused by movementseresitrates. It was not anticipe
that these securities would be settled at a phiaewas less than the amortized cost of the Conipanyestment. Each of these securities was perf@raccording to its terms, and, in
opinion of management, would continue to perforoading to its terms. The Company did not haveitkent to sell these securities and it was morelyikhan not the Company would

be required to sell the securities before recoeétpe securities amortized cost basis. This caiciuwas based upon considering the Commaogsh and working capital requirements,
contractual and regulatory obligations, none ofalhithe Company believed would cause the sale o$d¢karities. Therefore, the Company did not cansidese investments to be other-
than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2011.

REMIC and CMO:

The unrealized losses in Real Estate Mortgage tmag Conduit (“REMIC”)and CMO securities at December 31, 2011 consisteikxdssues from the Federal Home Loan Mort(
Corporation (“FHLMC"), six issues from the Fedehstional Mortgage Association (“FNMA”), seven issuieom the Government National Mortgage Associa(fttBBNMA”") and eigh
private issues.

The unrealized losses on the REMIC and CMO seesriisued by FHLMC, FNMA and GNMA were caused byements in interest rates. It was not anticipalied these securities wol
be settled at a price that was less than the aredrtost of the Compars/investment. Each of these securities was perfyraccording to its terms, and, in the opinion @nagemen
would continue to perform according to its termeeTTompany did not have the intent to sell thesaritées and it was more likely than not the Compamuld not be required to sell |
securities before recovery of the securities amedticost basis. This conclusion was based uporideity the Companyg’ cash and working capital requirements, and cottah ant
regulatory obligations, none of which the Compamlidves would cause the sale of the securitiesréfbie, the Company did not consider these investsn® be other-thatemporarily
impaired at December 31, 2011.

The unrealized losses at December 31, 2011 on REMICCMO securities issued by private issuers watesed by movements in interest rates, a signifisgghening of credit sprea
across markets for these securities, and illiguiditd uncertainty in the financial markets. Eackhefe securities had some level of credit enhaeotsnand none were collateralized by sub-
prime loans. Six of these securities were perfograccording to their terms, with two securitiesiitéing less than the full principal amount dueheTprincipal loss for these two securi
totaled $0.9 million for the year ended December2Ril1. These losses were anticipated in the catimal OTTI charges recorded for these two secusritie

110




Credit related impairment for mortgagacked securities were determined for each sechyitgstimating losses based on the following setssuimptions, (1) delinquency and foreclo
levels, (2) projected losses at various loss sgvkvels and, (3) credit enhancement and coverdgsed on these reviews, an OTTI charge was redatdeng the year ended Decembel
2011, on four private issue CMOs of $4.6 milliorfdye tax, of which $1.1 million was charged agaieatnings in the Consolidated Statements of Incante$3.5 million before tax ($z
million after-tax) was recorded in AOCI. The Compaacorded credit related OTTI charges totalingL$8illion on four private issue CMOs during the yeaded December 31, 2010.

The portion of the above mentioned OTTI, recordednd) the year ended December 31, 2011, that watedeto credit losses was calculated using tHevidhg significant assumptions: |
delinquency and foreclosure levels of 10%-20% p@)jected loss severity of 30%- 50%, (3) assumddudierates of 5%-12% for the first 12 months, 2884 for the next 12 months, 2%-
8% for the next six months, 2%-4% for the nextrabnths and 2% thereafter, and prepayment speel3)6{30%.

It was not anticipated at that the four privataiessecurities for which an OTTI charge during tiearyended December 31, 2011 was not recorded, vbeusettled at a price that was

than the current amortized cost of the Comparigestment. Each of these securities was peifigrraccording to its terms and in the opinion ofnagement, will continue to perfo
according to their terms. The Company did not haeeintent to sell these securities and it was rfikedy than not the Company would not be requitedell the securities before recov
of the securities amortized cost basis. This ca@ictuwas based upon considering the Commaogsh and working capital requirements, and cottahand regulatory obligations, none
which the Company believes would cause the salbeo$ecurities. Therefore, the Company did noticenghese investments to be other-than-temporamipaired at December 31, 2011.

7. Bank Premises and Equipment, Net

Bank premises and equipment are as follows at DbeeBil:

2012 2011
(In thousands
$ 3551 % 3,551
Building and leasehold improvemel 22,12¢ 21,96¢
Equipment and furniture 18,06¢ 23,12¢
Total 43,74 48,64
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 21,24 24,22¢
Bank premises and equipment, net $ 22500 $ 24,41
8. Deposits
Total deposits at December 31, 2012 and 2011, fedeighted average rate on deposits at Decemb@032, are as follows:
Weighted
Average
Rate
2012 2011 2012

(Dollars in thousands
Interes-bearing deposit:

Certificate of deposit accour $ 1,253,220 $ 1,529,111 2.04%
Savings accoun 288,39¢ 349,63( 0.1¢
Money market accoun 148,61¢ 200,18: 0.1t
NOW accounts 1,136,59! 919,02¢ 0.57
Total interes-bearing deposit 2,826,84. 2,997,95;
Non-interest bearing demand deposits 155,78 118,50°
Total due to depositol 2,982,63: 3,116,45!
Mortgagors' escrow deposits 32,56( 29,78t 0.0¢
Total deposits $ 3,01519 $ 3,146,24
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The aggregate amount of time deposits with denatiing of $100,000 or more (excluding brokered dépdssued in $1,000.00 amounts under a masteificate of deposit) was $39:
million and $565.7 million at December 31, 2012 &0d 1, respectively. The aggregate amount of bezkeeposits was $522.1 million and $444.8 millioacember 31, 2012 and 20
respectively.

Deposits obtained from the governmental divisica @llateralized by securities or letters of crésbued by FHLBNY. The letters of credit are collateralized byrtgage loans pledged
the Bank.

At December 31, 2012, there were $439.5 milliosecurities and $414.6 million of letters of creuitdged as collateral for $697.0 million in goveemhdeposits. At December 31, 2(
there were $358.0 million in securities and $398illion of letters of credit pledged as collatefal $591.0 million in government deposits.

Interest expense on deposits is summarized asv®lior the years ended December 31:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Certificate of deposit accour $ 3298: $ 38,37 $ 39,04+
Savings account 68¢ 2,091 3,33¢
Money market accoun 39¢ 1,30¢ 3,71:
NOW account: 6,27¢ 6,61( 7,511
Total due to depositol 40,34¢ 48,38: 53,60:
Mortgagors' escrow deposits 36 49 53
Total interest expense on deposits $ 40,38: $ 48,43. $ 53,65¢
Scheduled remaining maturities of certificate gbalgt accounts are summarized as follows for tfeesyended December 31:
2012 2011
(In thousands

Within 12 months $ 410,05¢ $ 662,61(
More than 12 months to 24 moni 418,95¢ 249,32«
More than 24 months to 36 mont 248,59( 262,90«
More than 36 months to 48 mont 111,05« 219,86+
More than 48 months to 60 mont 33,04¢ 91,67¢
More than 60 months 31,52¢ 42,73(
Total certificate of deposit accounts $ 1,253,220 $ 1,529,111
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9. Borrowed Funds and Securities Sold Under Agreenés to Repurchase

Borrowed funds and securities sold under agreentemtpurchase are summarized as follows at Decegibe

Repurchase agreeme- fixed rate:
Due in 2012
Due in 2012
Due in 2014
Due in 201€
Due in 2017

Total repurchase agreements - fixed rate

FHLB-NY advance: fixed rate:
Due in 2012
Due in 2012
Due in 2014
Due in 201&
Due in 201€
Due in 2017
Total FHLB-NY advances - fixed rate

Junior subordinated debentu- adjustable rat
Due in 2037

Total borrowings
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2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands
- - 18,00( 4.71
30,00( 2.9z 30,00( 2.9z
9,30( 1.27 9,30( 1.27
88,00( 3.4z 70,00( 3.8¢
58,00( 4.1¢ 58,00( 4.1¢
185,30( 3.41 185,30( 3.77
- - 62,00( 855
142,00( 0.4C 10,00( 1.3C
129,91: 2.07 79,91! 3.0Z
166,34¢ 1.21 115,96 1.4%
158,63¢ 15 96,91¢ 1.9¢
142,28' 3.2¢ 108,73« 3.92
739,18: 1.6€ 473,52¢ 2.67
23,92 6.92 26,311 16.9¢€
948,40! 2.15% $ 685,13¢ 3.51%




Borrowings which have call provisions are summatiae follows at December 31, 2012:

Maturity
Amount Rate Date Call Date
(Dollars in thousands
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate $ 18,00( 4.2¢ 10/18/201 1/18/201:
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 10,00(¢ 4.8¢ 7/28/201¢ 1/28/201.
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 20,00( 5.0z 7/28/201¢ 1/28/201:
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 10,00(¢ 3.9¢ 7/27/201¢ 1/28/201.
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 10,00(¢ 2.81 5/7/201: 2/7/201%
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 10,00(¢ 2.91 8/7/201: 2/7/201%
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 20,00( 4.0t 9/19/201° 3/19/201:
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 20,00( 4.2€ 9/21/201° 3/21/201:
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 10,00(¢ 3.8¢ 6/27/201¢ 3/27/201:
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 18,00( 1.6C 4/19/201¢ 4/21/201:
Repurchase agreemer- fixed rate 20,00( 2.2C 7/12/201¢ 7/14/201:
FHLB-NY advance+ fixed rate 20,00( 4.4z 10/10/201 1/9/201:
FHLB-NY advance: fixed rate 30,00( 4.6C 10/10/201 1/9/201:
FHLB-NY advance+ fixed rate 10,00( 4,12 9/18/201° 3/18/201.
FHLB-NY advance: fixed rate 10,00( 4.3z 9/18/201° 3/18/201.
FHLB-NY advance+ fixed rate 10,00( 4,1t 9/18/201° 3/18/201.

As part of the Company’s strategy to finance inwestt opportunities and manage its cost of fundsGbmpany enters into repurchase agreements wokebdealers and the FHLBY.
These agreements are recorded as financing tramsaend the obligations to repurchase are refieatea liability in the consolidated financial staents. The securities underlying
agreements were delivered to the broker-dealetheoiFHLBNY who arranged the transaction. The securitiesaiemegistered in the name of the Company and ettened upon tt
maturity of the agreement. The Company retaingitite of substitution of collateral throughout ttegms of the agreements. All the repurchase agretsmare collateralized by mortgage-
backed securities. Information relating to thegieaments at or for the years ended December & fdlows:

2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands
Book value of collatere $ 228,62( $ 236,44¢
Estimated fair value of collater 228,62( 236,44¢
Average balance of outstanding agreements durigehi 185,30( 171,09:
Maximum balance of outstanding agreements at atmamd during the ye: 185,301 185,30(
Average interest rate of outstanding agreementsgltine yea 3.62% 4.07%

Pursuant to a blanket collateral agreement withRHEB-NY, advances are secured by all of the Barskéek in the FHLBNY and certain qualifying mortgage loans in an antat leas
equal to 110% of the advances outstanding. The Bemkalso pledge mortgage-backed and mortgagesdetscurities, and other securities not otherwiseéged.

The Holding Company has three trusts formed urfseddws of the State of Delaware for the purposissafing capital and common securities, and inmgstie proceeds thereof in jur
subordinated debentures of the Holding Companyh Béathese trusts issued $20.6 million of secuwsitidich had a fixedate for the first five years, after which theyaegquarterly based

a spread over 3-month LIBOR. The securities wenst fiallable at par after five years, and pay catinvg dividends. The Holding Company has guaranteedpayment of these trusts’
obligations under their capital securities. Then®of the junior subordinated debentures are theeses those of the capital securities issued byrtisés. The junior subordinated debent
issued by the Holding Company are carried at falu® in the consolidated financial statements.

114




The table below shows the terms of the securitigsad by the trusts.

Flushing Financial Flushing Financial Flushing Financial
Capital Trust Il Capital Trust Il Capital Trust IV
Issue Date June 20, 20C June 21, 20C July 3, 200
Initial Rate 7.14% 6.89% 6.85%
First Reset Dat September 1, 20: June 15, 201 July 30,201
Spread over-month LIBOR 1.41% 1.44% 1.42%
Maturity Date September 1, 20: September 15, 20 July 30, 203

The consolidated financial statements do not ireliné securities issued by the trusts, but ratidude the junior subordinated debentures of thieiHg Company.
10. Income Taxes

Flushing Financial Corporation files consolidatexti€ral and combined New York State and New York @icome tax returns with its subsidiaries, witle #xception of the trusts, wh
file separate Federal income tax returns as trastsFPFC, which files a separate Federal incomeetarn as a real estate investment trust. Thegaomremains subject to examination
its Federal income tax returns for the years endimgr after December 31, 2009, for its New Yorat&tincome tax returns for years ending on or d&tgember 31, 2010, and for its N
York City income tax returns for years ending onafter December 31, 2011. During the three yeade@rmecember 31, 2012, the Company did not recegamiy material amounts
interest or penalties on income taxes.

The Company’s annual tax liability for New York &eand New York City was the greater of a tax basedentire net income,” “alternative entire netame,” “taxable assetsr e
minimum tax. For the years ended December 31,,280P1 and 2010, the Company'’s state and city &eewased on “entire net income.”

In September 2010, the New York State legislat@gspd a significant change to New York State amygl t@k law for thrifts, such as the Savings Bank,eliminating the longstanding
"percentage of taxable income" as a method forrdeténg bad debt deductions. The change in thdawaxalso eliminated the requirement to recaptuxebtd debt reserves if a thrift fail
to meet the definition of a thrift institution unddew York State and City tax law.

The Savings Bank had historically reported in isaNYork State and City income tax returns a deduactor bad debts based on the amount allowed uhéegpercentage of taxable incc
method. This amount has historically exceeded &bt debts incurred by the Savings Bank. SinceStdngngs Bank had consistently stated its intentiioconvert to a more “commercial-
like” bank, which would have previously required the 8gsiBank to recapture this excess bad debt regfat\failed to meet the definition of a thrift uedthe New York State and City !
law, the Savings Bank had, in prior periods, reedrthe tax liability related to the possible recaptof the excess tax bad debt reserve. As a reftiie legislation passed by the New Y
State legislature, this tax liability will no longke required to be recaptured. As a result, thén§a Bank reversed approximately $5.5 million ef tax liabilities through income, during
year ended December 31, 20

Income tax provisions are summarized as followsHeryears ended December 31:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Federal:
Current $ 17,33 $ 17,31 $ 18,20¢
Deferred (590 43E 1,13¢
Total federal tax provision 16,74( 17,74¢ 19,34:
State and Loca
Current 5,321 5,47( 5,77
Deferred (219 25C (9,179
Total state and local tax provision 5,107 5,72( (3,402
Total income tax provision $ 21847 $ 23,46¢ $ 15,94
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The income tax provision in the Consolidated Statets of Income has been provided at effective raft&8.9%, 39.9% and 29.1% for the years ended ibee 31, 2012, 2011 and 20

respectively. The effective rates differ from thatstory federal income tax rate as follows for ylears ended December 31:

2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands
Taxes at federal statutory re $ 19,66: 35.(% $ 20,58¢ 35.(% $ 19,17 35.(%
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting frc
State and local income tax, net of Fedincome tax benef 3,32( 5.¢ 3,71¢ 6.2 (2,21)) (4.0
Other (1,139 (2.0 (835) (1.4 (1,020 (1.9
Taxes at effective rate $ 21,84 38.¢% $ 23,46¢ 39.% $ 15,94 29.1%
The components of the income taxes attributabledome from operations and changes in equity afellsvs for the years ended December 31:
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Income from operation $ 21,847 $ 23,46¢ $ 15,94:
Equity:
Change in fair value of securities available fde: 5,571 8,39¢ 2,71¢
Current year actuarial losses of postretirementg (340 (1,937 (513
Amortization of net actuarial losses and prior sErcredits 43€ 228 12C
Compensation expense for tax purposes in (excess$othan that recognized for financial reporfigposes 307 (292) (12
Total income taxes $ 27,82 $ 29,86t $ 18,25(
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The components of the net deferred tax assetslifiies) are as follows at December 31:

2012 2011
(In thousands

Deferred tax asse

Postretirement benefi $ 4112 $ 3,65¢
Allowance for loan losse 13,59: 13,30¢
Stock based compensati 2,37 1,942
Depreciatior 1,212 1,041
Fair value adjustment on financial assets caiat fair value 3,152 4,02¢
Othe-thar-temporary impairment charg 2,70 3,03t
Adjustment required to recognize funded statupostretirement pension pla 5,26€ 5,362
Other 1,991 1,871
Deferred tax asset 34,40( 34,23¢
Deferred tax liability:
Core deposit intangible 20t 411
Valuation differences resulting from acquilassets and liabilitie 2,84¢ 2,89¢
Fair value adjustment on financial liabilities ¢adrat fair value 15,78: 15,77¢
Unrealized gains on securities available for : 14,697 9,12(
Other 1,708 1,992
Deferred tax liability 35,237 30,19¢
Net deferred tax (liability) asset included in atliéabilities) asset: $ 8370 $ 4,04(

The Company has recorded a deferred tax asset4od $8illion. This represents the anticipated nelefal, state and local tax benefits expected toebézed in future years upon

utilization of the underlying tax attributes conginig this balance. The Company has reported taxabteme for federal, state, and local tax purpaeesach of the past three years
management’s opinion, in view of the Company’s jes, current and projected future earnings trémel probability that some of the Compas$35.2 million deferred tax liability can
used to offset a portion of the deferred tax assetyell as certain tax planning strategies, imase likely than not that the deferred tax assdthwei fully realized. Accordingly, no valuati
allowance was deemed necessary for the deferreast®t at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The Company does not have uncertain tax positioaisare deemed material. The Comparpolicy is to recognize interest and penaltiesnaome taxes in operating expenses. Durin
three years ended December 31, 2012, the Compdmpotirecognize any material amounts of interegenrlties on income taxes.

11. Stock Based Compensation

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 an@ #@1 Company’s net income, as reported, include8 #illion, $2.7 million and $2.2 million, respeetly, of stockbase:
compensation costs and $1.3 million, $1.1 milliow 0.9 million, respectively, of income tax betefielated to the stock-based compensations plans.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock ogtiasing the Blackscholes valuation model that uses the assumptiotesirin the table below. Key assumptions used timate the fai
value of stock options include the exercise prit¢he award, the expected option term, the expectdatility of the Company’s stock price, the rifilee interest rate over the options’
expected term and the annual dividend yield. Then@any uses the fair value of the common stock erd#te of award to measure compensation cost$tiated stock and restricted st
unit awards. Compensation cost is recognized dwewésting period of the award, using the strdigetmethod. There were no stock options grantedhfe years ended December 31, 2
2011 and 2010. There were 230,675, 214,095 an®269estricted stock units granted for the yeadedrDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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The 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“Omnibus Plameame effective on May 17, 2005 after approvathieystockholders. The Omnibus Plan authorizes trag@nsation Committee of 1
Company’s Board of Directors (the “Compensation @uttee”) to grant a variety of equity compensatawards as well as longrm and annual cash incentive awards, all of whanh b
structured so as to comply with Section 162(m)hef internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended Iftkerfial Revenue Code™Dn May 17, 2011, stockholders approved an amendto
the Omnibus Plan authorizing an additional 625,6808res available for use for full value awards.oh®ecember 31, 2012, there are 543,050 sharetablefor full value awards a
56,440 shares available for nault value awards. To satisfy stock option exersise fund restricted stock and restricted stock awiards, shares are issued from treasury stoekaifable
otherwise new shares are issued. The Companynailhitain separate pools of available shares féwvalle as opposed to ndall value awards, except that shares can be méneed the
non-full value pool to the full value pool on a @l basis. The exercise price per share of a stotkrogrant may not be less than the fair market@af the common stock of 1
Company, as defined in the Omnibus Plan, on the dagrant and may not be re-priced without therapgl of the Companyg stockholders. Options, stock appreciation rigtestricte
stock, restricted stock units and other stock baseatds granted under the Omnibus Plan are geperddject to a minimum vesting period of three geaith stock options having a }@ai
contractual term. Other awards do not have a cottahterm of expiration. Restricted stock unit adgainclude participants who have reached or argecto reaching retirement eligibili
at which time such awards fully vest. These amoargsncluded in stock-based compensation expense.

Full Value AwardsThe first pool is available for full value awardsich as restricted stock unit awards. The poollvldecreased by the number of shares grantedl &slfite awards. Tt
pool will be increased from time to time by: (1pthumber of shares that are returned to or retdiggie Company as a result of the cancellatiopiration, forfeiture or other terminati
of a full value award (under the Omnibus Plan); (& settlement of such an award in cash; (3) t#livety to the award holder of fewer shares thanntbmber underlying the awa
including shares which are withheld from full valaeards: or (4) the surrender of shares by an atvaldkr in payment of the exercise price or taxéh vespect to a full value award. 1
Omnibus Plan will allow the Company to transferrsisfrom the non-full value pool to the full valpeol on a 3-fort basis, but does not allow the transfer of shixces the full value poc
to the non-full value pool.

The following table summarizes the Company’s fallue awards at or for the year ended December®D:2

WeightedAverage

Grant-Date

Full Value Awards Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at December 31, 2C 363,58¢ $ 13.52
Grantec 230,67! 13.2¢
Vested (266,801) 13.51
Forfeited (9,407 13.5¢
Non-vested at December 31, 2012 318,05. $ 13.3%
Vested but unissued at December 31, 2012 208,56. $ 13.4(

As of December 31, 2012, there was $3.2 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost related tevested full value awards granted under the Omnitias. That cost is expected tc
recognized over a weightexderage period of 3.1 years. The total fair valfiawards vested for the years ended December(@P, 2011 and 2010 were $3.3 million, $1.8 millaord $1..
million, respectively. The vested but unissued ¥alue awards consist of awards made to emplogedsdirectors who are eligible for retirement. Acting to the terms of the Omnik
Plan, these employees and directors have no rifdefgiture. These shares will be issued at thegimal contractual vesting dates.

Nor-Full Value Awards: The second pool is available for nfrit value awards, such as stock options. The polblbe increased from time to time by the numbesloares that are returr
to or retained by the Company as a result of timeaéation, expiration, forfeiture or other termiioa of a nonfull value award (under the Omnibus Plan or the618fck Option Incentiy
Plan). The second pool will not be replenishedshgres withheld or surrendered in payment of tlezoise price or taxes, retained by the Company resut of the delivery to the aw:
hold of fewer shares than the number underlyingathard, or the settlement of the award in cash.
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The following table summarizes certain informatregarding the non-full value awards, all of whidvk been granted as stock options, at or for thegeded December 31, 2012:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value
Non-Full Value Awards Shares Price Term (years ($000)*
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 975,64( $ 15.1¢
Grantec - -
Exercisec (150,229) 11.97
Forfeited (55,060 13.3¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 770,358 $ 15.97 2.9 $ 812
Exercisable shares at December 31, 2012 708,39' $ 16.32 2.7 $ 502
Vested but unexercisable share
December 31, 2012 2266( $ 11.5¢ 5.9 $ 112

* The intrinsic value of a stock option is the éiftnce between the market value of the underlytmgksand the exercise price of the option.

As of December 31, 2012, there was $40,000 of totaécognized compensation cost related to unvesiadull value awards granted under the Omnibus Plédat Eost is expected to
recognized over a weighted-average period of OzBsyeThe vested but unexercisable flhvalue awards were made to employees who agibld for retirement. According to the ter
of the Omnibus Plan, these employees and direbtors no risk of forfeiture. These shares will kereisable at the original contractual vesting slate

Cash proceeds, fair value received, tax benefits,i@trinsic value related to stock options exardisand the weighted average grant date fair Valueptions granted, during the years er

December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are provideckifoifowing table:

(In thousands, except grant date fair val 2012 2011 2010

Proceeds from stock options exerci: $ 88t $ 2,04C $ 45¢
Fair value of shares received upon exercise oksiptions 90t 54 37C
Tax benefit related to stock options exerci 56 184 19
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis 25€ 427 182
Weighted average fair value on grant ¢ n/a n/a n/a

Phantom Stock PlarThe Company maintains a nopralified phantom stock plan as a supplement tpritit sharing plan for officers who have achievbd level of Senior Vice Presiden
and above and completed one year of service. Hemwefficers who had achieved at least the leveVioe President and completed one year of servim@ o January 1, 2009 rem:;
eligible to participate in the phantom stock pla&wards are made under this plan on certain congimsnot eligible for awards made under the prslfiaring plan, due to the terms of
profit sharing plan and the Internal Revenue Cé&ueployees receive awards under this plan propateto the amount they would have received undepthfit sharing plan, but for limi
imposed by the profit sharing plan and the InteR@venue Code. The awards are made as cash aaadd$ien converted to common stock equivalentsnfphashares) at the then curi
market value of the Company’s common stock. Dividieare credited to each employeatcount in the form of additional phantom shamsh time the Company pays a dividend o
common stock. In the event of a change of conasldefined in this plan), an employg@iterest is converted to a fixed dollar amourtt deemed to be invested in the same manner
interest in the Savings Bank’s ngoalified deferred compensation plan. Employees veder this plan 20% per year for 5 years. Empsyalso become 100% vested upon a char
control. Employees receive their vested intereshia plan in the form of a cash lump sum paymeninstallments, as elected by the employee, aéianination of employment. T

Company adjusts its liability under this plan te fair value of the shares at the end of each gerio
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The following table summarizes the Company’s Phan&tock Plan at or for the year ended Decembe2@12:

Phantom Stock Pla Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 39,258 $ 12.63
Grantec 11,63: 13.31
Forfeited - -
Distributions (820 14.0¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 50,067 $ 15.3¢
Vested at December 31, 2012 49,79  $ 15.3¢

The Company recorded stobesed compensation expense (benefit) for the ptrastock plan of $155,000, $(34,000) and $95,00GHeryears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
respectively. The total fair value of distributioinem the phantom stock plan were $5,000, $3,0@D$5000 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 26d 2010, respectively.

12. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors a qualified pension, 401¢g,mofit sharing plan for its employees. The Compalso sponsors postretirement health care aadnlfurance benefits plans for
employees, a non-qualified deferred compensatian far officers who have achieved the level ofast senior vice president, and a non-qualifiedsiperplan for its outside directors.

The Company recognizes the funded status of a ivgub@h — measured as the difference between Haets at fair value and the benefit obligatian the statement of financial conditi
with the unrecognized credits and charges recodnizet of taxes, as a component of accumulated otiraprehensive income. These credits or chargeseas a result of gains or los
and prior service costs or credits that arose duprior periods but were not recognized as compisneh net periodic benefit cost. The amounts reco in accumulated ott
comprehensive income, on a pre-tax basis, consieedollowing, as of December 31:

Net Actuarial

Prior Service

loss (gain} cost (credit) Total
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Employee Retirement Plz $ 11,84: $ 12,22:  $ 9,14¢ $ - 0% - $ - 0% 11,84: $ 12,22:  $ 9,14¢
Other Postretirement Benefit Ple 1,19¢ 1,02¢ 342 (7949 (879 (964) 40t 14¢ (622)
Outside Directors Plan (409 (399 (515 21C 25C 29C (199 (144 (225)
Total $ 12,631 $ 1285 $ 8,97t $ (589 $ (629 $ 6749 $ 12,04¢ $ 12,22¢  $ 8,301
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Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive incanieetrecognized as components of net periodic esepfem these plans in 2013 are as follows:

Net Actuarial Prior Service
loss (gain] cost (credit) Total
(In thousands
Employee Retirement Pl $ 1,22: % - 0% 1,22
Other Postretirement Benefit Ple 50 (85) (35)
Outside Directors Plan (36) 40 4
$ 123 $ (45 $ 1,191

Employee Retirement Plan:

The Savings Bank has a funded noncontributory défisenefit retirement plan covering substantidllpfits salaried employees who were hired befdeptember 1, 2005 (th&etiremer
Plan”). The benefits are based on years of semkthe employes’compensation during the three consecutive yaarsfathe final ten years of service, which was péeted prior ti
September 30, 2006, the date the Retirement Planfiwaen, that produces the highest average. Thk’Bdunding policy is to contribute annually the ambuwecommended by t
Retirement Plan’s actuary. The Bank’s RetiremeanRhvests in diversified equity and fixattome funds, which are independently managed third party. The Company contribui
$0.7 million and $2.7 million to the Retirement Rlduring the years ended December 31, 2012 and. ZDié Company did not make a contribution to tle¢ir@ment Plan during the y¢
ended December 31, 2010. The Company used a Dec&thineeasurement date for the Retirement Plan.

The following table sets forth, for the Retirem®n, the change in benefit obligation and asseid for the Company, the amounts recognized ilCthresolidated Statements of Financial
Condition at December 31:

2012 2011
(In thousands

Change in benefit obligatiol

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 21,10: $ 17,97:
Service cos - -
Interest cos 87¢ 91¢
Actuarial loss 1,42¢ 3,101
Benefits paid (877) (891
Projected benefit obligation at end of year 22,53: 21,10
Change in plan asse
Market value of assets at beginning of y 15,42: 13,027
Actual return on plan asse 2,032 551
Employer contribution 728 2,73¢
Benefits paid (877) (891
Market value of plan assets at end of year 17,30( 15,42:
Accrued pension cost included in other liabilities $ (523) $ (5,680

Assumptions used to determine the Retirement Plzamefit obligations are as follows at December 31:

2012 2011
Weighted average discount ri 3.7% 4.25%
Rate of increase in future compensation le n/e n/e
Expected lon-term rate of return on ass¢ 7.5(% 8.0(%

121




The accumulated benefit obligation for the Retiratriélan was $22.5 million and $21.1 million at Dexber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The components of the net pension expense for ¢tieeent Plan are as follows for the years endecebhber 31:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Service cos $ = - % 63
Interest cos 87¢ 91¢ 892
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 1,032 63¢ 362
Expected return on plan assets (1,259 (1,169 (1,247)
Net pension expense (benefit) 654 394 70
Current year actuarial (gain) lo 652 3,71« 1,46¢
Amortization of actuarial loss (1,039 (639 (362)
Total recognized in other comprehensive income (380 3,07t 1,10¢
Total recognized in net pension cost (benefit) ater
comprehensive income $ 274 $ 3,46¢ $ 1,17¢
Assumptions used to develop periodic pension aoshie Retirement Plan for the years ended DeceBiberere:
2012 2011 2010
Weighted average discount ri 4.25% 5.28% 5.75%
Rate of increase in future compensation le n/e n/e n/e
Expected lon-term rate of return on asst 7.5(% 8.0(% 8.5(%
The following benefit payments, which reflect exjgecfuture service, are expected to be paid byRiteement Plan:
Future
Benefit
For the years ending December 31: Payment:
(In thousands
2013 $ 1,02z
2014 1,042
2015 1,10(
2016 1,13¢
2017 1,151
2018- 2022 5,931

The long-term rate-of-return-amssets assumption was set based on historicahsegarned by equities and fixed income securiddfysted to reflect expectations of future retuse
applied to the plan's target allocation of assess#s. Equities and fixed income securities wesenasd to earn real rates of return in the rang@€s1di% and 3%, respectively. When the
overall return expectations are applied to the ptanget allocation, the result is an expectednetten of 6% to 10%.
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The Retirement Plan’s weighted average asset éilbmsaat December 31, by asset category, were:

2012 2011
Equity securitie: 64% 64%
Debt securitie: 3€% 36%

Plan assets are invested in a diversified mix oflstand bond investment funds on the pooled accawotip annuity platform of Prudential Retiremeengces. Each fund has its o
investment objectives, investment strategies asid ras detailed in its prospectus.

The long-term investment objectives are to maingdam assets at a level that will sufficiently col@ngterm obligations and to generate a return on ptseta that will meet or exceed
rate at which long-term obligations will grow. Arobination of equity and fixed income portfolios aiged to help achieve these objectives based @mgadrm, liability based strategic n
of 60% equities and 40% fixed income. Adjustmentthis mix are made periodically based on currepital market conditions and plan funding levelstférmance of the investment fu
managers is monitored on an ongoing basis usingemaqgbrtfolio risk analysis and appropriate indexn¢hmarks.

The Savings Bank expects to make a contributiddBafL,000 to the Retirement Plan in 2013.

Equity

Equity funds are primarily invested in equity séties. The estimated fair value of mutual fundbased upon the closing price of the applicabldange (Level 1).

Fixed Income Securities

Fixed income securities are composed primarilyahéstic fixed income securities. The estimatedvaliue of fixed income securities is based upootegh market prices using inputs s
as benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealetes and issuer spreads (Level 2).

Other

The prudential short term fund is primarily invekte short term securities. The estimated fair gafithe Prudential short term fund is based uperamortized cost of the securities it h
(Level 2).

The following table sets forth the employee pengitam’s assets that are carried at fair value,thadnethod that was used to determine their fdireyaat December 31, 2012:

Quoted Prices Significant Significant
in Active Other Other
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assel Inputs Inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In thousands
Equity
U.S. larg-cap growth (a $ 3,406 $ 340 $ - 3 =
U.S. larg-cap value (b 3,91 3,912 - -
U.S. sma-cap blend (c 1,98( 1,98C - -
International blend (¢ 1,831 1,837 - -
Fixed Income Securitie
PIMCO bond fund (e 5,82( - 5,82( -
Other
Prudential short term (f) 34E - 34E -
Total $ 17,30C $ 11,13 $ 6,168 $ =
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(@) Comprised of larc-cap stocks seeking to outperform, over the long téne Russell 1000 Growth Index. The portfolidl tyipically hold between 55 and 70 stoc

(b) Comprised of larc-cap stocks seeking to outperform the Russell ® Value benchmark over the rolling three and fiverygeriods, or a full market cycle, whichever isden.

(c) Comprised of stocks with market capitalization efvbeen $100 million and the market capitalizatiérine largest stock in the Russell 2000 index atttme of purchase. T
portfolio will typically hold between 40 and 10®sks.

(d) Comprised of na-U.S. domiciled stocks. The portfolio will typicalhold between 80 and 90 stoc

(e) Comprised of a portfolio of fixed income securitiesluding U.S agency mortge-backed securities and investment grade bc

) Comprised of money market instruments with an ersjgshan safety and liquidit

Other Postretirement Benefit Plans:

The Company sponsors two unfunded postretirememeftigplans (the “Postretirement Plans”) that coabrretirees who were futime permanent employees with at least five yeé
service, and their spouses. Effective January 112€¢he Postretirement Plans are no longer aveilédnl new hires. One plan provides medical benefiteugh a 50% cost shari
arrangement. Effective January 1, 2000, the spoof@sure retirees were required to pay 100% ef phemiums for their coverage. The other plan glewilife insurance benefits ant
noncontributory. Effective January 1, 2010, lifsunance benefits are not available for future eesr Under these programs, eligible retirees recéfietime medical and life insurar
coverage for themselves and lifetime medical cayefar their spouses. The Company reserves thetogimend or terminate these plans at its dismreti

Comprehensive medical plan benefits equal the lesk¢he normal plan benefit or the total amount paid by Medicare. Life insurance benefits forirests are based on anr
compensation and age at retirement. As of DeceBthe2012, the Company has not funded these pldresCbmpany used a December 31 measurement ddkeferplans.

The following table sets forth, for the Postretimrh Plans, the change in benefit obligation an@tassnd for the Company, the amounts recognizatenConsolidated Statements
Financial Condition at December 31:

2012 2011
(In thousands

Change in benefit obligatiol

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 516¢ $ 4,01z
Service cos 40C 31z
Interest cos 217 207
Actuarial loss (gain 211 68€
Benefits paid (67) (53

Projected benefit obligation at end of year 5,92 5,16¢

Change in plan asse
Market value of assets at beginning of y - -
Employer contribution 67 53
Benefits paid (67) (53

Market value of plan assets at end of year -

Accrued pension cost included in other liabilities $ (5,927) $ (5,16€)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Pogteetent Plans was $5.9 million and $5.2 million acBmber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Assumptions used in determining the actuarial presalue of the accumulated postretirement bewéfigations at December 31 are as follows:

2012 2011
Rate of return on plan ass n/e n/e
Discount rate 3.7%% 4.25%
Rate of increase in health care cc
Initial 10.0(% 10.5(%
Ultimate (year 2017 5.0(% 5.5(%
Annual rate of salary increase for life insura n/e n/e
The resulting net periodic postretirement expemssisted of the following components for the yesarded December 31:
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands
Service cos $ 40C % 31z % 271
Interest cos 217 207 21C
Amortization of unrecognized (gain) lo 40 - 8
Amortization of past service (credit) liability (85) (85) (85)
Net postretirement benefit expense 572 43E 404
Current year actuarial (gain) lo 211 68€ (14))
Amortization of actuarial gai (40) - 8)
Amortization of prior service credit 85 85 85
Total recognized in other comprehensive income 25€ 771 (64)
Total recognized in net postretirement expenseatinelr comprehensive income $ 82t $ 1,206 $ 34C
Assumptions used to develop periodic postretireregpense for the Postretirement Plans for the yazded December 31 were:
2012 2011 2010
Rate of return on plan ass n/e n/e n/e
Discount rate 4.25% 5.7%% 5.7%%
Rate of increase in health care cc
Initial 10.5(% 11.5(% 12.0%
Ultimate (year 2017 5.5(% 5.5(% 5.0(%
Annual rate of salary increase for life insura n/e n/e n/e

The health care cost trend rate assumptions haigndicant effect on the amounts reported. A oeecpntage point change in assumed health care teg@sl would have the followil
effects:

Increase Decreast
(In thousands
Effect on postretirement Hérgbligation $ 1,028 $ (795)
Effect on total service anterest cos 15¢ (12))

The Company expects to pay benefits of $161,00@wuitsl Postretirement Plans in 2013.
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The following benefit payments under the Postratgat Plan, which reflect expected future service expected to be paid

Future Benefi

For the years ending December 31: Payment:
(In thousands
2013 $ 161
2014 162
2015 184
2016 201
2017 221
2018- 2022 1,30¢

Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company maintains a tax qualified 401(k) pldricl covers substantially all salaried employees Wave completed one year of service. Currentlguahmatching contributions unc
the Bank’s 401(k) plan equal 50% of the employ@estributions, up to a maximum of 3% of the emplgecompensation. In addition, the 401(k) plan inekithe Defined Contributit
Retirement Plan (“DCRP”), under which the Bank citmites an amount equal to 4% of an employee’sbdéigcompensation as defined in the plan, and todéitFSharing Plan (“PSB;
under which at the discretion of the CompanBoard of Directors a contribution is made. Cibntiions for the DCRP and PSP are made in the far@ompany common stock at or a
the end of each year. Annual contributions undeséhplans are subject to the limits imposed urtdetriternal Revenue Code. Contributions by the Gompnto the 401(k) plan vest 2(
per year over the employee's first five years afise. Contributions to these plans also 100% wesin a change of control (as defined in the appleeplan). Compensation expe
recorded by the Company for these plans amount8a.tmillion, $2.3 million and $2.2 million for ¢hyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 20@&ctasely.

The Bank provides a nogualified deferred compensation plan as an incerfov officers who have achieved the level of asteSenior Vice President and have at least oneofeservice
However, officers who had achieved at least thellef Vice President and completed one year ofiseprior to January 1, 2009 remain eligible totiggrate in the plan. In addition to 1
amounts deferred by the officers, the Bank mat&®8sé of their contributions, generally up to a maximof 5% of the officerssalary. Matching contributions under this plan \28% pe
year for five years. They also become 100% vespesha change of control (as defined in the plamm@ensation expense recorded by the Company ®ptan amounted to $0.4 millic
$0.3 million and $0.3 million for the years endeeld@mber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Employee Benefit Trust:

An Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT”) has been estdi®id to assist the Company in funding its beneéihpdbligations. In connection with the Savings Bargonversion to a federal stc
savings bank in 1995, the EBT borrowed $7,928,00t fthe Company and used $7,000 of cash receiwad fine Savings Bank to purchase 2,328,750 shargeafommon stock of tl
Company. The loan was repaid from the Compariscretionary contributions to the EBT and dividegpayments received on common stock held by th&. ERiring the year end
December 31, 2010, the loan was fully repaid. @éwid payments received subsequent to the loan bepaid are used to purchase additional sharesrofmon stock. Shares purcha
with the loan proceeds are held in a suspense atémucontribution to specified benefit plans. 8fwreleased from the suspense account are usdd fewlfunding matching contributio
under the Savings Bark’401(k) plan, contributions to the 401(k) plan foe DCRP, and contributions to the PSP. Since @ncentributions are discretionary with the Compam
dependent upon employee contributions, compensgtigable under the EBT cannot be estimated. Foy¢laes ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 201GC¢hgpany funded $2
million, $2.0 million and $1.6 million, respectiyelof employer contributions to the 401(k) and fireharing plans from the EBT.

Upon a change of control (as defined in the EBM§ EBT will terminate and any trust assets remgirafter repayment of the Compasyloan to the EBT and certain benefit |

contributions will be distributed to all futlme employees of the Company with at least one geaervice, in proportion to their compensatimeiothe four most recently completed cale!
years plus the portion of the current year pricthtermination of the EB”
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As shares are released from the suspense accoher@ompany reports compensation expense equag tcuthent market price of the shares, and the shmeome outstanding for earni
per share computations. The EBT shares are asviold December 31:

2012 2011
Shares owned by Employee Benefit Trust, beginnalgrize 1,147,33; 1,248,57!
Shares purchase¢ 39,15t 43,06¢
Shares released and allocated (157,92)) (144,31)
Shares owned by Employee Benefit Trust, endingrizala 1,028,56! 1,147,33;
Market value of unallocated shares. $ 15,778,118 $ 14,490,80

Outside Director Retirement Plan:

The Bank has an unfunded noncontributory definatefieOutside Director Retirement Plan (the “Dimst Plan”), which provides benefits to each remployee director who becam
non-employee director before January 1, 2004, wdmo dt least five years of service as a non-empldjreetor and whose years of service as a eroployee director plus age equal
exceeds 55. Benefits are also payable to a nonegrgldirector who became a non-employee directmréddanuary 1, 2004 and whose status as ampieyee director terminates bece
of death or disability or who is a non-employeeedior upon a change of control (as defined in tlredfors’ Plan). Any person who became a eomployee director after January 1, 20C
not eligible to participate in the Directomlan. An eligible director who terminates after Mmber 22, 2005 will be paid an annual retiremenefieequal to $48,000. Such benefit will
paid in equal monthly installments for the lessethe number of months such director served asnaemaployee director or 120 months. In the event ifrmination of Board service due
a change of control, a non-employee director whodwenpleted at least two years of service as aemgployee director will receive a cash lump sum paynequal to 120 months of bene
and a noremployee director with less than two years of serwiill receive a cash lump sum payment equalrtaraber of months of benefit equal to the numbenonths of his service a:
non-employee director. In the event of the diréstaleath, the surviving spouse will receive the eajent benefit. No benefits will be payable to eedtor who is removed for cause.
Holding Company has guaranteed the payment of ienefder the Directors’ Plan. Upon adopting theebiors’Plan, the Bank elected to immediately recognizeefffiect of adopting tt
Directors’ Plan. Subsequent plan amendments aretewas a past service liability. The Bank us&@kaember 31 measurement date for the Directoasi.PI

The following table sets forth, for the DirectoRan, the change in benefit obligation and assetd,for the Company, the amounts recognized irCiresolidated Statements of Finan
Condition at December 31:

2012 2011
(In thousands

Change in benefit obligatiol

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 2647 $ 2,47:
Service cos 80 70
Interest cos 11C 124
Actuarial (loss) gait (44) 67
Benefits paid (87) (87)

Projected benefit obligation at end of year 2,70€ 2,647

Change in plan asse
Market value of assets at beginning of y - -

Employer contribution 87 87
Benefits paid (87) (87)
Market value of plan assets at end of year - -
Accrued pension cost included in other liabilities $ (2,70 $ (2,647)
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The accumulated benefit obligation for the Direstétlan was $2.7 million and $2.6 million at DeceanB1, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The components of the net pension expense for iteetdrs’ Plan are as follows for the years endeddnber 31:

2012 2010
(In thousands
Service cos $ 80 $ 70 % 66
Interest cos 11C 124 13C
Amortization of unrecognized ga (29) (54) (598)
Amortization of past service liability 40 40 40
Net pension expense 201 18C 17¢
Current actuarial loss (gai (44) 67 (23)
Amortization of actuarial gai 29 54 58
Amortization of prior service cost (40) (40) (40)
Total recognized in other comprehensive income (55) 81 (5)
Total recognized in net pension expense and otirapeehensive income $ 146 $ 261 $ 172
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligatiords@eriodic pension expense for the Directors’ Ptarthe years ended December 31 were:
2012 2010
Weighted average discount rate for the benefitgaltion 3.7%% 4.25% 5.25%
Weighted average discount rate for periodic penbmmefit expens 4.25% 5.25% 5.7%%
Rate of increase in future compensation le n/e n/e n/e

The following benefit payments under the Directd®&n, which reflect expected future service, aygeeted to be paid:

For the years ending December 31:

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018- 2022

The Bank expects to make payments of $216,000 utsdBirectors’ Plan in 2013.
13. Stockholders’ Equity

Dividend Restrictions on the Bank:

Future Benefi
Payment:
(In thousands
$ 21€

26C
28¢
28¢
28¢€
1,39¢

In connection with the Savings Baslk¢onversion from mutual to stock form in Novemb@85, a special liquidation account was establisttetle time of conversion, in accordance witt
requirements of its primary regulator, which wasado its capital as of June 30, 1995. The ligtic@aaccount is reduced as and to the extent tigable account holders have reduced t
qualifying deposits. Subsequent increases in depdsinot restore an eligible account holdénterest in the liquidation account. Subsequethé Merger, the Bank assumed the liquid:
account. In the event of a complete liquidationhef Bank, each eligible account holder will be tedi to receive a distribution from the liquidatiancount in an amount proportionate ta
current adjusted qualifying balances for accoums theld. As of December 31, 2012, the Bank’s digtion account was $1.3 million, and was presewti#huin retained earnings.

In addition to the restriction described above, N¢ovk State and Federal banking regulations plaréam restrictions on dividends paid by the Bamkhte Holding Company. The to
amount of dividends which may be paid at any datgeinerally limited to the net income of the Baokthe current year and prior two years, less amygleinds previously paid from thc

earnings. As of December 31, 2012, the Bank had3®®dlion in retained earnings available to distiie to the Holding Company in the form of cashdéwnds.
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In addition, dividends paid by the Bank to the HoeidCompany would be prohibited if the effect tr#revould cause the Savings Baslcapital to be reduced below applicable minir
capital requirements.

As a bank holding company, the Holding Companyulgject to similar dividend restrictions.
Stockholder Rights Plan:

The Holding Company has adopted a Shareholder ®igkin under which each stockholder has one rigptutchase from the Holding Company, for each sbh@mmon stock owne
one onehundredth of a share of Series A junior participgupreferred stock at a price of $65. The rights bécome exercisable only if a person or groupu&eg 15% or more of tl
Holding Companys common stock or commences a tender or excharfgevdiich, if consummated, would result in thatgmer or group owning at least 15% of the Common ISt
“acquiring person or group”In such case, all stockholders other than the aicguperson or group will be entitled to purchaseg,paying the $65 exercise price, Common Stocka
common stock equivalent) with a value of twice thercise price. In addition, at any time aftertsewent, and prior to the acquisition by any persomroup of 50% or more of t
Common Stock, the Board of Directors may, at it8asp require each outstanding right (other thats held by the acquiring person or group) toxshanged for one share of Comr
Stock (or one common stock equivalent). If a persogroup becomes an acquiring person and the hipl@ompany is acquired in a merger or other businembination or sells more tt
50% of its assets or earning power, each right evititle all other holders to purchase, by paynwdr#65 exercise price, common stock of the acqgidampany with a value of twice 1
exercise price. The rights plan expires on Septerd®g2016.

Treasury Stock Transactions:

The Holding Company repurchased 352,000 commoreshatran average cost of $14.26 during the yeazdeBecember 31, 2012. The Holding Company repuech&84,088 commc
shares at an average cost of $11.72 during thegrefed December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2012988 shares remain to be repurchased under thentstock repurchase progr:
Stock will be purchased under the current stockirepase program from time to time, in the open madk through private transactions, subject to macknditions and at the discretior
the management of the Company. There is no ex@irati maximum dollar amount under this authorizatio

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):

The components of accumulated other comprehenssgeat December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the changag the year ended December 31, 2012 are asvsillo

Other
December 31, Comprehensiv December 31,
2012 Income 2011
(In thousands
Net unrealized gain on securitiavailable for sali $ 18,92. % 724: % 11,67¢
Net actuarial loss on pension plans other postretirement benef (7,109¢) 10¢ (7,216
Prior service credit on pension plans and othetrptiement benefits 324 (26) 35(
Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 12,137 % 732¢  $ 4,81

Shelf Registration Statement:

On November 18, 2010, the Company filed a shelfstegfion statement which allows the Company tdquically offer and sell, individually or in any owination, preferred stoc
common stock, warrants to purchase preferred omemmstock, and debt securities, up to a total af081 million. The shelf registration was declardféaive on April 8, 2011. Tt
Company’s ability to issue debt or equity undes stielf registration is subject to market condgiand its capital needs.
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14. Regulatory Capital

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvendet of 1991 (“FDICIA”) imposes a number of mandatory supervisory measandsanks and thrift institutions. Among ot
matters, FDICIA established five capital zoneslassifications (welleapitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapgdlimignificantly undercapitalized and criticallydercapitalized). Su
classifications are used by bank regulatory agertcigletermine matters ranging from each institisa@uarterly FDIC deposit insurance premium assessnt® approvals of applicatic
authorizing institutions to grow their asset sizeotherwise expand business activities. Under otircapital regulations, the Bank is required to pgnwith each of three separate caj
adequacy standards. As of December 31, 2012, thk &antinues to be categorized as “well-capitalizedder the prompt corrective action regulations emtinues to exceed all regulat
capital requirements.

Set forth below is a summary of the Bank’s commlewith banking regulatory capital standards.

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Percent of Percent of
Amount Assets Amount Assets

(Dollars in thousands

Tier | (leverage) capita

Capital level $ 425,14¢ 9.62% $ 410,35¢ 9.62%

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 220,98( 5.0C 213,15¢ 5.0C

Excess 204,16¢ 4.62 197,20( 4.6:
Tier | risk-based capita

Capital level $ 425,14¢ 14.3t% $ 410,35¢ 14.2%

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 177,40: 6.0C 172,61: 6.0C

Excess 247,74¢ 8.3¢ 237,74! 8.2¢€
Total risk-based capita

Capital level $ 456,25: 15.4% $ 440,70( 15.3%

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 295,66¢ 10.0(¢ 287,68« 10.0C

Excess 160,58¢ 5.42 153,01¢ 5.3Z

As a result of its conversion to a bank holding pamy on February 28, 2013, the Holding Company fmecsubject to the same regulatory capital requintsnas the Bank. If the Holdi
Company had been subject to regulatory capitalireopents at December 31, 2012, its tangible, leyerand core, and ridkased capital ratios would have been 10.06%, 14,.&8%
15.95%, respectively, and it would have been caiego “well-capitalized” under regulatory guidelsat December 31, 2012.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments:

The Company is a party to financial instrumentshwaitf-balancesheet risk in the normal course of business to tineefinancing needs of its customers. These filhitstruments incluc
commitments to extend credit and lines of credlite instruments involve, to varying degrees, eldmen credit and market risks in excess of the amoecognized in the consolida
financial statements.

The Companys exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperéorce by the counterparty to the financial instminfer loan commitments and lines of credit is eggmted by tt
contractual amounts of these instruments.

Commitments to extend credit (principally real estaortgage loans) and lines of credit (principdibme equity lines of credit and business linesreftlit) amounted to $46.5 million &
$135.8 million, respectively, at December 31, 20b2luded in these commitments were $22.0 millibfixed-rate commitments at a weighted average rate oPb,38d $160.3 million «
adjustablerate commitments with a weighted average rate fd3cember 31, 2012, of 3.38%. Since generallyohthe loan commitments are expected to be dravamughe total loa
commitments approximate future cash requiremertigreas the amounts of lines of credit may not beative of the Compang'future cash requirements. The loan commitmentsnady
expire in 90 days, while construction loan linesdit mature within eighteen months and hometgduies of credit mature within ten years. The @amy uses the same credit policie
making commitments and conditional obligationstates for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are legally bindingeagnents to lend to a customer as long as there solation of any condition established in thenitact. Commitments generally hi
fixed expiration dates and require payment of aTé® Company evaluates each customer’s creditwedh on a case-by-case basis. Collateral heldstemsimarily of real estate.
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The Bank collateralized a portion of its depositthetters of credit issued by FHLB-NY. At Deceemt81, 2012 there were $414.6 million of letters of creditstanding. The letters
credit are collateralized by mortgage loans pledgethe Bank.

The Trusts issued capital securities in June ahd2007 with a par value of $61.9 million. The Hisig Company has guaranteed the payment of the Sreisligations under these cap
securities.

The Company’s minimum annual rental payments farlBaremises due under non-cancelable leases fodcags:
Minimum Rents

(In thousands
Years ended December :

2013 $ 3,60¢
2014 3,42¢
2015 2,96¢
2016 2,88:
2017 2,722
Thereafter 16,38¢

Total minimum payments required $ 31,99¢

The leases have escalation clauses for operatipgners and real estate taxes. Certain lease agrsepnevide for increases in rental payments baged increases in the consumer g
index. Rent expense under these leases for the gaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was apyateky $3.7 million, $3.8 million and $3.2 millipnespectively.

Contingencies:

The Company is a defendant in various lawsuits. ag@ment of the Company, after consultation witlsioetlegal counsel, believes that the resolutiothese various matters will not res
in any material adverse effect on the Company'scbdated financial condition, results of operaiar cash flows.

16. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s lending is concentrated in the metitgm New York City metropolitan area. The Compawaluates each customer’s creditworthiness orse-bgease basis under 1
Company’s established underwriting policies. Thdlateral obtained by the Company generally consitdirst liens on one-to-four family residentiahulti-family residential, an
commercial real estate. At December 31, 2012 Jahgest amount the Bank could lend to one borrowas approximately $63.8 million, and at that dae, Banks largest aggrege
amount of loans to one borrower was $53.1 millahof which were performing according to theirnes.

17. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company carries certain financial assets amhfial liabilities at fair value in accordancetwASC Topic 825 “Financial Instrumentahd values those financial assets and fina
liabilities in accordance with ASC Topic 820 “Faalue Measurements and DisclosureA3C Topic 820 defines fair value as the price thatld be received to sell an asset or pa
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction beem market participants at the measurement dathliskes a framework for measuring fair value, argands disclosures about fair vi
measurements. ASC topic 825 permits entities tmsh to measure many financial instruments andicesther items at fair value. At December 31, 2G6h2 Company carried financ
assets and financial liabilities under the fairueabption with fair values of $54.5 million and $23nillion, respectively. At December 31, 2011, tbempany carried financial assets
financial liabilities under the fair value optiorittvfair values of $68.7 million and $26.3 milliorespectively. During the year ended December 8122the Company did not elect to ci
any additional financial assets or financial ligtes under the fair value option. The Company telédo measure at fair value securities with a c6s810.0 million that were purchas
during the year ended December 31, 2011.
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The following table presents the financial assatsfaancial liabilities reported at fair value werdhe fair value option at December 31, 2012 &@1dl2and the changes in fair value inclt
in the Consolidated Statement of Income — Net ¢Jass) from fair value adjustments, for the yeardexl December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Fair Value Fair Value Changes in Fair Values For Items Measured at Falune/
Measurements Measurements Pursuant to Election of the Fair Value Opt

at December 3 at December 3 For the year ende For the year ende For the year ende
Description 2012 2011 December 31, 20. December 31, 20  December 31, 20:
(Dollars in thousands
Mortgage-backed securitie $ 2491: $ 37,787 $ (539) $ (665 $ 774
Other securitie 29,577 30,94: 79¢€ (1,139 61€
Borrowed funds 23,92: 26,31 2,062 5,91¢ 3,54¢
Net gain from fair value adjustmer(®) () $ 231¢ % 4112 $ 4,941

(1) The net gain from fair value adjustments preseimetie above table does not include net losse9d fillion, $2.2 million and $4.9 million from thehange in the fair value
interest rate caps recorded during the years endedmber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respecti'

(2) The net gain from fair value adjustments preseitettie above table does not include a net lossld #illion from the change in the fair value oferest rate swaps recorc
during the year ended December 31, 2(

Included in the fair value of the financial assatsl financial liabilities selected for the fair waloption is the accrued interest receivable oapkeyfor the related instrument. One po
trust preferred security is over 90 days past dkthe Company has stopped accruing interest. Dimep@ny continues to accrue on the remaining firmestruments, and report as inte
income or interest expense in the ConsolidatedeStamnt of Income, the interest receivable or payableghe financial instruments selected for the failue option at their respect
contractual rates.

The borrowed funds have a contractual principal amof $61.9 million at both December 31, 2012 20d1. The fair value of borrowed funds includesraed interest payable of $!
million and $0.4 million at December 31, 2012 afd 2, respectively.

The Company generally holds its earning assetgrditan securities available for sale, to matuaityg settles its liabilities at maturity. Howevairfvalue estimates are made at a spe
point in time and are based on relevant marketrinédion. These estimates do not reflect any prenvumiscount that could result from offering fotesat one time the Comparsyéntire
holdings of a particular instrument. Accordinglg, assumptions change, such as interest rates epdypnents, fair value estimates change and thesarastmay not necessarily be reali
in an immediate sale.

Disclosure of fair value does not require fair waloformation for items that do not meet the déifomi of a financial instrument or certain otherdfirtial instruments specifically excluc
from its requirements. These items include coreodi¢fintangibles and other customer relationstppsmises and equipment, leases, income taxes)deegtproperties and equity.

Further, fair value disclosure does not attemptdlue future income or business. These items mamdierial and accordingly, the fair value informatipresented does not purpor
represent, nor should it be construed to represfemtinderlying “market” or franchise value of thempany.

Financial assets and financial liabilities reporéedair value are required to be measured basegitber: (1) quoted prices in active markets famniical financial instruments (Level 1),
significant other observable inputs (Level 2), & gignificant unobservable inputs (Level 3).
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A description of the methods and significant asstiong utilized in estimating the fair value of ti®mpanys assets and liabilities that are carried at falue on a recurring basis are
follows:

Level 1 —~where quoted market prices are available in avactiarket. The Company did not value any of isetsor liabilities that are carried at fair vatirea recurring basis as Level :
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Level 2 —when guoted market prices are not available, falue is estimated using quoted market prices foilai financial instruments and adjusted for diéleces between the quo
instrument and the instrument being valued. Faluer can also be estimated by using pricing modeldjscounted cash flows. Pricing models prinyaue markebased or independen
sourced market parameters as inputs, includingnbutimited to, yield curves, interest rates, ¢gair debt prices, and credit spreads. In addittoobservable market information, moc
also incorporate maturity and cash flow assumptidisDecember 31, 2012, Level 2 included mortgagjated securities, mutual funds, corporate debtiatedest rate caps/swaps.
December 31, 2011, Level 2 included mortgage relséeurities, mutual funds, corporate debt andeésteate caps.

Level 3 —when there is limited activity or less transpareaoyund inputs to the valuation, financial instrumseare classified as Level 3. At December 3122Q&vel 3 included REMI
and CMO securities, municipal securities and tprsferred securities owned and junior subordinateldentures issued by the Company. At December (Bl1,2 evel 3 included tru
preferred securities owned by and junior suborditdiatebentures issued by the Company.

The methods described above may produce fair vahatsnay not be indicative of net realizable vadneeflective of future fair values. While the Cpany believes its valuation methi
are appropriate and consistent with those of otharket participants, the use of different methodi@s, assumptions, and models to determine faurevaf certain financial instrumei
could produce different estimates of fair valu¢hatreporting date.

The following table sets forth the Company's asaptkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of treuation hierarchy for the period indicated:

For the year ended
December 31, 201
REMIC and Trust preferre  Junior subordinate
CMO Municipals securities debenture:
(In thousands

Beginning balanc $ - % - $ 5632 $ 26,31
Transfer into Level : 23,47¢ 9,42¢ -
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmeof financial asset - - 232

Net gain from fair valuadjustment of financial liabilitie - - - (2,062)
Decrease in accrued interest receivi - - (10) -
Decrease in accrued interest pay: - - - (327)
Change in unrealized gains(losses) included inratbmprehensive income - - 79t -
Ending balance $ 23,478 $ 9,42¢ $ 6,65 $ 23,92

For the year ended
December 31, 201
Trust preferre  Junior subordinate
securities debenture:
(in thousands

Beginning balanc $ 10,14« $ 32,22¢
Transfer into Level . - -
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmeof financial asset (1,577) -
Net gain from fair valuadjustment of financial liabilitie - -
Decrease in accrued interest receivi - (5,915
Decrease in accrued interest pay: - -
Change in unrealized gains(losses) included inratbmprehensive income (2,935 -
Ending balance $ 563. $ 26,31:

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevialue measurement of the CompanREMIC and CMO securities valued under Level 3theeprobability of default and loss severit
the event of default. Significant increases or eéases in either of those inputs in isolation waekllt in a significantly lower or higher fair valuneasurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevfalue measurement of the Company’s municipal ritéesi valued under Level 3 are the securitiféective yield. Significant increases
decreases in the effective yield in isolation wonddult in a significantly lower or higher fair v@ measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the ¥alue measurement of the Company’s trust predesexurities valued under Level 3 are the secstitffective yield, probability ¢
default and loss severity in the event of defegilgnificant increases or decreases in any of thetiin isolation would result in a significantiywer or higher fair value measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevialue measurement of the Companjginior subordinated Debentures are effectivedyiBignificant increases or decreases in the éff
yield in isolation would result in a significantlgwer or higher fair value measureme
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The following table sets forth the Company's asaptkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, and the method that was usddteymine their fair value, at December 31:

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets Significant Other Significant Other
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets:
Securities available for sa
Mortgag¢backecSecurities $ - % - $ 696,63t $ 747,280 $ 23478 $ - $ 720,110 $ 747,28t
Other securitie - - 213,37« 59,61( 16,07¢ 5,632 229,45! 65,24:
Interest rate car - - 19 35€ - - 19 35€
Interest rate swaps - - 3 - - - 3 -
Total assets $ - 3 - $ 910,03 $ 807,25« $ 39,55 $ 563 $ 94958¢( $ 812,88t
Liabilities:
Borrowings $ - 0% - $ - $ - 0% 2392: $ 2631 $ 2392: $ 26,31:
Interest rate swaps - 1,922 - - - 1,922 -
Total liabilities $ - 3 - % 1,92: % - % 23,92  $ 26,31 $ 25,84:  $ 26,31:

The following table sets forth the Company's asaetkliabilities that are carried at fair valueanonrecurring basis, and the method that was usedtesrdime their fair value, at Decem|
31:

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets Significant Other Significant Other
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets:

Loans held for sal $ - % - 8 - 8 - % 531: $ - % 531: $ =
Impaired loan: - - - - 49,70% 48,55t 49,70% 48,55t
Other real estate owned - - - - 5,27¢ 3,17¢ 5,27¢ 3,17¢
Total assets $ - $ - 0% - % - $ 60,29 $ 51,73¢ $ 60,29 $ 51,73¢

The Company did not have any liabilities that weaeried at fair value on a non-recurring basis et@nber 31, 2012 and 2011.

The estimated fair value of each material cladinahcial instruments at December 31, 2012 and 20itithe related methods and assumptions usetirntaes fair value are as follows:
Cash and Due from Banks, Overnight Interest-EarningDeposits and Federal Funds Sold:

The fair values of financial instruments that drersterm or reprice frequently and have littlenorrisk are considered to have a fair value thpt@pmates carrying value (Level 1).
FHLB-NY stock:

The fair value is based upon the par value of thekswhich equals its carrying value (Level 2).

Securities Available for Sale:

The estimated fair values of securities availableshle are contained in Note 6 of Notes to Codatéid Financial Statements. Fair value is based gpoted market prices (Level 1 inp

where available. If a quoted market price is nailable, fair value is estimated using quoted miapkizes for similar securities and adjusted fdfedences between the quoted instrur
and the instrument being valued (Level 2 input).éWkhere is limited activity or less transpareneyuad inputs to the valuation, securities are v@luging (Level 3 input).
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Loans held for sale:
The fair value of non-performing loans held foresal estimated through bids received on the loadsas such, are classified as a Level 3 input.
Loans:

The estimated fair value of loans is estimated isgalinting the expected future cash flows usingdinmeent rates at which similar loans would be maborrowers with similar crec
ratings and remaining maturities (Level 3 input).

For non-accruing loans, fair value is generallyneated by discounting managemengéstimate of future cash flows with a discoun¢ ammensurate with the risk associated with
assets or for collateral dependent loans 85% oéfipeaised or internally estimated value of thepprty.(Level 3 input).

Due to Depositors:

The fair values of demand, passbook savings, NOWhay market deposits and escrow deposits are, fiyitém, equal to the amount payable on demanthatreporting dates (i.e. th
carrying value) (Level 1). The fair value of fixedaturity certificates of deposits are estimatediisgounting the expected future cash flows usiregréties currently offered for deposit:
similar remaining maturities (Level 2 input).

Borrowings:

The estimated fair value of borrowings are estighdte discounting the contractual cash flows usittgrest rates in effect for borrowings with simifaaturities and collateral requireme
(Level 2 input) or using a market-standard modelg! 3 input).

Interest Rate Caps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate capsgetd upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Interest Rate Swaps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate swamaged upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Other Real Estate Owned:

OREO are carried at fair value less selling co3tse fair value is based on appraised value thr@ughrrent appraisal, or sometimes through annataeview, additionally adjusted by
estimated costs to sell the property (Level 3 ihput

Other Financial Instruments:

The fair values of commitments to sell, lend orrbar are estimated using the fees currently chaayguhid to enter into similar agreements, takirtg imccount the remaining terms of
agreements and the present creditworthiness afaheterparties or on the estimated cost to terraittem or otherwise settle with the counterpastebe reporting date. For fixedte loal
commitments to sell, lend or borrow, fair valuesoatonsider the difference between current levielsterest rates and committed rates (where apgkga

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair valuedefabove financial instruments approximate therdmamounts of the related fees and were notderesd to be material.
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouatsl estimated fair values of selected financiatriments as well as assumptions used by the Cgmpaestimating fair value
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Amount Value
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 40,428 $ 40,428 $ 40,428 $ - $ - $ 55,72. $ 55,72
Mortgage-backecSecurities 720,11: 720,11: - 696,63¢ 23,47¢ 747,28¢ 747,28¢
Other securitie 229,45: 229,45: - 213,37 16,07¢ 65,24 65,24
Loans held for sal 5,31 5,31 - - 5,31 - -
Loans 3,234,12 3,416,31 - - 3,416,31 3,228,88 3,407,45.
FHLB-NY stock 42,337 42,337 - 42,337 - 30,24t 30,24t
Interest rate cag 19 19 - 19 - 35€ 35€
Interest rate sway 3 3 - 3 - - -
OREO 5,27¢ 5,27¢ - - 5,27¢ 3,17¢ 3,17¢
Total assets $ 427706 $ 4,459,25. 3 40,428 $ 95237. $ 3,466,445 $ 413091 $  4,309,48!
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,015,19: 3,057,15. $ 1,761,960 $ 1,29518 $ - $ 3,146,240 $ 3,211,40!
Borrowings 948,40! 992,06¢ - 968,14° 23,92 685,13¢ 728,06
Interest rate swaps 1,922 1,922 - 1,922 - - -
Total liabilities $ 3965520 $ 4051,14 $ 176196 $ 2,26525 $ 2392: $ 383138 $ 3,93947.
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18. Derivative Financial Instruments

At December 31, 2012, the Company’s derivativerf@ial instruments consist of purchased optionssamaps. The purchased options are used to mitigat€ompanys exposure to risir
interest rates on its financial liabilities withaatated maturities. The Company’s swaps are usettigate the Compang’exposure to rising interest rates on a portid8.(s million) of it
floating rate junior subordinated debentures tlateha contractual value of $61.9 million. Additiipathe Company at times may use swaps to mitigfaeCompanys exposure to risir
interest rates on its fixed rate loans.

At December 31, 2012, derivatives with a combinetiomal amount of $118.0 million are not designagschedges and a derivative with a notional amofifi.3 million is designated a
fair value hedge. Changes in the fair value ofdegvatives not designated as hedges are reflectédet loss from fair value adjustmentst the Consolidated Statements of Income.
portions of the changes in the fair value of thewd¢ive designated as a fair value hedge whichoissidered ineffective are reflected in “Net lossnf fair value adjustmentsh the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

The following table sets forth information regamlithe Company’s derivative financial instrument®atember 31, 2012:

At or for the year ended December 31, 2
Cumulative
Notional Realized Net Carrying
Amount Purchas¢Price Gain Loss Value®
(In thousands

Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $ 100,00 $ 9,03t $ - % 9,01¢ $ 19
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) 18,00( - - 1,922 (1,927
Interest rate swaps (hedge) 4,30(C - - 5 3

Total derivatives $ 122,300 $ 9,03t $ - $ 10,94 $ (1,900
1) Derivatives in a net positive position arearled as “Other assets” and derivatives in a ngatiee position are recorded as “Other liabiliti@sthe Consolidated Statements of

Financial Condition. There were no unrealizedédsssn derivative financial instruments at Decen®ier2012,
The following table sets forth the effect of detiva instruments on the Consolidated Statementsaaime for the periods indicated:

For the year ended
December 31

(In thousands 2012 2011 2010
Financial Derivatives
Interest rate car $ (337) $ (2,159 $ (4,899
Interest rate swaps (1,929 - -
Net loss®) $ (2,269 $ (2,159 $ (4,899
(1) Net losses are recorded“Net gain from fair value adjustme” in the Consolidated Statements of Inco
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19. New Authoritative Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-20, Wwhamends the authoritative accounting guidanceruA8€ Topic 310 “Receivables.The purpose of this update is to provide finar
statement users with greater transparency aboen@y’s allowance for credit losses and the credit qualitits financing receivables. The update requitisslosures that facilitate financ
statement users’ evaluation of the following: (18 hature of credit risk inherent in the enstgortfolio of financing receivables; (2) how thk is analyzed and assessed in arriving ¢
allowance for credit losses; and (3) the changeksraasons for those changes in the allowance faditclosses. An entity is required to provide discires on a disaggregated basi
portfolio segment and class of financing receivablehis update requires the expansion of curreetiyired disclosures about financing receivableselsas requiring additional disclosu
about financing receivables. The disclosures ah@fnd of a reporting period are effective foeiith and annual reporting periods ending on or &eecember 15, 2010. The disclosi
about activity that occurs during a reporting perare effective for interim and annual reportingipds beginning on or after December 15, 2010. [Sete 3 of Notes to Consolidai
Financial Statements “Loans.”

In January 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-CHichvtemporarily delays the effective date of tequired disclosures about troubled debt restruagsrcontained in ASU No. 2010-
20. The delay is intended to allow the FASB addiil time to deliberate what constitutes a trouldelt restructuring. All other amendments contaime8iSU No. 201020 are effective
issued. Adoption of this update did not have a nedteffect on the Company’s consolidated resuftsperations or financial condition.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-02, ethamends the authoritative accounting guidancemA&C Topic 310Receivables.” The update provides clarifying guidance &
what constitutes a troubled debt restructuring. ibéate provides clarifying guidance on a cred#t@valuation of the following: (1) how a restruatgr constitutes a concession and (:
the debtor is experiencing financial difficultiéshe amendments in this update are effective foffitseinterim or annual period beginning on oreaffune 15, 2011 and should be apj
retrospectively to the beginning of the annual géémf adoption. In addition, disclosures about Ied debt restructurings which were delayed byissaance of ASU No. 201a%, art
effective for interim and annual periods beginnorgor after June 15, 2011. Adoption of this updiitenot have a material effect on the Compamydnsolidated results of operation
financial condition. See Note 3 of Notes to Coitldkd Financial Statements “Loans.”

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-03, ethamends the authoritative accounting guidancemuA&C Topic 860Transfers and Servicing.” The amendments in this upd
remove from the assessment of effective controti{é&)criterion requiring the transferor to have ahdity to repurchase or redeem the financial sse substantially the agreed terms,
in the event of default by the transferee andt{@)dollateral maintenance implementation guidaetzted to that criterion. The amendments in tpidatie are effective for the first interim
annual period beginning on or after December 18,124nd should be applied prospectively to transastor modifications of existing transactions tbetur on or after the effective de
Early adoption is not permitted. Adoption of thisdate did not have a material effect on the Comjsargnsolidated results of operations or financa@idition.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, whachends the authoritative accounting guidance uA&S Topic 820‘Fair Value Measurement.” The amendments in this upd
clarify how to measure and disclose fair value urAlBC Topic 820. The amendments in this updatectfextive for the first interim or annual periodgirening on or after December |
2011 and should be applied prospectively to traimas or modifications of existing transactionsttbacur on or after the effective date. Early adwpis not permitted. Adoption of tt
update did not have a material effect on the Comysaronsolidated results of operations or financt@idition.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Wwhimends the authoritative accounting guidance uASE Topic 220‘Comprehensive Income.” The amendments eliminate
option to present components of other comprehensigveme in the statement of stockholdeesfuity. Instead, the new guidance requires entittepresent all nonowner change:
stockholdersequity either as a single continuous statemenbofprehensive income or as two separate but congeaiatements. The amendments in this updateffaetiee for the firs
interim or annual period beginning on or after Daber 15, 2011 and must be applied retrospectidyly adoption was permitted. Adoption of this uggddid not have a material effect
the Company’s consolidated results of operatiorfinancial condition. See the Consolidated StatemehComprehensive Income.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 20108h amends the authoritative accounting guidamzier ASC Topic 350ntangibles — Goodwill and Other.” The amendments
the update permit an entity to first assess quaiédactors to determine whether it is more likéhan not that the fair value of a reporting usitdss than its carrying amount as a basi
determining whether it is necessary to performtihe step goodwill impairment test described in To@b0. The more-likely-thanet threshold is defined as having a likelihooanafre tha
50 percent. The amendments in this update aretefefor annual and interim goodwill impairment teeperformed for fiscal years beginning after Delseml5, 2011. Early adoption
permitted, including for annual and interim goodviihpairment tests performed as of a date beforgte®eber 15, 2011, if an entig/financial statements for the most recent annt
interim period have not yet been issued. Adoptibthis update did not have a material effect onGoenpany’s consolidated results of operationsraarftial condition.
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In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013v@fdch amends the authoritative accounting guidammer ASC Topic 220 “Comprehensive Incom&lie amendments do not cha
the current requirements for reporting net incometber comprehensive income in financial statemedbowever, the amendments require an entity teigecinformation about the amou
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehenisiseme by component. In addition, an entity isuieed to present, either on the face of the stateémvbere net income is presented ¢
the notes, significant amounts reclassified oua@fumulated other comprehensive income by the céspdine items of net income but only if the amoueclassified is required unt
GAAP to be reclassified to net income in its emyine the same reporting period. For other amotim$ are not required under GAAP to be reclassiiietheir entirety to net income,
entity is required to crogeference to other disclosures required under G&¥@&Pprovide additional detail about those amouflie amendments in this update are effective prisdy for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2@&8ly adoption is permitted. Adoption of this apel is not expected to have a material effect encbmpanys consolidated results
operation or financial condition.

20. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
Selected unaudited quarterly financial data forfibeal years ended December 31, 2012 and 201lrksepted below:

2012 2011
4th 3rd 2nd 1st 4th 3rd 2nd 1st
(In thousands, except per share d¢

Quarterly operating data:

Interest incom $ 51,72: $ 53,19: $ 54,38: $ 54,41t $ 54,64: $ 56,32¢ $ 56,49¢ $ 57,02¢
Interest expense 14,49¢ 15,61( 16,097 17,07( 17,92( 19,22¢ 19,70« 19,87:
Net interest incom 37,22 37,58: 38,287 37,34t 36,72« 37,10: 36,79t 37,15t
Provision for loan losse 5,00( 5,00( 5,00( 6,00( 6,50( 5,00( 5,00( 5,00(
Other operating incom 2,56¢ 3,51z 1,10¢ 1,87¢ 2,98( 4,29¢ 2,13¢ 871
Other operating expense 19,80¢ 20,74 20,23¢ 21,53¢ 19,36¢ 19,49( 18,86¢ 20,01t
Income before incomtax expenst 14,98: 15,35:¢ 14,15¢ 11,687 13,83t 16,90¢ 15,06 13,01:
Income tax expense 5,782 5,98¢ 5,51¢ 4 ,55¢ 5,66¢ 6,75¢ 5,991 5,05¢
Net income $ 9,200 $ 936 $ 8631 $ 7,12¢  $ 8,171 $ 10,15  $ 9,07/ $ 7,95
Basic earnings per common sh $ 03C $ 031 $ 028 $ 02: $ 027 $ 03 $ 02¢ $ 0.2€
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 03C $ 031 $ 02¢ $ 02: $ 027 $ 03: $ 02¢ $ 0.2€
Dividends per common sha $ 013 $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 013 $ 01z $ 0.1z
Average common shares outstanding for
Basic earnings per she 30,31( 30,43: 30,47: 30,39¢ 30,37: 30,67¢ 30,82: 30,62(
Diluted earnings per sha 30,34( 30,46: 30,49: 30,42( 30,387 30,69: 30,86¢ 30,68¢
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21. Parent Company Only Financial Information

Earnings of the Bank are recognized by the Holdognpany using the equity method of accounting. Adicgly, earnings of the Bank are recorded as emee in the Holding Comparsy’
investment, any dividends would reduce the Holdbwggnpany’s investment in the Bank, and any changéle Banks unrealized gain or loss on securities availabteséle, net of taxe
would increase or decrease, respectively, the Hgl@iompany’s investment in the Bank. The condefisedcial statements for the Holding Company aespnted below:

December 31, December 31,
Condensed Statements of Financial Conditio 2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands

Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 21,04.  $ 18,79¢
Securities available for sal
Other securities ($2,359 and $2,410 at fair valursyant tcthe fair value option at December 31, 2012 and 26dspectively 3,16¢ 3,18(C
Interest receivabl 13 12
Investment in subsidiarie 451,19( 429,35:
Goodwill 2,18t 2,18t
Other assets 4,41¢ 4,521
Total assets $ 482.01. $ 458,04¢
Liabilities:
Borrowings (at fair value pursuant to the fair \@hptionat December 31, 2012 and 20. $ 23,92 % 26,31
Other liabilities 15,72« 14,827
Total liabilities 39,64 41,13¢

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stoc - -
Common stocl 31t 31t

Additional paic-in capital 198,31« 195,62¢
Treasury stock, at average cost (787,266 share6261d18 aDecember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectiv (10,257 (7,355
Retained earning 241,85¢ 223,51(
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net ofstaxe 12,137 4.81:
Total equity 442 36! 416,91:
Total liabilities and equity $ 482,01 $ 458,04¢
For the years ended December
Condensed Statements of Incom 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands

Dividends from the Ban $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 10,00(
Interest income 694 752 75C
Interest expens (2,957 (4,325 (4,329
Net gain from fair value adjustmer 1,991 5,72¢ 2,252
Other operating expenses (730 (746) (739
Income before taxes and equity in undistribtearnings of subsidiat 18,99¢ 21,407 7,94:
Income tax (expense) benefit 49¢ (585) 972
Income before equity in undistributed earningsudfsidiary 19,49¢ 20,82: 8,91«
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Bank 14,83¢ 14,52¢ 29,92:
Net income $ 3433, $ 3534¢ $ 38,83t
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For the years ended December

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands

Operating activities

Net income $ 3433. $ 3534¢ $ 38,83t

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activities
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Be (14,835 (14,52¢) (29,92)
Deferred income tax provisic 85¢ 3,00: 972
Fair value adjustments for financial assets financial liabilities (1,997 (5,726 (2,259
3,10t 2,72( 2,15¢

Stock based compensation expe

Net change in operating assets and liabilities 1,281 1,542 1,49¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 22,75¢ 22,36: 11,28¢
Investing activities
Purchases of securities available for ¢ (29) 37) (62)
Proceeds from sales and calls of securities avaifab sale - - 75C
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (29 (37 68€
Financing activities
Purchase of treasury sto (5,627 (7,722 (347)
Cash dividends pai (15,817 (15,910 (15,789
Stock options exercised 95¢€ 2,04( 45¢
Net cash used in financing activities (20,487 (21,597 (15,677
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis 2,247 732 (3,709
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 18,79¢ 18,06¢ 21,76¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 21,04, $ 18,79¢ $ 18,06¢

22. Subsequent Events

On February 28, 2013, Flushing Financial Corporationverted from a savings and loan holding company bank holding company in connection with therger of its wholly owne
subsidiary, Flushing Savings Bank, FSB, with and iits wholly owned subsidiary, Flushing Commerdsagink. The surviving entity is named Flushing Bamd is a New York State-

chartered, full-service commercial bank.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting-irm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Flushing Financial Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidatedrséatts of financial condition of Flushing Financfabrporation (a Delaware corporation) and subsiésalthe “Company”as o
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related cdiasedl statements of income, comprehensive incohanges in shareholdersfuity and cash flows for each of the three yearthd
period ended December 31, 2012. These finanagmsents are the responsibility of the Compamganagement. Our responsibility is to expresspmion on these financial stateme
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighamio(United States). Those standards requirevibgilan and perform the audit
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfalastatements are free of material misstatem@nt.audit includes examining, on a test basis, evig¢ supporting the amounts
disclosures in the financial statements. An aalfib includes assessing the accounting principéesl and significant estimates made by managementielh as evaluating the ovel
financial statement presentation. We believe dhiataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all matergspects, the financial position of Flushing Ficial Corporation and subsidiaries a
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of dparations and their cash flows for each of tivee years in the period ended December 31, 281@pnformity with accountir
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bog@dnited States), the Companysternal control over financial reporting as

December 31, 2012, based on criteria establishéuténmnal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatairtee Treadway Commission (“COSP”
and our report dated March 18, 2013 expressed qualified opinion.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 18, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting-irm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Flushing Financial Corporation

We have audited the internal control over finanoiglorting of Flushing Financial Corporation (a @&ehre corporation) and subsidiaries (the "Compaag'9pf December 31, 2012, base:
criteria established iternal Control - Integrated Framewoiiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrtee Treadway Commission (COSO). The Compamgleagement
responsible for maintaining effective internal aohtover financial reporting and for its assessmehthe effectiveness of internal control over fin&l reporting, included in tl
accompanying Management's Report on Internal Contrer Financial Reporting. Our responsibility ésexpress an opinion on the Companiyiternal control over financial reporting ba
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ®d@nited States). Those standards require tleaplan and perform the audit
obtain reasonable assurance about whether efféntmmal control over financial reporting was ntained in all material respects. Our audit inchidétaining an understanding of intel
control over financial reporting, assessing thk tigt a material weakness exists, testing anduatiag the design and operating effectivenesstefial control based on the assessed
and performing such other procedures as we corsidercessary in the circumstances. We believeothaaudit provides a reasonable basis for ouriopin

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregéhe reliability of financial reporting andettpreparation of financi
statements for external purposes in accordance geitterally accepted accounting principles. A camypminternal control over financial reporting incledihose policies and procedt
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records, inateasonable detail, accurately and fairly wfldhe transactions and dispositions of the assietse company; (2) provide reason:
assurance that transactions are recorded as necésspermit preparation of financial statementsaitcordance with generally accepted accountingciplies, and that receipts ¢
expenditures of the company are being made on&caordance with authorizations of management ardtdirs of the company; and (3) provide reasonas$eirance regarding preven
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitione,usr disposition of the company’s assets thatcchalve a material effect on the financial statesent

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of any evatuatf effectiveness to future periods
subject to the risk that controls may become inadegbecause of changes in conditions, or thadelyeee of compliance with the policies or procedumay deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of December 31, 2012, basediteria established imternal Control -
Integrated Frameworissued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@#nited States), the consolidated statementseo€Company as of and for the y
ended December 31, 2012 and our report dated Ma&cB013 expressed an unqualified opinion on tlfiosecial statements.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 18, 2013
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A . Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out, under the supervisionaitidl the participation of the Company's managemimuding its Chief Executive Officer and Chiefnincial Officer, a
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design gretation of the Company’s disclosure controls amt@dures (as defined in Rule 1Ba¢e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)f
the end of the period covered by this Annual Refaised upon that evaluation, the Chief Executiffec€ and Chief Financial Officer concluded thas, of December 31, 2012, the de
and operation of these disclosure controls andeguia®s were effective. During the period coveredhiiy Annual Report, there have been no changéi€ompany's internal control o
financial reporting that have materially affectedare reasonably likely to materially affect, Bempany's internal control over financial reporting

Management’'s Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting

Management is responsible for establishing and tamimimg adequate internal control over financiglasing, and for performing an assessment of tliecg¥eness of intern
control over financial reporting as of December3112. Internal control over financial reportirsgdefined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 18d&(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchangeof
1934 as a process designed by, or under the ssjmmaf, the Company’s principal executive and gipal financial officers and effected by the ComygarBoard of Directors, managem
and other personnel, to provide reasonable assin@garding the reliability of financial reportirand the preparation of financial statements foeml purposes in accordance \
generally accepted accounting principles. Intecmadtrol over financial reporting includes thosdi@es and procedures that (1) pertain to the neaiatce of records that, in reason
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transawsi and dispositions of the assets of the Comp@)yprovide reasonable assurance that transactimnsecorded as necessary to pe
preparation of financial statements in accordanitk generally accepted accounting principles, drad teceipts and expenditures of the Company areg bmeade only in accordance w
authorizations of management and directors of th@ny; and (3) provide reasonable assurance fieggocevention or timely detection of unauthorizetjuisition, use or disposition
the Company’s assets that could have a materiedtedih the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any evadmaof effectiveness to futu
periods are subject to the risk that controls megome inadequate because of changes in conditiotisat the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management performed an assessment of the effaesgeof the Comparg/internal control over financial reporting as afdd@mber 31, 2012 based upon criteria in Internaki®l
- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee adnSpring Organizations of the Treadway CommissittiOSO”). Based on this assessment, management concludedht
Company’s internal control over financial reportings effective as of December 31, 2012 based asethiteria issued by COSO.

Grant Thornton LLP, the Company’s independent tegésl public accounting firm that audited the Comps consolidated financial statements included is Brinual Report ¢
Form 10-K, has issued a report on the effectivenéfise Company’s internal control over financigporting as of December 31, 2012, as stated nefitsrt which appears on page 143.

Item 9B . Other Information.

None.
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PARTIN

Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.

Other than the disclosures below, information rdipay the directors and executive officers of tharfpany appears in the CompasyProxy Statement for the Annual Meeting
Stockholders to be held May 14, 2013 (“Proxy Staetf) under the captions “Board Nominees,” “ConiivguDirectors,” “Executive Officers Who Are Not [ictors” and Meeting ani
Committees of the Board of Directors — Audit Conteet’ and is incorporated herein by this referemefmrmation regarding Section 16(a) beneficial ovehép appears in the Compasy’
Proxy Statement under the caption “Section 16(aefieial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and isarporated herein by this reference.

Code of Ethics The Company has adopted a Code of Business CbadddEthics that applies to all of its directarfficers and employees. This code is publicly atdl# on th
Company’s website at: https://www.snl.com/CacheflIZ®036.PDF?D=&0=PDF&IID=102398&Y=&T=&FID=15000396Any substantive amendments to the code and any gfas
waiver from a provision of the code requiring desaire under applicable SEC or NASDAQ rules wildigzlosed in a report on Form 8-K.

Audit Committee Financial ExpertThe Board of Directors of the Company has deteedhithat Louis C. Grassi, the Chairman of the A@itmmittee, is andudit committe
financial expert” as defined under Item 401(h) efgRlation SK, and that he is independent as defined undeicgipé NASDAQ listing standards. Mr. Grassi is gified public accountal
and a certified fraud examiner.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation.

Information regarding executive compensation appeathe Proxy Statement under the caption “Exgeufiompensation” and is incorporated herein byréfisrence.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andVMlanagement and Related Stockholder Matters.

Information regarding security ownership of certhneficial owners appears in the Proxy Statemedeuthe caption “Stock Ownership of Certain BegiafiOwners”and is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Information regarding security ownership of managetappears in the Proxy Statement under the capfitock Ownership of Managemerdhd is incorporated herein by t
reference.

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.

Information regarding certain relationships ancated transactions and directors independence apeahe Proxy Statement under the captio@erfipensation Committ
Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Relafeaity Transactions” and is incorporated hereinhliy teference.

Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Information regarding fees paid to the Companytependent auditor appears in the Proxy Statemelgrithe caption “Schedule of Fees to Independeditéus” and is hereby
incorporated by this reference.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(@) 1. Financial Statements
The following financial statements are includedtém 8 of this Annual Report and are incorporatetein by this reference:
« Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition eténber 31, 2012 and 2011
« Consolidated Statements of Income for each ofttheetyears in the period ended December 31, 2012
« Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol@eysity for each of the three years in the periodesl December 31, 2012
« Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheofttree years in the period ended December 32, 201
« Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemt
« Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfinm
2. Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statement Schedules have been omittegusecthey are not applicable or the required inédion is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statets or Notes there
included in Item 8 of this Annual Report and areoirporated herein by this reference.
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3. Exhibits Required by Securities and Exclrge Commission Regulation S-K

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of Decem®e2@5 by and between Flushing Financial Corponatind Atlantic Liberty Financial Corp. (1
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financ@@brporation (1,

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorpton of Flushing Financial Corporation (

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation (1

3.4 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior R#ating Preferred Stock of Flushing FinancCorporation (6

3.5 Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated ag$SArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of FlaghFinancial Corporation (1:

3.6 By-Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation |

3.7 Certificate of Designation relating to the Fixed®&umulative Perpetual Preferred Stock SeriesAB

4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20@&gelke Flushing Financial Corporation and Computmesirust Company N.A., as Rights Agent, whichudels the

form of Certificate of Increase of Shares Desigdae Series A Junior Patrticipating Preferred SaxExhibit A, form of Right Certificate as Exhildtand the Summary
of Rights to Purchase Preferred Stock as Exhil(12)

4.2 Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingagefong-term debt. None of such debt exceeds ¢éecept of Flushing Financial Corporation’s totadets; therefore,
copies of constituent instruments defining the tSghf the holders of such debt are not includeelxissbits. Copies of instruments with respect tohslanig-term debt will
be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Coninisgon reques

10.1* Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreentmttgeen Flushing Savings Bank, FSB Certain Officers (15
10.2* Form of Amended and Restated Employment Agreentmttgeen Flushing Financial Corporation «Certain Officers (15
10.3* Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwleishiRg Financial Corporation and JohnBuran (15)

10.4* Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwleshiRg Savings Bank, FSB and John R. Buran

10.5* Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwleshiRg Financial Corporation and Maria A. Graskb)

10.6* Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betwieshifg Savings Bank, FSB and Maria A. Grasso

10.7* Flushing Savings Bank Specified Officer Change amttol Severance Policy (1

10.8* Amended and Restated Employee Severance CompenBéaio of Flushing Savings Bank, FSB

10.9* Amended and Restated Outside Director Retiremeant @l1)

10.10* Amended and Restated Flushing Savings Bank, FSBi@ubDirector Deferred Compensation Plan

10.11* Amended and Restated Flushing Savings Bank, FSBI&wugntal Savings Incentive Plan (.

10.12 Form of Indemnity Agreement among Flushing SaviBgek, FSB, Flushing Financial Corporation, and eakctor (2)
10.13 Form of Indemnity Agreement among Flushing SaviBgek, FSB, Flushing Financial Corporation, and &erOfficers (2)
10.14* Employee Benefit Trust Agreement |

10.15* Amendment to the Employee Benefit Trust Agreemah

10.16* Loan Document for Employee Benefit Trust

10.17* Guarantee by Flushing Financial Corporation

10.18* 1996 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan of FlushinggRicial Corporation (€

10.19* 1996 Stock Option Incentive Plan of Flushing Finah€orporation (7

10.20* Description of Outside Director Fee Arrangement)

10.21* Form of Outside Director Restricted Stock Awardtee(9)

10.22* Form of Outside Director Restricted Stock Unit Ad&etter (19)

10.23* Form of Outside Director Stock Option Grant Le(@r

10.24* Form of Employee Restricted Stock Award Letter

10.25* Form of Employee Restricted Stock Unit Award LettE?)

10.26* Form of Employee Stock Option Award Letter

10.27* Amended and Restated Flushing Financial Corpar&@D5 Omnibus Incentive Plan (1
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10.28 Amendment to Flushing Financial Corporation 2005r@as Incentive Plan (1¢

10.29* Annual Incentive Plan for Executives and Seniorid@ffs (19)

10.30 Form of Amendment to Employee Stock Option Awarttére

10.31 Form of Amendment to Director Stock Option Awardtee

21.1 Subsidiaries information incorporated herein byrefice to Part— Subsidiary Activities

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public AccouriEing

311 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeilétl herewith)

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeil¢d herewith)

321 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 ofSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeil¢tl herewith)
32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 ofSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeil¢tl herewith)
101.INS XBRL Instance Document (furnished herewi

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (furnishextwith)

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documtn@urnished herewith

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Documéiurnished herewith

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documentrffshed herewith

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentffurnished herewitt

*Indicates compensatory plan or arrangement.

1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed witle tRegistration Statement on Forr-1 filed September 1, 1995, Registration Nc-96488.

2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1
3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfol(-K for the year ended December 31, 1€
(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfoS-8 filed May 31, 2002
(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with FoL(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with FoL(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2C
9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Foé-K filed December 23, 200!

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfrol(-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Foé-K filed September 11, 200

(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with Foé-K filed September 26, 200

(24) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfo8-K filed December 23, 200i

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed with FoL(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2C

a7) Incorporated by reference to Appendices filed Witbxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed April 7, 2C
(18) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfol(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
(19) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filed withrfol(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
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SIGN ATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1h@l)Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Compas/duly caused this report, or amendment theretbe tsigned on its beh
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,ewNork, New York, on March 18, 2013.

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION

By /S/IJOHN R. BURAN
John R. Burai
President and CE!

P OW ER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned directors and officers of Rhgglrinancial Corporation (the “Companyigreby severally constitute and appoint John RaBand David W. Fry as our ti
and lawful attorneys and agents, each acting amadewith full power of substitution and seibstitution, to do any and all things in our nanmethe capacities indicated below which ¢
John R. Buran or David W. Fry may deem necessanduisable to enable the Company to comply withSbkeurities Exchange Act of 1934, and any ruleglegions and requirements
the Securities and Exchange Commission, in conmeetith the report on Form 1K; or amendment thereto, including specificallyt bot limited to, power and authority to sign fa& in
our names in the capacities indicated below thertem Form 10K, or amendment thereto; and we hereby approviéy etd confirm all that said John R. Buran or hW. Fry shall do ¢
cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report on Form KQor amendment thereto, has been signed by th@fiolg persons in the capacities
on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/SIJOHN R. BURAN Director, President (Principal Executive Officer) March 6, 2013

John R. Buran

/SIJOHN E. ROE, SR. Director, Chairman March 6, 2013
John E. Roe, Sr.

/SIDAVID W. ERY Treasurer (Principal Financial and Accounting Gdfic March 6, 2013
David W. Fry
IS/ JAMES D. BENNETT Director March 6, 2013

James D. Bennett
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/SISTEVEN J. D'IORIO

Steven J. D'lorio

/S/ILOUIS C. GRASSI

Louis C. Grassi

/SISAM S. HAN

Sam S. Han

/SIMICHAEL J. HEGARTY

Michael J. Hegarty

/S/IJOHN J. MCCABE

John J. McCabe

/SIVINCENT F. NICOLOSI

Vincent F. Nicolosi

/SIDONNA M. O'BRIEN

Donna M. O'Brien

/SIMICHAEL J. RUSSO

Michael J. Russo

/SIGERARD P. TULLY, SR.

Gerard P. Tully, Sr.

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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March 6, 2013

March 6, 2013

March 6, 2013

March 6, 2013

March 6, 2013

March 6, 2013

March 6, 2013

March 6, 2013

March 6, 2013




EXHIBIT 10.30
Date

Employee name
Employee address

Re: Amendment of your Outstanding Stock Options

Dear Employee name:

This letter serves as an amendment to your outistarstock options granted by Flushing Financialg@oation (the “Company”) under its 2005 Omnibuselmiive Plan and/or its
1996 Stock Option Incentive Plan (referred to allely as the “Plan”) which are identified on Sdoée A to this letter.

1. Net Share Exercise. Net share exercise is another way for you to@seryour stock options. Under this method, yoy stisfy the option exercise price by deliveringhe
Company an option exercise notice that directbmpany to withhold a sufficient number of the glsaacquired upon exercise to satisfy the aggregsten price and tax withholding
obligation (if any) with respect to the sharesawhich the Option is being exercised. For purpasfethis provision, the shares of Common StocKiegpo satisfy the option price and
withholding obligation shall be valued at the méatween the highest and lowest quoted selling pregailar way, of the Company’s common stock onNASDAQ National Market (or
the principal exchange or market determined byQbmpany to be the primary market for such stock}tie day before the date of exercise (or if ne sélcommon stock occurs on such
date, the mean between the highest and lowestdjgetling price on the nearest trading date befaoh date).

2. Income Tax Withholding. If you exercise your stock options by paymentash or payment of Common Stock, you may satisjyagplicable federal, state, and local
withholding tax obligations with respect to yourtiop exercise by either (i) making a cash paymenhé Company of the required amount, or (ii) hgwime Company withhold from the
Common Stock otherwise deliverable to you uponaspéixercise shares of Common Stock having a vajualéo the amount of the withholding obligatiofny election to have shares
withheld must be made on or before the date youceseeyour option. Non-section 16 Officers or Bigrs may exercise options by using a broker-abisashless exercise (in which the
aggregate option price is satisfied by a brokeals sf the shares acquired upon exercise), wherbribker will sell additional shares to satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations. If
you exercise your option using net share exertigeCompany will withhold a sufficient number ofasés to satisfy any applicable tax withholding gations. If shares of Common Stc
are applied to satisfy tax withholding obligatiotisey shall be valued at the mean between the igimal lowest quoted selling price, regular waythefCompany’s common stock on the
NASDAQ National Market (or the principal exchangenmarket determined by the Company to be the pgimaarket for such stock) for the day before theeddtexercise (or if no sale
common stock occurs on such date, the mean betthiedrighest and lowest quoted selling price omegrest trading date before such date).

Except as amended by this letter, the provisiongaf stock option awards remain in effect. Initidd, this letter does not change any restrictionder the Company’s Insider
Trading Policy that are applicable to you. Thisdeconstitutes an amendment to the formal tenmaiscenditions of your stock options and accordirgiipuld be retained in your files for
future reference.

Contact Vice President/Human Resources with angtoqres.

Very truly yours,

/s/ JOHN R. BURAN
John R. Buran
President & CEC



EXHIBIT 10.31
Date

Director name
Director address

Re: Amendment of your Stock Options

Dear Director name:

This letter serves as an amendment to your outistarstock options granted by Flushing Financialg@oation (the “Company”) under its 2005 Omnibuselmiive Plan and/or its
1996 Stock Option Incentive Plan (referred to allely as the “Plan”) which are identified on Sdoée A to this letter.

Net Share Exercise. In addition to the ways you can exercise youclstaptions provided for in your original grant ks, you may exercise your options using Net Share
Exercise. Under this method, you may satisfy thtton exercise price by delivering to the Companyoption exercise notice that directs the Companyithhold a sufficient number of ti
shares acquired upon exercise to satisfy the agtgegption price and tax withholding obligationdify) with respect to the shares as to which thio®s being exercised. For purposes of
this provision, the shares of Common Stock appfieshtisfy the option price and withholding obligatshall be valued at the mean between the higimestowest quoted selling price,
regular way, of the Comparsstommon stock on the NASDAQ National Market (@ ghincipal exchange or market determined by the@my to be the primary market for such stock
the day before the date of exercise (or if no elommon stock occurs on such date, the mean bettie highest and lowest quoted selling pricehemearest trading date before such
date).

Except as amended by this letter, the provisiongaf stock option awards remain in effect. Initidd, this letter does not change any restrictionder the Company’s Insider
Trading Policy that are applicable to you. Thisdeconstitutes an amendment to the formal tenmaiscanditions of your stock options and accordirgfipuld be retained in your files for
future reference.

Contact Vice President/Human Resources with angtores.

Very truly yours,

/s/ JOHN R. BURAN
John R. Buran
President & CEC



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We have issued our reports dated March 18, 2018, nespect to the consolidated financial statemantsinternal control over financial reporting imdéd in the Annual Report of Flush
Financial Corporation on Form I0for the year ended December 31, 2012. We herebgent to the incorporation by reference of sapbris in the Registration Statements of Flus

Financial Corporation on Forms S-8 (File Nos. 32@®8 effective October 16, 1995; 333-125358, eifecMay 31, 2005; 333-136669, effective August 2606, 333151185, effectiv
May 23, 2008, 333-151187, effective May 23, 20(3-363010, effective November 9, 2009 and 333-1466f8ective August 4, 2011), and on Form S-3 (Nte effective April 8, 2011).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 18, 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, John R. Buran, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlushing Financial Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report dogésantain any untrue statement of a materialdactmit to state a material fact necessary to ntla&estatements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect to the perioceoed by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all material resgetbe financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrantfaarad for, the periods presented in this annuabng

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as defined ilm&hge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial repng (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15¢f) 45d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our supervision, to ensatentlaterial information
relating to the registrant, including its consotethsubsidiaries, is made known to us by othersimihose entities, particularly during the perindvhich this annual report is being
prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financigloréing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed under our supervjsioprovide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financiglaging and the preparation of financial statemémt&xternal purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisiannual report our conclusions about the &ffeness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the pexwered by this annual report based on such atiafy and

d) disclosed in this annual report any change érégistrant’s internal control over financial refoirg that occurred during the registrant’s moserg quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeatt, the registrant’s internal control over finacieporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiimternal control over financial reporting, teetregistrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directonsgersons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal comtvelr financial reporting which are reasonably lljke adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summasizd report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a significle in the registrant’s internal controls ofierancial reporting.
Dated: March 18, 201 By: /s/John R. Bura

John R. Buran
President and Chief Executive Offic



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, David W. Fry, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlushing Financial Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report dogésantain any untrue statement of a materialdactmit to state a material fact necessary to ntla&estatements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect to the perioceoed by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all material resgetbe financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrantfaarad for, the periods presented in this annuabng

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as defined ilm&hge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial repng (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15¢f) 45d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our supervision, to ensatentlaterial information
relating to the registrant, including its consotethsubsidiaries, is made known to us by othersimihose entities, particularly during the perindvhich this annual report is being
prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financigloréing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed under our supervjsioprovide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financiglaging and the preparation of financial statemémt&xternal purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisiannual report our conclusions about the &ffeness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the pexwered by this annual report based on such atiafy and

d) disclosed in this annual report any change érégistrant’s internal control over financial refoirg that occurred during the registrant’s moserg quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeatt, the registrant’s internal control over finacieporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiimternal control over financial reporting, teetregistrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directonsgersons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal comtvelr financial reporting which are reasonably lljke adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summasizd report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a significle in the registrant’s internal controls ofierancial reporting.
Dated: March 18, 201 By: /s/David W. Fry

David W. Fry
Executive Vice President, Treasurer Chief Financial Office



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Flushingddicial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Form K@er the year ending December 31, 2012 as fileith wie Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Repolif"Jjohn R. Buran, Chief Executive Officer of ther@aration, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti@50, as adopted pursuant to Section 9(
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowéedg

(1) The Report fully complies with the requivents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlyapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the @ogpion.
By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Buran

Chief Executive Officer
March 18, 2013



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Flushingddicial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Form K@er the year ending December 31, 2012 as fileith wie Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), lyidaw. Fry, Chief Financial Officer of the Corpoiat, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowéedg

(1) The Report fully complies with the requivents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlyapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the @ogpion.
By: /s/David W. Fry
David W. Fry

Chief Financial Officer
March 18, 2013



